
 
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 
 

 
5:30 pm STUDY SESSION

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address.  
Prior to addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to 
Council/Agency Board and appropriate staff. 

 
SS-1 2015 Goals and Objectives (Laws) 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION

This time has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (4).  Based on the advice of the City Attorney, discussion in open session 
concerning these matters would prejudice the position of the City in this litigation.  The Mayor will give an additional 
oral report regarding the Closed Session at the beginning of the next regular City Council meeting. 

 
No Closed Session 
 

In the event that not all the items on the closed session agenda have been deliberated in the time provided, the City 
Council may continue the closed session at the end of the regularly scheduled Council Meeting. 

  

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

JOINT LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 “C” STREET 
February 17, 2015 



Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 

 
7:30 pm REGULAR SESSION 

 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
c. INVOCATION 
d. CLOSED SESSION REPORT(S) 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name.  Prior to 
addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to Council/Agency 
Board and appropriate staff. 
 

 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 
No Ceremonial / Presentations 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – February 3, 2015 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – February 12, 2015 
2-3  Approval – Interim City Manager Employment Agreement with Ron Hoggard 
2-4 Approval – Resolution 2015-03 Adopting Updated Salary Schedule for 2012-2013, 

2013-2014 and 2014-2015 
2-5 Approval – Amendment No. 1 to the General Association of Service Employees 

Memorandum of Understanding 
2-6 Approval – 2015 Goals and Objectives 
2-7 Approval – 2014 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program Grant 
2-8 Approval – Bid Award – 2014 Resurfacing Project 
2-9 Approval – Kings County Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – 

Resolution 2015-04 
2-10 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable 

Obligation Payment Schedule – February 12, 2015 
  



 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

No Public Hearings 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Report and Recommendation – Successor Agency Recognized Obligation Payment 

Schedule for July 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 (ROPS 15-16A) (Silva) 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Lemoore Chamber of Commerce Proposed 

Agreement for Economic Development Services – $280,000 (Laws) 
4-3 Informational Only – Planning Update (Holwell) 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE: Pursuant to Government Code §54954.3(a), public comments may be directed to the legislative body concerning any 
item contained on the agenda for this meeting before or during consideration of the item.  Those wishing to address Council on an 
item shall be limited to between 3-5 minutes and if a large group, the Mayor may request that individuals provide only new 
information not presented by another person. 
 
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In 
addition, most documents will be posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com.  

 
Tentative Future Agenda Items 

March 3rd 
PH – Public Nuisance (Smith) 
PH – Traffic Survey (Smith) 
Foot Golf (Simonson) 
PAL Program (Simonson) 
Golf Course Budget and Update (Simonson) 
 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
 

I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above City Council/ Redevelopment Successor Agency Agenda for the meeting of February 17, 2015 at 
City Hall, 119 Fox Street St., Lemoore, CA on February 13, 2015. 
 
          //s//     
Mary J. Venegas 
City Clerk 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559)  924-6700 
  Fax (559)  924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. SS-1
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 11, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 2015 Goals and Objectives 

 
Discussion 
 
On January 23, 2015 Council held a special meeting to discuss the 2015 Goals and 
Objectives.  Changes were discussed and agreed upon at the meeting.  All changes have 
been made and are incorporated into the attached.  The 2013 Goals and Objectives are 
alongside the proposed 2015 Goals and Objectives.  The changes made are indicated. 
 
 
Budget Impact 
 
No budget impact. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the City Council review and discuss any changes they would like to the 2015 Goals 
and Objectives.  This item will be brought back during the regular session for approval. 

















1 
 

Item 2-1 
 

 
 
 

February 3, 2015 Minutes 
Study Session Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 5:33 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 

 
ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: WYNNE 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: CHEDESTER 

 Council/Board Members: MADRIGAL, NEAL, SIEGEL 
 
City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Laws; City Attorney Wolfe; Parks 
and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director Silva; Police Chief Smith; City Clerk 
Venegas. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT

 
John Gordon asked for clarification on an email exchange between himself and Mayor Pro Tem 
Chedester regarding his motion on the Lemoore Cemetery fence.  Mr. Chedester said he made 
the motion to allow the barbed wire if it were permissible in the code.  Mr. Gordon also spoke with 
City Manager Laws asking who would make the decision if the barbed wire was allowed.  City 
Manager Laws said the Public Works/Planning Director, City Attorney and himself made the 
decision the barbed wire was allowed as the Lemoore Cemetery district falls within an open area, 
which is undefined and very vague, and would be allowed.  Mr. Gordon stated the Lemoore 
Cemetery District is zoned as a community facility, not as an open space and the decision making 
of allowing the barbed wire is erroneous.  In addition, it is within a foot of the residential area and 
per the code it states barbed wire is not allowed.  The decision making appears to be erroneous. 
 
Mr. Gordon encouraged the City not to spend money to modify the fence as his clients would be 
filing suit if the intent of the City were to leave the barbed wire fence as the barbed wire would 
decreases the value of the homeowner’s property.  He also commented on the interest of the 
people who spoke during this agenda item at the last meeting. 
 
Mr. Gordon said he would be filing against the Lemoore Cemetery District and during the 
discovery process he would have the opportunity to depose every individual in this decision 
making process.  
 
City Attorney Wolfe suggested this item be looked at further.  City Manager Laws said no money 
has been spent on this issue.  Mr. Gordon asked for a time line as well as a written response so 
that he can properly advise his clients. 
 
City Attorney Wolfe advised we would look at Mr. Gordon’s comments, we will come to a definite 
conclusion and the City Manager will issue a conclusion. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
STUDY SESSION – Section SS

 
SS-1 City Manager Recruitment 
 
City Manager Laws informed Council they approved the in-house recruitment of the City Manager 
position at the last Council meeting.  City Council said there were no changes to the recruitment 
flyer. 
 
Connie Wlaschin spoke. 
 
This item is on the 7:30pm agenda as an action item. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

There was no Public Comment. 
 
At 5:53 p.m. Council adjourned to Closed Session. 

 
CLOSED SESSION

 
1. Public Employee Appointment/Employment 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
 Title:  Interim City Manager 
  

 
ADJOURNMENT

At 7:16 p.m. Council adjourned. 

 
 

February 3, 2015 Minutes 
Regular Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: WYNNE 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: CHEDESTER 

 Council/Board Members: MADRIGAL, NEAL, SIEGEL 
 

City Staff and contract employees present:  City Manager Laws; City Attorney Wolfe; Public 
Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director 
Silva; Police Chief Smith; Project Manager Holwell; Quad Knopf Planner Joyner; City Clerk 
Venegas. 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT from Closed Session 

There was no announcement. 
 



3 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Connie Wlaschin requested an update on CrisCom, an update on how the golf course is doing as 
well as the balance of the general fund. 
 
City Manager Laws said the general fund is at approximately $8 million, the golf course update 
will be at the next meeting and CrisCom has introduced Judy Holwell to many people that we 
would not normally meet.  It is looking good. 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chambers is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 
 
1-1 Lemoore Police Department Corporal Promotional Ceremony 
 
Chief Smith administered the Oath of Office to Police Corporal Alvaro Santos.  He was pinned 
with a new badge by his wife, Maria. 
 
1-2 Employee of the Quarter – 4th Quarter of 2014 
 
Community Service Officer Soledad Perez was named Employee of the 4th Quarter 2014. 
 
Council adjourned for a short break at 7:44 p.m. 
Council re-adjourned at 7:57 p.m. 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 

 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – January 20, 2015 
2-2 Approval – Minutes – Special Meeting – January 23, 2015  
2-3 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – January 30, 2015 
2-4 Approval – City Manager Recruitment 
2-5 Approval – Budget Adjustment – Purchase of Automated Refuse Containers and 
 Dumpsters 
2-6 Approval – Agreement between the City of Lemoore and Paragon Partners for 
 Consultant Services on 19 ½ Avenue Right-of-Way 
2-7 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable 
 Obligation Payment Schedule – January 30, 2015 
 
Motion by Council Member Chedester, seconded by Council Member Madrigal, to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented. 
 
Ayes: Chedester, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel, Wynne 



4 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 AB 1600 Development Impact Fees Annual Report FY 13/14 
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:59 p.m. 
Connie Wlaschin spoke. 
Public Hearing closed at 8:02 p.m. 
 
Motion by Council Member Chedester, seconded by Council Member Neal, to accept and file the 
FY13/14 Development Impact Fee Annual Report as required by Government Code section 
66006. 
 
Ayes: Chedester, Neal, Madrigal, Siegel, Wynne 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Informational – Lemoore Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer Review 
 
The Lemoore Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer Review found that the RDA had 
unallowable transfers to the City totaling $1,045,132 after January 1, 2011.  However, on March 
19, 2013 the City turned over $645,132 and $43,654 respectively, in cash, to the Successor 
Agency.  Therefore, the remaining $356,346 in unallowable transfer must be turned over to the 
Successor Agency.  The $356,346 will be included with the mid-year budget adjustments. 
 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Mid-Year Budget Adjustments 
 
Motion by Council Member Chedester, seconded by Council Member Madrigal, to approve the 
described recommended 2014-2015 budget adjustments. 
 
Ayes: Chedester, Madrigal, Neal, Siegel, Wynne 
 
4-3 Report and Recommendation – Agreement between West Hills College and 

Lemoore Police Department for a Campus Police Officer 
 
Don Warkentin, President of West Hills College Lemoore spoke. 
Holly Blair spoke. 
 
Motion by Council Member Siegel, seconded by Council Member Madrigal, to authorize the City 
Manager and Chief of Police to enter into an agreement with West Hills College as outlined under 
the attached Agreement, authorize the purchase of a new patrol vehicle and all necessary 
equipment, and authorize all necessary budget adjustments associated with the agreement and 
vehicle purchase. 
 
Ayes: Siegel, Madrigal, Neal, Chedester, Wynne 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
There were no Department reports. 



5 
 

 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
There were no City Manager reports. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 
Council Member Siegel and Council Member Madrigal spoke with Assessor Kristine Lee 
regarding the non-profit organization that money is taken from one of the College Park 
neighborhoods and sent out of town.  They asked for an address or a tract number in order to 
look further into this situation.  Mayor Wynne stated she believed this was actually Lennar Homes 
and not College Park.  City Manager Laws said he provide a couple example of the homes that 
have had to pay this fee. 
 
Council Member Siegel took a picture of a stand selling peanuts in front of FAST Credit Union but 
it did not seem like that vending unit was allowed.  There were some changes to the code but 
need to verify what is allowed and not allowed. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT

 
At 9:13 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas     Lois Wynne, Mayor 
City Clerk 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/12/2015 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4211 − CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4291     MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES   
8 /15 02/12/15 21 02052015     2236 LEMOORE RDA SUCC 356,346.00 .00 ASSET TRANSFER
TOTAL    MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES .00 356,346.00 .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21 30168 5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL 1,285.00 .00 PROF SERVICES/JAN 15     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 1,285.00 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 357,631.00 .00

RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:55 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-2



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             XJMJ82TW7    2454 DELL COMPUTER CO                 83.20               .00 COLDC3 TAPES             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             83.20               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             0123215      6167 KINGS COUNTY ELE              5,472.92               .00 ELECTION FEES            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             30168        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              4,274.58               .00 PROF SERVICES/JAN 15     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          9,747.50               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             99           2836 THE BODY SHOP HE                200.00               .00 MEMBERSHIP FEE/FEB       
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            200.00               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             16009        0536 STERLING CODIFIE                500.00               .00 2015 HOSTING FEES        
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            500.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183448 5516 AT&T                            109.25               .00 559−925−8544             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183450 5516 AT&T                              9.38               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            118.63               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             MAR 10−13    5160 MAUREEN KANE & A              1,500.00               .00 TECHNICAL TRAINING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             MAR 10−13    2774 MISSION INN HOTE                489.64               .00 LODGING FOR TRAINING     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             MAR 10−13    T812 MARY JANE VENEGA                 88.00               .00 PER DIEM/TRAINING        
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00          2,077.64               .00

4825AR   MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                    788.72               .00 COMUPTER CONSULTING      
TOTAL    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE                                .00            788.72               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00         13,515.69               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:56                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             XJMJ82TW7    2454 DELL COMPUTER CO                 83.19               .00 COLDC3 TAPES             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             83.19               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                    278.74               .00 COMUPTER CONSULTING      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            278.74               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183450 5516 AT&T                             11.71               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             11.71               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00            373.64               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:56                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194333      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.06               .00 TOG SWITCH               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194463      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.49               .00 ALL PUR JT COMP          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194707      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.49               .00 GALVANIZED PIPE          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217090      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 62.93               .00 DOOR STOP/BATTERIES      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194988      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.54               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195045      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 CAULK                    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217430      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.53               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217538      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.69               .00 BARRELL BOLT             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195359      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 42.99               .00 SOCK BOOT                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217756      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                101.56               .00 TRIMMER LINE             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195557      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 33.29               .00 PLIERS/HOSE HANGER       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             619−36296820 1547 UNISOURCE                       303.58               .00 SANITARY SUPPLIES        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             751520041001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     27.44               .00 PENS/TOWELETTES          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195630      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                243.27               .00 CONCRETE MIX             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218553      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 24.71               .00 ACETONE                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218529      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.61               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217853      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.26               .00 CORN BROOM               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218166      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.00               .00 X−FINE GRAPHITE          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A196020      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                642.85               .00 BLADES                   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             4238−5       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                432.37               .00 PAINT/RECYCLING FEE      
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,008.81               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             751634228001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     72.10               .00 CABNET/KEY               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             751634227001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    −72.10               .00 RTN INV#750100863001     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00               .00               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             47622        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE                541.17               .00 WEEKLY MAINTENANCE       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             47623        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE                150.00               .00 WEEKLY MAINTENANCE       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             47624        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE                458.33               .00 WEEKLY MAINTENANCE       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             47625        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE                549.75               .00 WEEKLY MAINTENANCE       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             47626        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE                188.91               .00 WEEKLY MAINTENANCE       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             47627        5638 SHINEN LANDSCAPE                600.00               .00 WEEKLY MAINTENANCE       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             15572        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              3,627.00               .00 HEALTH RISK REPORT       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             15568        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              2,937.00               .00 4TH QRTR REPORT          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             15554        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              7,868.08               .00 DECEMBER SERVICES        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282735   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       67.50               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287488   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       67.50               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292333   2653 AMERIPRIDE                      103.79               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296982   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       67.50               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282736   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MATS                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287490   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MATS                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292334   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MATS                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296983   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       11.55               .00 MATS                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     T1502 SANTOS MAYA                    261.00               .00 WEEKEND ATTENDANT        

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:56                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC (cont’d)
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                     79.55               .00 COMUPTER CONSULTING      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         17,613.28               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN**7106804 0363 P G & E                       1,077.74               .00 12/31/14−01/29/15        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN**6096369 0363 P G & E                       6,553.98               .00 12/17/14−01/16/15        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              2.59               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          7,634.31               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             22849        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   295.50               .00 REMOVE TREE LIGHTS       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             23383        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   197.00               .00 CIVIC/POWER PROBLEM      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             21866        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 2,379.73               .00 19TH AVE/WATER LEAK      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             21868        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,620.00               .00 19TH AVE/RPR LABOR       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             23245        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   274.78               .00 19TH AVE/CONDUITS        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             2140         5332 PREP−RIGHT PAINT                475.00               .00 PAINT CITY HALL DOOR     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          5,242.01               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             247          6239 COUNTY OF KINGS                 120.00               .00 TRAINING REGISTRATION    
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            120.00               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         32,618.41               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −01 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE              1,623.44         −1,912.00 5.56MM MARKER ROUND BOLT 
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −02 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE              1,827.22         −2,152.00 5.56MM MARKER ROUND, 2 CA
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −03 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE                713.23           −840.00 FOF FORCE TWO MASK       
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −04 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE                226.87           −267.20 FORCE ON FORCE NECK ARMOR
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −05 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE                248.20           −292.32 FORCE ON FORCE GROIN PROT
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −06 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE                347.92           −409.76 TAX                      
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6807    −07 615917       0531 SAN DIEGO POLICE                 93.40           −110.00 FREIGHT                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             226980       5416 PRO FORCE LAW EN                141.58               .00 TSR BLACKHAWK            
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          5,221.86         −5,983.28

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             68304        5992 PDM CORPORATION               3,980.00               .00 DIGITAL RECORDER         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             78289796     1054 MOTOROLA                        147.50               .00 FEBRUARY SERVICES        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                    184.55               .00 COMUPTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN 15 SRVCS 0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               4,481.24               .00 TECH COMM SERVICES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             0899708      6368 SAN JOAQUIN PEST                 75.00               .00 657 FOX ST               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             78291615     1054 MOTOROLA                        147.50               .00 MARCH SERVICES           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             30168        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                256.52               .00 PROF SERVICES/JAN 15     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          9,272.31               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02022015     6230 CLEARS                           50.00               .00 MEMBERSHIP/L.ROCHA       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN21−22     6386 AUBREE KARKULA                   74.00               .00 PER DIEM/TRAINING        
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            124.00               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN SERVICES 0772 COUNTY OF KINGS                 290.06               .00 PRINT SHOP               
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            290.06               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             9739015962   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                882.73               .00 DEC 17− JAN16            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183445 5516 AT&T                             72.57               .00 559−925−1363             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183447 5516 AT&T                            316.62               .00 559−925−6800             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006171599 5516 AT&T                            189.45               .00 234−267−8470             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             9739758976   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                730.34               .00 JAN 02−FEB 01            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          2,191.71               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             FEB 23−27    6376 DARRELL SMITH                   247.00               .00 PER DIEM/TRAINING        
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            247.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             271799140    5842 U.S.  BANCORP EQ                168.16               .00 PD PRINTER               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             324525       1817 C.A. REDING COMP                280.21               .00 PD PRINTER               
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            448.37               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4840AR   AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE 
4840AR   AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             122886       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA                 50.00               .00 UNIT #38 LABOR           
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6872    −01 122809       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA             10,027.15        −10,027.15 DODGE UNIT #42 UPFIT     
8 /15 02/12/15 21 6872    −02 122809       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA                676.68           −676.68 SALES TAX                
TOTAL    AUTOS/TRKS ASSET REPLACE                                .00         10,753.83        −10,703.83

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         28,549.14        −16,687.11

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195112      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.36               .00 PLASTIC PAIL/LID         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194966      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.02               .00 TAP WRENCH               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217822      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 16.96               .00 COUNTER BRUSH            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195501      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.34               .00 MOP HEAD/HANDLE          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7363         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                  258.00               .00 LVFD JACKETS             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            346.68               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             09477        0061 BOB’S AUTO PARTS                  8.55               .00 BULB/LVFD #9             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109371  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                126.31               .00 BATTERY/TERM PROT        
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            134.86               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                     13.98               .00 COMUPTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282744   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       22.12               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287499   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       52.59               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292342   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       22.12               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296989   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       52.59               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN2015      0313 LEMOORE VOLUNTEE              7,965.00               .00 JAN MONTHLY CALLS        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          8,128.40               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006171602 5516 AT&T                             93.60               .00 234−371−7008             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183450 5516 AT&T                              7.82               .00 559−925−9790             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183450 5516 AT&T                              4.68               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            106.10               .00

4365     WEED ABATEMENT           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             2015−5       5758 MARK FERNANDES                2,450.00               .00 WEED ABATEMENT SRVCS     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             2            5758 MARK FERNANDES                2,150.00               .00 WEED ABATMENT SRVCS      
TOTAL    WEED ABATEMENT                                          .00          4,600.00               .00

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             122583       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA              1,358.03               .00 MOUNTING KIT/FORD        
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00          1,358.03               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         14,674.07               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             751181360001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     19.34               .00 3 PART PAPER             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             19.34               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                      7.16               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              7.16               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              2.59               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              2.59               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00             29.09               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             30168        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              2,070.00               .00 PROF SERVICES/JAN 15     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                     14.44               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79014        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 53.73               .00 FEMA                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             001043450    0276 KLEINFELDER INC.              2,100.00               .00 LEMOORE AVE/GOLF LINK    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79019        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                216.78               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,454.95               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             234−60006861 6080 LEE CENTRAL CALI                 82.25               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00             82.25               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              3.45               .00 559−925−2806             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183450 5516 AT&T                              7.82               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             11.27               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00          4,548.47               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4231 − STREETS                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             2015077      5306 T&T PAVEMENT MAR              1,041.25               .00 STREET SIGNS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             6739         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   96.75               .00 DECALS                   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             2877−445384  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                 67.54               .00 CABLE SPLCE/CABLE TIE    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,205.54               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             3032342      1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS               1,732.69               .00 SIGNAL LGHT BATTERIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             3032348      1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS               1,732.69               .00 SIGNAL LGHT BATTERIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             2015102      5306 T&T PAVEMENT MAR              1,129.73               .00 NUMBERS/VINYL SIGNS      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          4,595.11               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN**0464835 0363 P G & E                          50.32               .00 12/31/14−01/29/15        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN**8045532 0363 P G & E                         113.37               .00 12/31/14−01/29/15        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            163.69               .00

TOTAL    STREETS                                                 .00          5,964.34               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:57                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217647      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 19.29               .00 KEYBLANK                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     5169 NEWMAN−GARCIA PH                450.00               .00 PHOTOGRAPHY/DANCE        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             752820591001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     54.59               .00 STAPLER/ENVELOPES        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             18768        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                 23.65               .00 CHESS TRNMNT/TROPHY      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7556         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   21.50               .00 DANCE/SOCCER POSTERS     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7558         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                   53.75               .00 ROYAL POLOS              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218375      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 13.50               .00 FARM PRODUCTS            
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            636.28               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                     23.93               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1551         6099 BOCKYN,LLC                      250.00               .00 MAR 15 SOFTWARE MAINT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     5827 MUSIC SPECTRUM E                400.00               .00 01/16 CLUB 78 DANCE      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     5827 MUSIC SPECTRUM E                400.00               .00 01/30 CLUB LIVE DANCE    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     5827 MUSIC SPECTRUM E                350.00               .00 02/07 FATHER/DAUGHTER    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,423.93               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00          2,060.21               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00        459,964.06        −16,687.11

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:58                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726R − 19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79012        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              2,338.56               .00 CIP#10−19 1/2 SIDEWLK    
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          2,338.56               .00

TOTAL    19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE                               .00          2,338.56               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00          2,338.56               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:58                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 034 − GAS TAX SECTION 2103     
BUDGET UNIT − 4734D − STREET OVERLAYS 14/15    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79010        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              3,950.50               .00 CIP#2 STREET OVERLAYS    
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          3,950.50               .00

TOTAL    STREET OVERLAYS 14/15                                   .00          3,950.50               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION 2103                                    .00          3,950.50               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:58                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391530       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                720.27               .00 AIR FITLERS              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110030  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 72.92               .00 AIR FILTER               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218307      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 PLAS SPREADER            
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            798.34               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             131026       0043 BURROWS & CASTAD              6,548.39               .00 CARDLOCK STATEMENT       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00          6,548.39               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322399       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                208.48               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322241       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE              1,476.32               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322027       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                106.54               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322125       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                147.61               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322071       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                738.16               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322070       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                894.15               .00 RECAP TIRE/MOUNT         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322069       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                108.13               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             321832       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                749.36               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322844       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                446.65               .00 RECAP TIRE/MOUNT         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322142       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 80.14               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322960       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE              1,036.03               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322924       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                223.37               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT & MOUNT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391550       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 16.80               .00 FLASHER                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391560       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 15.16               .00 LAMP                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391578       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 28.97               .00 OIL/AIR/ FUEL FIILTER    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391591       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 24.62               .00 F/P/T/ LAMP              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391610       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 54.34               .00 OIL/FUEL/AIR FILTER      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391626       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 10.47               .00 OIL SEAL                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391636       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  8.48               .00 FUEL FILTER              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391751       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 67.32               .00 TENSIONER ASSY/IDLER     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391992       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 50.45               .00 SERP BELT                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391994       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                116.92               .00 SERPINTINE/IDLER/BELT    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391997       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 35.65               .00 TENSIONER ASSY           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392022       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 16.35               .00 LAMP                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392107       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                197.97               .00 BEARING/CONE/OIL SEAL    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392123       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 19.31               .00 ROUND MIRROR             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392159       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 10.36               .00 OIL SEAL                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392161       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 24.93               .00 OIL SEAL                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             0101325      6566 ZAP WORLD                       216.50               .00 DELTA Q CHARGER          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110493  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 40.31               .00 HYD HOSE/8G−8MP          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110719  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 27.89               .00 WHEEL SPINNER/EMBLEM     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110720  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 13.96               .00 WHEEL SPINNER            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−104262  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 29.01               .00 LOCKNUT/HEX              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             64552        6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                382.17               .00 PUMP WASH/HOSE/SHIELD    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             F669859      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                601.71               .00 CLUTCH FAN/VALVE         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             F670571      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                 39.74               .00 TUBING                   

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:58                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES     (cont’d)
8 /15 02/12/15 21             15043200     1937 FORK LIFT SPECIA                 81.10               .00 WAND/SPRAY GUN           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1335488      0345 MORGAN & SLATES                   4.84               .00 STEEL REMNANT            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A196192      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 68.78               .00 SCREW DR SPRING          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             0070180−IN   4015 OLD DOMINION BRU                 55.22               .00 FRAME TAB                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             P131027      0361 ORTON’S EQUIPMEN                360.14               .00 FILTERS                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5721         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                 25.80               .00 DUPLICATE KEYS           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110288  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 57.31               .00 LIFT SUPPORT/BELTS       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109858  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 65.61               .00 HYD HOSE/8G−8FJX         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109875  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                106.54               .00 HYD HOSE/16G−16FJX       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109331  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 94.34               .00 HYD HOSE                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             66647        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                 316.30               .00 LATCH ARM                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             66649        0535 RUCKSTELL CALIF                 211.19               .00 PROX SWITCH              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             CALEM13415   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 47.84               .00 HOLE SAW                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             50035775     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                501.51               .00 FUEL PUMP ASSY           
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00         10,260.85               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                     39.76               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282733   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       44.33               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287484   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       44.33               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292330   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       44.33               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296981   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       44.33               .00 UNIFORMS                 
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            217.08               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              2.16               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              2.16               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             14657        6012 MCCANN & SON’S H              1,127.58               .00 UNIT #114 REPAIR         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322821       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 TIRE REPAIR              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322781       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 TIRE REPAIR              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             322780       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 85.00               .00 TIRE REPAIR              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             321697       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 TIRE REPAIR              
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,268.08               .00

4825AR   MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             23382        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   197.00               .00 BATTERY CHARGER          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             23379        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,567.69               .00 FORKLIFT BATTERY         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             48910        1277 GRAYLIFT, INC.                  176.57               .00 KEY SETS                 
TOTAL    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE                                .00          1,941.26               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         21,036.16               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         21,036.16               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:58                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4000P    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP 

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:58                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4000P    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             925658602    6476 CALLAWAY                        937.51               .00 GOLF BALLS               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             900057142    6450 TITLEIST                      1,816.36               .00 GOLF BALLS               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             004135944    6558 THE ANTIGUA GROU                342.70               .00 YOUTH/MENS TOPS          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             967874308    6452 NIKE USA, INC.                  936.00               .00 GOLF BALLS               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             967837102    6452 NIKE USA, INC.                  468.10               .00 GOLF SHOES               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             967837101    6452 NIKE USA, INC.                  468.10               .00 GOLF SHOES               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             DP841699     6565 DORFMAN PACIFIC                 519.94               .00 HATS                     
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP                                .00          5,488.71               .00

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             619−36298290 1547 UNISOURCE                       114.64               .00 SANITARY SUPPLIES        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195202      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 39.71               .00 PAINT PAIL/ROLL KIT      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195208      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 24.37               .00 CONDUIT/COUPLING         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217648      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 29.61               .00 KEYBLANK/DOOR STOP       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217655      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                −11.80               .00 RTN ADP BR               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217178      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  7.39               .00 ARM & HAMMER             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194944      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                233.59               .00 KEYBLANK/OUTLET          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B216590      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                128.86               .00 LOCKSET/HEAD LAMP        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B216732      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.48               .00 ZINC NOZZLE              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217158      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.55               .00 MAGNET KEYHOLDER/TAPE    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217208      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 60.08               .00 KEYBLANK/TAG/RING        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195037      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 58.02               .00 KEYBLANK/NUTS/BOLTS      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A196025      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                195.62               .00 DRYWALL KNIFE/HEATER     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A196063      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 26.85               .00 PLUNGER/BRUSH CADDY      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217903      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 45.34               .00 CHALK PAINT/ROLL KIT     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218291      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 52.20               .00 REFUSE CAN/CLEANER       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,053.51               .00

4220M    OPERATING SUPPLIES MAINT.
8 /15 02/12/15 21             76302        6523 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 93.94               .00 COUPLING/TAPE/FLAGS      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             76367        6523 WEST VALLEY SUPP                  8.49               .00 COUPLING                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             062418       6483 SOUTHERN LINKS I                231.39               .00 SWIVEL ADAPTER           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             062422       6483 SOUTHERN LINKS I                 41.87               .00 YELLOW BRAIDED ROPE      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             0069866−IN   6501 EASY PICKER GOLF                138.74               .00 GREEN/WHITE SIGNS        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             8679768      6206 WILBUR−ELLIS COM                255.86               .00 PENCROSS SEED/CLEANER    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             87809        6522 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                 10.62               .00 THROTTLE CABLE/FILTER    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             89488        6522 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                 24.06               .00 FUEL PUMP                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             88702        6522 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                823.17               .00 CABLE/SWITCH/LGHT BAR    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             062380       6483 SOUTHERN LINKS I                315.83               .00 GOPHER TRAPS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             IN01416627   2854 CCP INDUSTRIES                   90.12               .00 FILTER/RESPIRATOR N95    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110862  6526 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 25.12               .00 LECTRA−MOTIVE CLEANER    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110399  6526 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                195.05               .00 TERMINAL/OIL/BATTERY     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110315  6526 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 24.16               .00 BELT                     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109733  6526 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                263.83               .00 FLOOD LAMPS/SWITCHES     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109323  6526 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                133.66               .00 BATTERY CABLE LUG        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES MAINT.                               .00          2,675.91               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:59                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220M    OPERATING SUPPLIES MAINT. (cont’d)

4220P    OPERATING SUPPLIES−PRO SH
8 /15 02/12/15 21             00437181     6473 TEAM GOLF                       117.00               .00 STAND BAG                
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES−PRO SH                               .00            117.00               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217755      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 23.64               .00 SURGE PROTECTOR          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195556      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.26               .00 APPL CORD                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A196019      6541 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.47               .00 FLIP COVER/WORK BOX      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00             50.37               .00

4291     MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             208852       6441 COURSETRENDS, IN                295.00               .00 MARKETING SERVICE        
TOTAL    MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES                                  .00            295.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN*83669778 0363 P G & E                         358.16               .00 12/30/14−01/28/15        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN*72081077 0363 P G & E                           9.86               .00 12/30/14−01/28/15        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006156733 5516 AT&T                             19.63               .00 559−924−1330             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006156736 5516 AT&T                             15.42               .00 559−924−6317             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006156738 5516 AT&T                             91.17               .00 559−924−9658             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN**7439240 0363 P G & E                       2,235.46               .00 01/06/15−02/04/15        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          2,729.70               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             80967129     6480 SIMPLEXGRINEELL                 295.38               .00 HOOD INSPECTION          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             23369        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   111.91               .00 TRBLSHT LAMPS/BATH       
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            407.29               .00

4850     CIP                      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5716         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                  6.88               .00 DUPLICATE KEYS           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             4187−4       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                491.28               .00 PAINT PRIMER             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             9648490796   0521 GRAINGER                         29.06               .00 EXIT/RESTROOM SIGNS      
TOTAL    CIP                                                     .00            527.22               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE−CITY                                        .00         13,344.71               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                      .00         13,344.71               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:46:59                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             28855031     0205 HELENA CHEMICAL                 245.77               .00 ROUNDUP                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1055783      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR              2,327.30               .00 2050 BRZ HYD             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109499  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  3.21               .00 BLUE ROLL TOWEL          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218157      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.56               .00 ELECTRICAL TAPE          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218524      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 64.49               .00 HID SPOTLIGHT            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B218554      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.68               .00 EXTENSION CORD           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B216734      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 26.86               .00 EXTENSION CORD           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194914      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.13               .00 PAINT REMOVER            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195120      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.83               .00 CONCRETE MIX             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195633      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 19.88               .00 GAS CAN                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194469      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 64.47               .00 HEATER                   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194721      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 11.28               .00 DUCT TAPE                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B216696      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.25               .00 FLOOD BULB               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194560      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.44               .00 BATTERIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195153      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.69               .00 WHITE PAINT              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217710      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.90               .00 WHITE PAINT/SANDPAPER    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217743      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 20.29               .00 WD40 LUBRICANT           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195598      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 −5.59               .00 KNIFE/KNIFE BLADES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195599      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.49               .00 HOLE SAW                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195560      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 33.50               .00 XXL COVERALLS            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195592      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.35               .00 COUPLING/TAPE/GASKET     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             FO818023     6058 UNIVAR                        1,135.47               .00 SODIUM.FUEL.MILL FEE     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             FO818391     6058 UNIVAR                        1,290.53               .00 SODIUM.FUEL.MILL FEE     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             FO818392     6058 UNIVAR                        1,029.11               .00 SODIUM.FUEL.MILL FEE     
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          6,376.89               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−104740  6526 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  3.20               .00 WIRING CLIP              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             76293        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 78.78               .00 COUPLING                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             76323        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 48.48               .00 SEWER PVC/PIPE           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             76260        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 70.63               .00 RUBBER GASKET/PVC        
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195461      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.63               .00 PLUMBING DEPT            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217709      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.70               .00 CUP HOOK                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194713      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 25.32               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194482      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.07               .00 1−1/4 90 DEG ELBOW       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1020476356   6564 BEN MEADOWS                     307.72               .00 REPLCMENT WINDSOCK       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195155      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 SPARK PLUG               
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195572      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.42               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195868      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 50.25               .00 HARDWARE                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109437  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 38.90               .00 WIRE NUTS/TAPE/SWITCH    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             156466−1     0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                 58.70               .00 LF 1 BRS ST 90           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1059554      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                  9.48               .00 RING GASKET              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1059288      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                564.55               .00 RUBBER MTR WASHER        
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,281.98               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:00                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                    177.39               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79019        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                216.78               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A501612      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A501817      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A426534      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 30.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A502658      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282737   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       41.23               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287493   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       41.23               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292337   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       42.73               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296985   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       41.23               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A500247      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                255.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A500314      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A500632      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                102.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A500654      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 10.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A500851      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 17.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A500910      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A501173      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123292      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                160.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             78988        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                998.50               .00 TTHM PROGRAM             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A501973      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                120.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A502279      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                126.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A502387      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                 20.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A502389      1397 BSK ANALYTICAL L                255.00               .00 WATER TESTING            
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,074.09               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006171600 5516 AT&T                             97.84               .00 234−371−3714             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              3.02               .00 559−925−2806             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183449 5516 AT&T                             17.27               .00 559−925−9481             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            118.13               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             80605        0434 TELSTAR INSTRUME                535.00               .00 TRBLESHT LOW VOLTAGE     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            535.00               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         11,386.09               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:00                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             SL1281839    6560 SELECT STAFFING                 580.00               .00 STAFF/TAPIA              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                    212.12               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            792.12               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183450 5516 AT&T                              8.59               .00 559−925−9790             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              8.59               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00            800.71               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         12,186.80               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:00                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 056 − REFUSE                   
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             170141       6274 CONSOLIDATED FAB                 55.83               .00 STANDARD LIDS            
8 /15 02/12/15 21             170220       6274 CONSOLIDATED FAB                197.33               .00 CHANNEL GUSSETS          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B217741      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.57               .00 WIPES/SHOP TOWELS        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            268.73               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−110879  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                115.53               .00 FLAT WASHER/WIRE         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109304  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                125.19               .00 WIRE/GRIND WHEEL         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             7459−109977  0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                107.49               .00 WIRE                     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            348.21               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02022015     0234 KINGS WASTE AND              73,434.17               .00 JANUARY SERVICES         
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                      4.77               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5188         6543 KINGS INDUSTRIAL                 70.00               .00 DRUG SCREENING           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282748   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       41.23               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287504   2653 AMERIPRIDE                      134.45               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292344   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       45.57               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296990   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       52.07               .00 UNIFORMS                 
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         73,782.26               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              1.72               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              1.72               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         74,400.92               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         74,400.92               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:00                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194466      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 19.33               .00 BATTERIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194576      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 26.82               .00 PIPE INSULATION/TAPE     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B216777      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.36               .00 PIPE INSULATION          
8 /15 02/12/15 21             B216607      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.61               .00 MP OIL                   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A195022      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 12.88               .00 BLEACH                   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A194937      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.66               .00 THREADLOCKER             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             15607        0460 VALLEY PUMP & DA                 53.75               .00 SPLICE KITS              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392098       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 45.03               .00 GREASE                   
8 /15 02/12/15 21             392099       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 13.43               .00 CABLE TIE                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             391634       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  6.82               .00 CH LUBE                  
8 /15 02/12/15 21             A196038      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.51               .00 SLIP CAP/TOOL BIN        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            204.20               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             C09774       5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                414.51               .00 FTG COUTNER              
8 /15 02/12/15 21             C10027       5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT               −414.51               .00 RTN INV#C09774           
8 /15 02/12/15 21             95295        0428 STONEY’S SAND &                 197.34               .00 CEDAR BASIN COBBLES      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            197.34               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123158      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123178      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123310      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                115.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123311      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                175.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123513      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123650      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123705      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                110.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123749      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123771      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                575.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123772      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                210.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123966      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123983      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123267      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501282742   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       43.40               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501287498   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       47.25               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501292341   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       57.34               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1501296987   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       47.25               .00 UNIFORMS                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             1918         5183 BRYCE JENSEN                      2.39               .00 COMPUTER CONSULTING      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             5123179      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                110.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79019        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                216.78               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
8 /15 02/12/15 21             78985        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              2,199.31               .00 LEPRINO                  
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,468.72               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02042015     6200 AT&T                             35.08               .00 559−924−2491             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JAN**4890076 0363 P G & E                      12,446.34               .00 12/19/14−01/20/15        

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                 (cont’d)
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183446 5516 AT&T                              1.72               .00 559−925−2806             
8 /15 02/12/15 21             000006183706 5516 AT&T                             16.93               .00 559−925−8587             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         12,500.07               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             010349       3095 CRUSHA MOTOR & E              1,347.50               .00 SEWER PUMP REWIND        
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,347.50               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
8 /15 02/12/15 21             236          6239 COUNTY OF KINGS                  60.00               .00 TRAINING REGISTRATION    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             245          6239 COUNTY OF KINGS                  70.00               .00 TRAINING REGISTRATION    
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            130.00               .00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00         18,847.83               .00

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00         18,847.83               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 065 − STREETS CAP − EAST       
BUDGET UNIT − 4721B − CEDAR LANE EXT EAST      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
8 /15 02/12/15 21             79013        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              3,925.44               .00 C/O CEDAR LANE           
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          3,925.44               .00

TOTAL    CEDAR LANE EXT EAST                                     .00          3,925.44               .00

TOTAL    STREETS CAP − EAST                                      .00          3,925.44               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             16842        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE              3,600.00               .00 JAN LANDSCAPE SRVC       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,600.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  22.50               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             22.50               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00          3,622.50               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4803 − LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                    .90               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00               .90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES                                .00               .90               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4805 − LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                302.09               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            302.09               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  14.40               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             14.40               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER                                  .00            316.49               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   30
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4808 − LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   3.60               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              3.60               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL                               .00              3.60               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   31
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4809 − LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                175.00               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            175.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                    .90               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00               .90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE                               .00            175.90               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   32
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4810 − LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC              4,005.10               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,005.10               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  85.50               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             85.50               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                     .00          4,090.60               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   33
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4811 − LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  20.70               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             20.70               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN                               .00             20.70               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   34
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4812 − LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC              1,035.40               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,035.40               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  15.30               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             15.30               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                 .00          1,050.70               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   35
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4813 − LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                350.00               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            350.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  15.30               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             15.30               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE                                .00            365.30               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   36
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815A − PFMD ZONE 1 THE LANDING  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10581A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                127.13               .00 IRRIGATION REPAIRS       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                405.33               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            532.46               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  39.60               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             39.60               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 1 THE LANDING                                 .00            572.06               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   37
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815B − PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  90.00               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             90.00               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE                                     .00             90.00               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   38
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815C − PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             16842        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE              1,066.67               .00 JAN LANDSCAPE SRVC       
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,066.67               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10                                    .00          1,066.67               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   39
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815D − PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                381.66               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            381.66               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  18.90               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             18.90               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW                                    .00            400.56               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   40
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815E − PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC              1,237.92               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             10574A       6459 CLEAN CUT LANDSC                 91.00               .00 LANDSCAPE JAN SRVCS      
8 /15 02/12/15 21             15−2003      6126 GOMES EXCAVATION              1,600.00               .00 REM/DIPOSAL PLAYGRND     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,928.92               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02062015     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  91.80               .00 DEC−JAN SERVICES         
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             91.80               .00

TOTAL    PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK                                  .00          3,020.72               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00         14,796.70               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   41
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 085 − PBIA                     
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02092015     5563 RUSTY DEROUIN                   150.00               .00 JANUARY SERVICES         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            150.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            150.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            150.00               .00

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   42
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 15:46:55                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 090 − TRUST & AGENCY           
BUDGET UNIT − 4295 − TRUST & AGENCY           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4430     SCHOOL IMPACT FEES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     0306 LEMOORE HIGH SCH             23,787.93               .00 IMPACT FEES NOV−JAN15    
8 /15 02/12/15 21             02102015     0301 LEMOORE UNION SC             25,698.08               .00 IMPACT FEES NOV−JAN15    
TOTAL    SCHOOL IMPACT FEES                                      .00         49,486.01               .00

4432     COUNTY IMPACT FEES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             DEC14−JAN15  5561 KINGS COUNTY TRE              6,859.30               .00 COUNTY IMPACT FEES       
8 /15 02/12/15 21             JUL−NOV14    5561 KINGS COUNTY TRE             56,718.41               .00 COUNTY IMPACT FEES       
TOTAL    COUNTY IMPACT FEES                                      .00         63,577.71               .00

TOTAL    TRUST & AGENCY                                          .00        113,063.72               .00

TOTAL    TRUST & AGENCY                                          .00        113,063.72               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        738,005.40        −16,687.11

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:47:01                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 15:45:43                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                                1,082.00  FINGERPRINTS             
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              T1966 KARLA ESCATEL                                        150.00  REFUND/ESCATEL           
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              0819 DEPT OF CONSERVATION                                1,717.57  STRNG MOTION/SEISMIS     
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              5685 CALIFORNIA BUILDING                                   573.00  BUILDING STANDARDS AD    
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              0819 DEPT OF CONSERVATION                                  281.47  STRNG MOTION/SEISMIS     
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              5685 CALIFORNIA BUILDING                                   114.00  BUILDING STANDARDS AD    
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          3,918.04

2243     CALIF.BSASF. SB1473      
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              5685 CALIFORNIA BUILDING                 573.00                    BUILDING STANDARDS AD    
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              5685 CALIFORNIA BUILDING                 114.00                    BUILDING STANDARDS AD    
TOTAL    CALIF.BSASF. SB1473                                                687.00               .00

2248     RECREATION  IN/OUT       
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              T1966 KARLA ESCATEL                      150.00                    REFUND/ESCATEL           
TOTAL    RECREATION  IN/OUT                                                 150.00               .00

2256     STRONG MOTION            
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              0819 DEPT OF CONSERVATION              1,717.57                    STRNG MOTION/SEISMIS     
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              0819 DEPT OF CONSERVATION                281.47                    STRNG MOTION/SEISMIS     
TOTAL    STRONG MOTION                                                    1,999.04               .00

2285     LIVE SCAN DEPOSITS−−PD   
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC              1,082.00                    FINGERPRINTS             
TOTAL    LIVE SCAN DEPOSITS−−PD                                           1,082.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     3,918.04          3,918.04

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:45:44                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 15:45:43                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              6464 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL                                  702.07  LOAN PYMNT/TRACTOR       
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            702.07

2362     JOHN DEERE TRACTOR       
   8 /15 02/12/15  21              6464 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL                702.07                    LOAN PYMNT/TRACTOR       
TOTAL    JOHN DEERE TRACTOR                                                 702.07               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                                 702.07            702.07

TOTAL REPORT                                                              4,620.11          4,620.11

         RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:45:44                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/12/2015                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 15:44:53                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch=’JB021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3040     BUILDING PERMITS         
   8 /15 02/12/15 21 0        01302015     T1965 ONE HOUR HEATING               −64.00                   REIMB BP#1501−035        
TOTAL    BUILDING PERMITS                                        .00            −64.00               .00

3876A    CBSASRF SB1473 ADMIN     
   8 /15 02/12/15 21 0        DEC14−JAN15  5685 CALIFORNIA BUILD                 11.40                   BUILDING STANDARDS AD    
   8 /15 02/12/15 21 0        JUL−NOV2014  5685 CALIFORNIA BUILD                 57.30                   BUILDING STANDARDS AD    
TOTAL    CBSASRF SB1473 ADMIN                                    .00             68.70               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00              4.70               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00              4.70               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00              4.70               .00

                   RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:44:54  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559)  924-6700 
  Fax (559)  924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 11, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: Interim City Manager Employment Agreement 

 
Discussion 
 
At the February 3, 2015 Council Meeting, the Council authorized the City Attorney and 
myself to finalize the employment agreement to hire Ron Hoggard as the Interim City 
Manager and bring it to the February 17th meeting for disclosure and approval. 
 
The agreement is attached for your review and approval.  There has been one addition in 
Section 3.  Language was added to prevent the Interim City Manager from making any 
permanent employee appointment, including but not limited to Department Head 
Positions.  The Interim City Manager can make an Acting or Interim appointment during 
the recruitment for a New City Manager. 
 
 
Budget Impact 
 
The 2014-2015 Budget for the City Manager’s department included 12 months of salary 
and benefits for a City Manager at a higher salary, so the overall impact on the budget is 
expected to be minimal. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That City Council, by motion, approve the Interim City Manager Employment Agreement as 
presented and authorize the Mayor to execute said agreement. 
 



 1

INTERIM CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of February 17, 2015, 
between the City of Lemoore (“City”) and Ron Hoggard (“Employee”).  In consideration 
of the mutual promises and agreement set forth below, City and Employee agree as 
follows: 
 

1. Employment.  City agrees to employ Employee to render services as Interim City 
Manager to the City on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, and 
Employee accepts such employment on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 
2. Term.  The term of Employee’s employment shall commence on March 2, 2015, 

and continue until the City Council appoints a permanent City Manager, or until the 
Employee has worked 960 hours total time, which ever comes first, unless terminated 
sooner as set forth in Section 4 below. 

 
3. Position and Duties.  Employee shall serve as Interim City Manager of City.  

Employee shall have those powers and duties as set forth in City’s Municipal Code, 
except Employee will be prohibited from making any permanent employee appointment, 
including but not limited to Department Head Positions.  Employee may appoint interim 
employees if necessary.  The City Council of the City (“City Council”) shall have the 
power to determine such other specific duties and responsibilities which Employee must 
perform under this Agreement and the means and manner by which Employee must 
perform those duties and responsibilities.  Employee agrees to devote all of his business 
time, skill, attention, and best efforts to the discharge of the duties and responsibilities 
assigned to him by the City Council during the term of his employment. 
 
While functioning as the Interim City Manager, Employee has THREE (3) major, 
primary duties to address and accomplish in this contractual time period.  They are:  
 

 a. City Manager Recruitment – Employee will lead and coordinate the 
Recruitment for a New City Manager.   The final selection of the City Manager 
will be made by the full City Council.  Leading up to this decision will be a series 
of advertisements, outreach, screening and interviews involving municipal 
professionals and local leaders as recommended by the Employee and determined 
by the Council.  Subject to Council presentation and approval (Late March or 
early April) Employee shall develop the outreach, recruitment and selection plan 
to vet the most qualified candidates to be interviewed by the City Council 
sometime near the end of May or early June 2015.     
 
 b. City Budget - Employee will prepare and coordinate the 2015-2016 
fiscal budget for the City. 
 



 2

 c. Capital Improvement Budget – Employee will begin the process of 
preparing and coordinating the 2015-2017 Capital Improvement Budget for the 
City. 
 
 d. Interim Public Works Director/Planning Director - Employee will 
select and facilitate the appointment of an Interim Public Works 
Director/Planning Director to occur following the current Public Works 
Director/Planning Director’s retirement at the end of April 2015.  Leading up to 
this decision will be a series of advertisements, outreach, screening and interviews 
involving municipal professionals and local leaders as the Employee deems 
appropriate. 
 

4. At-Will Employment Status, Exemption from Personnel System, and 
Termination.  Employee’s employment is at-will.  City may terminate Employee at any 
time, with or without good cause, for any reason whatsoever that does not violate a public 
policy of the State of California.  Employee is exempt from City’s Personnel System and 
holds no property right in his employment. 
 

Employee agrees City has made no promises, statements, or representations which 
state or imply that Employee is hired or retained under any terms other than at-will and 
with exemption from City’s Personnel System, as set forth above.  Employee agrees that 
no agreement can impliedly arise that Employee is employed under any terms other than 
at-will and with exemption from City’s Personnel System, as set forth above. 

 
Employee’s status as at-will and exemption from City’s Personnel System may 

only be changed, revoked, amended, or superseded by a written document, signed by 
Employee and the Mayor following approval by the City Council. 

 
 

5. Compensation and Benefits.  Employee shall received the following 
compensation: 
 

A. Salary.  Employee shall be paid at Step 517, Range D ($10,007 per 
month).  Payment shall be made in the same manner as other City employees with 
required deductions made, unless specifically addressed in this Agreement. 
 
B. Benefits.  In addition to the salary provided in Paragraph 5.A. 

hereinabove, Employee shall receive the following additional benefits. 
 
1)  10 days Administrative Leave.  This leave may be used during the 

term of this Agreement as needed, however, no monetary value 
will affix to this leave, such that if the days have not been used at 
the termination of this Agreement, no money will be owed for the 
unused days. 

 



 3

Employee shall not be provided a vehicle allowance, auto expense or auto related 
reimbursement. Additionally, Employee shall not have any rights to retirement, health 
care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrue to City’s employees.  Employee 
expressly waives any claim Employee may have to any such rights. 

 
6. Reimbursement.  City shall reimburse Employee for any City Council prior-

approved activities according to standard City policy and practices and for all actual and 
necessary expenses he incurs in the performance of his official duties as Interim City 
Manager. 

 
7. Non-Assignment.  Employee’s duties and obligations under this Agreement are 

personal and not assignable. 
 

8. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 
understanding between the parties and contains all of the terms and conditions of the 
parties’ agreement.  This Agreement is the complete and final expression of the parties’ 
agreement and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous oral or written negotiations, 
discussions, representations, or agreements, if any.  Employee acknowledges that he has 
not relied on any promises, statements, representations, or warranties except as set forth 
expressly in this document. 

 
This Agreement, and any and all terms and conditions contained herein, may only 

changed, revoked, amended, or suspended by a written document signed by both 
Employee and the Mayor following approval of the City Council. 

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed 

according to the laws of the State of California. In the event of litigation between the 
parties, venue in state trial courts shall lie exclusively in the County of Kings. In the 
event of litigation in a U. S. District Court, venue shall lie exclusively in the Eastern 
District of California, in Fresno. 
 

10. Attorney’s Fees. In the event litigation or other proceeding is required to enforce 
or interpret any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation or 
other proceeding shall be entitled to any award of reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and 
expenses, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 

 
11. No Waiver.  No party’s failure to enforce any provision or provisions of this 

Agreement will be construed in any way as a waiver of any such provision or provisions, 
or prevent that party thereafter from enforcing each and every provision of this 
Agreement 

 
12. Partial Invalidity.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or portion 

of this Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of the other provisions or 
portions of this Agreement.  
 



 4

13. Interpretation.  No interpretation or construction of any provision or provisions of 
this Agreement will be influenced by the identity of the party drafting the Agreement. 

 
14. Headings.  Paragraph headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only 

and shall not be considered part of the terms of this Agreement. 
 

15. Indemnity.  The City shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Employee 
from all claims and lawsuits that arise out of Employees work for the City under this 
Agreement. 

 
* * * * * * 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement. 
 
     CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
     By ________________________________ 
      Mayor, Lois Wynne 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk, Mary J. Venegas 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
      EMPLOYEE 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Ron Hoggard 

J:\wdocs\01943\001\agt\00359774.DOC 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Brooke Austin, Executive Secretary  

Date: February 12, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 
 

Resolution 2015-03 Adopting Updated Salary Schedules  
for 2012-2013, 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 

 
Discussion: 
 
Last year CalPERS performed a public agency review of the City of Lemoore and noted 
a few audit findings.  One of the findings was that the Pay Schedule did not meet all the 
requirements of California Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 570.5.  CCR Section 
570.5 requires that a pay schedule, among other things, must: 
 

 Be duly approved and adopted by the employer’s governing body in accordance 
with requirements of applicable public meetings laws. 

 Identify the position title for every employee position. 
 Show the pay rate as a single amount or multiple amounts within a range for 

each identified positon. 
 Indicate the time base such as hourly, daily, bi-weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, or 

annually. 
 Be posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available 

for public review from the employer during normal business hours or posted on 
the employer’s internet website. 

 Indicate an effective date and date of any revisions. 
 Be retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than 

five years. 
 Not reference another document in lieu of disclosing the pay rate.   

 
Historically, the City of Lemoore has not adopted stand-alone Salary Schedules.   
Classification Pay Ranges have been adopted each year as part of the Operations and 
Maintenance Budgets; however, they do not meet all of the requirements listed above.   
 
In an effort to correct this problem and clear the audit finding, Salary Schedules have 
been updated for 2012-2013, 2013-2014, and 2014-2015 to meet the requirements of 
the CCR.  Most notably part-time positions have been added and safety members have 
been listed by the classifications in their Memorandums of Understanding for Police 
Officer/Corporal/Sergeant, Police Officer/Corporal/Sergeant with AA/AS, and Police 
Officer/Corporal/Sergeant with BA/BS, since a degree actually increases the officer’s 



“In God We Trust” 

base salary.  CalPERS has reviewed the proposed Salary Schedules and indicated that 
once adopted, this audit finding will be cleared.   
 
Resolution 2015-03 has been prepared to approve the Salary Schedules.  CalPERS 
has indicated that each time a salary increase is approved, the Salary Schedule must 
be updated and approved by Council.  Staff will implement this new procedure to ensure 
compliance in the future. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion adopt Resolution No. 2015-03 Approving the Salary 
Schedules for 2012-2013, 2013-2014, and 2014-2015 and authorize City staff to 
forward it to CalPERS. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
ADOPTING UPDATED SALARY SCHEDULES FOR 2012-2013, 2013-2014, AND 
2014-2015 TO MEET CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS SECTION 570.5 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
February 17, 2015, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council 
Member_____________, seconded by Council Member_____________ and carried that 
the following Resolution be adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Section 570.5 of the California Code of Regulations establishes 
certain requirements for a Publicly Available Pay Schedule; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore has determined that Classification Pay Ranges 

adopted as part of the City Operations and Maintenance Budgets did not meet all of these 
requirements. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Lemoore as follows:  
 
1. Salary Schedules for 2012-2013, 2013-2014, and 2014-2015 have been 

updated to meet all of the requirements of California Code of Regulations Section 570.5.   

 
2. The updated Salary Schedules are included as attachments to this 

Resolution.   
 
 3. That any future salary increases will result in an update to the Salary 

Schedule, which will be adopted by Resolution by the City Council.   
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Lemoore held on the 17th day of February 2015 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSTAINING: 

 ABSENT: 

 
 
ATTEST:       
 
________________________   ________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 
 



CITY OF LEMOORE
SALARY SCHEDULE

2012-2013 

CLASSIFICATION  Monthly Salary Range

Office Assistant I 

Police Records Technician 

Maintenance Worker I 

Community Service Officer 

Office Assistant II 

Account Clerk I 

Maintenance Worker II 

Secretary 

Recreation Specialist 

Police Evidence Technician 

Utility Operator I 

Account Clerk II  

Utility Operator II 

Senior Maintenance Worker 

Code Enforcement Officer 

Equipment Mechanic 

Senior Account Clerk 

Police Records Supervisor 

Office Manager 

Housing Specialist 

City Clerk/Admin. Sec. 

Police Officer  

246 ($2,229 - $2,859) 

264 ($2,438 - $3,127) 

264 ($2,438 - $3,127) 

270 ($2,510 - $3,223) 

270 ($2,510 - $3,223) 

271 ($2,523 -$3,239) 

284 ($2,692 - $3,456) 

288 ($2,747 - $3,525) 

288 ($2,747 - $3,525) 

289 ($2,761 - $3,543) 

289 ($2,761 - $3,543)  

291 ($2,789 - $3,579) 

309 ($3,051 - $3.914)  

310 ($3,066 - $3,934) 

314 ($3,127 - $4,014) 

314 ($3,127 - $4,014) 

315 ($3,143 - $4,034) 

320 ($3,223 - $4,135) 

320 ($3,223 - $4,135) 

328 ($3,354 - $4,303) 

327 ($3,337 - $4,282) 

331 ($3,405 - $4,369) 

Effective 7/1/2012



CLASSIFICATION 

Senior Utility Operator 

Senior Equipment Mechanic 

Building Inspector  

Police Officer & AA/AS Degree

Bldg. Maint.-Const. Coordinator 

Collection System Coordinator 

Accountant 

Senior Police Officer  

Police Officer & BA/BS

Assistant Planner 

Senior Police Officer & AA/AS Degree

Senior Police Officer & BA/BS Degree

Administrative Analyst 

Police Sergeant 

Superintendent 

Police Sergeant & AA/AS Degree

Police Sergeant & BA/BS Degree

Project Manager 

Police Commander 

Parks/Recreation Director 

Planning Director 

Public Works Director 

Finance Director 

Chief of Police 

City Manager 

332 ($3,422 - $4,391)

338 ($3,525 - $4,524) 

339 ($3,543 - $4,547) 

341 ($3,579 - $4,593) 

342 ($3,597 - $4,616) 

342 ($3,597 - $4,616) 

345 ($3,651 - $4,685) 

345 ($3,651 - $4,685) 

351 ($3,762 - $4,828)

353 ($3,800 - $4,876) 

355 ($3,838 - $4,925)

365 ($4,034 - $5,178)

369 ($4,114 - $5,282) 

371 ($4,156 - $5,335) 

374 ($4,219 - $5,416) 

381 ($4,369 - $5,608)

391 ($4,593 - $5,894)

398 ($4,853 - $6,103) 

422 ($5,362 - $6,881) 

439 ($5,836 - $7,492)  

446 ($6,043 - $7,758)

452 ($6,227 - $7,994) 

454 ($6,289 - $8,074) 

467 ($6,711 - $8,615) 

513 ($8,445 - $10,838) 

 Monthly Salary Range



PART-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS 

Accounting Technician

Assistant Day Camp Director  

Cashier 

Crossing Guard 

Day Camp Director 

Finance Clerk 

Instructor 

Laborer 

Lifeguard 

Pool Manager 

Recreation Leader 

Hourly Rate

$19.00 - $25.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$8.00 - $11.00

$8.00 - $10.00

$12.00 - $15.00

$12.00 - $14.00

$8.00 - $15.00

$8.00 - $28.00

$8.00 - $11.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$8.00 - $11.00



CITY OF LEMOORE 
SALARY SCHEDULE 

2013-2014 

CLASSIFICATION  Monthly Salary Range

Office Assistant I 

Police Records Technician 

Maintenance Worker I 

Community Service Officer 

Office Assistant II 

Account Clerk I 

Maintenance Worker II 

Secretary 

Recreation Specialist 

Police Evidence Technician 

Utility Operator I 

Account Clerk II  

Admin Assistant/City Clerk 

Utility Operator II 

Senior Maintenance Worker 

Equipment Mechanic 

Recreation Coordinator 

Senior Account Clerk 

Police Records Supervisor 

Office Manager 

246 ($2,229 - $2,859) 

264 ($2,438 - $3,127) 

264 ($2,438 - $3,127) 

270 ($2,510 - $3,223) 

270 ($2,510 - $3,223) 

271 ($2,523 -$3,239) 

284 ($2,692 - $3,456) 

288 ($2,747 - $3,525) 

288 ($2,747 - $3,525) 

289 ($2,761 - $3,543) 

289 ($2,761 - $3,543)  

291 ($2,789 - $3,579) 

299 ($2,901 - $3,724) 

309 ($3,051 - $3.914)  

310 ($3,066 - $3,934) 

314 ($3,127 - $4,014) 

314 ($3,127 - $4,014) 

315 ($3,143 - $4,034) 

326 ($3,320 - $4,261) 

326 ($3,320 - $4,261)

Effective 7/1/2013



CLASSIFICATION 

Senior Utility Operator 

Senior Equipment Mechanic 

Executive Secretary/Housing Specialist

Building Inspector  

Police Officer  

Bldg. Maint.-Const. Coordinator 

Collection System Coordinator 

Accountant 

Police Officer & AA/AS Degree 

Corporal 

Police Officer & BA/BS

Corporal & AA/AS Degree  

Corporal & BA/BS Degree 

Administrative Analyst 

Superintendent 

Police Sergeant 

Police Sergeant & AA/AS Degree 

Police Sergeant & BA/BS Degree 

Project Manager 

Police Commander 

Parks/Recreation Director 

Public Works/Planning Director 

Finance Director 

Chief of Police 

City Manager 

332 ($3,422 - $4,391) 

338 ($3,525 - $4,524) 

339 ($3,543 - $4,547) 

339 ($3,543 - $4,547)

341 ($3,579 - $4,593) 

342 ($3,597 - $4,616) 

342 ($3,597 - $4,616) 

351 ($3,762 - $4,828) 

351 ($3,762 - $4,828) 

355 ($3,838 - $4,925) 

361 ($3,954 - $5,075)  

365 ($4,034 - $5,178) 

375 ($4,240 - $5,443) 

375 ($4,240 - $5,443) 

380 ($4,347 - $5,580) 

380 ($4,347 - $5,580) 

390 ($4,570 - $5,865) 

400 ($4,804 - $6,165) 

404 ($4,900 - $6,289)

428 ($5,524 - $7,090) 

445 ($6,013 - $7,719)   

458 ($6,416 - $8,237) 

460 ($6,481 - $8,320) 

473 ($6,916 - $8,877) 

513 ($8,445 - $10,838) 

 Monthly Salary Range



PART-TIME CLASSIFICATIONS 

Accounting Technician

Assistant Day Camp Director  

Cashier 

Crossing Guard 

Day Camp Director 

Finance Clerk 

Instructor 

Laborer 

Lifeguard 

Pool Manager 

Recreation Leader 

Hourly Rate

$19.00 - $25.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$8.00 - $11.00

$8.00 - $10.00

$12.00 - $15.00

$12.00 - $14.00

$8.00 - $15.00

$8.00 - $28.00

$8.00 - $11.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$8.00 - $11.00



CITY OF LEMOORE 
SALARY SCHEDULE

2014-2015 

CLASSIFICATION  Monthly Salary Range

246  ($2,229 ‐ $2,859) 

264  ($2,438 ‐ $3,127) 

264  ($2,438 ‐ $3,127) 

270  ($2,510 ‐ $3,223) 

271  ($2,523 ‐ $3,239) 

284  ($2,692 ‐ $3,456) 

288  ($2,747 ‐ $3,525) 

288  ($2,747 ‐ $3,525) 

289  ($2,761 ‐ $3,543) 

289  ($2,761 ‐ $3,543) 

291  ($2,789 ‐ $3,579) 

292   ($2,803 ‐ $3,597)

309  ($3,051 ‐ $3,914) 

310  ($3,066 ‐ $3,934) 

314  ($3,127 ‐ $4,014) 

314   ($3,127 ‐ $4,014)

Office Assistant I 

Police Records Technician 

Maintenance Worker I 

Office Assistant II 

Account Clerk I 

Maintenance Worker II 

Recreation Specialist 

Secretary 

Police Evidence Technician 

Utility Operator I 

Account Clerk II 

Community Service Officer  

Utility Operator II 

Senior Maintenance Worker 

Equipment Mechanic 

Recreation Coordinator 

Police Record Supervisor 

Office Manager

Accounting Technician

 Senior Utility Operator 

Senior Equipment Mechanic 

Executive Sec / Housing Specialist 

326  ($3,320 ‐ $4,261)  

326  ($3,320 ‐ $4,261) 

330 ($3,338 - $4,347) 

332  ($3,422 ‐ $4,391) 

338  ($3,525 ‐ $4,524) 

339   ($3,543 ‐ $4,547)

Effective 7/1/2014



CLASSIFICATION 

Building Inspector 

Police Officer 

Bldg. Maint.‐Const. Coordinator 

Collection System Coordinator 

Accountant 

Police Officer & AA/AS Degree

Police Corporal 

Police Officer & BA/BS Degree

Police Corporal & AA/AS Degree

Police Corporal & BA/BS Degree

Administrative Analyst 

City Clerk/Administrative Secretary 

Superintendent 

Police Sergeant

Police Sergeant & AA/AS Degree

 Police Sergeant & BA/BS Degree

Project Manager 

Police Commander 

Parks/Recreation Director 

Public Works/Planning Director 

Finance Director 

Chief of Police 

City Manager 

339 ($3,543 ‐ $4,547) 

341 ($3,579 ‐ $4,593) 

342 ($3,597 ‐ $4,616) 

342 ($3,597 ‐ $4,616) 

351 ($3,762 ‐ $4,828) 

351 ($3,762 - $4,828)

355 ($3,838 ‐ $4,925) 

361 ($3,954 - $5,075)

365 ($4,034 - $5,178)

375 ($4,240 - $5,443)

375 ($4,240 ‐ $5,443) 

375 ($4,240 ‐ $5,443) 

380 ($4,347 ‐ $5,580) 

380 ($4,347 - $5,580)

390 ($4,570 - $5,865) 

400 ($4,804 - $6,165)

404 ($4,900 ‐ $6,289)

 428 ($5,524 ‐ $7,090) 

445 ($6,013 ‐ $7,719) 

458 ($6,416 ‐ $8,237) 

460 ($6,481 ‐ $8,320) 

473 ($6,916 ‐ $8,877) 

513 ($8,445 ‐ $10,838)

Monthly Salary Range



Hourly Rate

$19.00 - $25.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

$12.00 - $15.00

$12.00 ‐ $14.00

$9.00 ‐ $15.00

$9.00 ‐ $28.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

PART‐TIME CLASSIFICATIONS 

Accounting Technician

Assistant Day Camp Director  

Cashier 

Crossing Guard 

Day Camp Director 

Finance Clerk 

Instructor 

Laborer 

Lifeguard 

Pool Manager 

Recreation Leader 

Golf Course Food Prep I

Golf Course Food Prep II

Golf Course Maintenance Worker I 

Golf Course Maintenance Worker II 

Golf Course Mechanic

Golf Course Shop Assistant I

Golf Course Shop Assistant II 

$9.00 - $11.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$9.00 - $13.00

$10.00 ‐ $16.00

$10.00 ‐ $16.00 

$9.00 - $13.00

$10.00 ‐ $16.00



CITY OF LEMOORE
SALARY SCHEDULE 

2014-2015

CLASSIFICATION  Monthly Salary Range

Office Assistant I 

Police Records Technician 

Maintenance Worker I 

Office Assistant II 

Account Clerk I 

Maintenance Worker II 

Recreation Specialist 

Secretary 

Police Evidence Technician 

Utility Operator I 

Account Clerk II 

Community Service Officer  

Utility Operator II 

Senior Maintenance Worker 

Equipment Mechanic 

Recreation Coordinator 

Accounting Technician

Police Record Supervisor 

Office Manager 

Senior Utility Operator 

Senior Equipment Mechanic Executive 

Secretary/Housing Specialist 

246 ($2,229 ‐ $2,859) 

264 ($2,438 ‐ $3,127) 

264 ($2,438 ‐ $3,127) 

270 ($2,510 ‐ $3,223) 

271 ($2,523 ‐ $3,239) 

284 ($2,692 ‐ $3,456) 

288 ($2,747 ‐ $3,525) 

288 ($2,747 ‐ $3,525) 

289 ($2,761 ‐ $3,543) 

289 ($2,761 ‐ $3,543) 

291 ($2,789 ‐ $3,579) 

292 ($2,803 ‐ $3,597) 

309 ($3,051 ‐ $3,914) 

310 ($3,066 ‐ $3,934) 

314 ($3,127 ‐ $4,014) 

314 ($3,127 ‐ $4,014) 

330 ($3,338 ‐ $4,347) 

330 ($3,338 ‐ $4,347) 

330 ($3,338 ‐ $4,347) 

332 ($3,422 ‐ $4,391) 

338 ($3,525 ‐ $4,524) 

343 ($3,615 ‐ $4,639)

Updated 1/1/2015



CLASSIFICATION 

Building Inspector 

Bldg. Maint.‐Const. Coordinator 

Collection System Coordinator 

Police Officer

Accountant 

Police Officer & AA/AS Degree 

Police Officer & BA/BS Degree

Police Corporal

Police Corporal & AA/AS Degree

Administrative Analyst 

City Clerk / Administrative Secretary 

Superintendent

Police Corporal & BA/BS Degree 

Police Sergeant 

Police Sergeant & AA/AS Degree

Project Manager 

Police Sergeant & BA/BS Degree

Police Commander 

Parks/Recreation Director 

Public Works/Planning Director 

Finance Director 

Chief of Police 

City Manager 

339 ($3,543 ‐ $4,547)  

342 ($3,597 ‐ $4,616) 

342 ($3,597 ‐ $4,616) 

347 ($3,687 - $4,732) 

355 ($3,838 ‐ $4,925) 

357 ($3,876 ‐ $4,975) 

367 ($4,074 - $5,230) 

367 ($4,074 - $5,230) 

377 ($4,282 - $5,497)  

379 ($4,325 ‐ $5,552) 

379 ($4,325 ‐ $5,552) 

384 ($4,435 ‐ $5,692) 

387 ($4,501 - $5,778) 

392 ($4,616 ‐ $5,923) 

402 ($4,852 - $6,227) 

408 ($5,000 ‐ $6,416) 

412 ($5,100 - $6,546) 

432 ($5,636 ‐ $7,234) 

449 ($6,134 ‐ $7,875) 

462 ($6,546 ‐ $8,403) 

464 ($6,611 ‐ $8,488) 

485 ($7,343 ‐ $9,425) 

517 ($8,615 ‐ $11,056)

Monthly Salary Range



PART‐TIME CLASSIFICATIONS* 

Accounting Technician

Assistant Day Camp Director  

Cashier 

Crossing Guard 

Day Camp Director 

Finance Clerk 

Instructor 

Laborer 

Lifeguard 

Pool Manager 

Recreation Leader 

$19.00 - $25.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

$10.00 ‐ $11.00

$12.00 - $15.00

$12.00 ‐ $14.00

$9.00 ‐ $15.00

$9.00 ‐ $16.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

$10.00 - $12.00

$9.00 ‐ $11.00

Hourly Rate

Golf Course Maintenance Worker I 

Golf Course Maintenance Worker II

Golf Course Mechanic

Golf Course Shop Assistant I

Golf Course Shop Assistant II 

$9.00 - $13.00

$10.00 ‐ $16.00

$10.00 ‐ $16.00 

$9.00 - $13.00

$10.00 ‐ $16.00

*Part-Time Classifications not listed here will be paid an hourly rate equal  to 
  Step A of the appropriate range for that Classification.



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Brooke Austin, Executive Secretary  

Date: February 11, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 
Amendment No. 1 to the General Association of Service Employees 
Memorandum of Understanding  

 
Discussion: 
 
Recently in updating the Salary Schedules, it was discovered that the salary range for 
Senior Utility Operator was listed incorrectly in the 2014-2015 Operations and 
Maintenance Budget.  This incorrect range was then used in the General Association of 
Service Employees (GASE) Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) effective July 1, 
2014 through June 30, 2017.  In order to correct the range, the attached Amendment 
No. 1 to the MOU between the City and GASE has been prepared.   
 
Staff has discussed this error with GASE representatives and they have approved the 
amendment.  The amendment will correct the range from 338 to 332 effective July 1, 
2014, 340 to 334 effective July 1, 2015, and 344 to 338 effective July 1, 2016.  The 
effected employee has been paid the correct wage, despite this error. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, approve Amendment No. 1 to the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Lemoore and the General Association of Service 
Employees. 
 
 



 

 
Page 1 

February 17, 2015 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 
 

To the Memorandum of Understanding 
Between the City of Lemoore and the General Association of Service Employees Unit 

Effective July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017 
 
 

1.  Section 5, SALARIES, of the MOU stated above is hereby amended by the correction of the salary range 
listed for the classification of Senior Utility Operator as follows: 

 
The schedule of salaries, effective July 1, 2014 will be as follows: 

 
Classification        Range No.      Monthly Amount 
Senior Utility Operator      332        (3422 – 4391) 

 
GASE represented employees shall receive a 1% (one percent) salary increase calculated on base salary 
only effective July 1, 2015.  The adjusted salary ranges shall be as follows: 

 
Classification        Range No.      Monthly Amount 
Senior Utility Operator      334        (3456 – 4435) 

 
GASE represented employees shall receive a 2% (two percent) salary increase calculated on base salary 
only effective July 1, 2016.  The adjusted salary ranges shall be as follows: 

 
Classification        Range No.      Monthly Amount 
Senior Utility Operator      338        (3525 – 4524)    

 
2.  Except as amended herein, each and every term and condition of the Memorandum of Understanding 

shall remain in full force and effect, and this Amendment shall be incorporated into the Memorandum 
of Understanding as adopted.  

 
 
CITY OF LEMOORE          GENERAL ASSOCIATION OF SERVICE EMPLOYEES 
 
 
 
                       
Jeff Laws, City Manager         Mike Rosas, President 
 
 
 
                       
Brooke Austin, Executive Secretary      Debbie Santos, Treasurer 
 
 
 
                       
Susan Wells, Consultant         Irene Ford, Secretary 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559)  924-6700 
  Fax (559)  924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 11, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 2015 Goals and Objectives 

 
Discussion 
 
On January 23, 2015 Council held a special meeting to discuss the 2015 Goals and 
Objectives.  Changes were discussed and agreed upon at the meeting.  All changes have 
been made and are incorporated into the attached final document. 
 
 
Budget Impact 
 
No budget impact. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the 2015 Goals and Objectives. 



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

City of Lemoore

Goals and Objectives

January 2015

Amended 1/23/15 

Amendments Approved 2/17/15



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIAMission Statement

To provide high quality          

services and establish the 

conditions for economic 

vitality and high quality of life.



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIAVision Statement

Lemoore will be an        

economically vital community,

marked by educational,
cultural, recreation and 
business opportunities.



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

Goals

• Safe Community for Families

• Business and Job Opportunities

• Fiscally Sound City Government

• “Small Town” Character/Feel with Modern 
Conveniences

• Municipal Services that are Focused on 
Community Needs and Efficiently Delivered by 
Customer Oriented Staff



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

Objectives

Partner with Concerned Citizens and Community  
Organizations to Combat the Attraction of Gangs to our 
Youth and Reduce the Gang Activity Levels within our 
Community

Continue to analyze and cut arbitrary regulations in 
order to promote business openings, expansion and 
retention



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

Objectives 
(Cont.)

Earn a reputation for being a “Business Friendly” City by:

 Promote/market existing commercial and retail properties on a 
continuous basis

 Continue to ease the permitting process and clearly communicating 
the City’s and other regulatory agencies requirements to potential 
applicants

 Reduce the City fees imposed on new business developments

Increase General Fund Revenue by attracting new 
sources of revenue

Implement Blight Eradication Programs and Policies that 
are sustainable



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

Objectives
(Cont.)

Develop Short and Long Term Solutions for Railroad 
Rights-of-Way and City Entrance Within Lemoore –
Establish Partnerships with Property Owners to 
Accomplish

Implement best practices to conserve and improve the 
efficiency and effectiveness of the entire water system

Include In All New Facility & Equipment Purchases, An 
Analysis of Both Life Cycle Costs & Carbon Emissions 
When Making Decisions Regarding Specifications –
Analyze Existing Facilities Using Same Criteria



CITY OF

LEMOORE
CALIFORNIA

Objectives
(Cont.)

Make Customer Service a high priority at all times, in all 
positions, through staff selection, evaluation, and 
education/training

Adhere to the policies that hold Staff accountable for their 
performance and actions, including serving the community 
with respect at all times

Expand Community Amenities and Programs through 
Participation in Joint Projects with Other Agencies and 
Public/Private Partnerships



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Police 
Department 

 
657 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-9574 
FAX (559) 924-3116 

 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-7 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Darrell Smith, Chief of Police  

Date: February 17, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 2014 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program Grant  

 
Discussion: 
The Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP) was created by the Bulletproof Vest Partnership 
Grant Act of 1998.  It is made available through the U.S Department of Justice to 
provide funds to state and local law enforcement agencies.  This is the first year the 
Lemoore Police Department has been awarded money through this grant. The BVP 
Program provides an important component to the continuing health and welfare of our 
police officers.  Each body armor vest has a guaranteed life of five years.  All body 
armor is custom made to the specifications of each officer to ensure all officers have our 
required level of protection. These funds are dedicated to the purchase of body armor 
vests to supplement local expenses. 
 
The grant funding by BVP provides up to 50% of the City’s expenses. Our vests were 
estimated at a total cost of $11,153.10; therefore, we were awarded the amount of 
$5,338.68.  The Lemoore Police Department had budgeted funds in our 2014-2015 
fiscal year for the purchase of replacement body armor vests for our police officers.   
 
 
Budget Impact: 
The $5,338.68 will be deposited into revenue account 028-3710 when received. As the 
vests are ordered, the funds received from the BVP grant will be transferred into the 
general fund as a transfer in to offset expense line 4221-4220U.  Account 028-3710 will 
simply be used to track grant activity. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
The Lemoore City Council, by motion, approve the 2014 Bulletproof Vest Partnership 
Program grant award in the amount of $5,338.68 and necessary financial activities. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Maintenance & Fleet 

Divisions 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

Phone (559) 924-6739 
Fax (559) 924-6808 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 2-8 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joel Joyner, City Engineer 

Date: February 12, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: Bid Award – 2014 Resurfacing Project  

 
 
Discussion: 
 
The project consists, in general, of resurfacing the project streets, replacing ADA ramps 
within the project area and restriping the street centerlines and bike paths to current 
State Standards: 
 
Base Bid 
  

Club Drive – Lemoore Avenue to Murphy Drive 
 Cinnamon Drive – Lemoore Avenue to Venice Avenue 
 G Street – Hill Street to Fox Street 
 Larish Street – Champion Street to Lemoore Avenue 
 
Alternate Bid #1  
  

Cinnamon Drive – Venice Avenue to Balboa Avenue 
 
Alternate Bid #2 
  

Fox Street – G Street to Cinnamon Drive 
 
Alternate Bid #3 

 
Intersection of Hamlet Street and Skaggs Street – Valley Gutter and ADA Ramps 
 

Alternate Bid #4 
 
Intersection of Hamlet Street and Toomey Street – Valley Gutter and ADA Ramps 

  



“In God We Trust” 

 
 
The City of Lemoore received seven bids for the project on February 11, 2015, with the 
following results: 
 

Contractor Base Bid 
Alternate 

Bid #1 
Alternate 

Bid #2 
Alternate 

Bid #3 
Alternate 

Bid #4 

Cen Cal 
Paving 

$442,332.70 $50,300.00 $101,100.00 $33,200.00 $52,100.00

Central 
Valley 
Asphalt 

$490,490.00 $31,783.00 $88,833.00 $36,150.00 $34,113.00

Bush 
Construction 

$492,387.50 $26,150.00 $62,340.00 $37,300.00 $45,040.00

Lee’s 
Paving 

$505,474.00 $29,705.00 $79,936.75 $39,420.00 $49,340.00

American 
Paving 

$524,718.50 $30,752.50 $71,845.00 $51,300.00 $71,300.00

Agee 
Construction 

$529,404.00 $28,390.00 $69,928.00 $33,500.00 $33,620.00

Don Berry 
Construction 

$531,326.25 $19,760.00 $70,855.00 $29,800.00 $43,030.00

Engineer’s 
Estimate 

$594,302.25 $14,987.50 $76,037.50 $34,650.00 $32,065.00

  
The project is to be awarded as stated in the Notice to Contractors on the base bid.  
The City may elect to award all, none or a combination of Alternate Bids. 
 
Staff is recommending the base bid and all four alternates be awarded to Cen Cal 
Paving in the amount of $679,032.70.  The project is scheduled to begin in March and 
end in June 2015.  
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The 2014 Resurfacing Project will be funded in the amount of $679,032.70 through the 
(065) Street Capital Fund account which has a projected balance of $689,115.00 in the 
2013-2015 Capital Improvement Budget. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, award the bid to Cen Cal Paving for the 2014 
Resurfacing Project in the amount of $679,032.70 and authorize the City Manager to 
sign the agreement and contracts. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559)  924-6700 
  Fax (559)  924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-9 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 13, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 
 

Approval and Adoption of the Kings County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan – Resolution 2015-04 

 
Discussion 
 
The purpose of natural hazards mitigation is to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people 
and property from natural hazards.  Lemoore and the participating jurisdictions of Avenal, 
Corcoran, Hanford and Kings County developed this multi-hazard mitigation plan to reduce 
future losses to the county and its communities resulting from natural hazards.  The plan 
also was prepared to meet the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and to 
achieve eligibility for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Grant 
Programs. 

The Kings County Operational Area used Office of Homeland Security (OHS) grant funds 
in 2011 to hire Howell & Associates to prepare the federally required countywide Multi-
Hazard Mitigation Plan.  The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000) requires all local 
governments to address risks and measures that can be taken in advance to reduce future 
losses from natural and other closely related hazards. 

The planning process followed a methodology prescribed by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), which began with the formation of a Hazard Mitigation 
Planning Committee (HMPC) comprised of key stakeholders from Kings County and 
participating jurisdictions.  The HMPC conducted a risk assessment to examine the 
recorded history of losses resulting from natural hazards, assess probability and 
magnitude of future hazard events, and analyze the cities assets at risk to hazards.  The 
assessment only included review of natural disasters / events, not those that are 
technological or man-made.  The risk assessment indicated that earthquakes, floods, 
droughts, and extreme heat are the hazards most likely to significantly affect people and 
property in the county.  Based upon the risk assessment, the HMPC identified goals and 
objectives for reducing risk to natural hazards.  To meet identified goals and objectives, 
the plan recommends mitigation actions to be completed prior to the next Local Hazard 
Mitigation Plan (LHMP) update.  The HMPC also developed an implementation plan for 
each action, which identifies priority levels, activity description and responsible agency, 



“In God We Trust” 

 

 

The approved mitigation plan will assure that Kings County and the City of Lemoore 
maintain their eligibility for future (FEMA) Grant funding.  The approved plan also may help 
reduce flood insurance premiums currently paid by City residents and encourage greater 
participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) by those exposed to this risk. 

This plan has been approved by the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (OES) and 
(FEMA), pending approval and adoption by each jurisdiction participating in the process.  
The Kings County Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is attached for your 
review. 

 

Budget Impact 
None at the time.  However, having an approved LHMP will allow Kings County and the  
City of Lemoore to apply for FEMA grant funds which has the potential to reduce the 
impacts of natural disasters. 
 
 
Recommendation 
That the City Council, by motion, approve Resolution 2015-04 and adopt the Kings County 
Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan for the City of Lemoore. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE  
ADOPTING THE KINGS COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL 

LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 

 At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
February 17, 2015 at 7:30 p.m., it was moved by Council Member __________________, 
seconded by Council Member __________________ and carried that the following Resolution 
be adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore (the “Council” and the “City” 
respectively”) recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people and property within the 
City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to 
people and property from future hazard occurrences; and  
 
 WHEREAS, an adopted multi-hazard mitigation plan is required as a condition of future 
funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation programs; 
and    
 
 WHEREAS, the City fully participated in the FEMA-prescribed mitigation planning 
process to prepare this 2012 Multi-Hazard Mitigation plan which shall replace the previous 2008 
Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Office of Emergency Services and Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, Region IX officials have reviewed the “Kings County, California Mult-
Hazard Mitigation Plan” (the “Plan”) and approved it contingent upon this official adoption by 
the Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 

1. That the Council hereby adopts the Plan as its official multi-hazard mitigation plan. 
 

2. That the Council will submit this Adoption Resolution to the California Office of 
Emergency Services and Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region IX 
officials to enable the Plan’s final approval. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 17th day of February 2015 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NAYS: 
 ABSENT: 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    Lois Wynne, Mayor 



	

	

Decem

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
De
King
Incl
Ave

mber	2012	FINAL

ecemb
gs	Count
luding	th
enal,	Cor

L	

er	201
ty	Multi‐j
he	Partic
coran,	H

12	
urisdicti
cipating	
Hanford	a

onal	Loc
Jurisdic
and	Lem

cal	Hazar
ctions	of	
moore	

Kings	County	
Local	Hazar

d	Mitigat
the	Citie

	

Operational	Are
rd	Mitigation	Pla

Page

tion	Plan
es	of	

ea	
an	

e	1	

n	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	2	

Acknowledgements	
	
Howell	Consulting	would	like	to	thank	those	Departments	and	Agencies	who	participated	in	
the	planning	and	development	of	this	document,	particularly	Trudy	Maletta,	retired	(2012)	
Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management.		
	
The	official	Kings	County	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	Team	provided	the	oversight	
and	dedication	to	this	project	that	was	required	and	without	their	commitment;	this	project	
would	not	be	possible.		The	Planning	Team	members	are	as	follows:	
	
LHMP	Planning	Team	Members	
	
Trudy	Maletta	 	 	 Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	
Courtney	Espinoza	 	 Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	
Michelle	Speer		 	 Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	
Chief	William	Lynch	 	 Kings	County	Fire	Department	
Mike	Virden	 	 	 Kings	County	Fire	Department	
Supervisor	Joe	Neves	 	 Kings	County	Board	of		Supervisors	
Alex	Torres	 	 	 Tachi	Palace	Hotel	and	Casino	
Tim	Niswander	 	 Kings	County	Department	of	Agriculture	
Chief	Tim	Ironimo	 	 City	of	Hanford	
Greg	Gatzka	 	 	 Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	
Chuck	Kinney	 	 	 Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	
Jeremy	Kinney		 	 Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	
Angie	Sorrento		 	 Kings	County	Office	of	Education	
Chief	Jack	Amoroso	 	 City	of	Avenal	
Pat	Mundy		 	 	 City	of	Lemoore	
Gary	Cramer	 	 	 City	of	Corcoran	
	
Howell	Consulting	Team	
	
Brenna	Howell		 	 Project	Manager	
Neal	O’Haire	 	 	 Lead	Planner/Facilitator	
Jim	Kniss	 	 	 Mapping	Coordinator	
	
As	with	any	working	plan,	this	revision	represents	planning	strategies	and	guidance	as	
understood	as	of	the	date	of	this	plan’s	release.		This	plan	identifies	natural	hazards	and	
risks	and	identifies	the	hazard	mitigation	strategy	to	reduce	vulnerability	and	should	assist	
the	communities	of	Kings	County	to	be	more	disaster	resistant	and	sustainable.	

	  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	3	

Formal	Plan	Adoption	Documentation	
Kings	County	and	the	following	jurisdictions	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	will	
submit	this	2012	Kings	County	Multi‐jurisdictional	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	(LHMP)	to	
the	Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors	and	the	City	Councils	upon	successful	completion	of	
state	and	federal	review	and	conditional	approval.		Kings	County	wishes	to	receive	approval	
pending	adoption.		The	plan	will	be	submitted	to	the	Board	of	Supervisors/City	Councils	as	
a	regularly	scheduled	agenda	item	with	room	for	additional	public	and	departmental	
comment.			
	
	
(Resolution	from	Kings	County	adopting	the	LHMP	inserted	here)	
   



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	4	

Table	of	Contents	

Acknowledgements	..................................................................................................................	2 

Formal	Plan	Adoption	Documentation	.............................................................................	3 

Introduction	and	County	Overview	....................................................................................	6 
Introduction	and	Purpose	of	Plan	................................................................................................	6 
What’s	New	in	the	2012	LHMP?	.....................................................................................................	6 
Goals	and	Objectives	..........................................................................................................................	7 
Scope	.......................................................................................................................................................	8 
County	Overview	.................................................................................................................................	9 
Plan	Organization	and	Structure	...............................................................................................	12 

Element	A:		Planning	Process	............................................................................................	14 
Element	A.1.	Planning	Process	....................................................................................................	15 
Element	A.2.	Coordination	with	other	Communities	..........................................................	21 
Element	A.3.	Public	Involvement	...............................................................................................	22 
Element	A.4.	Review	and	Incorporation	of	Exiting	Plans	..................................................	23 
Element	A.5.	Plan	Maintenance	Process	..................................................................................	24 
Element	A.6.	Continued	Public	Involvement	.........................................................................	24 

Element	B:		Hazard	Identification	and	Risk	Assessment	.........................................	26 
Disaster	Declaration	History	.......................................................................................................	27 
Methodology	......................................................................................................................................	29 
Element	B.1	Hazard	Descriptions	..............................................................................................	30 
Element	B.2	Previous	Occurrences	and	Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	..............	30 
DROUGHT	.......................................................................................................................................................	30 
EARTHQUAKE	..............................................................................................................................................	32 
EXTREME	HEAT	...........................................................................................................................................	36 
FLOOD	..............................................................................................................................................................	38 
FOG	....................................................................................................................................................................	45 
FREEZE	............................................................................................................................................................	46 
LANDSLIDE	....................................................................................................................................................	47 
TORNADO	.......................................................................................................................................................	50 
WILDFIRE	.......................................................................................................................................................	51 

B.3.	Vulnerability	Assessment	....................................................................................................	56 
Estimating	Potential	Losses	....................................................................................................................	62 

B.4.	Repetitive	Loss	and	Severe	Repetitive	Loss	Properties	............................................	73 

Element	C:		Mitigation	Strategy	.........................................................................................	75 
Element	C.1	Existing	Authorities,	Policies,	Programs	and	Resources	..........................	75 
Element	C.2	Participation	in	the	NFIP	......................................................................................	75 
Element	C.3	Mitigation	Goals	.......................................................................................................	77 
Element	C.4	Mitigation	Actions	and	Projects	.........................................................................	79 
Element	C.5	Mitigation	Strategy	Action	Plan	.........................................................................	83 
Element	C.6	Project	Implementation	.......................................................................................	83 

Element	D:		Plan	Review,	Evaluation	and	Implementation	....................................	86 
Element	D.1	Changes	in	Development	.....................................................................................	86 
Element	D.2	Progress	in	Local	Mitigation	Efforts	................................................................	86 
Element	D.3	Changes	in	Priorities	.............................................................................................	90 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	5	

Element	E:		Plan	Adoption	..................................................................................................	91 
Element	E.1	Formal	Adoption	Documentation	.....................................................................	91 
Element	E.2	Kings	County	Operational	Area	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	..........................	91 

References	................................................................................................................................	92 

Planning	Process	Documentation	....................................................................................	94 

Community	Profile	Annexes	............................................................................................	125 
	

	  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	6	

Introduction	and	County	Overview	

Introduction	and	Purpose	of	Plan	
Each	year,	natural	disasters	in	the	United	States	take	the	lives	of	hundreds	of	people	and	
injure	thousands	more.	Nationwide,	taxpayers	pay	billions	of	dollars	each	year	to	help	
communities,	organizations,	businesses,	and	individuals	recover	from	disasters.	These	
losses	only	partially	reflect	the	true	cost	of	disasters,	because	additional	expenses	to	
insurance	companies	and	nongovernmental	organizations	are	not	reimbursed	by	tax	
dollars.	Additionally,	many	natural	disasters	are	predictable.	Many	more	are	repetitive,	
often	with	the	same	results.	Many	of	the	damages	caused	by	these	events	can	be	alleviated	
or	even	eliminated.	

The	Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency	(FEMA)	has	made	reducing	losses	from	
natural	disasters	one	of	its	primary	goals.	Hazard	mitigation	planning	and	subsequent	
implementation	of	projects,	measures,	and	policies	developed	through	those	plans,	is	the	
primary	mechanism	in	achieving	these	goals.	Mitigation	planning	has	resulted	in	the	
implementation	of	projects	that	have	successfully	reduced	disaster	damages.	

This	revised	plan	was	developed	pursuant	to	the	regulations	of	the	Disaster	Mitigation	Act	
(DMA)	of	2000.	The	DMA	revises	the	Robert	T.	Stafford	Disaster	Relief	and	Emergency	
Assistance	Act	by	adding	Section	322,	which	provides	new	and	revitalized	emphasis	on	
hazard	mitigation,	including	a	new	requirement	for	local	mitigation	plans.	These	new	local	
mitigation	planning	regulations	are	implemented	through	44	CFR	Part	201.6.		

The	DMA	requires	state	and	local	governments	to	develop	multi‐hazard	mitigation	plans	to	
maintain	their	eligibility	for	certain	federal	disaster	assistance	and	hazard	mitigation	
funding	programs.	Communities	at	risk	from	natural	disasters	cannot	afford	to	jeopardize	
this	funding.		

More	importantly,	proactive	mitigation	planning	at	the	local	level	can	help	reduce	the	cost	
of	disaster	response	and	recovery	to	property	owners	and	government	by	protecting	
critical	community	facilities,	reducing	liability	exposure,	and	minimizing	overall	community	
impacts	and	disruption.		Kings	County	and	its	participating	jurisdictions	have	been	affected	
by	several	disasters	in	the	past	and	are	committed	to	reducing	disaster	impacts	and	
maintaining	eligibility	for	federal	mitigation	grant	funding.	

What’s	New	in	the	2012	LHMP?	
Santa	Rosa	Rancheria/Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	
The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	and	the	Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	have	elected	to	participate	in	the	2012	
LHMP	planning	process	to	continue	their	participation	and	partnership	with	the	County	and	
other	jurisdictions	and	agencies,	however	they	are	not	seeking	multi‐jurisdictional	
approval.		Representatives	from	the	Tachi	Yokut	Tribe’s	Public	Safety	Division	actively	
participated	in	the	planning	process	and	provided	critical	information	in	the	development	
of	their	Community	Profile	Annex,	the	Tribe	does	not	wish	to	seek	approval	at	this	time,	
however,	they	will	continue	to	participate	in	the	overall	planning	process.				The	Tribe	
identified	some	mitigation	activities/actions	that	they	would	like	to	complete	in	the	future	
in	partnership	with	Kings	County	should	there	be	opportunity.			
	
	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	7	

Update	on	the	2007	Mitigation	Projects	
Since	the	initial	plan	was	adopted	in	2007,	Kings	County	and	the	participating	jurisdictions	
have	completed	several	of	the	mitigation	actions	outlined	in	the	initial	2007	plan.	The	
Planning	Team	also	reviewed	the	incomplete	projects	from	the	2007	plan	and	has	created	a	
revised	implementation	plan	for	each	action,	which	identifies	priority	level,	background	
information,	responsible	agency,	timeline,	cost	estimate,	potential	funding	sources,	and	
more.	A	list	of	those	projects	is	located	in	Element	D.	

AB	2140	Compliance	
The	revised	and	updated	LHMP	was	prepared	in	coordination	with	the	Kings	County	
Community	Development	Agency’s	Health	and	Safety	Element	of	the	Kings	County	General	
Plan,	as	the	planning	effort	has	many	common	overlapping	issues.		The	LHMP	and	Health	
and	Safety	Element	are	considered	complimentary	documents	that	address	natural	hazards	
and	works	toward	enhancing	mitigation	efforts.		

Goals	and	Objectives	
The	Planning	Team	voted	to	retain	the	goals	and	objectives	listed	in	the	2007	LHMP	to	
ensure	consistency	for	the	projects	carried	over	from	that	plan	into	this	planning	effort.		
These	goals	and	objectives	were	still	consistent	with	the	overall	direction	of	the	county	
regarding	mitigation	efforts	and	based	upon	the	risk	assessment	completed.			Those	goals	
and	objectives	are	as	follows:	
	
Goal	1	Reduce	impacts	of	natural	hazards	to	life,	property,	and	the	environment	
	

 Promote	education	and	awareness	about	natural	hazards	risk,	mitigation,	and	
preparedness	to	citizens,	public	agencies,	elected	officials,	nonprofit	organizations,	
and	businesses.	

 Ensure	protection	and	enhancement	of	key	emergency	access	routes.	
 Protect	critical	facilities	and	infrastructure	to	minimize	loss	of	critical	services.	
 Minimize	growth	and	development	in	hazard	areas.	
 Continue	to	improve	enforcement	of	existing	standards	and	regulations.	

	
Goal	2	Minimize	impacts	of	natural	disasters	to	agriculture	and	the	economies	of	
Communities	
	

 Encourage	water	conservation	measures	among	urban,	rural,	and	agricultural	users.	
 Increase	water	storage	to	mitigate	flooding	and	drought.	
 Develop	plans	for	post‐disaster	recovery.	
 Strengthen	disaster	resistance	and	resiliency	of	major	employers.	

	
Goal	3	Implement	identified	mitigation	activities	
	

 Promote	hazard	mitigation	as	integrated	policy	among	communities	in	the	county	
and	with	the	region	and	state.	

 Increase	communication	regarding	hazard	mitigation	among	communities	in	the	
county.	

 Seek	funding	sources	and	partners	for	future	mitigation	activities.	
 Improve	organizational	capabilities	to	address	health	and	safety	issues	in	mitigation	

and	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	8	

 Response.	
	
To	meet	identified	goals	and	objectives,	the	plan	recommends	26	mitigation	actions;	those	
mitigation	actions	are	located	in	Element	C	and	in	each	of	the	jurisdictional	annexes.	

Scope	
Hazard	mitigation	is	defined	as	sustained	action	taken	to	reduce	or	eliminate	long‐term	risk	
to	human	life	and	property	from	hazards.		Hazard	mitigation	planning	is	the	process	
through	which	hazards	that	threaten	communities	are	identified;	likely	impacts	are	
determined,	prioritized	and	implemented.		This	revised	plan	continues	the	natural	hazard	
mitigation	planning	process	for	Kings	County	(including	school	districts	and	the	Tachi	Yokut	
Tribe)	and	participating	cities	including	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford,	and	Lemoore,	identifies	
natural	hazards	and	risks	within	Kings	County	and	identifies	the	hazard	mitigation	strategy	
to	reduce	vulnerability	and	make	the	communities	of	Kings	County	more	disaster	resistant	
and	sustainable.		Information	in	this	plan	can	be	used	to	help	guide	and	coordinate	
mitigation	activities	and	local	land	use	decisions.	
	
Kings	County	and	participating	jurisdictions	initially	developed	this	hazard	mitigation	plan	
to	reduce	future	losses	to	the	county	and	its	communities	resulting	from	natural	hazards.	
The	revised	plan	also	was	prepared	to	meet	the	evolving	requirements	of	the	Disaster	
Mitigation	Act	of	2000	and	subsequently	changes	to	the	guidance	and	revised	crosswalks.		
The	revised	plan	seeks	to	maintain	eligibility	for	the	FEMA	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	(PDM)	
and	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Programs	(HMGP).		

The	Kings	County	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	continues	to	be	a	multi‐jurisdictional	plan	
that	covers	the	following	local	governments	who	participated	in	the	planning	process:	

 Kings	County	

 City	of	Avenal	

 City	of	Corcoran	

 City	of	Hanford	

 City	of	Lemoore	

 Santa	Rosa	Rancheria/Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	

 Kings	County	Office	of	Education	Representing	the	School	Districts	of:	

 Armona	Union	Elementary	School	District	
 Central	Union	School	District	
 Corcoran	Unified	School	District	
 Hanford	Elementary	School	District	
 Hanford	Joint	Union	High	School	District	
 Island	Union	Elementary	School	District	
 Kings	County	Office	of	Education	District	
 Kings	River‐Hardwick	School	District	
 Kit	Carson	Elementary	School	District	
 Lakeside	Union	Elementary	School	District	
 Lemoore	Union	Elementary	School	District	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	9	

 Lemoore	Union	High	School	District	
 Pioneer	Union	Elementary	School	District	
 Reef‐Sunset	Unified	School	District	

The	planning	process	followed	and	continues	the	methodology	prescribed	by	FEMA,	which	
began	with	the	formation	of	a	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	Team	comprised	of	key	
stakeholders	from	Kings	County,	participating	jurisdictions,	and	state	and	federal	agencies.	
The	Planning	Team	conducted	a	revised	risk	assessment	to	examine	the	recorded	history	of	
losses	resulting	from	natural	hazards,	assess	probability	and	magnitude	of	future	hazard	
events,	and	analyze	the	county’s	assets	at	risk	to	hazards.	The	risk	assessment	indicated	
that	earthquakes,	floods,	droughts,	and	extreme	heat	are	the	hazards	most	likely	to	
significantly	affect	people	and	property	in	the	county.		Planning	Team	members	are	listed	
on	the	Acknowledgements	page.	

County	Overview	
History	
When	the	first	white	settlers	arrived	in	Kings	County,	the	indigenous	population	consisted	
of	the	Tachi	tribe	of	the	Yokut	Indians.	The	Yokuts	controlled	the	entire	San	Joaquin	Valley	
from	the	delta	to	Tejon	Pass.	The	first	white	settlement	was	a	ferry	situated	on	the	south	
bank	of	the	Kings	River	where	the	Overland	stage	route	crossed.	Known	as	Kingston,	this	
town	was	part	of	Tulare	County	until	a	bridge	replaced	the	ferry	in	1873,	and	the	town	went	
into	decline	and	was	abandoned.	

A	few	small	settlements	followed	the	initial	settlement	at	Kingston,	but	the	first	
incorporated	community	was	Lemoore,	first	surveyed	in	1872.	The	Southern	Pacific	
railroad	arrived	in	the	town	in	1877,	and	the	second	permanent	community	began	along	the	
railroad	tracks	shortly	after	its	arrival.	Named	for	James	Madison	Hanford,	the	paymaster	of	
the	Southern	Pacific,	the	second	town	was	incorporated	in	1891.	Hanford	became	the	
county	seat	two	years	later,	when	Kings	County	was	formed	from	the	western	half	of	Tulare	
County.		

The	early	economy	of	the	county	centered	on	ranching	and	farming.	The	first	vineyard	was	
established	in	1890	and	the	first	dairy	came	three	years	later.	Settlement	in	Kings	County	
remained	modest	throughout	much	of	the	county's	first	century.	The	third	incorporated	
community,	Corcoran,	was	established	along	the	San	Francisco	and	San	Joaquin	Railroad	in	
1905.	In	1929,	the	fourth	incorporated	town,	Avenal,	was	established	on	the	west	side	of	the	
county	following	the	discovery	of	oil	in	the	hills.		

Kings	County	encompasses	approximately	1,435	square	miles.	It	is	located	slightly	south	of	
the	geographic	center	of	California	and	occupies	part	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	and	a	portion	
of	the	eastern	slope	of	the	California	Coast	Ranges.	The	county	is	bounded	on	the	southwest	
by	the	Coast	Ranges,	on	the	north	and	west	by	Fresno	County,	to	the	east	by	Tulare	County,	
and	to	the	south	by	Kern	County.		

There	are	four	incorporated	cities	in	the	county—Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford,	and	
Lemoore—and	four	community	service	areas—Armona,	Home	Garden,	Kettleman	City,	and	
Stratford.		Kings	County	is	also	home	to	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Base,	two	state	prisons,	and	
the	Tachi	Yokut	tribe,	who	live	on	170	acres	of	tribal	land	at	the	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria.	The	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	10	

Board	of	Supervisors	is	the	governing	body	for	Kings	County	and	many	county	special	
districts.		

Topography	in	most	of	the	county	is	relatively	flat.	However,	elevation	ranges	from	a	low	of	
175	feet	above	mean	sea	level	in	the	Tulare	Lake	bed,	to	3,500	feet	above	mean	sea	level	in	
the	southwest,	near	the	Kettleman	Hills	and	the	Kreyenhagen	Hills.	The	county	is	located	in	
the	Tulare	Lake	hydrologic	region	that	comprises	the	extreme	southern	portion	of	the	
Central	Valley.	The	rivers	in	this	region	include	the	Kings,	Kaweah,	Tule,	and	Kern,	which	all	
historically	drained	into	the	Tulare	Lake.	The	climate	in	Kings	County	can	be	classified	as	
Mediterranean	with	average	rainfall	rates	of	7.6	inches	annually,	occurring	primarily	
between	November	and	April.	A	map	of	Kings	County	is	located	on	the	following	page.		



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	11	

	
Kings	County	Planning	Area	Map		 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	12	

Population	
The	total	estimated	county	population	in	2010	was	152,982	up	from	147,729	people	in	
2007.	Population	estimates	for	the	unincorporated	areas	from	the	2010	U.S.	Census	are	
included	in	the	table	below.		
	

Unincorporated	Kings	County	Population	

Census‐
designated	
place	

Total	
Population	 White	

African	
American

Native	
American Asian

Pacific
Islander

Other	
races	

Two	
or	

more	
races	

Hispanic
or	

Latino	
(of	any	
race)	

Armona	 4,156	 2,058	 99 64 85 13 1,597	 240	 2,784
Grangeville	 469	 393	 15 5 5 0 41	 10	 145
Hardwick	 138	 63	 5 0 0 0 67	 3	 86
Home	
Garden	

1,761	 652	 221 63 50 8 677	 90	 1,189

Kettleman	
City	

1,439	 478	 4 8 1 0 887	 61	 1,383

Lemoore	
Station	

7,438	 4,883	 729 70 560 53 418	 725	 1,445

Stratford	 1,277	 574	 16 17 19 1 617	 33	 1,069
All	others	
not	CDPs	
(combined)	

17,488	 11,304	 377 755 267 18 3,991	 776	 7,851

Source:		2010	U.S.	Census	
	
Economy	
Kings	County	is	located	in	the	heart	of	California’s	rapidly	growing	San	Joaquin	Valley,	the	
richest	agricultural	area	in	the	world.	With	that	distinction	also	come	the	challenges	of	an	
economy,	which	has	historically	been	dependent	on	seasonal	agriculture	and	low	wages.		
Government	is	the	largest	employer,	followed	by	agriculture,	trade,	transportation	&	
utilities,	education	&	health	care,	and	manufacturing.	
	
It	appears	2011	is	the	start	of	a	rebuilding	period	for	Kings	County	cities	and	
unincorporated	communities.	Though	property	values	remain	low,	there	are	some	
encouraging	signs	in	the	housing	sector.		On	the	brighter	side,	the	Central	San	Joaquin	Valley	
is	currently	experiencing	growth	in	food	processing,	warehousing	and	distribution,	
education,	and	health	care.	Though	population	growth	is	temporarily	stable,	the	Valley	is	
seeing	a	trend	of	nonfarm	job	growth	as	businesses	consider	a	location	in	the	‘Affordable	
California’	(Kings	County	Economic	Development	Commission).	
	
More	detailed	information	on	the	general	overview	of	the	county	and	participating	
jurisdictions	are	located	in	the	jurisdictional	annexes	attached	to	this	plan.	

Plan	Organization	and	Structure	
The	Plan	has	been	developed	using	a	structure	similar	to,	but	modified	from	its	previous	
format.		The	Plan	is	divided	into	several	primary	sections,	each	covering	a	component	of	the	
document	as	required	under	state	and	federal	planning	guidance.		The	primary	sections	are	
further	supported	by	front	documents,	sectional	attachments,	and	appendices	that	support	
specific	issues	attached	to	the	plan.	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	13	

	
 Introduction	
	

 Element	A:		Planning	Process	
	

 Element	B:		Hazard	Identification	&	Risk	Assessment	
	

 Element	C:		Mitigation	Strategy	
	

 Element	D:		Plan	Review,	Evaluation	and	Implementation	
	

 Element	E:		Plan	Adoption	
	

 References	
	

 Planning	Process	Documentation	
	
 Community	Profile	Annexes	

o Unincorporated	Kings	County	
o Kings	County	School	Districts	
o Santa	Rosa	Rancheria/Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	
o City	of	Avenal	
o City	of	Corcoran	
o City	of	Hanford	
o City	of	Lemoore	

	

	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	14	

Element	A:		Planning	Process	
Requirement §201.6(b): An open public involvement process is essential to the development of 
an effective plan.   
 
More	often	than	not,	communities	are	faced	with	having	to	deal	with	the	aftermath	of	an	
unwanted	hazard	that	can	devastate	areas	of	a	community.		While	we	cannot	prevent	
disasters	from	happening,	their	effects	can	be	reduced	or	eliminated	through	hazard	
mitigation	planning,	but	only	if	a	local	government	has	the	foresight	to	assess	likely	hazards	
and	craft	preventative	measures	before	the	next	hazard	event	occurs.		This	Chapter	
describes	the	background	of	the	hazard	mitigation	planning	process	in	Kings	County.	
	
The	Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	(OEM)	recognized	the	need	and	
importance	of	revising	this	plan	and	was	responsible	for	its	initiation	and	for	securing	
funding	through	a	FEMA	Homeland	Security	Grant.		The	county	contracted	with	Howell	
Consulting	in	early	2012	to	facilitate	the	revision	and	update	to	their	existing	2007	LHMP.		
Howell	Consulting’s	role	was	to	assist	Kings	County	in	the	following:			
	

 Form	a	local	hazard	mitigation	Planning	Team	and	include	key	stakeholders	and	
representatives	

 Follow	FEMAs	planning	guidance	and	follow	the	requirements	set	forth	in	the	DMA	
2000	

 Facilitate	the	planning	process	and	identify	the	data	requirements	
 Facilitate	the	process	for	public	involvement	and	input	
 Work	closely	with	the	California	Emergency	Management	Agency	(Cal	EMA)	on	the	

development	and	review	of	the	revised	plan	and	planning	process	
 Ensure	coordination	with	Cal	EMA	and	FEMA	Region	on	review,	approval	and	

formal	adoption	of	the	plan	by	the	Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors/City	Councils	
	
Kings	County	utilized	many	of	FEMA’s	multi‐hazard	mitigation	planning	guidance	
documents	including	the	Planning	How‐To	Guides	to	structure	the	overall	facilitation	and	
development	of	the	planning	process.		The	following	sections	describe	the	planning	process.	
	
Multi‐Jurisdictional	Participation	
Each	jurisdiction	participating	in	this	plan	developed	and	revised	its	own	annex,	which	
provides	a	revised	and	more	detailed	assessment	of	each	jurisdiction’s	unique	risks,	as	well	
as	their	mitigation	strategy	to	reduce	long‐term	losses.	Each	jurisdictional	annex	continues	
to	address	the	following	items:	

 Community	profile	summarizing	geography,	history,	economy,	and	population	

 Hazard	information	on	geographically	specific	hazards	

 Hazard	map(s)	at	an	appropriate	scale	for	the	jurisdiction,	if	available	

 Number	and	value	of	buildings,	critical	facilities,	and	other	community	assets	located	
in	hazard	areas,	if	available	

 Vulnerability	in	terms	of	future	growth	and	development	in	identified	hazard	areas	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	15	

 Capability	assessment	describing	existing	regulatory,	administrative,	technical,	and	
fiscal	resources	and	tools,	as	well	as	outreach	efforts	and	partnerships,	and	past	
mitigation	projects	

 Mitigation	actions	specific	to	the	jurisdiction	

Each	jurisdiction	was	required	to	meet	strict	plan	participation	requirements	defined	at	the	
beginning	of	the	process,	which	included	the	following:	

 Designating	a	representative	to	serve	on	the	Kings	County	Hazard	Mitigation	
Planning	Team	

 Participating	in	most,	if	not	all	of	the	Planning	Team	meetings	

 Providing	data	and	information	to	complete	the	jurisdictional	annex,	including	
identifying	at	least	one	mitigation	action	and	completing	the	Information	Collection	
Tool	

 Reviewing	and	commenting	on	plan	drafts	

 Informing	the	public,	local	officials,	and	other	interested	parties	about	the	planning	
process	and	providing	opportunity	for	them	to	comment	on	the	plan	and	annex	
within	their	own	jurisdiction	

 Formally	adopting	the	mitigation	plan	and	the	jurisdictional	annex	

All	of	the	jurisdictions	with	annexes	to	this	plan	met	all	of	these	participation	requirements.	
In	most	cases,	the	representative	for	each	jurisdiction	brought	together	a	Planning	Team	to	
help	collect	data,	identify	mitigation	actions	and	implementation	strategies,	and	review	
annex	drafts.		

Element	A.1.	Planning	Process	
Requirement §201.6(c)(1):  [The plan shall document] the planning process used to develop the 
plan, including how it was prepared, who was involved in the process, and how the public was 
involved. 
 
The	Kings	County	Operational	Area	is	an	active	county	where	emergency	management	
issues	are	discussed,	presented	and	recommended	for	approval	by	the	Kings	County	Board	
of	Supervisors	as	well	as	the	Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	City	Councils.		
The	Kings	County	OEM	staff	distributed	a	formal	invitation	to	key	stakeholders,	county,	city,	
special	districts,	state	and	federal	representatives	to	participate	in	the	planning	process	by	
attending	the	official	planning	team/project	kickoff	meeting.		The	following	describes	the	
planning	process.	
	
Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	Team	Tasks	
Specific	tasks	were	identified	for	the	Planning	Team	in	order	to	ensure	that	project	goals	for	
the	plan	revision	were	undertaken	and	completed.	The	following	represents	those	primary	
Planning	Team	tasks:		
	

 Coordinate	tasks	and	activities	with	the	Office	of	Emergency	Management	to	
develop	all‐hazards	disaster	mitigation	plan	and	oversee	the	planning	process.		

	
 Prioritize	hazards	vs.	resources.		



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	16	

	
 Select	highest	and	best	mitigation	recommendations	and	develop	those	

recommendations	for	further	action	by	the	Kings	Operational	Area	and	the	
participating	jurisdictions	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	and	together	
with	their	own	agencies	(local	participating	jurisdictions)	

	
 Review	planning	drafts,	recommendations	and	updates		

	
 Develop	and	implement	long	and	short	term	goals	

	
 Integrate	the	plan	with	all	phases	of	comprehensive	emergency	management	

planning	
	

 Provide	for	the	implementation	of	Planning	Team	decisions	
	

 Encourage,	coordinate	and	provide	a	methodology	for	the	implementation	of	public	
input	

	
 Establish	Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	Team	tasks	locally	(Kings	County	and	Cities	of	

Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	to	include	but	not	be	limited	to	the	
following:		

	
o Determine	implementation	ability	and	constraints	for	proposed	hazard	

mitigation	planning	steps	and	development	of	strategies		
o Bring	forward	community	concerns	through	private	and	public	input		
o Identify	implementation	resources		
o Provide	for	the	update	of	comprehensive	Emergency	Management	Plans	on	a	

scheduled	basis		
o Evaluate	and	carry	out	mitigation	activities		
o Assist	in	implementation	of	funding	identification	and	procurement		

	
 Ensure	that	adjacent	jurisdictions,	pertinent	private	entities	and	citizens	are	

informed	of	the	hazard	mitigation	planning	process	and	offer	each	the	opportunity	
for	input	into	the	plan.		

	
A	Planning	Team	was	developed	that	included	members	from	all	participating	jurisdictions.		
The	Planning	Team	representatives	decided	to	work	collectively	on	the	plan	and	the	
jurisdictional	annexes.			Planning	Team	members	were	responsible	for	bringing	specific	
information	and	data	to	and	from	the	Planning	Team,	from	their	respective	jurisdictions	and	
agencies	seeking	approval,	such	as	Kings	County,	the	Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	
and	Lemoore.		Within	each	jurisdiction,	staff	met	with	the	Planning	Team	representative	to	
develop	and	update	their	specific	annex.		The	titles	of	the	staff	for	each	jurisdiction	and	their	
meeting	frequency	is	as	follows:			
	
City	of	Avenal	

 Police	Chief/Emergency	Manager	–	Official	Planning	Team	Representative	
 City	Manager	
 Community	Development	Department	Director	(Floodplain	Manager)	
 Public	Works	Department	Director	(Building	Official)	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	17	

	
The	City	of	Avenal	Planning	Team	met	collectively	at	their	regularly	scheduled	Department	
Head	meetings	which	were	held	each	week.		This	meeting	included	a	roundtable	discussion	
which	is	where	the	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	update	was	discussed	by	the	Avenal	Police	Chief.		
Discussions	included	the	overall	project	scope	and	planning	process	participation,	hazard	
identification	and	analysis,	vulnerability	assessment,	development	trends,	continued	public	
involvement,	mitigation	goals	and	strategy	development,	mitigation	projects	and	actions	
updates/revisions	and	new	project	development,	and	draft	plan	review	and	approval	
processes.	
	
City	of	Corcoran	

 Deputy	Police	Chief	–	Official	Planning	Team	Representative	
 Police	Chief/Emergency	Manager	
 City	Manager	(Floodplain	Administrator)	
 Community	Development	Department	Director	
 Public	Works	Department	Director	
 Finance	Department	Director	
 Human	Resources	Department	Director	

	
The	City	of	Corcoran	Planning	Team	met	collectively	at	their	regularly	scheduled	
Department	Head	meetings	held	every	Tuesday.		This	meeting	included	a	roundtable	
discussion	where	the	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	update	was	discussed	by	the	Emergency	
Manager.		In	Corcoran,	the	Deputy	Police	Chief	was	assigned	to	the	Official	Planning	Team	
and	was	invited	to	attend	the	Department	Head	meetings	when	requested	by	the	Police	
Chief	to	brief	the	City	Management	team	after	each	Official	Planning	Team	meeting.		
Discussions	included	the	overall	project	scope	and	planning	process	participation,	hazard	
identification	and	analysis,	vulnerability	assessment,	development	trends,	continued	public	
involvement,	mitigation	goals	and	strategy	development,	mitigation	projects	and	actions	
updates/revisions	and	new	project	development,	and	draft	plan	review	and	approval	
processes.		
	
City	of	Hanford	

 Fire	Chief/Emergency	Manager	–	Official	Planning	Team	Representative	
 City	Manager	
 Community	Development	Department	Director	(Floodplain	Manager)	
 Public	Works	Department	Director	

	
The	City	of	Hanford	Planning	Team	met	collectively	at	their	regularly	scheduled	Department	
Head	meetings	which	were	held	each	week.		This	meeting	included	a	roundtable	discussion,	
which	is	where	the	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	update	was	discussed	by	the	Fire	Chief.		
Discussions	included	the	overall	project	scope	and	planning	process	participation,	hazard	
identification	and	analysis,	vulnerability	assessment,	development	trends,	continued	public	
involvement,	mitigation	goals	and	strategy	development,	mitigation	projects	and	actions	
updates/revisions	and	new	project	development,	and	draft	plan	review	and	approval	
processes.	
	
City	of	Lemoore	

 City	Manager	
 Police	Chief/Emergency	Manager	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	18	

 Planning	Department	Director	(Floodplain	Administrator)	
 Public	Works	Department	Director	(Building	Official)	

	
The	City	of	Lemoore	Planning	Team	met	collectively	at	their	regularly	scheduled	
Department	Head	meetings,	which	were	held	each	week.		This	meeting	included	a	
roundtable	discussion,	which	is	where	the	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	update	was	discussed	by	
the	Fire	Chief.		In	Lemoore,	a	Police	Department	Sargent	was	assigned	to	the	Official	
Planning	Team.		This	representative	briefed	the	Police	Chief	after	each	Planning	Team	
meeting,	who	in	turn	coordinated	the	planning	process	at	the	Department	Head	level	for	the	
City.	Discussions	included	the	overall	project	scope	and	planning	process	participation,	
hazard	identification	and	analysis,	vulnerability	assessment,	development	trends,	continued	
public	involvement,	mitigation	goals	and	strategy	development,	mitigation	projects	and	
actions	updates/revisions	and	new	project	development,	and	draft	plan	review	and	
approval	processes.	
	
The	Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	jurisdictional	annexes	were	developed	
and	discussed	in	coordination	with	the	Official	Planning	Team	meeting	schedule	as	noted	in	
the	table	on	Page	19	either	at	their	regularly	scheduled	Department	Head	meetings	or	
immediately	following	those	meetings.		Also,	the	lead	Planning	Team	member	for	each	
jurisdiction	contacted	key	departments	directly	for	additional	information.			In	addition,	this	
hazard	mitigation	planning	process	fit	in	well	with	the	ongoing	updating	of	the	some	of	the	
participating	jurisdictions	safety	elements	of	their	general	plans.		
	
Planning	Meetings	and	Process	
The	planning	process	officially	began	with	a	project	introduction	meeting	in	Hanford,	
California,	on	March	22,	2012.		The	overall	schedule	for	the	project	was	discussed,	
highlighting	major	project	milestones	and	ending	with	the	anticipated	final	revised	draft	
plan	submitted	to	FEMA	for	approval	in	December	2012.		The	Howell	Consulting	Team	gave	
a	presentation	to	all	attendees	on	Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	and	the	planning	process.	
Members	of	the	public	were	also	solicited	to	serve	on	the	Planning	Team	and	since	many	of	
the	governmental	representatives	on	the	Planning	Team	also	resided	within	Kings	County	
those	members	served	a	dual	role.			
 
At	the	second	meeting	of	the	Planning	Team	also	in	Hanford,	on	July	12,	2012,	the	
consultants	provided	information	updates,	survey	results	to	date,	public	meeting	results,	
asked	for	updates	in	data	needed	from	the	jurisdictions	and	provided	an	overview	of	the	
2007	Mitigation	Strategies.		The	focus	of	this	meeting	however,	was	the	Hazard	
Identification	and	Risk	Assessment	process.		The	risk	assessment	process	identifies	and	
profiles	relevant	hazards	and	assesses	the	exposure	to	lives,	property	and	infrastructure	to	
these	hazards.		The	goal	of	the	risk	assessment	is	to	estimate	the	potential	losses	in	Kings	
County	along	with	the	participating	jurisdictions	from	a	hazard	event.		Planning	Team	
members	at	this	meeting	evaluated	the	hazards	in	the	2007	plan	and	profiled	which	hazards	
occurred	over	the	5‐year	planning	cycle.		Element	B	covers	this	topic	in	detail.	
	
The	third	Planning	Team	meeting	was	held	on	September	27,	2012	at	the	Fire	
Administration	HQ	in	Hanford.		The	planning	team	meeting	participants	were	lead	through	
a	series	of	discussions	on	current	capabilities	and	mitigation	actions	and	strategies.	The	
most	important	output	of	this	meeting	was	the	collaboration	of	the	progress	the	
jurisdictions	had	made	on	existing	hazard	mitigation	projects,	despite	receiving	limited	
federal	and	state	support,	many	of	the	initial	2007	projects	have	been	completed	by	Kings	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	19	

County	jurisdictions.		The	Planning	Team	thoroughly	reviewed	the	existing	Mitigation	
Strategies,	developed	new	strategies	to	meet	the	goals	and	objectives	and	prioritized	those	
strategies	for	the	operational	area.		The	Planning	Team	members	took	the	newly	developed	
strategies	back	to	their	jurisdictions	to	gain	input	and	feedback.	
	
On	October	24th	and	25th,	2012	the	consulting	team	met	individually	with	the	cities	of	
Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	to	discuss	their	mitigation	strategies	and	actions.		
The	purpose	of	these	workshops	with	the	local	representatives	was	to	refine	the	proposed	
2012	actions	and	discuss	the	status	of	the	2007	mitigation	actions	and	programs	with	the	
City	Departmental	representatives.	This	meeting	was	in	additional	to	the	normal	Planning	
Team	meetings	and	at	the	request	of	the	City’s	Official	Planning	Team	member	to	provide	
additional	information	on	what	was	needed	for	the	mitigation	strategies	both	past	and	
future.	
	
In	November	2012,	the	draft	plan	was	reviewed	by	the	Kings	County	Fire	Chief	(designated	
Director	of	Emergency	Services),	the	Emergency	Services	Coordinator,	the	Planning	Team	
and	several	other	key	county	staff,	such	as	the	Community	Development	Agency	key	
personnel.		In	addition,	each	participating	jurisdiction	participated	in	a	detailed	review	of	
the	draft	plan.			
	
In	December	2012,	Howell	Consulting	held	a	conference	call	due	to	the	holiday	schedule	
with	participating	Planning	Team	Members.		The	purpose	of	this	meeting	was	to	brief	on	the	
final	draft	plan	and	release	it	for	comments	to	include	the	public.		The	plan	was	placed	on	
the	county	website	for	public	review	and	comment,	placed	at	strategic	locations	around	the	
county	including,	the	Fire	Department	Administration	and	at	each	of	the	participating	
jurisdictional	City	Manager’s	Offices	as	part	of	the	planning	process.		Additionally,	fliers	
were	posted	on	community	bulletin	boards	in	the	less	populated	areas	within	each	
jurisdiction.			
	
The	following	table	shows	a	summary	of	the	planning	process	meetings,	their	topics,	dates,	
and	locations.			
	

Meeting	
Number	 Title	 Date	 Location	

1	
Kick‐off/Planning	
Team	roles	and	
expectations	

03/22/12	 Hanford	

2	
Hazard	
Identification/Analysis,	
general	update	

07/12/12	 Hanford	

3	 Mitigation	Strategy	 09/27/12 Hanford	

4	

Jurisdictional	Site	
Visits,	Mitigation	
Strategy,	general	
update	

10/24‐25/12	

Avenal,	
Corcoran,	
Hanford,	
Lemoore	

5	 Final	Draft	Briefing 12/2012	 Hanford	‐	
Conference	Call	

	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	20	

Additionally,	the	Planning	Team	communicated	during	the	planning	process	with	a	
combination	of	in‐person	meetings,	conference	calls,	email	correspondence	and	
communication	through	an	online	documents/data‐sharing	site.		The	meeting	topics	along	
with	sign‐in	sheets	and	agendas	are	located	in	the	Planning	Process	Documentation	section	
of	this	plan.	
	
The	official	Planning	Team	is	as	follows:	
	
Name	 Title	 Department	 Jurisdiction	

LHMP	Planning	Team	Members
Jack	Amoroso	 Police	Chief Avenal	Police	

Department	
City	of	Avenal	

Gary	Cramer	 Deputy	Chief	 Corcoran	Police	
Department	

City	of	Corcoran

Tim	Ironimo	 Fire	Chief Hanford	Fire	
Department	

City	of	Hanford

Pat	Mundy	 Sgt.	 Lemoore	Police	
Department	

City	of	Lemoore

Michelle	Speer	 Emergency	Services	
Coordinator	

Kings	County	Office	
of	Emergency	
Management	

Kings	County	

Courtney	Espinoza	 Emergency	Services	
Coordinator	

Kings	County	Office	
of	Emergency	
Management	

Kings	County	

Trudy	Maletta	 Emergency	Services	
Manager	

Kings	County	Office	
of	Emergency	
Management	

Kings	County	

Joe	Neves	 County	Supervisor County	of	Kings	
Board	of	Supervisors	

Kings	County	

William	Lynch	 Fire	Chief Kings	County	Fire	
Department	

Kings	County	

Mike	Virden	 Fire	Marshal Kings	County	Fire	
Department	

Kings	County	

Greg	Gatzka	 Director	 Kings	County	
Community	
Development	Agency

Kings	County	

Chuck	Kinney	 Manager	 Kings	County	
Community	
Development	Agency

Kings	County	

Jeremy	Kinney	 Manager	 Kings	County	
Community	
Development	Agency

Kings	County	

Tim	Niswander	 Agricultural	
Commissioner	

Kings	County	
Department	of	
Agriculture	

Kings	County	

Alex	Torres	 Public	Safety	
Manager	

Santa	Rosa	
Rancheria	Division	
of	Public	Safety	

Santa	Rosa	
Rancheria	

Angie	Sorrento	 Administrator Kings	County	Office	 Kings	County	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	21	

Name	 Title	 Department	 Jurisdiction	
of	Education

Howell	Consulting	Team
Brenna	Howell	 Project	Manager Howell	Consulting Howell	Consulting
Neal	T.	O’Haire	 Lead	Project	

Planner/Facilitator	
Howell	Consulting Howell	Consulting

Jim	Kniss	 GIS	Mapping	
Coordinator	

Howell	Consulting Howell	Consulting

	

Element	A.2.	Coordination	with	other	Communities	
Requirement §201.6(b)(2): An opportunity for neighboring communities, local and regional 
agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, and agencies that have the authority to 
regulate development, as well as businesses, academia and other private and non‐profit 
interests to be involved in the planning process. 
 
Since	the	inception	of	this	planning	process	a	major	forum	for	sharing	this	planning	with	
adjacent	jurisdictions	is	the	Mutual	Aid	Regional	Advisory	Committee	for	California	Mutual	
Aid	Region	V.		Region	V’s	members	are	contiguous	counties	to	Kings	County.		The	value	to	
this	collaboration	is	that	these	counties	share	many	of	the	same	characteristics	as	Kings	
County	such	as	similar	threats,	politics,	geography	and	culture.	This	coordinated	process	
has	been	made	possible	by	the	support	of	many	federal	grant	programs.	Since	many	of	the	
counties	in	Region	V	have	already	gone	through	the	hazard	mitigation	planning	process,	
their	experience	and	advice	has	proven	invaluable	to	Kings	County.		Each	of	these	meetings	
includes	a	local	roundtable	discussion	where	Kings	County	has	been	able	to	freely	and	
collaboratively	share	their	local	hazard	mitigation	planning	process.	
	
In	addition,	the	Planning	Team	developed	a	list	of	neighboring	communities,	local	and	
regional	agencies	involved	in	hazard	mitigation	activities,	as	well	as	other	interests,	to	invite	
by	letter	to	review	and	comment	on	the	draft	of	the	Kings	County	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	
Plan.	A	copy	of	this	letter	is	provided	in	the	Planning	Process	Documentation	section	of	this	
plan,	entitled	“Interested	Parties”.		The	comments	resulting	from	this	effort	were	
incorporated	into	the	plan,	as	appropriate.	The	stakeholders	invited	to	comment	on	the	plan	
were	the	following:	

 Kings	County	LHMP	Planning	Team	

 Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors	

 Avenal	City	Council	

 Corcoran	City	Council	

 Hanford	City	Council	

 Lemoore	City	Council	

 Heads	of	County	Departments	

 Heads	of	City	Departments	

 Kings	County	Community	Action	Organization	

 Kings	County	Commission	on	Aging	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	22	

 Kings	County	Water	District		

 Kings	River	Conservation	District	

 Westlands	Water	District	

 Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	‐	Casino	

 Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	–	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	

 Kern	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services	

 Tulare	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services	

 Fresno	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services	

 California	Emergency	Management	Agency	(Fresno	Office)	

 Corcoran	State	Prisons	

 Avenal	State	Prison	

 Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	

 U.S.	Bureau	of	Reclamation	(Fresno	office)	

 National	Weather	Service	–	Hanford	Station	

 American	Red	Cross	

As	part	of	the	coordination	with	other	agencies,	the	Planning	Team	collected	and	reviewed	
existing	technical	data,	reports	and	plans.	Kings	County	and	the	cities	located	there	use	a	
variety	of	comprehensive	planning	mechanisms,	such	as	land	use	and	general	plans,	
emergency	operations	plans,	and	municipal	ordinances	and	building	codes,	to	manage	
community	growth	and	development.	This	information	was	used	in	the	development	of	the	
hazard	identification,	vulnerability	assessment,	and	capability	assessment	and	in	the	
formation	of	goals,	objectives,	and	mitigation	actions.	These	sources	are	documented	
throughout	the	plan	and	specifically	in	the	capability	assessment	sections	of	each	
jurisdictional	annex.	 

Element	A.3.	Public	Involvement	
Requirement §201.6(b)(1): An opportunity for the public to comment on the plan during the 
drafting stage and prior to plan approval; Requirement §201.6(c)(1) [The plan shall document] 
the planning process used to develop the plan, including how it was prepared, who was 
involved in the process, and how the public was involved. 

 
At	the	beginning	of	the	planning	project	it	was	decided	by	Kings	County	OEM	that	early	
public	outreach	in	all	stages	of	the	plan	development	would	be	a	high	priority.		Copies	of	
those	advertisements	are	located	in	the	Planning	Process	Documentation	section	of	this	
plan.		In	addition	to	the	solicitation	for	Planning	Team	support,	there	was	a	Public	Survey	
that	was	developed	and	distributed	through	various	means	such	as	posted	on	the	Kings	
County	website,	posted	on	local	message	boards	and	handed	out	to	various	members	of	the	
public	at	events	in	within	Kings	County	and	the	participating	jurisdictions.	The	survey	
provided	an	opportunity	for	the	public	to	share	their	opinions	and	participate	in	the	
mitigation	planning	process.		The	information	provided	aided	in	helping	the	Planning	Team	
better	understand	the	hazard	concerns	and	identified	area	policies	and	projects	that	could	
potentially	help	lessen	the	impact	of	future	hazard	events	in	Kings	County.	The	survey	along	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	23	

with	the	survey	results,	are	located	in	the	Planning	Process	Documentation	section	of	this	
plan.			
	
There	were	also	three	separate	public	workshops	held	by	the	consulting	team	in	
coordination	with	the	county/cities.		These	workshops	were	held	in	the	evenings,	during	
the	week	at	selected,	accessible	locations	within	Kings	County,	so	that	the	public	could	
easily	attend.	The	overall	purpose	of	these	meetings	were	to	inform	the	public	on	the	
purpose	and	planning	process	for	the	local	hazard	mitigation	plan	development,	present	the	
types	of	hazards	in	or	possibly	affecting	Kings	County,	and	seek	input	from	the	public	on	
priorities	for	risk	reduction.			
	
Corcoran	advertised	their	meeting	in	the	Corcoran	Journal.	Avenal	advertised	their	meeting	
in	their	local	newspaper	and	Kings	County	advertised	all	of	the	meetings	by	flyers	placed	in	
each	unincorporated	area	of	the	county	(Armona,	Kettleman	City,	Home	Garden,	and	
Stratford)	at	fire	stations,	libraries,	and/or	posted	in	grocery	stores	and	other	places	
frequented	by	local	residents	and	the	county	website,	which	most	of	the	City	websites	link.	
Meeting	dates	are	provided	below.	

 Monday	May	14,	2012	‐	City	of	Hanford/Lemoore	and	Kings	County	
Unincorporated	Areas	

 Tuesday	May	15,	2012	‐	City	of	Corcoran	and	Kings	County	Unincorporated	
Areas	

 Wednesday	May	16,	2012	‐	City	of	Avenal	and	Kings	County	Unincorporated	
Areas	

	
Once	the	first	draft	of	the	revised	multi‐jurisdictional	plan	and	annexes	had	been	developed,	
Kings	County	made	it	available	on	their	website	at	www.countyofkings.com.	A	hard	copy	
was	also	available	at	the	following	locations:	Kings	County	Fire	Administration	(Hanford),	
the	local	libraries,	and	the	City	Manager’s	Offices	for	the	participating	cities.	The	
jurisdictions	announced	the	availability	of	the	draft	plan	and	the	public	comment.	A	copy	of	
the	notice	is	provided	in	Planning	Process	Documentation	section	of	this	plan.	

A	record	of	the	public	input,	surveys	and	remaining	planning	process	documentation	are	on	
file	with	Kings	County	OEM.	There	were	no	public	comments	from	the	workshops	or	the	
final	review	from	the	public.			

The	overall	process	included	the	discussion	of	the	hazard	mitigation	planning	process	into	
various	public	meetings	such	as	Board	or	Supervisors	meetings,	Emergency	Management	
meetings,	Local	and	Regional	Public	Health	meetings,	Fire	Chief’s	meetings,	School	Board	
meetings	and	participating	jurisdictional	meetings	and	forums.	
	
The	agendas,	presentations	and	attendance	rosters	for	each	of	these	public	meetings	are	
located	in	the	Planning	Process	Documentation	section	attached	to	this	plan.	

Element	A.4.	Review	and	Incorporation	of	Exiting	Plans	
Requirement §201.6(b)(3): Review and incorporation, if appropriate, of existing plans, studies, 
reports, and technical information. 
 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	24	

Based	on	the	capability	assessment	described	throughout	this	plan,	communities	in	Kings	
County	continue	to	plan	and	implement	programs	to	reduce	losses	to	life	and	property	from	
natural	hazards.	This	plan	builds	upon	the	momentum	developed	through	previous	and	
related	planning	and	mitigation	efforts	and	recommends	implementing	projects	through	the	
following	plans,	where	possible:	
 

 General	Plans	and	zoning	codes	of	participating	jurisdictions	
 Kings	County	Emergency	Operations	Plan	
 Capital	Improvements	Plans	in	the	county	
 Other	community	plans	within	the	county,	such	as	water	master	plans,	storm	water	

management	plans,	and	parks	and	recreation	plans	
 The	Fresno‐Kings	Unit	Pre‐Fire	Management	Plan	and	any	Local	Fire	Safe	Plans	and	

Community	Wildfire	Protection	Plans	that	may	be	developed	in	the	future	
 Other	plans	and	policies	outlined	in	the	capability	assessment	section	of	this	plan	

	
The	General	Plan	for	Kings	County	has	been	updated.	The	mitigation	plan	will	be	a	primary	
source	used	to	update	the	2010	Safety	Element	of	the	General	Plan.	The	Safety	Element	is	
updated	on	a	five‐year	cycle	consistent	with	the	mitigation	plan	to	improve	efficient	use	of	
county	resources	and	to	improve	consistency	within	county	plans	and	policies.	

Element	A.5.	Plan	Maintenance	Process	
Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(iii): [The plan maintenance process shall include a] discussion on 
how the community will continue public participation in the plan maintenance process. 
 
Kings	County	is	dedicated	to	involving	the	public	directly	in	review	and	updates	of	the	Kings	
County	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan.		Copies	of	the	plan	will	be	catalogued	and	kept	at	all	
appropriate	agencies	in	the	County	as	well	as	at	the	main	library	and	posted	on	official	
websites.			
	
Public	meetings	will	be	held	as	part	of	each	annual	review	and	the	required	five‐year	update	
of	the	plan.		The	meetings	will	provide	a	forum	for	public	input	to	the	plan.		In	addition	to	
public	meetings,	the	OEM	office	will	provide	an	update	to	the	Board	of	Supervisors	on	the	
process	of	mitigation	planning	in	Kings	County.		This	will	allow	the	public	to	comment	and	
capture	any	relevant	comments	into	the	public	record.	

Element	A.6.	Continued	Public	Involvement	
Requirement §201.6(c)(4)(i): [The plan maintenance process shall include a] section describing 
the method and schedule of monitoring, evaluating, and updating the mitigation plan within a 
five year cycle. 
 
The	Kings	County	Operational	Area	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	Team	has	made	the	
commitment	to	annually	bring	this	plan	before	the	public	through	public	meetings	and	
community	posting	so	that	citizens	may	make	input	as	strategies	and	implementation	
actions	change.		Each	jurisdiction	is	responsible	for	assuring	that	their	citizenry	are	
informed	when	deemed	appropriate	by	the	standing	Planning	Team.		This	plan	will	also	be	
on	the	standing	agenda	of	the	Kings	County	Operational	Area	meeting.		This	meeting	occurs	
at	least	twice	annually	in	January	and	June	and	is	led	by	the	Operational	Area	Coordinator.			
	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	25	

The	Kings	County	Fire	Department,	Office	of	Emergency	Management,	Coordinator	will	be	
responsible	for	the	monitoring,	evaluating,	and	updating	of	the	plan	for	the	Operational	
Area.		The	following	are	the	designated	positions	in	the	participating	jurisdictions	that	will	
also	take	lead	in	ensuring	the	plan	is	continually	monitored,	evaluated	and	updated.	
	
Name	 Title	 Department	 Jurisdiction Monitoring Evaluating	 Updating
Jack	
Amoroso	

Police	Chief	 Avenal	
Police	
Department	

City	of	
Avenal	 X	 X	 X	

Gary	
Crammer	

Deputy	
Chief		

Corcoran	
Police	
Department	

City	of	
Corcoran	 X	 X	 X	

Tim	
Ironimo	

Fire	Chief	 Hanford	Fire	
Department	

City	of	
Hanford	 X	 X	 X	

Pat	
Mundy	

Sgt.	 Lemoore	
Police	
Department	

City	of	
Lemoore	 X	 X	 X	

Michelle	
Speer	

Emergency	
Services	
Coordinator	

Kings	
County	
Office	of	
Emergency	
Management

Kings	
County	

X	 X	 X	

	

	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	26	

Element	B:		Hazard	Identification	and	Risk	Assessment	
Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(i): [The risk assessment shall include a] description of the type, 
location and extent of all natural hazards that can affect the jurisdiction. The plan shall 
include information on previous occurrences of hazard events and on the probability of future 
hazard events.	
	
§201.6(c)(2)(ii): [The risk assessment shall include a] description of the jurisdiction’s 
vulnerability to the hazards described in paragraph (c)(2)(i) of this section. This description 
shall include an overall summary of each hazard and its impact on the community. All plans 
approved after October 1, 2008 must also address NFIP insured structures that have been 
repetitively damaged by floods. The plan should describe vulnerability in terms of: 

§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(A): The types and numbers of existing and future buildings, infrastructure, and 
critical facilities located in the identified hazard areas; 

§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(B): An estimate of the potential dollar losses to vulnerable structures identified 
in ... this section and a description of the methodology used to prepare the estimate. 

§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(C): Providing a general description of land uses and development trends within 
the community so that mitigation options can be considered in future land use decisions. 

Risk	to	natural	hazards	is	a	combination	of	hazard,	vulnerability	and	capability.		This	section	
of	the	LHMP	will	look	at	both	hazards	and	vulnerability.		The	risk	assessment	process	
identifies	and	profiles	relevant	hazards	and	assesses	the	exposure	to	lives,	property	and	
infrastructure	to	these	hazards.		The	goal	of	the	risk	assessment	is	to	estimate	the	potential	
losses	in	Kings	County	from	a	hazard	event.		This	process	also	allows	communities	in	Kings	
County	to	better	understand	their	potential	risk	to	natural	hazards	and	provides	a	
framework	for	developing	and	prioritizing	mitigation	actions	to	reduce	the	risks	from	
future	hazard	events	in	Kings	County.	
	
In	the	early	meetings	with	Kings	County	and	the	Planning	Team,	data	was	reviewed	from	
the	following	sources	on	hazards	affecting	the	county,	those	sources	were:		the	Federal	and	
State	Disaster	Declaration	History,	the	State	of	California	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	(2010),	the	
Health	Safety	Element	of	the	Kings	County	2035	General	Plan	(2010),	and	interviews	of	staff	
that	live	and	work	in	Kings	County.	
	
The	Planning	Team,	during	their	July	2012	meeting,	came	to	agreement	on	significant	
hazards	to	Kings	County.		The	Planning	Team	agreed	not	to	address	technological	or	
human‐caused	hazards,	which	are	addressed	in	emergency	operations	plans	for	the	
county/cities.	The	hazards	contained	in	this	planning	effort	are	in	alphabetical	order	and	
listed	below.	
	

 Dam	Failure	
 Drought		
 Earthquake		
 Extreme	Heat		
 Flood		
 Fog		
 Freeze		



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	27	

 Landslide		
 Tornado		
 Wildfire	

	
Non‐Profiled	Hazards	
The	Planning	Team	reviewed	data	and	discussed	several	other	hazards,	which	were	
eliminated	from	further	discussion	because	they	occur	rarely	and/or	their	impacts	are	not	
significant.	The	list	below	details	these	hazards	and	provides	a	brief	explanation	for	their	
omission	from	further	profiling.	
	

 Avalanche	‐	Snowfall	is	extremely	rare	to	nonexistent	across	the	planning	area.	
 Coastal	Erosion/Storm	‐	Hazard	does	not	occur	due	to	distance	from	coasts	and	

ocean.	
 Hailstorm	‐	Severe	thunderstorms	during	which	hail	normally	occurs	are	rare.	
 Hurricane	‐	Hazard	does	not	occur	due	to	distance	from	ocean.	
 Land	Subsidence	‐	Land	subsidence	does	occur	in	many	areas	but	primarily	affects	

water	wells,	which	local	agencies	address.	
 Tsunami	‐	Hazard	does	not	occur	due	to	distance	from	ocean.	
 Severe	Winter	Storm	‐	Very	little	to	no	snowfall	recorded	throughout	county;	

temperatures	fall	below	32	degrees	Fahrenheit	only	a	few	days	of	the	year.	
 Windstorm	‐	High	winds	occur	but	are	not	common.	
 Volcano	‐	The	U.S.	Geological	Survey	does	not	include	Kings	County	in	their	map	of	

	 areas	identified	as	subject	to	hazards	from	potential	eruptions	in	California.	
	
The	remainder	of	this	section	begins	with	an	overview	of	the	history	of	declared	disasters	in	
Kings	County	followed	by	the	profiles	of	identified	hazards.		

Disaster	Declaration	History	
One	method	to	identify	hazards	is	to	look	at	the	events	that	have	triggered	federal	and/or	
state	disaster	declaration	that	included	Kings	County.		The	following	table	lists	the	disaster	
declarations	where	Kings	County	was	designated	federal	and/or	state	disaster	declarations	
from	1950	to	the	present.			
	

Kings	County	Disaster	Declaration	History	1950‐present	
	

Hazard	
Type	

Disaster	
Name	

Disaster	
Number	

State	
Declaration	

Federal	
Declaration	

Flood	 1969	
Storms	

OEP	
DR‐253	

01/29/69
	

01/26/69	

Flood	 Heavy	
Snow	
Runoff	

OEP	
DR‐2270	

01/28/69 08/15/69	

Severe	
Storm,	
Freeze	

Freeze/	
Severe	
Weather		

04/17/72 not	declared	

Drought	 1976	
Drought	

02/13/76 not	declared	

Severe	
Storms	

Winter	
’78	
Storms	

DR‐547 02/27/78 02/15/78	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	28	

Hazard	
Type	

Disaster	
Name	

Disaster	
Number	

State	
Declaration	

Federal	
Declaration	

Flood	 Winter	
Storms	

DR‐682 03/03/83 02/09/83	

Severe	
Storm	

Severe	
Winter	
Storms	

DR‐1044 01/17/95 01/13/95	

Severe	
Storm,	
Flood	

Late	
Winter	
Storms	

DR‐1046 01/10/95	

Flood	 January	
1997	
Floods	

01/31/97

Flood	 El	Nino	 02/02/98 not	declared	

Freeze	
	

Freeze	 DR‐1267 02/09/99 02/09/99	

Freeze	 Severe	
Freeze	

DR‐1689 3/13/2007 3/13/07

Severe	
Storm	

08	
January	
Storms	

OES	
2008‐01	

1/2008 not	declared	

Drought	 Central	
Valley	
Drought	

OES	
2008‐03	

06/12/08

Flood	 December	
2010	
Statewide	
Storms	
	

DR‐1952
OES	
2010‐17	

12/21/10 01/26/11	

Source:		Kings	OEM,	Cal	EMA	and	FEMA	

The	majority	of	declarations	and	all	but	two	federal	disaster	declarations	were	declared	for	
severe	storms	and	flooding.	These	occurred	twice	in	1969,	once	each	in	1978	and	1983,	and	
twice	in	1995	and	again	in	2010‐2011.	A	federal	disaster	declaration	for	freeze	in	February	
was	declared	in	1999	and	in	2007.	The	remaining	declaration	was	a	state	declaration	for	
drought	in	1976	and	2008.		

The	federal	government	may	also	issue	a	disaster	declaration	through	the	U.S.	Department	
of	Agriculture	(USDA)	and/or	the	Small	Business	Administration,	as	well	as	through	FEMA.	
The	quantity	and	types	of	damage	are	the	determining	factors.	A	USDA	declaration	makes	
all	qualified	farm	operators	in	the	designated	areas	eligible	for	low‐interest	emergency	
loans	from	the	USDA's	Farm	Service	Agency.	As	part	of	an	agreement	with	the	USDA,	the	
Small	Business	Administration	offers	low	interest	loans	for	eligible	businesses	that	suffered	
economic	losses	in	declared	and	contiguous	counties.	The	USDA	declarations	are	located	in	
the	following	table	since	the	last	plan	update	in	2007.	

	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	29	

USDA	Agricultural	Declarations	Since	2007	Plan	Update	
	

USDA	Declaration	 Date	of	Occurrence	

Drought;	Primary	County	 3/1/2008	and	continuing	

Extreme	High	Temperatures;	Primary	
County	

6/17‐22/2008

Drought;	Contiguous	County	 1/1/2009	and	continuing	

Freeze,	followed	by	Excessive	Heat;	Primary	
County	

4/4‐22/2009

Freeze;	Contiguous	County	 4/8‐9/2011

Hail,	Rain,	Cold	Temperatures;	Primary	
County	

4/11‐13/2012

Drought	 1/1/2012	and	continuing	

	

Methodology	
The	hazards	identified	in	Kings	County	by	the	Planning	Team	are	profiled	in	this	section.	
Hazard	profiles	provide	information	on	the	hazard	description,	extent	and	magnitude,	
previous	occurrences,	and	probability	of	future	occurrence.	The	sources	used	to	collect	this	
information	for	Kings	County	included	the	following:		

 Disaster	declaration	history	from	the	California	Emergency	Management	Agency	
(Cal	EMA)	and	FEMA.	

 California	State	Multi‐Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	(2010).	

 Kings	County	Emergency	Operations	Plan	(2008)	and	the	Safety	Element	of	the	
Kings	County	General	Plan	(2010).	

 Geographic	information	systems	(GIS)	data	from	Cal	EMA	and	other	state	agencies,	
the	U.S.	Geological	Survey,	and	the	Kings	County	Planning	Department.	

 Information	collection	from	the	Planning	Team	meetings	and	completed	by	each	
participating	jurisdiction	profiling	hazards	in	their	area.	

A	detailed	profile	for	each	of	the	identified	hazards	compiles	information	on	the	following	
characteristics	of	the	hazard:	

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
This	section	describes	the	potential	severity	of	disaster	and	any	secondary	events	caused	by	
the	hazard	and	the	extent	or	location	of	the	hazard	in	the	planning	area.	Magnitude	is	
classified	by	the	following:		

Catastrophic:	 	 More	than	50	percent	of	the	planning	area	affected	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	30	

Critical:		 	 	 Between	35‐50	percent	of	the	planning	area	affected	

Limited:		 	 	 10‐25	percent	of	the	planning	area	affected	

Negligible:		 	 Less	than	10	percent	of	the	planning	area	affected	

Previous	Occurrences	
This	section	includes	information	on	historic	incidents,	including	impacts,	if	known.	An	
Information	Collection	Tool	was	used	to	capture	information	from	participating	
jurisdictions	on	past	occurrences.	Information	from	the	Planning	Team	was	combined	with	
other	data	sources	such	as	the	National	Weather	Service.	

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences		
The	frequency	of	past	events	is	used	to	gauge	the	likelihood	of	future	occurrences.	Based	on	
historical	data,	the	probability	of	future	occurrences	is	categorized	into	one	of	the	following	
classifications:	

Highly	Likely:	 Near	100	percent	chance	of	occurrence	next	year	or	happens	every		
	 	 	 year	

Likely:		 Between	10	percent	and	100	percent	chance	of	occurrence	in	next	
year	or	has	a	recurrence	interval	of	10	years	or	less	

Occasional:		 Between	1	percent	and	10	percent	chance	of	occurrence	in	the	next	
year	or	has	a	recurrence	interval	of	11	to	100	years	

Unlikely:		 Less	than	1	percent	chance	of	occurrence	in	next	100	years	or	has	a	
recurrence	interval	of	greater	than	every	100	years	

The	probability,	or	chance	of	occurrence,	was	calculated	where	possible	based	on	existing	
data.	Probability	was	determined	by	dividing	the	number	of	events	observed	by	the	number	
of	years	and	multiplying	by	100.	This	gives	the	percent	chance	of	the	event	happening	in	
any	given	year.	An	example	would	be	three	droughts	occurring	over	a	30‐year	period,	which	
suggests	a	10	percent	chance	of	that	hazard	occurring	in	any	given	year.		

Element	B.1	Hazard	Descriptions	
Element	B.2	Previous	Occurrences	and	Probability	of	Future	
Occurrences	
Requirement §201.6(c)(2)(i): [The risk assessment shall include a] description of the type, 
location and extent of all natural hazards that can affect the jurisdiction. The plan shall 
include information on previous occurrences of hazard events and on the probability of future 
hazard events. 
 
The	profiles	for	each	of	the	identified	hazards	are	listed	below	in	alphabetical	order.	Dam	
failure	is	addressed	in	the	flood	section	due	to	its	similar	impacts.		

DROUGHT	
Hazard	Description	
Drought	is	a	gradual	phenomenon.	Normally,	one	dry	year	does	not	constitute	a	drought	in	
California,	but	rather	serves	as	a	reminder	of	the	need	to	plan	for	droughts.	California's	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	31	

extensive	system	of	water	supply	infrastructure	(reservoirs,	groundwater	basins,	and	
interregional	conveyance	facilities)	generally	mitigates	the	effects	of	short‐term	dry	periods	
for	most	water	users.	
	
Drought	can	have	secondary	impacts.	For	example,	drought	is	a	major	determinant	of	
wildfire	hazard,	in	that	it	creates	greater	propensity	for	fire	starts	and	larger,	more	
prolonged	conflagrations	fueled	by	excessively	dry	vegetation,	along	with	reduced	water	
supply	for	firefighting	purposes.	Drought	is	also	an	economic	hazard.	Significant	economic	
impacts	on	California’s	agriculture	industry	can	occur	as	a	result	of	short‐	and	long‐term	
drought	conditions;	these	include	hardships	to	farmers,	farm	workers,	packers,	and	
shippers	of	agricultural	products.	In	some	cases,	droughts	can	also	cause	significant	
increases	in	food	prices	to	the	consumer	due	to	shortages.	
	
The	drought	issue	is	further	compounded	by	water	rights	specific	to	any	state	or	region.	
Water	is	a	commodity	possessed	under	a	variety	of	legal	doctrines.	The	prioritization	of	
water	rights	between	agriculture	and	federally	protected	fish	habitat	in	the	state	is	also	at	
issue.	

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
Droughts	are	generally	widespread	events	that	could	affect	all	of	Kings	County	and	
surrounding	counties.	Impacts	include	water	restrictions	associated	with	domestic	supplies,	
agricultural	and	livestock	losses	and	economic	impacts,	hydroelectric	power	reductions,	
and	increased	costs	for	water.	Secondary	effects	include	susceptibility	to	wildfires	and	
increased	groundwater	pumping	that	can	contribute	to	land	subsidence	problems	and	
degraded	water	quality.	

The	magnitude	of	a	drought’s	impact	is	directly	related	to	the	severity	and	length.	Droughts	
can	be	a	short‐term	event	over	several	months	or	a	long‐term	event	that	lasts	for	years	or	
even	decades.	In	Kings	County,	the	onset	of	drought	is	often	signalled	by	a	lack	of	significant	
winter	precipitation	and	snowfall	in	the	Sierra	Nevada	Mountains.	Hot	and	dry	conditions	
that	persist	into	spring,	summer,	and	fall	can	aggravate	drought	conditions,	making	the	
effects	of	drought	more	pronounced	as	water	demands	increase	during	the	growing	season	
and	summer	months.	Impacts	increase	with	the	length	of	a	drought,	as	carry‐over	supplies	
in	reservoirs	are	depleted	and	water	levels	in	groundwater	basins	decline	(California	
Department	of	Water	Resources	2012).		

	
	
Previous	Occurrences	
Historically,	California	has	experienced	severe	drought	conditions.	The	state’s	available	
record	for	determining	hydrologic	risks	is	short,	only	going	back	about	100	years.		Recent	
droughts	affecting	Kings	County	are	summarized	below	using	data	from	Cal	EMA	and	from	
the	County	Agricultural	Commissioner’s	Office.	

 1928‐1937—This	drought	affected	the	entire	state	and	is	the	longest,	most	severe	
drought	on	record	with	a	recurrence	interval	of	greater	than	100	years.		

 1947‐1950—Drought	affected	the	entire	state	but	was	most	extreme	in	Southern	
California.	The	drought	in	winter	of	1950	affected	the	area	from	the	Kern	River	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	32	

basin	north	to	the	American	River	basin.	The	drought	caused	two	deaths	and	$33	
million	in	damages.	

 1976‐1977—The	drought	of	1976‐1977	was	most	severe	in	the	northern	three‐
quarters	of	California,	but	the	impact	was	experienced	statewide	because	of	the	
dependence	of	southern	California	on	water	transfers	from	the	north.	The	water	
year	1977	was	the	driest	year	of	record	at	almost	all	gauging	stations	in	the	affected	
area	in	California,	and	the	water	year	1976	was	among	the	five	driest	in	the	central	
and	northern	Sierra	Nevada.	The	two‐year	deficiency	in	runoff	accumulated	during	
the	drought	is	unequalled	at	gauging	stations	in	the	affected	area;	and	this	
deficiency	has	a	recurrence	interval	that	exceeds	80	years.	Crop	damages	statewide	
were	$2.67	billion.		

 1987‐1992—During	this	multiyear,	multi‐county	drought,	the	runoff	from	the	San	
Joaquin	Valley	was	47	percent	of	average.	In	1991,	the	U.S.	Department	of	
Agriculture	Economic	Research	Report	Agricultural	Outlook	reported	that	the	Kings	
River	flow	would	be	inadequate	to	provide	sufficient	water	for	agricultural	uses	for	
the	fifth	consecutive	year.	A	USDA	drought	disaster	declaration	was	declared.		

 2004‐2005—On	January	26,	2005,	the	USDA	designated	Kings	County	a	primary	
disaster	area	due	to	drought	that	had	occurred	since	January	1,	2004.	

 2008‐2009	–	In	June	12,	2008,	The	Governor	proclaimed	Kings	County	as	a	state	
disaster	area	due	to	the	Central	Valley	Drought.	

 2012	–	In	September	2012,	the	USDA	designated	Kings	County	a	contiguous	disaster	
are	due	to	drought	that	occurred	since	January	1,	2012.	

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
Based	on	the	historical	record	of	droughts	that	have	occurred	in	California	since	1862	(143	
years).	This	indicates	that	California	experiences	drought	on	average	every	10	years,	which	
is	a	10	percent	chance	of	occurring	in	any	given	year.	In	Kings	County,	based	on	these	
probabilities,	drought	will	continue	to	occur	occasionally	in	the	future.		

EARTHQUAKE	
Hazard	Description	
An	earthquake	is	caused	by	a	sudden	slip	on	a	fault.	Stresses	in	the	earth’s	outer	layer	push	
the	sides	of	the	fault	together.	Stress	builds	up	and	the	rocks	slip	suddenly,	releasing	energy	
in	waves	that	travel	through	the	earth’s	crust	and	cause	the	shaking	that	is	felt	during	an	
earthquake.	The	amount	of	energy	released	during	an	earthquake	is	usually	expressed	as	a	
magnitude	and	is	measured	directly	from	the	earthquake	as	recorded	on	seismographs.	The	
magnitude	of	earthquakes	is	usually	measured	using	the	Richter	scale;	a	logarithmic	scale	
calculated	from	the	amplitude	of	the	largest	seismic	wave	recorded	for	the	earthquake.	

Another	measure	of	earthquake	severity	is	intensity.	Intensity	is	an	expression	of	the	
amount	of	shaking	at	any	given	location	on	the	ground	surface.	Seismic	shaking	is	typically	
the	greatest	cause	of	damage	to	structures	during	earthquakes.	Seismologists	have	
developed	the	Mercalli	scale	to	quantify	the	shaking	intensity	of	an	earthquake’s	effects,	
which	is	measured	by	how	an	earthquake	is	felt	by	humans	and	the	damage	to	buildings.	

Earthquakes	can	cause	structural	damage,	injury,	and	loss	of	life,	as	well	as	damage	to	
infrastructure	networks	such	as	water,	power,	gas,	communication,	and	transportation	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	33	

lines.	Other	damage‐causing	effects	of	earthquakes	are	surface	rupture,	fissuring,	
settlement,	and	permanent	horizontal	and	vertical	shifting	of	the	ground.	Secondary	
impacts	can	include	landslides,	seiches,	liquefaction,	and	dam	failure.	

In	populated	areas,	the	greatest	potential	for	loss	of	life	and	property	damage	can	come	as	a	
result	of	ground	shaking	from	a	nearby	earthquake.	The	degree	of	damage	depends	on	
many	interrelated	factors.	Among	these	are	the	Richter	magnitude,	focal	depth,	distance	
from	the	causative	fault,	duration	of	shaking,	type	of	surface	deposits	or	bedrock,	presence	
of	high	ground	water,	topography,	and	finally,	the	design,	type,	and	quality	of	building	
construction.	

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude 
No	major	fault	systems	are	known	to	exist	in	Kings	County,	so	the	potential	for	extensive	
surface	rupture	is	minimal.	Minor	surface	rupture	could	occur	in	areas	of	minor	faulting,	
which	occur	primarily	in	the	southwestern	part	of	the	county	along	the	Kettleman	Hills.	
Ground	shaking	is	the	most	likely	damaging	effect	of	an	earthquake.	The	Planning	Team	
reported	that	shaking	was	felt	during	the	Coalinga	earthquake	of	magnitude	(M)	6.4	in	
1983.	The	epicenter	of	the	Coalinga	earthquake	was	located	approximately	20	miles	from	
the	county’s	western	border.		

The	San	Andreas	Fault	is	located	less	than	four	miles	west	of	the	Kings	County	line.	The	San	
Andreas	occurs	where	the	North	American	and	Pacific	plates	come	together	and	grind	in	a	
side‐by‐side	motion	relative	to	each	other.	Another	large	known	fault,	the	White	Wolf	fault,	
is	located	to	the	south	near	Arvin	and	Bakersfield	and	produced	a	severe	M	7.7	earthquake	
in	1952.	The	map	on	the	following	page	shows	the	known	faults,	historic	epicenters,	and	
potential	for	ground	shaking	resulting	from	earthquakes	in	and	near	Kings	County.		

  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	34	

Kings	County	Earthquakes	Map	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	35	

The	potential	for	ground	shaking	is	discussed	in	terms	of	the	percent	probability	of	
exceeding	peak	ground	acceleration	(%	g)	in	the	next	50	years.	It	varies	from	20‐30%	g	in	
the	northeast	third	of	the	county,	including	the	cities	of	Hanford,	Lemoore,	Corcoran,	and	
the	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	to	30‐40%	g	in	the	central	part	of	the	county,	which	is	primarily	
agricultural.	Earthquake	hazard	is	more	severe	in	the	southwest	third	of	the	county	and	the	
City	of	Avenal.	The	potential	for	ground	shaking	in	this	area	ranges	from	40‐50%	g	to	70‐
80%	g	at	the	southwestern	county	line.	

Earthquakes	can	occur	at	any	time	of	the	day	or	night	and	any	time	of	the	year.	Earthquakes	
are	particularly	dangerous	due	to	their	rapid	onset,	generally	without	warning.	Aftershocks	
can	occur	for	days,	weeks,	and	even	months	following	a	major	earthquake.	This	additional	
damage	to	structures	already	weakened	by	the	main	earthquake	increases	the	danger	to	
rescue	and	recovery	personnel.		

Earthquakes	can	result	in	many	secondary	effects,	including	fires	and	landslides,	which	are	
covered	in	separate	sections	of	this	plan.	Ground	settlement	and	soil	compaction	also	may	
occur	as	a	result	of	seismic	ground	shaking.	When	unconsolidated	valley	sediments	are	
saturated	with	water,	water	from	voids	is	forced	to	the	ground	surface,	where	it	emerges	in	
the	form	of	mud	spouts	or	sand	boils.	If	soil	liquefies	in	this	manner	(liquefaction),	it	loses	
its	supporting	capacity,	which	can	result	in	the	minor	displacement	to	total	collapse	of	
structures.	

These	types	of	unconsolidated	sediments	represent	the	poorest	kind	of	soil	condition	for	
resisting	seismic	shock	waves.	Most	of	Kings	County	east	of	Interstate	5	and	west	of	the	
railroad	are	mapped	as	having	liquefaction	potential	referenced	in	the	liquefaction	map	
shown	in	the	landslide	hazards	section	of	this	plan.	

Previous	Occurrences	
There	have	not	been	any	damaging	earthquakes	greater	than	M	6.0	recorded	in	Kings	
County	in	over	200	years,	though	several	have	been	very	close.	The	most	recent	large	
earthquake	near	Kings	County	was	the	Kettleman	Hills	earthquake	of	magnitude	6.1	on	
August	4,	1985,	whose	epicenter	was	located	four	miles	from	the	Kings	County	border	just	
north	of	Avenal.	This	earthquake	was	the	third	in	a	sequence	of	moderate	earthquakes	that	
occurred	along	a	shallowly	dipping	thrust	fault	on	the	eastern	border	of	the	San	Joaquin	
Basin.	It	was	preceded	by	two	earthquakes	located	approximately	20	miles	from	Kings	
County,	the	1982	New	Idria	earthquake	(M	5.4)	and	the	1983	Coalinga	(M	6.5).	The	
Kettleman	Hills	earthquake	did	not	result	in	any	surface	rupture.	There	was	a	low	level	of	
ground	shaking	and	low	local	magnitude	reported	(2007	Kings	County	LHMP).	

Major	earthquakes	have	occurred	near	Kings	County	and	resulted	in	ground	shaking	felt	in	
the	county.	Figure	4.2	shows	the	historic	epicenters	of	earthquakes	in	California	from	1800‐
2000.	The	Fort	Tejon	earthquake	in	1857	of	M	7.9	was	one	of	the	greatest	earthquakes	ever	
recorded	in	the	United	States	and	the	largest	in	California.	It	left	an	amazing	surface	rupture	
scar	over	215	miles	in	length	along	the	San	Andreas	Fault.	The	epicenter	is	now	thought	to	
have	been	located	near	Cholame,	approximately	34	miles	northwest	of	the	Kings	County	
border	near	Avenal.	During	the	Fort	Tejon	earthquake,	strong	shaking	lasted	from	one	to	
three	minutes.	As	a	result	of	the	shaking,	the	current	of	the	Kern	River	was	turned	
upstream,	and	water	ran	four	feet	deep	over	its	banks.	The	waters	of	Tulare	Lake	were	
thrown	upon	its	shores,	stranding	fish	miles	from	the	original	lakebed.	Property	loss	was	
heavy	at	Fort	Tejon,	one	of	the	only	settlements	at	the	time,	an	Army	post	in	south‐central	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	36	

Kern	County	about	four	miles	from	the	San	Andreas	fault.	In	1857,	two	buildings	were	
declared	unsafe,	three	others	were	damaged	extensively	but	were	habitable,	and	still	others	
sustained	moderate	damage.	One	person	was	killed	in	the	collapse	of	an	adobe	house	at	
Gorman.		

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
Unfortunately,	the	number	and	variations	of	all	potential	earthquakes	are	so	large	that	it	is	
not	possible	to	develop	scenarios	for	all	of	them,	nor	would	it	be	possible	to	rank	them	by	
importance	if	such	scenarios	were	developed.	To	get	an	idea	of	the	overall	scope	of	the	risk	
of	losses	from	earthquakes	and	to	determine	which	areas	are	most	vulnerable,	CGS	uses	an	
alternate	approach	based	on	probabilistic	seismic	hazard	analysis	(PSHA),	which	considers	
all	possible	earthquakes	on	all	of	the	possible	sources.	Using	this	approach,	CGS	estimates	
an	expected	direct	annual	loss	in	California	of	about	$2.2	billion.	This	is	approximately	0.14	
percent	of	the	$1.6‐trillion	total	value	of	the	building	inventory	in	the	HAZUS	database.	
(HAZUS	is	FEMA’s	hazard	mapping	and	damage	estimation	software	and	database	system.)	
Indirect	losses,	such	as	unemployment,	business	interruption,	loss	of	market	share	to	other	
regions	or	countries,	and	other	economic	effects,	could	be	as	much	as	twice	the	direct	losses	
(California	SHMP	2012).		
	
Along	the	San	Andreas	Fault,	segments	exist	where	no	large	earthquakes	have	occurred	for	
long	intervals	of	time.	These	areas	accumulate	potential	energy	and	provide	clues	as	to	
where	the	next	earthquake	may	occur	and	when.	Scientists	term	these	segments	“seismic	
gaps”	and,	in	general,	have	been	successful	in	forecasting	the	time	when	some	of	the	seismic	
gaps	will	produce	large	earthquakes.	Geologic	studies	show	that	over	the	past	1,400	to	
1,500	years,	large	earthquakes	have	occurred	at	about	150‐year	intervals	on	the	southern	
San	Andreas	Fault.	As	the	last	large	earthquake	on	the	southern	San	Andreas	was	the	Fort	
Tejon	earthquake	in	1857,	that	section	of	the	fault	is	considered	a	likely	location	for	an	
earthquake	within	the	next	few	decades	(USGS	1997).	
	
Based	on	the	earthquake	shaking	potential	mapped	for	Kings	County,	the	proximity	to	the	
San	Andreas	Fault	and	the	history	of	shaking	but	no	surface	rupture,	the	probability	of	
damaging	seismic	ground	shaking	in	Kings	County	is	occasional.	

EXTREME	HEAT	
Hazard	Description	
The	tables	on	the	following	page	show	the	Heat	Index	(HI)	as	a	function	of	heat	and	relative	
humidity.	The	Heat	Index	describes	how	hot	the	heat‐humidity	combination	makes	the	air	
feel.	As	relative	humidity	increases,	the	air	seems	warmer	than	it	actually	is	because	the	
body	is	less	able	to	cool	itself	via	evaporation	of	perspiration.	As	the	Heat	Index	rises,	so	do	
health	risks.	Specifically:			
	

 When	the	Heat	Index	is	90°F,	heat	exhaustion	is	possible	with	prolonged	exposure	
and/or	physical	activity.	

 When	it	is	90°	to	105°F,	heat	exhaustion	is	probable	with	the	possibility	of	
sunstroke	or	heat	cramps	with	prolonged	exposure	and/or	physical	activity.	

 When	it	is	105°	to	129°F,	sunstroke,	heat	cramps	or	heat	exhaustion	is	likely,	and	
heatstroke	is	possible	with	prolonged	exposure	and/or	physical	activity.	

 When	it	is	130°F	and	higher,	heatstroke	and	sunstroke	are	extremely	likely	with	
continued	exposure.	Physical	activity	and	prolonged	exposure	to	the	heat	increase	
the	risks.	



Decem

	
The N
the hi
two c
	

Geog
The	c
heat.	
great
follow
the	n
the	so
on	re
Kettle
114	d

In	Kin
cold	t
in	los
Elder
durin

Probl
Powe
condi

Previ
The	S
2005
Septe

mber	2012	FINAL

National Weat
igh temperatu
onsecutive da

graphic	Exte
climate	in	Kin
The	agricult
test	impacts	f
wing	page	sh
ortheastern	
outhwestern
cord	is	116°F
eman	City.		O
days	per	year

ngs	County,	t
temperature	
st	farming	job
rly	residents	
ng	heat	wave

lems	with	po
er	outages	an
itioner	use.	P

ious	Occurr
SHELDUS	dat
.	These	occu
ember	1998.	

L	

ther Service (
ure is expected
ays (Californi

nt	and	Pote
ngs	County	is
turally	domin
from	large	or
ows	average
part	of	the	co
n	part	of	the	c
F.	The	averag
On	average,	th
r	over	90°F	in

the	agricultu
extremes	da
bs.	Field	wor
who	may	liv
s.		

ower	loss	and
nd	rolling	bro
Power	outage

rences	
tabase	lists	tw
rred	in	June	
No	damages

(NWS) will in
d to exceed 1
ia SMHP, 201

Heat

Source:		Cal

ential	Magni
s	hot	and	arid
nated	central
r	unseasonab
e	and	extrem
ounty	(1981
county	(1981
ge	high	is	95
here	are	103
n	Kettleman	

ral	industry	
amage	crops,
rkers	are	sus
ve	alone	and	a

d	water	distr
ownouts	can	
es	can	preven

wo	incidents
1961,	with	$
s	are	known	f

nitiate its Hea
05° to 110° (d
12). 

t	Index	Char

lifornia	SHM
	

tude	
d,	and	the	en
l	region	of	th
ble	temperat
e	temperatu
‐2010)	and	t
1‐2010).	At	b
°F	in	Hanfor
3	days	over	9
City.	The	ho

is	most	at	ris
,	affecting	the
ceptible	to	h
are	limited	in

ribution	also	
result	when
nt	water‐pum

s	of	extreme	h
$14,700	in	cr
for	the	1998	

at Index Progr
depending on

rt	

P,	2012	

ntire	county	i
he	county	is	l
ture	variation
ures	at	the	Ha
the	Kettlema
both	stations
rd	in	the	sum
90°F	in	the	su
ttest	months

sk	to	extrem
e	economy	a
heat	exhausti
n	their	mobil

occur	during
n	high	temper
mping	statio

heat	in	Kings
rop	damages	
event.	Durin

Kings	County	
Local	Hazar

ram Alert pro
n local climate

is	susceptible
ikely	to	expe
ns.	The	chart
anford	weath
an	City	weath
s,	the	highest
mmer	and	97°
ummer	in	Ha
s	are	July	and

e	temperatu
and	potential
on	and	heat	
lity	are	also	v

g	periods	of	e
ratures	incre
ns	from	oper

s	County	from
reported,	an
ng	2005,	200

Operational	Are
rd	Mitigation	Pla

Page	3

ocedures when
e) for at	least 

e	to	extreme
erience	the	
t	on	the	
her	station	in
her	station	in
t	temperatur
°F	in	
anford	and	
d	August.		

res.	Hot	and	
lly	resulting	
stroke.	
vulnerable	

extreme	hea
ease	air	
rating.		

m	1960‐
nd	in	
06,	2008,	and

ea	
an	

37	

n	

	

e	

n	
n	
e	

at.	

d	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	38	

2009	Kings	County	received	USDA	emergency	designations	twice	for	heat	waves	and	again	
in	2012.		

 

 
Source:		Western	Regional	Climate	Center	

	

 
Source:		Western	Regional	Climate	Center	

 
Legend	
Max.	Temp.	is	the	average	of	all	daily	maximum	temperatures	recorded	for	the	day	of	the	year	between	the	years	1981	and	
2010.	
Ave.	Temp.	is	the	average	of	all	daily	average	temperatures	recorded	for	the	day	of	the	year	between	the	years	1981	and	2010.	
Min.	Temp.	is	the	average	of	all	daily	minimum	temperatures	recorded	for	the	day	of	the	year	between	the	years	1981	and	
2010.	
Precipitation	is	the	average	of	all	daily	total	precipitation	recorded	for	the	day	of	the	year	between	the	years	1981	and	2010.	

	
Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
Temperatures	at	or	above	95°F	are	common	most	summer	days	throughout	Kings	County,	
and	it	is	highly	likely	that	extreme	heat	will	continue	to	occur	on	an	annual	basis	in	the	
future.	

FLOOD	
Hazard	Description	
The	primary	types	of	flood	events	in	Kings	County	are	riverine	and	urban.	Flooding	could	
also	occur	as	a	result	of	dam	failure.	Regardless	of	the	type	of	flood,	the	cause	is	often	the	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	39	

result	of	severe	weather	and	excessive	rainfall,	either	in	the	flood	area,	upstream,	or	from	
winter	snowmelt.		

Riverine	flooding	is	the	most	common	type	of	flood	event	and	occurs	when	a	watercourse	
exceeds	its	“bank‐full”	capacity.	Riverine	flooding	generally	occurs	as	a	result	of	prolonged	
rainfall,	or	rainfall	that	is	combined	with	already	saturated	soils	from	previous	rain	events.	
The	duration	of	riverine	floods	may	vary	from	a	few	hours	(flash	flood)	to	many	days	(slow‐
rise	flooding).	Factors	that	directly	affect	the	amount	of	flood	runoff	include	precipitation	
amount,	intensity	and	distribution,	the	amount	of	soil	moisture,	seasonal	variation	in	
vegetation,	snow	depth,	and	the	water	resistance	of	the	surface	due	to	urbanization.	The	
warning	time	associated	with	slow‐rise	floods	assists	with	life	and	property	protection.	

As	the	slope	of	the	river	flattens,	the	velocity	slows	and	the	material	is	deposited.	As	a	
result,	the	lower	reaches	of	many	streams	pass	through	the	sandy	alluvial	plains	that	they	
have	formed	(Kings	County	LHMP,	2007).	Flood	flows	can	cause	these	streams	to	migrate,	
resulting	in	a	higher	and	wider	floodplain.	Developed	areas	on	land	originally	outside	the	
defined	floodplain	can	later	flood.	

The	area	adjacent	to	a	river	channel	is	the	floodplain.	Floodplains	are	illustrated	on	
inundation	maps,	which	show	areas	of	potential	flooding	and	water	depths.	In	its	common	
usage,	the	floodplain	most	often	refers	to	that	area	that	is	inundated	by	the	100‐year	flood,	
the	flood	that	has	a	one	percent	chance	in	any	given	year	of	being	equalled	or	exceeded.	The	
100‐year	flood	is	the	national	minimum	standard	to	which	communities	regulate	their	
floodplains	through	the	National	Flood	Insurance	Program	(NFIP).	

Urban	flooding	can	occur	in	any	terrain.	It	is	particularly	aggravated	where	natural	cover	
has	been	removed	to	construct	buildings,	roads,	and	parking	lots.	Streets	become	rivers,	
inundating	vehicles	and	causing	damage	to	residential	and	industrial	properties	situated	
along	stream	channels	(Kings	County	LHMP,	2007).	

Dam	failure	may	also	result	in	flooding,	often	creating	a	flash	flood.	Dams	are	manmade	
structures	built	for	a	variety	of	uses	including	flood	protection,	power,	agriculture,	water	
supply,	and	recreation.	When	dams	are	constructed	for	flood	protection,	they	usually	are	
engineered	to	withstand	a	flood	with	a	computed	risk	of	occurrence.	For	example,	a	dam	
may	be	designed	to	contain	a	flood	at	a	location	on	a	stream	that	has	a	certain	probability	of	
occurring	in	any	one	year.	If	a	larger	flood	occurs,	then	that	structure	will	be	overtopped.	
Overtopping	is	the	primary	cause	of	earthen	dam	failure	in	the	United	States.	Dam	failures	
can	result	from	any	one	or	a	combination	of	the	following	causes:	prolonged	periods	of	
rainfall	and	flooding	resulting	in	excess	overtopping	flows,	earthquake,	improper	design	
and/or	maintenance,	inadequate	spillway	capacity,	internal	erosion,	or	failure	of	upstream	
dams.		

Failed	dams	can	create	floods	that	are	catastrophic	to	life	and	property	as	a	result	of	the	
tremendous	energy	of	the	released	water.	A	catastrophic	dam	failure	could	easily	
overwhelm	local	response	capabilities	and	require	mass	evacuations	to	save	lives.	Factors	
that	influence	the	potential	severity	of	a	full	or	partial	dam	failure	are	the	amount	of	water	
impounded	and	the	distance	to,	density,	type,	and	value	of	development	and	infrastructure	
located	downstream.	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	40	

The	potential	for	flooding	can	change	and	
increase	through	various	land	use	changes	
and	changes	to	land	surface,	which	result	
in	changes	to	the	floodplain.	
Environmental	changes	can	create	
localized	flooding	problems	in	and	outside	
of	natural	floodplains	by	altering	or	
confining	natural	drainage	channels.	These	
changes	are	most	often	created	by	human	
activity.	

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	
Magnitude	
Kings	County,	and	in	particular	the	Tulare	
Lake	Basin,	once	served	as	the	natural	
drainage	of	the	Kings	River,	Cross	Creek,	
and	Tule	River	as	a	part	of	the	hydrologic	
watershed	of	the	Sierra	Nevada	Mountains	
along	the	east	side	of	the	San	Joaquin	
Valley.		Canal	and	flood	control	
development	in	the	late	1800’s	and	early	
1900’s	redirected	water	flow	and	managed	
waterways	through	a	series	of	canals,	
water	storage	and	agricultural	levies.	This	
led	to	the	conversion	on	thousands	of	acres	
of	lake	basin	land	into	farmable	ground.	
These	waterways	and	the	lake	basin	
remain	the	predominant	flood	prone	areas	
as	defined	by	the	Federal	Emergency	
Management	Agency	(FEMA)	Flood	
Insurance	Rate	Maps.	Historically,	floods	
have	been	the	major	cause	of	disaster	in	
Kings	County,	and	past	flooding	events	
have	shown	that	the	lake	basin	has	been	
turned	to	as	a	default	emergency	overflow	for	extreme	incidences	of	floodwater.	The	
primary	cause	of	local	flooding	is	due	to	the	drainage	patterns	that	flow	towards	the	Tulare	
Lake	Basin,	in	southern	Kings	County.	This	area	has	no	outlet	to	the	ocean	unless	the	water	
is	pumped	by	artificial	means	out	of	the	Tulare	Lake	Basin.			

The	Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency	(FEMA)	and	the	Federal	Insurance	
Administration	have	assessed	flood	hazards	for	major	streams	in	Kings	County.	Projected	
geographic	areas	and	extent	of	flooding	are	shown	in	the	map	on	the	following	page.		The	
following	map	shows	the	extent	of	flooding	from	both	a	100‐year	and	500‐year	flood	event.		
From	the	map	it	is	clear	that	a	100‐year	and	500‐year	flood	are	both	critical	events	in	Kings	
County	which	covers	at	least	35	to	50	percent	of	the	County.		In	2009,	FEMA	completed	
their	Digital	Flood	Insurance	Rate	Map	(DFIRM)	conversion	and	updated	a	number	of	flood	
zone	areas	using	2005	levee	certification	criteria.	In	2007,	the	California	Department	of	
Water	Resources	completed	their	Awareness	Floodplain	Mapping	of	Kings	County	to	
identify	all	pertinent	flood	hazard	areas	that	are	not	mapped	under	FEMA’s	program,	which	
provides	an	additional	resource	for	identifying	special	flood	hazard	areas	within	the	County.		



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	41	

The	average	flooding	season	in	Kings	County	occurs	from	November	through	June	with	the	
rainy	season	occurring	between	November	and	April	and	snowmelt	in	the	nearby	
mountainous	area	occurring	from	April	to	June.		
	
California	is	divided	into	10	hydrologic	regions,	and	Kings	County	is	in	the	Tulare	Lake	
hydrologic	region	that	comprises	the	extreme	southern	portion	of	the	Central	Valley.	It	is	
defined	by	the	Sierra	Nevada	Mountains,	the	divide	between	the	San	Joaquin	and	Kings	
rivers,	the	Coast	Range,	and	the	Tehachapi	Mountains	(Kings	County	LHMP,	2007).	Rivers	in	
this	region	include	the	Kings,	Kaweah,	Tule,	and	Kern,	which	all	historically	drained	into	the	
Tulare	Lake.		
	
Through	the	late	1800s,	Tulare	Lake	fluctuated	but	was	of	substantial	size	during	wet	
periods.	In	1849,	the	lake	measured	570	square	miles.	Its	size	fluctuated	from	year	to	year	
due	to	varying	levels	of	rainfall	and	snowfall,	but	it	ranked	as	the	largest	freshwater	lake	
west	of	the	Great	Lakes.	A	number	of	small	reclamation	districts	were	established	in	the	
area	in	the	early	1900s	that	over	time	built	levees	and	reclaimed	the	more	than	200,000‐
acre	lakebed	for	agriculture.	The	Kaweah,	Kern,	Kings	and	Tule	rivers	were	diverted	
upstream	and	canals	were	built	to	drain	the	lake.	By	the	end	of	the	nineteenth	century	the	
lake	had	almost	completely	disappeared.	Aggressive	groundwater	pumping	since	the	
draining	of	the	lake	has	resulted	in	a	significant	lowering	of	the	water	table,	causing	
subsidence	of	the	land.	Because	the	lake's	basin	remains,	the	lake	occasionally	reappears	
during	floods	following	unusually	high	levels	of	precipitation,	as	it	did	in	1997	and	2005.	
The	entire	county	is	criss‐crossed	by	a	large	number	of	irrigation	canals	and	ditches	
operated	by	several	different	irrigation	districts	and	companies.	

FEMA	has	assessed	flood	hazards	for	major	streams	in	Kings	County;	these	areas	are	also	
shown	in	the	map	on	the	following	page.	Winter	rainfall	directly	affects	flooding	in	Cross	
Creek	and	the	Tule	River.	Snowmelt	flooding	in	the	spring	often	causes	the	Tulare	Lakebed	
to	flood,	affecting	Cross	Creek	and	the	Tule	River	indirectly.	The	flood	hazards	in	each	
jurisdiction	are	discussed	in	more	detail	in	the	jurisdictional	annexes	to	this	plan.		

The	geographic	extent	and	potential	magnitude	of	flooding	in	Kings	County	is	Critical:	
between	35‐50	percent	of	the	planning	area	affected.	

   



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	42	

Kings	County	100	and	500	Year	Flood	Boundary	Map	

	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	43	

According	to	the	Kings	County	General	Plan,	Land	Use	Element,	the	Federal	Emergency	
Management	Agency	(FEMA)	has	updated	the	County’s	Flood	Insurance	Rate	Maps	with	a	
new	2008	Digital	Flood	Insurance	Rate	Map	(DFIRM)	shown	below,	that	defines	areas	
subject	to	1%	chance	occurrence	(100	year)	and	500	year	floods.	2008	DFIRM	expanded	
flood	plains	throughout	the	County	as	a	result	of	2005	post‐Katrina	Hurricane	Levee	
Certification	Guidelines	(Code	of	Federal	Regulations	,	Title	44,	Section	65.10)	and	added	
approximately	148,000	acres	into	the	County’s	high	risk	100	year	flood	zone.		Additional	
“Special	Flood	Hazard”	areas	have	also	been	identified	by	the	State	Department	of	Water	
Resources	(DWR).	Local	areas	subject	to	flood	hazard	are	shown	on	the	map	below	as	of	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	44	

2008.	

		

Kings	County	Dam	Inundation	Map	

 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	45	

The	Terminus,	Success,	and	Pine	Flat	dams,	located	in	the	east	of	the	valley	floor	on	the	
Kaweah,	Tule,	and	Kings	Rivers	respectively,	in	addition	to	improvements	made	to	other	
flood	control	facilities	in	the	Kings	County	area,	have	significantly	reduced	local	natural	
flood	hazards.	Significant	dams	near	and	in	Kings	County	are	shown	on	the	map	of	the	
previous	page.	According	to	the	U.S.	Army	Corps	of	Engineers	inundation	maps,	the	failure	
of	Success	Dam	would	not	affect	inhabited	portions	of	Kings	County.	Pine	Flat	and	Terminus	
are	the	only	dams	in	the	region,	which,	if	breached,	might	cause	flooding	of	significance	to	
local	inhabited	areas	(Kings	County	LHMP,	2007).	The	mapped	inundation	area	for	the	
failure	of	Terminus	Dam	covers	the	area	east	of	Hanford	and	the	railroad,	and	north	of	
Corcoran	to	the	eastern	county	line.	The	inundation	area	for	the	failure	of	Pine	Flat	Dam	is	
much	larger,	covering	the	northern	third	of	the	county,	east	of	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	
Station	and	west	of	Corcoran,	south	to	the	El	Rico	Main	Canal.	Controlled	releases	
sometimes	result	in	localized	flooding	or	complete	inundation	of	flood‐prone	areas	within	
Kings	County.	Severe	weather,	unexpected	runoff,	or	mechanical	malfunctions	may	generate	
these	releases	(Kings	County	LHMP,	2007).	

Previous	Occurrences	
Between	1992	and	2002,	every	county	in	California	was	declared	a	federal	disaster	area	at	
least	once	for	a	flooding	event.	California	has	a	chronic	and	destructive	flood	history.	Half	of	
the	72	federally	declared	disasters	in	California	between	1950	and	2000	were	flood	related.	
Historically,	floods	have	been	the	most	frequent	cause	of	disaster	in	Kings	County.	The	
primary	cause	of	local	flooding	is	the	drainage	pattern	in	the	Tulare	Lake	Basin.	This	area	
has	no	outlet	to	the	ocean	unless	the	water	is	pumped	by	artificial	means	out	of	the	Tulare	
Lake	Basin	(Kings	County	LHMP,	2007).	

Significant	flooding	occurs	in	Kings	County	approximately	every	five	years.	Kings	County	
was	declared	a	disaster	area	by	the	federal	government	eight	times	between	1955	and	
2012.	FEMA’s	Flood	Insurance	Study	listed	flooding	events	in	1950,	1952,	1955,	1958,	1962,	
1963,	1966,	1967,	1969,	1970,	1971,	1973,	1978,	1980,	1982,	1985,	1986,	1995,	1997	and	
2010.	Heavy	snow	runoff	caused	flooding	in	Kings	County	in	January	of	1969.	Kings	was	the	
only	county	designated	in	this	federal	disaster	declaration.	Damage	included	$1.56	million	
in	public	costs	and	$1.25	million	in	private	costs	for	a	total	of	$2.81	million.	

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
Due	to	the	history	of	past	flooding	events	and	the	natural	drainage	pattern	of	the	planning	
area,	flooding	in	the	Tulare	Lake	Basin	is	likely	to	continue	to	occur.	There	is	no	evidence	to	
indicate	that	flooding	due	to	dam	failure	is	likely.		

FOG	
Hazard	Description	
Fog	results	from	air	being	cooled	to	the	point	where	it	can	no	longer	hold	all	of	the	water	
vapour	it	contains.	For	example,	rain	can	cool	and	moisten	the	air	near	the	surface	until	fog	
forms.	A	cloud‐free,	humid	air	mass	at	night	can	lead	to	fog	formation,	where	land	and	water	
surfaces	that	have	warmed	up	during	the	summer	are	still	evaporating	water	into	the	
atmosphere.	This	is	called	radiation	fog.	A	warm	moist	air	mass	blowing	over	a	cold	surface	
also	can	cause	fog	to	form,	which	is	called	advection	fog.	The	interior	California	valleys	have	
a	unique	fog	problem	called	the	tule	fogs.	Tule	fogs	are	“radiated”	out	of	the	ground	and	can	
develop	into	several	layers	of	fog	that	can	be	thousands	of	feet	thick.	The	fog	develops	in	the	
San	Joaquin	Valley	when	calm,	stable	air	conditions	combine	with	moisture	in	the	ground	
and	a	chilling	factor.	The	tule	fogs	get	their	name	from	the	tule	reeds,	which	grew	around	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	46	

the	swamps	and	deltas	of	the	great	Tulare	Lake	that	once	covered	the	southern	end	of	the	
San	Joaquin	Valley.	

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
The	tule	fog	season	in	Kings	County	is	typically	December	through	February.	Fog	typically	
forms	rapidly	in	the	early	morning	hours.	Tule	fogs	can	last	for	days,	sometimes	weeks.	Fog	
can	have	devastating	effects	on	transportation	corridors	in	the	county.	Nighttime	driving	in	
the	fog	is	dangerous	and	multi‐car	pileups	have	resulted	from	drivers	using	excessive	speed	
for	the	conditions	and	visibility.		

Fog	contributes	to	transportation	accidents	and	is	a	significant	life	safety	hazard.	These	
accidents	can	cause	multiple	injuries	and	deaths	and	could	have	serious	implications	for	
human	health	and	the	environment	if	a	hazardous	or	nuclear	waste	shipment	were	
involved.	Other	disruptions	from	fog	include	delayed	emergency	response	vehicles	and	
school	closures.		

Previous	Occurrences	
Between	1962	and	2003,	the	SHELDUS	database	recorded	13	incidents	of	damaging	fog,	
responsible	for	4	deaths,	23	injuries,	and	approximately	$200,000	in	property	damage.	
Since	the	2007	planning	effort,	between	2003	and	2012,	the	same	SHELDUS	database	has	
recorded	7	additional	incidents	of	damaging	fog	with	4	injuries	and	0	deaths,	and	
approximately	$159,000	in	property	damage.		Most	damages	are	a	result	of	automobile	
accidents.	All	incidents	occurred	between	the	months	of	November	and	February.		

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
Fog	occurs	every	year	in	Kings	County,	and	damaging	fog	events	have	occurred	every	three	
years	on	average	since	1962.	Probability	is	highly	likely	that	fog	will	occur	on	an	annual	
basis	and	that	damaging	fog	events	will	continue	to	occur	every	few	years.	

FREEZE	
Hazard	Description	
Unseasonable	cold	temperatures	can	have	large	impacts	on	crops	in	Kings	County.	The	
growing	season	is	approximately	257	days	per	year,	and	the	frost‐free	period	usually	
extends	from	mid‐February	to	mid‐November.	The	mean	frost‐free	period	in	the	western	
part	of	the	county	is	225‐250	days.		

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
The	entire	county	is	susceptible	to	extreme	temperatures.		

Average	annual	snowfall	at	both	Hanford	and	Kettleman	City	is	zero.	The	maximum	amount	
of	snowfall	recorded	was	two	inches	in	Hanford,	which	occurred	in	January	1962;	there	has	
not	been	any	measurable	snowfall	recorded	since	then.	There	is	no	recorded	snowfall	in	
Kettleman	City.	

Prolonged	freezing	temperatures	can	damage	or	destroy	crops,	affecting	the	economy	and	
agricultural	jobs	in	Kings	County.	Water	infrastructure	is	also	at	risk	from	freezing,	
including	line	breaks	and	frozen	valve	gates	affecting	the	distribution	system.		

Previous	Occurrences	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	47	

The	SHELDUS	database	records	six	incidents	of	freezes	and	severe	cold	between	1970	and	
2005.	No	injuries	or	deaths	are	recorded	but	millions	of	dollars	in	crop	damage	occurred.	
There	have	been	two	state	emergency	declarations,	in	1972,	1999	and	2007	for	freezes	in	
Kings	County.		

In	1999	and	2007,	a	state	emergency	was	declared	for	severe	freeze	events	that	occurred.	In	
2007,	2009	and	2011	and	2012	the	USDA	designated	Kings	County	as	a	disaster	area	due	to	
Freeze	and	extreme	cold.		During	these	events,	California's	San	Joaquin	Valley	farming	
communities	were	hit	with	freezing	temperatures	that	severely	affected	the	region's	crops	
and	resulted	in	Presidential	disaster	declarations.	The	declarations	made	federal	funds	
available	to	supplement	unemployment	compensation	for	farm	laborers	and	other	farm	
industry	workers	put	out	of	work	as	a	direct	result	of	lost	seasonal	crops.			

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
In	the	past,	severe	freezes	have	occurred	every	few	years.	Damaging	freezes	are	recorded	
for	the	last	36	years,	which	is	an	average	of	once	every	five	years	or	a	probability	of	19	
percent	in	any	given	year.	Therefore,	the	probability	of	future	occurrence	is	likely.	

LANDSLIDE	
Hazard	Description	
Landslides	can	refer	to	a	wide	variety	of	processes	that	result	in	the	perceptible	downward	
and	outward	movement	of	soil,	rock,	and	vegetation	under	gravitational	influence.	Common	
names	for	landslide	types	include	slump,	rockslide,	debris	slide,	lateral	spreading,	debris	
avalanche,	earth	flow,	and	soil	creep.	Although	landslides	are	primarily	associated	with	
steep	slopes	(i.e.,	greater	than	15	percent),	they	may	also	occur	in	areas	of	generally	low	
relief	and	occur	as	cut‐and‐fill	failures,	river	bluff	failures,	lateral	spreading	landslides,	
collapse	of	mine‐waste	piles,	and	failures	associated	with	quarries	and	open‐pit	mines.	
Debris	flows	are	another	type	of	landslide,	which	generally	occur	in	the	immediate	vicinity	
of	existing	drainage	swales	or	steep	ravines.	Debris	flows	occur	when	near‐surface	soil	in	or	
near	steeply	sloping	drainage	swales	becomes	saturated	during	unusually	heavy	
precipitation	and	begins	to	flow	downslope	at	a	rapid	rate.		

Landslides	may	be	triggered	by	both	natural	and	human‐induced	changes	in	the	
environment	resulting	in	slope	instability.	Precipitation,	topography,	and	geology	affect	
landslides	and	debris	flows.	Human	activities,	such	as	mining,	road	construction,	and	
changes	to	surface	drainage	areas,	also	affect	the	landslide	potential.	Landslides	often	
accompany	other	natural	hazard	events,	such	as	floods,	wildfires,	or	earthquakes.	
Landslides	can	occur	slowly	or	very	suddenly	and	can	damage	and	destroy	structures,	
roads,	utilities,	and	forested	areas	and	cause	injuries	and	death.	

	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	48	

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
Landslide	hazards	are	uncommon	through	much	of	the	county	due	to	the	flat	topography.	
Risk	is	greater	in	the	southwestern	part	of	the	county,	including	the	Kettleman	Hills,	due	to	
the	more	varied	elevations	and	steeper	slopes.	

Winter	and	spring	are	typically	the	landslide/rock‐fall	seasons	in	California	as	rain	falls	and	
snow	melts	and	saturates	soils	and	temperatures	enter	into	freeze/thaw	cycles.	Debris	and	
mud	flows	generally	occur	during	summer	cloudbursts.	Debris	and	mudslides	and	rock‐fall	
can	occur	rapidly	with	little	warning	during	torrential	rains.	Landslides	typically	have	a	
slower	onset	and	can	be	predicted	to	some	extent	by	monitoring	soil	moisture	levels	and	
ground	cracking	or	slumping	in	areas	of	previous	landslide	activity.	The	map	on	the	
following	page	shows	the	landslide	hazards	in	Kings	County.	

Previous	Occurrences	
The	Planning	Team	noted	that	in	the	past,	landslides	have	occurred	in	the	western	part	of	
the	county,	particularly	in	burn	areas	and	after	heavy	rains.	Heavy	rain	events	caused	a	
slope	failure	around	a	water	line	for	Avenal	in	1995,	1998,	2008	and	2010.		

Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
There	is	limited	data	on	past	events,	but	occasional	landslides	and	debris	flows	are	likely	to	
occur	in	the	western	part	of	to	the	county	in	the	future.		

	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	49	

Kings	County	Landslide	Hazard	Map		 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	50	

TORNADO	
Hazard	Description	
Tornadoes	are	rotating	columns	of	air	marked	by	a	funnel‐shaped	downward	extension	of	a	
cumulonimbus	cloud	whirling	at	destructive	speeds	of	up	to	300	miles	per	hour	(mph).	
They	usually	accompany	a	thunderstorm.	Tornado	magnitude	is	ranked	according	to	the	
Enhanced	Fujita	scale	listed	below:	

Enhanced	Fujita	Tornado	Scale	

 EF0:	65‐85	mph		

 EF1:	86‐110	mph		

 EF2:	111‐135	mph		

 EF3:	136‐165	mph		

 EF4:	166‐200	mph		

 EF5:	Over	200	mph		

	
Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
Based	on	National	Climate	Data	Center	(NCDC)	data,	tornado	behavior,	tornadoes	are	more	
likely	to	hit	the	flatter,	lower	elevations	of	Kings	County	and	are	more	common	in	the	
eastern	parts	of	the	county	around	Hanford,	Lemoore,	and	Corcoran.	Tornadoes	develop	
rapidly	and	can	occur	without	warning.	The	National	Weather	Service	can	predict	the	
weather	patterns	that	produce	tornadoes	and	issue	tornado	warnings	or	watches	when	
warranted.	Most	tornadoes	last	less	than	10	minutes,	though	some	have	been	observed	to	
last	an	hour.	Tornadoes	in	California	are	rarely	severe,	however,	even	small	tornadoes	can	
be	damaging	if	they	hit	a	populated	area.	Because	the	likelihood	is	small	and	the	duration	
typically	short,	the	expected	average	damage	from	a	tornado	in	Kings	County	is	considered	
to	be	slight.	

Previous	Occurrences	
The	NCDC	and	the	SHELDUS	databases	report	six	occurrences	of	tornados	and	several	
funnel	clouds	on	record	between	1960	and	2005	in	Kings	County.	All	of	these	events	
occurred	during	fall	and	spring	between	October	and	April.	Most	of	the	tornados	were	
ranked	as	F0	on	the	Fujita	Scale	and	did	not	result	in	property	damage.	However,	on	
November	22,	1996,	a	F1	tornado	caused	about	$250,000	in	damage	at	the	Lemoore	Naval	
Station.	Damage	included	roof	removal	of	the	base	recycling	center,	and	wind	damage	to	
several	administrative	structures,	power	lines	and	poles,	and	fixed	structures	(NCDC,	2012).	
The	table	on	the	following	page	lists	recorded	tornado	events	for	Kings	County.			
	
In	2008,	soon	after	the	adoption	of	the	previous	LHMP	in	late	2007,	the	City	of	Avenal	
experienced	a	severe	windstorm	in	January	2008.	The	windstorm	pelted	the	City	and	
brought	winds	of	up	to	70	mph	that	left	widespread	property	damage	and	power	outages.	A	
few	injuries	were	reported,	but	no	fatalities.	The	property	damage	was	estimated	to	be	$2	
million,	most	of	which	were	roofs,	windows	and	fences.	The	single	largest	structural	
damage	was	at	the	Avenal	High	School	where	the	auditorium	root	spanning	4,600	square	
feet	was	torn	off.	Even	though	this	event	was	not	classified	as	a	tornado,	the	National	
Weather	Service	referred	to	the	incident	as	a	“savage	windstorm”	marked	by	extreme	gusts	
of	wind	rushing	through	the	valley.	An	emergency	proclamation	was	proclaimed	by	Kings	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	51	

County	and	later	by	the	Governor.	
	

Recorded	Tornadoes	in	Kings	County,	1950‐2006	

Location	 Date	 Magnitude Deaths/Injuries
Property	
Damage	

Crop	
Damage

Kings	 11/01/1964	 F0 0/0 0	 0
Kings	 04/05/1980	 F2 0/1 $250,000	 0
Kings	 10/12/1991	 F0 0/0 0	 0
Lemoore	 03/05/1994	 F0 0/0 0	 0
Hanford	 03/12/1996	 F0 0/0 $10,000	 0
Lemoore	
Naval	Air	
Station	

11/12/1996	 F1 0/0 $250,000	 0

Source:		NCDC,	2012	
	
Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
During	the	56	years	of	record,	6	days	of	tornadoes	have	been	recorded	in	Kings	County	or	
one	tornado	every	7	years	on	average.	This	equates	to	an	annual	chance	of	occurrence	of	
about	11	percent.	There	are	no	official	recurrence	intervals	calculated	for	tornadoes.	
However,	if	one	assumes	a	tornado	affects	only	one	square	mile	and	there	are	1,435	square	
miles	in	Kings	County,	the	annual	probability	of	a	tornado	hitting	any	particular	square	mile	
in	the	planning	area	is	.107	in	1,435	or	a	0.007	percent	chance.	Probability	is	occasional.	

WILDFIRE	
Hazard	Description	
Fire	conditions	arise	from	a	combination	of	hot	weather,	an	accumulation	of	vegetation,	and	
low	moisture	content	in	the	air.	These	conditions,	when	combined	with	high	winds	and	
periods	of	drought,	increase	the	potential	for	wildfire.	Fires	also	occur	in	areas	where	
development	has	expanded	into	rural	areas.	In	this	wildland‐urban	interface,	fires	can	result	
in	major	losses	of	property	and	structures.	Generally,	there	are	three	major	factors	that	
sustain	wildfires	and	are	used	to	predict	a	given	area’s	potential	to	burn:	fuel,	topography,	
and	weather.		

Fuel	is	the	material	that	feeds	a	fire	and	is	a	key	factor	in	wildfire	behavior.	Fuel	is	generally	
classified	by	type	and	by	volume.	Fuel	sources	are	diverse	and	include	everything	from	dead	
tree	needles	and	leaves,	twigs,	and	branches	to	standing	dead	trees,	live	trees,	brush,	and	
cured	grasses.	Manmade	structures	and	other	associated	combustibles	are	also	fuel	sources.	
The	type	of	prevalent	fuel	directly	influences	the	behavior	of	wildfire.	Light	fuels,	such	as	
grasses,	burn	quickly	and	serve	as	a	catalyst	for	fire	spread.	The	volume	of	available	fuel	is	
described	in	terms	of	fuel	loading.		

Topography	affects	an	area’s	susceptibility	to	wildfire	spread.	Fire	intensities	and	rates	of	
spread	increase	as	slope	increases	due	to	the	tendency	of	heat	from	a	fire	to	rise	via	
convection.	The	natural	arrangement	of	vegetation	throughout	a	hillside	can	also	contribute	
to	increased	fire	activity	on	slopes.	Topography	also	affects	the	ability	of	response	crews	
and	vehicles	to	reach	fires	in	a	timely	manner	due	to	steep	and	winding	roads.		

Weather	components,	such	as	temperature,	relative	humidity,	wind,	and	lightning,	also	
affect	the	potential	for	wildfire.	High	temperatures	and	low	relative	humidity	dry	out	the	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	52	

fuels	that	feed	the	wildfire	creating	a	situation	where	fuel	will	more	readily	ignite	and	burn	
more	intensely.	Wind	is	the most	treacherous	weather	factor.	The	greater	wind	speed,	the	
faster	a	fire	will	spread,	and	the	more	intense	it	will	be.	In	addition	to	high	winds,	wind	
shifts	can	occur	suddenly	due	to	temperature	changes	or	the	interaction	of	wind	with	
topographical	features,	such	as	slopes	or	steep	hillsides.	Related	to	weather	is	the	issue	of	
recent	drought	conditions	contributing	to	concerns	about	wildfire	vulnerability.	During	
periods	of	drought,	the	threat	of	wildfire	increases.		

Geographic	Extent	and	Potential	Magnitude	
In	most	of	Kings	County,	the	California	Department	of	Forestry	and	Fire	Protection	(Cal	
Fire)	ranks	fuel	loading	as	low.	Fuels	are	mainly	crops	and	grasses.	In	the	southwest	corner,	
there	are	some	brush,	pine,	and	grass	fuels,	which	are	ranked	as	moderate	fuel	hazards,	
primarily	in	the	area	west	of	Interstate	5	and	north	of	Highway	41.	See	the	map	on	the	
following	page	that	shows	the	wildfire	hazard	in	Kings	County.		

Most	of	Kings	County	is	flat,	sloping	slightly	towards	a	topographic	low	point	in	the	Tulare	
Lake	Basin,	which	reduces	the	fire	hazard	through	much	of	the	county.	However,	elevations	
in	the	southwestern	portion	of	the	county	are	more	varied,	ranging	from	500	feet	at	the	
Kettleman	Plains	to	an	elevation	of	3,499	feet	at	Table	Mountain.	Fire	hazard	is	high	in	the	
more	steeply	sloped	areas	of	this	southwestern	section.	

Generally,	fire	season	in	Kings	County	extends	from	early	spring	to	late	fall.	Onset	can	
happen	suddenly	due	to	lightning	or	human	causes	and	wildfires	can	last	from	a	few	hours	
to	a	few	months.	Secondary	effects	from	wildfire	include	increased	erosion,	degraded	air	
and	water	quality,	and	economic	impacts	from	burned	landscapes.		

Previous	Occurrences	
There	have	not	been	any	state	or	federal	disaster	declarations	in	Kings	County	related	to	
wildfire	in	the	past.	The	Planning	Team	noted	that	although	there	are	many	fire	starts,	the	
fuels	are	“flashy”	and	fires	are	usually	quickly	put	out.	The	table	below	shows	historic	fires	
mapped	by	Cal	Fire.			Except	for	the	Braley‐Jones	Ranch	fire	in	1951	near	Stratford,	all	other	
mapped	fires	occurred	west	of	Interstate	5.	The	largest	was	the	Skyline	fire	in	1996,	which	
burned	over	20,000	acres	along	the	west	side	of	Interstate	5,	north	of	Highway	41	and	east	
of	Avenal.		



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	53	

Fire	History	in	Kings	County,	1950‐2007	

Date	 Name	of	Fire	 Acres	Burned	 Agency	

06/04/1951	 Braley‐Jones	Ranch	 468	 Cal	Fire	

09/22/1968	 Hughs	 776	 Cal	Fire	

07/30/1969	 Avenal	Canyon	 983	 Cal	Fire	

05/22/1979	 Pyramid	Hills	 693	 Cal	Fire	

07/01/1979	 State	of	California	#32	 2,292	 Cal	Fire	

05/25/1984	 Flat	Top	 7,218	 Cal	Fire	

06/03/1989	 Cal	Oil	 492	 Cal	Fire	

06/12/1994	 York	 1,012	 Cal	Fire	

09/04/1995	 Tar	 126	 Cal	Fire	

09/08/1995	 Pyramid	 397	 Cal	Fire	

04/27/1996	 Skyline	 20,567	 Cal	Fire	

05/01/1996	 Hwy	41	 3,198	 Cal	Fire	

08/13/1999	 33	 243	 Cal	Fire	

08/27/2001	 Taylor	 26	 Cal	Fire	

08/10/2007	 Tar	 5,644	 Cal	Fire	

Source:		Cal	Fire	Redbooks	
	
Probability	of	Future	Occurrences	
Fire	starts	are	highly	likely	during	each	fire	season;	though,	they	rarely	result	in	large‐scale	
wildfires.	Information	obtained	from	the	Cal	Fire	Redbook	lists	multiple	fires,	the	largest	
consuming	less	than	300	acres	and	most	being	controlled	at	less	than	10	acres.		Fifteen	
major	fires	are	mapped	for	the	last	56	years,	which	averages	to	almost	one	fire	every	four	
years,	or	a	25	percent	chance	of	occurrence	in	any	given	year.	Based	on	climate	and	weather	
in	Kings	County	and	the	fuels,	topography,	and	fire	history	in	the	southwestern	part	of	the	
county,	it	is	likely	that	fires	will	continue	to	occur	in	the	future.	

   



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	54	

Kings	County	Wildfire	Hazards	Map	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	55	

Summary	of	Hazards		
The	table	below	summarizes	the	results	of	the	hazard	profiles	and	assigns	a	level	of	overall	
planning	significance	to	each	hazard	of	low,	medium,	or	high.	Significance	was	determined	
based	on	the	hazard	profile,	focusing	on	key	criteria	such	as	frequency	and	resulting	
damage,	including	deaths/injuries	and	property,	crop,	and	economic	damage.	This	
assessment	was	used	by	the	Planning	Team	to	prioritize	those	hazards	of	greatest	
significance	to	the	operational	area;	thus	enabling	the	County	to	focus	resources	where	they	
are	most	needed.	Those	hazards	that	occur	infrequently	or	have	little	or	no	impact	on	the	
operational	area	were	determined	to	be	of	low	significance.	
	
Hazard	Profile	Summary	by	Jurisdiction	
The	following	tables	summarize	the	data	provided	by	the	Planning	Team	on	the	potential	
magnitude	and	the	probability	of	occurrence	for	each	of	the	identified	hazards	across	the	
planning	area.		

Probability	of	Occurrence	for	Identified	Hazards	in	Kings	County		

Hazard	 Kings	County	 Avenal	 Corcoran	 Hanford	 Lemoore	

Dam	Failure	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	

Drought	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	

Earthquake	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	

Extreme	Heat	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	

Flood	 Likely	 Likely	 Likely	 Occasional	 Occasional	

Fog	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	 Highly	Likely	

Freeze	 Likely	 Occasional	 Likely	 Likely	 Likely	

Landslide	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	

Tornado	 Occasional	 Unlikely	 Occasional	 Occasional	 Occasional	

Wildfire	 Likely	 Occasional	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	 Unlikely	
Source:		Kings	County	Planning	Team	

Potential	Magnitude	of	Identified	Hazards	in	Kings	County	

Hazard	 Kings	County	 Avenal	 Corcoran	 Hanford	 Lemoore	

Dam	Failure	 Catastrophic	 Negligible	 Critical	 Critical	 Catastrophic	

Drought	
Critical‐
Catastrophic	

Critical	 Critical	 Critical	 Limited	

Earthquake	 Critical	 Critical	 Critical	 Critical	 Critical	

Extreme	Heat	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	

Flood	 Critical	 Critical	 Critical	 Limited	 Limited	

Fog	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	 Negligible	

Freeze	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	 Negligible	

Landslide	 Negligible	 Critical	 Negligible	 Negligible	 Negligible	

Tornado	 Negligible	 Negligible	 Limited	 Limited	 Limited	

Wildfire	 Critical	 Limited	 Negligible	 Negligible	 Negligible	
Source:		Kings	County	Planning	Team	

 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	56	

B.3.	Vulnerability	Assessment	
§201.6(c)(2)(ii): [The risk assessment shall include a] description of the jurisdiction’s 
vulnerability to the hazards described in paragraph (c)(2)(i) of this section. This description 
shall include an overall summary of each hazard and its impact on the community. All plans 
approved after October 1, 2008 must also address NFIP insured structures that have been 
repetitively damaged by floods.	
	
§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(A): The types and numbers of existing and future buildings, infrastructure, and 
critical facilities located in the identified hazard areas;	
	
§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(B): An estimate of the potential dollar losses to vulnerable structures identified 
in ... this section and a description of the methodology used to prepare the estimate.	
	
§201.6(c)(2)(ii)(C): Providing a general description of land uses and development trends within 
the community so that mitigation options can be considered in future land use decisions.	
	
Methodology	
The	vulnerability	assessment	further	defines	and	quantifies	populations,	buildings,	critical	
facilities,	and	other	community	assets	at	risk	to	natural	hazards.	The	vulnerability	
assessment	for	this	plan	followed	the	methodology	described	in	the	FEMA	386‐2,	
Understanding	Your	Risks	–	Identifying	Hazards	and	Estimating	Losses	(2012).			

The	vulnerability	assessment	was	conducted	based	on	the	best	available	data	and	the	
significance	of	the	hazard.	Data	to	support	the	vulnerability	assessment	was	collected	from	
the	following	sources:	

 County	and	jurisdictional	GIS	data	(hazards,	base	layers,	and	other	government	
data)		

 Statewide	GIS	datasets	compiled	by	Cal	EMA	to	support	mitigation	planning		
 FEMA’s	HAZUS	loss	estimation	software		
 Written	descriptions	of	assets	and	risks	provided	by	participating	jurisdictions		
 Existing	plans	and	reports		
 Personal	interviews	with	Planning	Team	members	and	other	stakeholders	 	

The	vulnerability	assessment	first	describes	the	assets	at	risk	in	Kings	County,	including	the	
total	exposure	of	people	and	property;	critical	facilities	and	infrastructure;	natural,	cultural,	
and	historic	resources;	and	economic	assets.	Secondly,	the	assessment	considers	the	social	
vulnerability	of	the	county	to	hazards,	including	characteristics	of	gender,	age,	
race/ethnicity,	and	wealth	and	poverty.		

Assets	at	Risk	
This	section	assesses	the	population,	structures,	critical	facilities	and	infrastructure,	and	
other	important	assets	in	Kings	County	at	risk	to	natural	hazards.	

Total	Exposure	to	Hazards	
The	table	on	the	following	page	shows	the	total	population,	number	of	structures,	and	
assessed	value	of	improvements	to	parcels	by	jurisdiction.	Land	values	have	been	purposely	
excluded	because	land	remains	following	disasters,	and	subsequent	market	devaluations	
are	frequently	short	term	and	difficult	to	quantify.	Additionally,	state	and	federal	disaster	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	57	

assistance	programs	generally	do	not	address	loss	of	land	or	its	associated	value.	

The	greatest	exposure	of	people	and	property	are	concentrated	in	Hanford,	though	
significant	population	and	structures	are	spread	out	in	the	unincorporated	areas	of	the	
county.	The	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	is	not	included	in	this	data,	because	the	station	
independently	undertakes	hazards	mitigation	and	other	emergency	planning	and	did	not	
participate	in	this	planning	process.	
	

Maximum	Population	and	Building	Exposure	by	Jurisdiction	

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Source:		Kings	County	Planning	Team	data,	2010	U.S.	Census	
	
Critical	Facilities	and	Infrastructure	
A	critical	facility	may	be	defined	as	one	that	is	essential	in	providing	utility	or	direction	
either	during	the	response	to	an	emergency	or	during	the	recovery	operation.	FEMA’s	
HAZUS	loss	estimation	software	uses	the	following	three	categories	of	critical	assets	
(Essential	Facilities,	High	Potential	Loss	Facilities	and	Transportation	and	Lifelines).	
Essential	facilities	are	those	that	if	damaged	would	have	devastating	impacts	on	disaster	
response	and/or	recovery.	High	potential	loss	facilities	are	those	that	would	have	a	high	
loss	or	impact	on	the	community.	Transportation	and	lifeline	facilities	are	a	third	category	
of	critical	assets.		

Essential	Facilities High	Potential	Loss	
Facilities	

Transportation	and	
Lifelines	

 Hospitals	and	other	
Medical	Facilities	

 Police	Stations	
 Fire	Stations	
 Emergency	

Operation	Centers	

 Power	Plants	
 Dams/levees	
 Military	installations	
 Hazardous	Material	

Sites	
 Schools	
 Shelters	
 Day	Care	Centers	
 Nursing	Homes	
 Main	Government	

Buildings	

 Highways,	Bridges	
and	Tunnels	

 Railroads	and	
Facilities	

 Bus	Facilities	
 Airports	
 Water	Treatment	

Facilities	
 Natural	Gas	Facilities	

and	Pipelines	
 Oil	Facilities	and	

Pipelines	
	

Jurisdiction	 Exposed	
Population

Buildings
Number Value	

Kings	County	
Unincorporated	
Areas	

34,1786 9,707 $1,028,530,819	

Avenal	 15,505 1,754 $128,111,815	
Corcoran	 24,813 2,966 $257,957,828	
Hanford	 53,967 14,080 $1,991,860,304	
Lemoore	 24,531 5,913 $853,282,697	
Total	 152,982 34,420 $4,259,743,463		



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	58	

The	table	on	the	following	page	displays	the	inventory	of	available	data	on	essential	
facilities	in	Kings	County	as	provided	by	HAZUS.		The	HAZUS	scenario	uses	a	5.0	magnitude	
to	define	the	earthquake	parameters	used	for	the	earthquake	loss	estimate.	

Essential	Facility	Damage	
	

HAZUS	Estimated	Essential	Facility	Damage	–	5.0	M	Earthquake	

	

	

Other	facilities	in	the	county,	such	as	locations	that	hold	musical	concerts,	sporting	events,	
and	other	events	that	attract	large	numbers	of	people,	may	also	be	at	higher	risk	due	to	
concentrations	of	population.	These	include,	but	are	not	limited	to,	the	Kings	County	
Fairgrounds,	the	Tachi	Palace	Casino	and	Resort,	Hanford	Bowl,	Hanford	High	School	
Presentation	Center,	West	Hills	College	Sports	Facility,	two	hospitals	(Home	Garden	–	
Adventist	Health	Rural	Health	Clinics,	Hanford	Adventist	Health	Medical	Center,	high	school	
campuses	and	county	or	city	parks.	

Other	critical	facilities	unique	to	the	county	are	the	California	Aqueduct,	Kettleman	Hills	
Hazardous	Waste	Facility,	and	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station.	These	facilities	are	described	
further	on	the	following	page.	The	Corcoran	and	Avenal	State	Prisons	are	also	considered	
unique	facilities;	however,	these	facilities	are	better	addressed	in	the	emergency	operations	
plans	for	the	county	and	the	two	municipalities.		

The	California	Aqueduct,	part	of	the	California	State	Water	Project,	runs	through	the	
western	part	of	Kings	County.	The	State	Water	Project	is	a	water	storage	and	delivery	
system	of	reservoirs,	aqueducts,	power	plants,	and	pumping	plants.	Its	main	purpose	is	to	
store	water	and	distribute	it	to	29	urban	and	agricultural	water	suppliers	in	Northern	
California,	the	San	Francisco	Bay	Area,	the	San	Joaquin	Valley,	the	Central	Coast,	and	
Southern	California.	Seventy	percent	of	the	contracted	water	supply	goes	to	urban	users	
and	thirty	percent	goes	to	agricultural	users.	The	State	Water	Project	makes	deliveries	to	
two‐thirds	of	California's	population.	Earthquakes,	landslides,	flooding,	or	other	hazard	
events	that	disrupt	the	aqueduct’s	ability	to	deliver	water	could	have	serious	impacts	to	
agriculture	in	the	county	and	water	users	in	many	areas	of	California.	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	59	

The	Kettleman	Hills	Hazardous	Waste	Facility	is	a	chemical	waste	disposal	and	
treatment	site	with	a	capacity	of	5,700,000	cubic	yards,	operated	by	Chemical	Waste	
Management.	The	site	is	located	four	miles	from	Kettleman	City	and	less	than	three	miles	
west	of	Interstate	5.	The	1,600‐acre	site	employs	120	people	and	accepts	waste	from	all	
over	the	western	United	States	but	primarily	California.	The	facility	is	one	of	less	than	30	
commercial	chemical	waste	sites	in	the	country	and	one	of	less	than	10	sites	licensed	to	take	
polychlorinated	biphenyls	(PCBs).		

The	integrity	of	the	hazardous	waste	site	was	breached	in	March	1988	when	a	landslide	
surged	forward	and	downslope,	tearing	out	part	of	the	liner	system	and	displacing	waste	
deposited	at	the	site.	The	incident	may	have	been	caused	by	design	defects	of	the	facility;	
however,	the	incident	indicates	that	the	facility	may	be	vulnerable	to	seismic	hazards	
present	in	the	Kettleman	Hills	area.	Water	contamination	is	a	concern	in	a	seismic	event	
from	this	facility.		

The	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	encompasses	4.2	square	miles	in	Kings	County	and	
includes	critical	facilities,	such	as	medical	facilities	and	an	airport.	It	is	also	one	of	the	
largest	employers	in	the	county,	with	1,300	civilian	employees.	Although	this	plan	
recognizes	the	critical	assets	of	the	station	and	its	role	in	the	county’s	economy,	as	federally	
owned	property,	the	station	develops	separate	emergency	management	plans.		

Natural,	Historical,	and	Cultural	Assets	
Assessing	the	vulnerability	of	Kings	County	to	disaster	also	involves	inventorying	the	
natural,	historical,	and	cultural	assets	of	the	area.	This	step	is	important	for	the	following	
reasons:		

 The	community	may	decide	that	these	types	of	resources	warrant	a	greater	degree	
of	protection	due	to	their	unique	and	irreplaceable	nature	and	contribution	to	the	
overall	economy.		

 If	these	resources	are	impacted	by	a	disaster,	knowing	so	ahead	of	time	allows	for	
more	prudent	care	in	the	immediate	aftermath,	when	the	potential	for	additional	
impacts	are	higher.	

 The	rules	for	reconstruction,	restoration,	rehabilitation,	and/or	replacement	are	
often	different	for	these	types	of	designated	resources.		

 Natural	resources	can	have	beneficial	functions	that	reduce	the	impacts	of	natural	
hazards,	such	as	wetlands	and	riparian	habitat,	which	help	absorb	and	attenuate	
floodwaters.		

Natural	resources	are	also	important	to	include	in	benefit‐cost	analyses	for	future	projects	
and	may	be	used	to	leverage	additional	funding	for	mitigation	projects	that	also	contribute	
to	community	goals	for	protecting	sensitive	natural	resources.	Awareness	of	natural	assets	
can	lead	to	opportunities	for	meeting	multiple	objectives.	For	instance,	protecting	wetlands	
areas	protects	sensitive	habitat	as	well	as	attenuates	and	stores	floodwaters.		

There	are	many	natural	resources	that	are	important	to	Kings	County,	a	detailed	description	
of	those	resources	can	be	found	in	the	Resource	Conservation	Element	of	the	Kings	County	
General	Plan.			

Historical	and	Cultural	Resources	
Kings	County	has	a	number	of	historical	sites,	and	is	also	the	home	of	the	Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	60	

that	lived	throughout	the	region	and	along	the	Tulare	Lake.	The	lake	region	contains	
numerous	archaeological	artifacts	along	the	Tulare	lakeshores	margins	and	a	significant	
archaeological	site	called	the	Witt	site	in	southern	Kings	County	(near	Dudley	Ridge).	
Numerous	other	recorded	cultural	resource	sites	have	been	identified	in	Kings	County	in	
the	area	of	Stratford,	the	area	south	and	west	of	Lemoore,	and	in	the	area	west	of	Alpaugh	in	
southeastern	Kings	County.	
	
The	National	Register	of	Historic	Places	lists	four	sites	within	Kings	County,	and	three	
additional	sites	that	have	been	designated	as	California	Historical	Landmarks.	Sites	include	
a	Taoist	Temple,	County	Courthouse,	Carnegie	Library,	and	the	Witt	archaeological	site.	The	
three	California	Historical	Landmarks	include	the	Kingston	Town	Site	north	of	Hardwick,	
the	El	Adobe	de	los	Robles	Rancho	west	of	Lemoore,	and	the	Mussel	Slough	Tragedy	site	
south	of	Hardwick.	Thirteen	other	historic	sites	of	local	importance	also	exist.	These	include	
several	cemeteries	and	churches	located	in	Corcoran,	Lemoore,	Grangeville,	and	other	rural	
areas	in	the	northern	County.	Other	notable	sites	include	the	original	site	of	Lemoore,	the	
Avenal	Ranch,	Kettleman	Hills	fossil	beds,	and	First	High	School	on	the	Kings	River	(Kings	
County	General	Plan,	2010.)		The	map	on	the	following	page	shows	the	Historical	Sites	in	
Kings	County.				
	
It	should	be	noted	that	as	defined	by	the	California	Environmental	Quality	Act	(CEQA)	and	
the	National	Environmental	Policy	Act	(NEPA),	any	property	over	50	years	of	age	is	
considered	a	historic	resource	and	is	potentially	eligible	for	the	National	Register.	Thus,	in	
the	event	that	the	property	is	to	be	altered	or	has	been	altered,	the	property	must	be	
evaluated	under	the	guidelines	set	forth	by	the	CEQA	and	NEPA.	Structural	mitigation	
projects,	such	as	earthquake	retrofits,	are	included	in	this	regulation.		



Decemmber	2012	FINALL	

KKings	Countyy	Historical	SSites	Map

Kings	County	
Local	Hazar

Operational	Are
rd	Mitigation	Pla

Page	6

ea	
an	

61	

	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	62	

	

Economic	Assets	
Economic	assets	at	risk	may	include	major	employers	or	primary	economic	sectors,	such	as,	
agriculture,	whose	losses	or	inoperability	would	have	severe	impacts	on	the	community	and	
its	ability	to	recover	from	disaster.	After	a	disaster,	economic	vitality	is	the	engine	that	
drives	recovery.	Every	community	has	a	specific	set	of	economic	drivers,	which	are	
important	to	understand	when	planning	ahead	to	reduce	disaster	impacts	to	the	economy.	
When	major	employers	are	unable	to	return	to	normal	operations,	impacts	ripple	
throughout	the	community.	The	table	below	shows	the	top	employers	in	Kings	County	as	
provided	by	the	Kings	County	Economic	Development	Corporation,	2012.	

Top	Employers	in	Kings	County	

Employer	 Number	of	Employees Location	
Corcoran	State	Prisons	 3,500	 Corcoran	
Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	 1,100	civilian	 Lemoore	
Avenal	State	Prison	 1,300	 Avenal	
Tachi	Palace	 1,500	 Lemoore	
JG	Boswell	Company	 1,200	 Corcoran	
Kings	County	 1,293	 Hanford	
Adventist	Health	 2,200	 Hanford	
Leprino	Foods	 			970	 Lemoore	
Paramount	Foods	 			600	 Avenal	
Marquez	Brothers	 			325	 Hanford	
Reef‐Sunset	Unified	School	
District	

			306	 Avenal	

Source:		King	County	Economic	Development	Corporation,	2012	

Agriculture	provides	14	percent	of	Kings	County’s	employment.	A	leading	agricultural	
county,	Kings	jumped	from	#11	agricultural	county	in	the	State	for	2009	to	#9	in	2010.	A	
resurgence	in	commodity	prices	sent	gross	production	values	from	$1.7B	in	2010,	to	$2.2B,	
a	29	percent	increase.		Milk	remains	as	Kings	County’s	leading	commodity	with	a	value	of		
$799	million,	a	44%	increase	over	2010	milk	production	values.	Cotton	and	cottonseed,	
cattle,	process	tomatoes,	and	alfalfa	follow	milk	to	round	out	Kings	County’s	five	leading	
commodities.	In	recent	years,	the	county	has	seen	expanded	fruit	&	nut	crops,	apiary	
products	and	seed	crops.		
 
Agricultural	losses	resulting	from	natural	hazards	can	have	dramatic	impacts	on	the	
economic	health	of	Kings	County.	Past	losses	to	agricultural	commodities	due	to	extreme	
weather	have	occurred	at	a	rate	of	approximately	one	event	per	year	since	1997,	most	often	
in	April	and	May.		

Estimating	Potential	Losses		
The	Planning	Team	ranked	the	significance	of	identified	hazards	for	each	jurisdiction.	
Significance	is	measured	in	general,	qualitative	terms	and	is	a	summary	of	the	potential	
impact	of	the	hazard	based	on	the	geographical	area	affected,	history	of	past	occurrences,	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	63	

potential	magnitude,	probability	of	the	event,	and	damage	and	casualty	potential.	
Significance	is	classified	as	the	following:	

High:	 Widespread	potential	impact.	This	ranking	carries	the	highest	threat	to	the	
general	population	and/or	built	environment.	Hazards	in	this	category	may	
have	already	occurred	in	the	past.		

Medium:		 Moderate	potential	impact.	This	ranking	carries	a	moderate	threat	level	to	
the	general	population	and/or	built	environment.	The	potential	of	
occurrence	may	be	the	same	as	the	high	ranking,	but	the	potential	damage	is	
more	isolated	and	less	costly	than	a	more	widespread	disaster.	

Low:		 Minimal	potential	impact.	The	occurrence	and	potential	cost	of	damage	to	
life	and	property	is	minimal.		

The	table	on	the	following	page	summarizes	the	hazard	significance	rankings	developed	by	
the	Planning	Team	for	participating	jurisdictions	in	Kings	County.	School	districts	are	not	
included	in	the	table.	The	planning	significance	of	different	hazards	depends	upon	their	
location	in	the	county.		

This	section	assesses	vulnerability	to	those	specific	hazards	ranked	of	medium	or	high	
significance.	The	Planning	Team	identified	three	hazards	within	the	planning	area	where	
specific	geographical	hazards	are	defined:	earthquake,	flooding,	and	wildfire.	Critical	
facilities	and	other	assets	in	these	areas	were	assessed	and	are	described	below.	The	
vulnerability	to	other	medium	to	high	significance	hazards	that	do	not	have	specific	mapped	
areas,	such	as	drought,	extreme	heat,	freeze,	and	fog,	are	discussed	in	more	general	terms	at	
the	end	of	this	section.		

It	is	also	important	to	be	aware	that	hazard	events	that	happen	outside	of	the	county	
boundaries	also	can	have	direct	and	indirect	impacts	to	Kings	County.	For	instance,	dam	
failures	and	wildfires	in	watersheds	outside	the	county	that	drain	into	it	can	result	in	
flooding	and	other	impacts	related	to	watershed	health.	An	earthquake	or	flood	as	far	away	
as	the	Sacramento	Delta	Region	could	disrupt	water	supply	to	the	county	from	the	
California	Aqueduct.	Power	supply	also	could	be	interrupted	by	earthquake	and	wildfire	
hazards	outside	of	the	county.		

   



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	64	

 Significance	of	Hazard	by	Jurisdiction	

Hazard	
Kings	
County*	 Avenal	 Corcoran Hanford	 Lemoore	

Dam	
Failure	

Low	 Low	 Low	 Low	 Medium	

Drought	 High	 Medium	 High	 High	 Medium	

Earthquake	 High	 High	 High	 High	 High	

Extreme	
Heat	 Medium	 Medium	 Medium	 Medium	 Medium	

Flood	 Medium	 Medium	 High	 Low	 Low	

Fog	 Medium	 Medium	 Medium	 Medium	 Medium	

Freeze	 Medium	 Low	 Low	 Medium	 Medium	

Landslide	 Low	 Low‐
Medium	

Low	 Low	 Low	

Tornado	 Low	 Low	 Low	 Low	 Low	

Wildfire	 Medium	 Low	 Low	 Low	 Low	

Source:		Kings	County	Planning	Team		
*Unincorporated	areas.		

Earthquake	
	
Vulnerabilities	

 Pre‐1973	Homes	due	to	older	Earthquake	Standards	
 Historic	Buildings	
 Older	bridges,	overpasses	and	elevated	roadways	
 Water,	Gas	and	Sewer	Lines	
 Power	Distribution	Systems	
 Critical	Facilities	
 People	with	Disabilities,	the	Elderly	and	Access	and	Functional	Needs	
 Agricultural	Buildings	
 Livestock	
 Canals	and	Waterways	

	
Earthquake	vulnerability	is	based	primarily	upon	population	and	the	built	environment.	
When	the	M	7.9	Fort	Tejon	earthquake	occurred	along	the	San	Andreas	Fault	near	Kings	
County	in	1857,	California	was	sparsely	populated,	especially	in	the	regions	of	strongest	
shaking.	The	California	State	Multi‐Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	(2010)	predicts	a	repeat	of	the	
1857	earthquake	would	cause	approximately	$150	million	in	property	damage.		

To	mitigate	this	hazard,	building	codes	in	California	have	been	steadily	improved	over	the	
past	80	years	as	understanding	of	seismic	shaking	has	improved.	Current	California	building	
codes	include	provisions	for	considering	the	potential	shaking	from	earthquakes,	including	
stronger	shaking	near	faults	and	amplification	by	soft	soils.	The	building	code	has	been	the	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	65	

main	mitigation	tool	for	seismic	shaking	in	most	buildings,	although	hospitals,	schools,	and	
other	critical	facilities	are	subject	to	additional	mitigation	measures	(Cal	EMA	HMP	2010).		

The	state	has	an	unreinforced	masonry	program,	which	requires	seismic	retrofits	or	
building	removal	in	Zone	IV.	Unreinforced	masonry	buildings	are	generally	brick	buildings	
constructed	prior	to	1933,	predating	modern	earthquake‐resistant	design.	The	brick	is	not	
strengthened	with	embedded	steel	bars	and	is	therefore	called	unreinforced.	There	are	four	
seismic	zones	in	the	United	States	ranging	from	I	to	IV;	the	higher	the	number,	the	higher	
the	earthquake	danger.	All	of	California	lies	within	Seismic	Zone	III	or	IV.	Stronger	
construction	standards	for	buildings	in	Zones	III	and	IV	have	been	adopted	in	the	
International	Building	Code.	Most	of	Kings	County	is	in	Zone	III	except	for	the	southwestern	
part,	which	is	in	Zone	IV.		

Estimating	Potential	Losses	
FEMA’s	software	program	for	estimating	potential	losses	from	disasters,	HAZUS,	was	used	
to	estimate	potential	losses	in	Kings	County	from	three	earthquake	scenarios.	The	following	
version	MH	2.1	SP1	of	HAZUS	was	used	for	development	of	the	earthquake	scenarios.		The	
first	scenario	was	an	annualized	loss	scenario	representing	long‐term	average	losses	based	
on	overall	local	seismic	hazard	using	a	default	M	5.0,	6.0	and	7.0	assumptions.	The	table	on	
the	following	page	summarizes	the	results	of	the	three	scenarios.	

The	Planning	Team	also	identified	the	potential	impacts	of	a	major	earthquake	in	Los	
Angeles	or	San	Francisco	Bay	Area	on	the	Central	Valley	and	Kings	County.	Displaced	people	
from	these	areas	may	come	to	the	county	and	require	sheltering,	medical	care,	and	other	
local	resources.		

   



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	66	

HAZUS	Potential	Dollar	Losses	to	Vulnerable	Structures		

Type	of	Impact	 Annualized	Loss	
Scenario	M5.0	

Annualized	Loss	
Scenario	M6.0	

Annualized	Loss	
Scenario	M7.0	

Total	Buildings	
Damaged	

1,364	at	least	
moderately	
damaged	(4%	of	
total	in	region)	
15	damaged	beyond	
repair	

1,364	at	least	
moderately	damaged	
(4%	of	total	in	region)	
15	damaged	beyond	
repair	

1,364	at	least	
moderately	damaged	
(4%	of	total	in	region)	
15	damaged	beyond	
repair	

Residential	
Buildings	
Damaged	
(single	family	
and	other	
residential)	

Slight:	4,960	
Moderate:	1,068	
Extensive:	124	
Complete:	13	

Slight:	4,960	
Moderate:	1,068	
Extensive:	125	
Complete:	14	

Slight:	4,092	
Moderate:	942	
Extensive:	190	
Complete:	59	

Building‐
Related	Losses	

$102.9	million	 $102.9	million	 $102.9	million	

Total	Economic	
Losses	
(building	and	
lifeline	losses)	

$118.65	million	 $118.74	million	 $118.74	million	

Casualties	
(based	on	
2:00am	
occurrence)	

Without	requiring	
hospitalization:	31	
Requiring	
hospitalization:	3	
Life	threatening:	0	
Fatalities:	0	

Without	requiring	
hospitalization:	31	
Requiring	
hospitalization:	4	
Life	threatening:	0	
Fatalities:	0	

Without	requiring	
hospitalization:	31	
Requiring	
hospitalization:	4	
Life	threatening:	0	
Fatalities:	0	

Casualties	
(based	on	
5:00pm	
occurrence)	

Without	requiring	
hospitalization:	21	
Requiring	
hospitalization:	3	
Life	threatening:	0	
Fatalities:	0	

Without	requiring	
hospitalization:	21	
Requiring	
hospitalization:	3	
Life	threatening:	0	
Fatalities:	1	

Without	requiring	
hospitalization:	21	
Requiring	
hospitalization:	3	
Life	threatening:	0	
Fatalities:	1	

Damage	to	
Transportation	
Systems	

0	damage	 0	damage	 0	damage	

Displaced	
Households	

38	 38	 38	

Shelter	
Requirements	

55	people	out	of	
129,461	in	region	

55	people	out	of	129,461	
in	region	

55	people	out	of	129,461	
in	region	

Source:	HAZUS	2012	

   



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	67	

Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	
According	to	the	HAZUS	model,	Kings	County	is	susceptible	to	serious	earthquake	losses	in	
the	millions	of	dollars.	The	overall	impact	of	earthquakes	to	Kings	County	includes:	

 Potential	for	injury	and	loss	of	life;	

 Widespread	structural	damage,	particularly	in	manufactured	housing;	

 Loss	of	water,	power,	roads,	phones,	and	transportation,	which	can	be	particularly	
dangerous	for	those	with	certain	medical	conditions;	

 Power	loss	complicating	response	and	recovery	efforts;	

 Business	interruption	losses;	

 Agricultural	impacts	such	as	field	disturbances	and	damage	to	irrigation	systems;	
and	

 Damage	to	oil	and	gas	facilities	and	pipelines.	

The	HAZUS	earthquake	model	applies	to	census	tract	level	data	and	does	not	allow	for	the	
quantification	of	risk	by	jurisdiction.	Based	on	the	earthquake	shaking	map	and	fault	
locations	in	the	hazard	profiles	section,	Avenal	and	the	unincorporated	community	of	
Kettleman	Hills	are	likely	to	experience	stronger	ground	shaking	than	the	rest	of	the	county.		

Older	construction	and	unreinforced	masonry	buildings	are	more	vulnerable	to	shaking	
during	earthquakes.	Historic	buildings	can	be	more	susceptible	because	they	have	
weakened	with	age	and	were	built	before	the	use	of	building	codes.	Most	unreinforced	
masonry	buildings	in	Kings	County	are	in	Hanford,	where	it	is	estimated	there	are	154.		
HAZUS	predicts	that	building‐related	losses	will	primarily	occur	in	manufactured	housing	in	
Kings	County.		

The	Kettleman	Hills	Hazardous	Waste	Facility	is	located	near	several	small	faults	in	the	
Kettleman	Hills.	Due	to	the	high	classification	of	hazardous	waste	stored	there	and	the	past	
problems	with	landslide	and	leakage,	there	is	some	environmental	risk	in	an	earthquake	
event.	The	nearest	community	is	Kettleman	Hills,	four	miles	away.		

The	California	Aqueduct	runs	through	western	Kings	County,	where	seismic	hazards	are	
high.	Numerous	natural	gas	and	oil	pipelines,	telephone	lines,	and	fiber	optic	cables	also	
follow	the	Interstate	5	corridor	in	western	Kings	County.	These	are	vulnerable	to	damage	
from	seismic	offset.	Water	wells	and	oil	wells	also	could	be	damaged	by	subsurface	
slumping.		

Wildfire	
	
Vulnerabilities	

 Homes	in	the	Wildland/Urban	Interface	
 Water,	Gas	and	Sewer	Lines	
 Power	Distribution	Systems	
 Critical	Facilities	
 People	with	Disabilities,	the	Elderly	and	Access	and	Functional	Needs	
 Agricultural	Buildings	
 Livestock	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	68	

 Crops	
	

Vulnerability	to	wildfire	is	predominantly	associated	with	wildland‐urban	interface	(WUI)	
areas.	The	WUI	is	a	general	term	that	applies	to	development	interspersed	or	adjacent	to	
forests	and	wildlands.	WUI	areas	are	a	major	focus	of	the	California	Department	of	Forestry	
and	Fire	Protection’s	(Cal	Fire)	fire	management	strategy.		

In	Kings	County,	WUI	areas	occur	primarily	in	the	southwestern	part	of	the	county	near	
Avenal.	Much	of	the	area	with	the	highest	fire	hazard	is	isolated	with	few	urban	settlements	
and	vulnerability	is	considered	low	in	the	health	and	safety	element	of	the	Kings	County	
General	Plan.	There	is	also	limited	exposure	to	wildfire	in	the	grass	lands.	When	considering	
the	planning	area	as	a	whole,	limited	fuel	loading,	along	with	the	geographical	and	
topographical	features	of	the	area,	limit	the	potential	for	fires	resulting	in	loss	of	life	and	
property.	However,	any	fire	has	the	potential	to	quickly	become	a	large,	out‐of‐control	fire,	
particularly	when	combined	with	natural	weather	conditions	common	to	the	area,	which	
include	periods	of	drought,	high	temperatures,	and	low	relative	humidity.		

Cal	Fire	generated	a	list	of	communities	at	risk	for	wildfire	as	required	by	the	National	Fire	
Plan.	The	National	Fire	Plan	is	a	cooperative,	long‐term	effort	between	various	government	
agency	partners	with	the	intent	of	actively	responding	to	severe	wildland	fires	and	their	
impacts	to	communities	while	ensuring	sufficient	firefighting	capacity	for	the	future.	Three	
main	factors	were	used	to	determine	wildfire	threat	in	the	wildland‐urban	interface	areas	of	
California.	These	include	ranking	fuel	hazards,	assessing	the	probability	of	wildfire,	and	
defining	areas	of	suitable	housing	density	that	could	create	WUI	fire	protection	strategy	
situations.	Avenal	is	the	only	Community	at	Risk	in	Kings	County	listed	in	the	Federal	
Register.	Avenal	is	in	a	Local	Responsibility	Area,	protected	by	the	Kings	County	Fire	
Department.	Most	of	the	area	to	the	west	of	Highway	33	is	Cal	Fire	State	Responsibility	Area	
for	fire	protection.	

Kings	County	is	in	Cal	Fire’s	Fresno‐Kings	Unit.	Most	fire	starts	in	local	responsibility	areas	
in	the	Fresno‐Kings	Unit	are	related	to	motor	vehicles,	equipment	use,	and	arson	(Fresno‐
Kings	Unit	Pre‐Fire	Management	Plan	2005).	

Estimating	Potential	Losses		
In	Avenal	there	are	approximately	35	structures	with	an	approximately	value	of	$637,000	
and	in	unincorporated	areas	in	the	western	part	of	the	county	are	there	284	structures	with	
an	approximately	value	of	$309,000	located	in	very	high	fire	threat	areas	(Kings	County	
LHMP	2007).	
	
Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	
The	overall	potential	impacts	from	wildfire	include:	

 Potential	for	injury	and	loss	of	life;		

 Commercial	and	residential	structural	damage;	

 Impacts	to	water	quality	and	watershed	health;	

 Impacts	to	natural	resource	habitats	and	other	resources,	such	as	agriculture,	

 Loss	of	water,	power,	roads,	phones,	and	transportation;	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	69	

 Public	Health	and	Air	Quality	

 Significant	economic	impacts	(jobs,	sales,	tax	revenue)	with	the	loss	of	commercial	
structures;	and		

 Decline	in	commercial	and	residential	property	values.	

Large,	past	burn	areas	are	located	in	high	fire	threat	areas	mapped	along	the	west	side	of	
Interstate	5.	There	are	no	other	known	critical	facilities	in	very	high	to	extreme	fire	threat	
areas.	Although	there	are	not	significant	timber	resources	in	Kings	County,	wildfires	can	
destroy	crops	affecting	the	economy.		

Drought	
	
Vulnerability	

 Water	supply	
 Natural	Habitat	
 Livestock	and	Crops	
 Open	space	and	greenbelts	
 Natural	Resources	

	
All	of	Kings	County	is	vulnerable	to	drought.	Drought	is	one	of	the	few	hazards	with	the	
potential	to	impact	all	the	citizens	of	the	county	through	water	restrictions,	economic	
losses,	and	increased	energy	costs.	The	urbanized	areas	of	the	county	and	the	agriculture	
industry	are	most	likely	to	experience	hardships	associated	with	reduced	water	supply.		

Agriculture	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	relies	on	artificial	irrigation	using	mostly	imported	
water	and/or	groundwater.	Local	droughts	are	expected	and	accommodated	for;	however,	a	
prolonged	statewide	drought	could	exceed	local	capabilities	to	handle	reductions	of	
imported	surface	water	supplies	and	potentially	lead	to	reductions	in	distribution	from	
local	water	storage	districts.		

The	costs	of	drought	are	difficult	to	quantify	because	the	impacts	affect	so	many	different	
sectors	including	wildlife	and	natural	resources,	business	and	industry,	tourism	and	
recreation,	agriculture,	and	individual	households.	Agriculture	often	suffers	the	most	
financial	losses	from	drought	and	is	the	major	component	of	the	Kings	County	economy.		
According	to	the	Kings	County	Economic	Development	Corporation,	the	gross	value	of	all	
agricultural	crops	and	products	produced	during	2011	in	Kings	County	was	$2,219,529,000.	
This	represents	an	increase	of	$501,558,000	(29.2%)	from	the	2010	value	and	is	a	record	
high	figure	for	the	county.			
	
Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	
The	overall	potential	impacts	from	drought	include:	

 Increased	potential	for	heat	injury	and	loss	of	life	

 Impacts	to	water	quality	and	watershed	health	

 Impacts	to	natural	resource	habitats	and	other	resources,	such	as	agriculture	

 Loss	of	water	for	irrigation	

 Public	Health	and	Air	Quality	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	70	

 Significant	economic	impacts	(jobs,	sales,	tax	revenue)		

 Decline	in	commercial	and	residential	property	values	

	
Extreme	Heat	
	
Vulnerability	

 Agriculture	
 People	with	disabilities	and	the	elderly;	People	with	Access	and	Functional	Needs	
 Water	supply	
 Natural	Habitat	
 Livestock	and	Crops	
 Open	space	and	greenbelts	
 Natural	Resources	
	

The	agricultural	industry	is	most	at	risk	to	extreme	temperatures.	Hot	and	cold	temperature	
extremes	damage	crops,	affecting	the	economy	and	potentially	resulting	in	lost	farming	
jobs.	Field	workers	are	susceptible	to	heat	exhaustion	and	heat	stroke.	Elderly	residents	
who	may	live	alone	and	are	limited	in	their	mobility	are	also	vulnerable	during	heat	waves.	

Problems	with	power	loss	and	water	distribution	also	occur	during	periods	of	extreme	heat.	
Power	outages	and	rolling	brownouts	can	result	when	high	temperatures	increase	air	
conditioner	use.	Power	outages	have	prevented	water	pumping	stations	from	operating.	

Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	
The	overall	potential	impacts	from	drought	include:	

 Increased	potential	for	heat	injury	and	loss	of	life	

 Impacts	to	water	quality	and	watershed	health	

 Impacts	to	natural	resource	habitats	and	other	resources,	such	as	agriculture	

 Loss	of	water	for	irrigation	

 Public	Health	and	Air	Quality	

 Significant	economic	impacts	(jobs,	sales,	tax	revenue)		

 Decline	in	commercial	and	residential	property	values	

	

Flood	
	
Vulnerabilities	

 Structures	in	low	lying	areas	and	floodplains	
 Historic	Buildings	
 Roadways	and	older	Bridges	
 Levees	and	Levee	Roads	
 Water,	Gas	and	Sewer	Lines	
 Power	Distribution	Systems	
 Critical	Facilities	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	71	

 People	with	Disabilities,	the	Elderly	and	Access	and	Functional	Needs	
 Agricultural	Buildings	
 Livestock	
 Canals	and	Waterways	
 Natural	Resources	and	species	
	

Despite	the	construction	of	massive	and	relatively	effective	flood	control	projects,	California	
remains	vulnerable	to	flooding.	A	steady	rise	in	population	and	accompanying	development	
contribute	to	increased	flood	risks	throughout	the	state.	According	to	the	National	Flood	
Insurance	Program	(NFIP),	all	four	municipalities	within	Kings	County	have	mapped	flood	
hazard	areas.	The	table	on	the	following	page	provides	further	information	on	their	
participation	in	the	NFIP.	

Hazus	estimates	that	there	are	36,717	buildings	in	the	region,	which	have	an	aggregate	total	
replacement	value	of	6,918	million	(2006	dollars).	The	table	below	presents	the	relative	
distribution	of	the	value	with	respect	to	the	general	occupancies	by	Study	Region.	
	

Kings	County	Building	Exposure	by	Type	

	
Source:		HAZUS	2012	

	
Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	
Most	of	the	flooding	in	Kings	County	can	be	characterized	as	shallow,	sheet	flow	events.	This	
type	of	flooding	often	results	in	property	damage,	road	washouts,	and	transportation	
disruptions.	Other	general	impacts	of	these	events	may	include	the	following:		

 Potential	for	injury	and	loss	of	life	

 Commercial	and	residential	structural	damage	

 Erosion	of	streambeds,	roadways	and	hillsides	

 Loss	of	water,	power,	roads,	phones,	and	transportation,	which	can	be	particularly	
dangerous	for	those	with	certain	medical	conditions	

 Hazardous	Materials	Contamination	of	large	areas	due	to	Agricultural	Chemicals,	
pesticides	and	petroleum	products	

 Economic	impacts	(jobs,	sales,	tax	revenue)	due	to	loss	of	commercial	structures	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	72	

 Decline	in	commercial	and	residential	property	values	

Most	of	the	urban	areas	in	Kings	County	are	not	located	in	mapped	floodplain	areas.	Flood	
hazards	exist	primarily	in	the	center	of	the	county	in	the	Tulare	Lake	Basin	and	along	Cross	
Creek,	the	Kings	River	and	the	North	and	Clarks	Forks	of	the	Kings	River,	and	in	the	valley	
between	the	Kettleman	Hills	and	the	Kreyenhagen	Hills.	Both	Avenal	and	Lemoore	have	
little	to	no	exposure	in	the	100‐year	floodplain,	though	they	have	significant	vulnerability	to	
a	500‐year	flood.	Corcoran	has	some	limited	exposure	along	its	southwestern	city	
boundary.	Hanford	has	few	structures	at	risk,	but	higher	monetary	value	at	risk.	Near	
unincorporated	communities,	flood	hazards	are	mapped	to	the	east	of	Kettleman	City	and	to	
the	northwest	of	Stratford.	The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	has	some	urban	flooding	mapped	in	
the	southwest	corner,	though	it	does	not	appear	to	affect	the	casino	or	other	structures.	

Few	critical	facilities	are	located	in	the	100‐year	floodplain.	The	Central	California	Soaring	
Club	Airport	and	Highway	33	in	Avenal	do	occur	in	this	hazard	area.	Much	of	Avenal	lies	in	
the	500‐year	floodplain,	which	is	primarily	affected	by	sheet	flow	flooding.		

No	cultural	or	historical	sites	are	known	in	flood	areas	based	upon	available	data.	Risk	
analysis	of	natural	resources	was	not	possible	due	to	data	limitations.	Natural	areas	within	
the	floodplain	often	benefit	from	periodic	flooding	as	a	naturally	recurring	process.	In	
addition,	natural	areas	help	mitigate	flood	impacts	by	absorbing	flood	waters.		

In	terms	of	economic	assets,	most	dairy	facilities	are	not	located	in	flood	hazard	areas,	
except	for	a	few	in	the	Cross	Creek	floodplain	in	the	northeastern	part	of	the	county.	The	
Paramount	Pomegranate	Orchards	are	located	in	a	mapped	flood	hazard	area	near	the	
southern	border	of	the	county.		

Freeze	
Vulnerabilities	

 People	
 Agriculture	–	Crop	Damage	and	Livestock	
 Water	Distribution	Systems	
 Power	Failure		

	

Prolonged	freezing	temperatures	can	damage	or	destroy	crops,	affecting	the	economy	and	
agricultural	jobs	in	Kings	County.	Water	infrastructure	is	also	at	risk	from	freezing,	
including	line	breaks	and	frozen	valve	gates	affecting	the	distribution	system.	The	county	
and	municipal	governments	wrap	pipes	before	freezing	temperature	events	to	help	prevent	
damage.		

Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	
The	overall	potential	impacts	from	drought	include:	

 Increased	potential	for	injury	and	loss	of	life	
 Significant	economic	impacts	(jobs,	sales,	tax	revenue)		
 Crop	Damage	

Fog	
	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	73	

Vulnerability	
 Air,	Rail	and	Ground	Transportation	Routes	
 People	in	Transit	

	
Fog	contributes	to	transportation	accidents	and	is	a	significant	life	safety	hazard.	These	
accidents	can	cause	multiple	injuries	and	deaths	and	could	have	serious	implications	for	
human	health	and	the	environment	if	a	hazardous	or	nuclear	waste	shipment	were	
involved.	Other	disruptions	from	fog	include	delayed	emergency	response	vehicles	and	
school	closures.	Highways	and	busy	intersections	during	traffic	rush	hours	are	vulnerable	
areas	during	severe	fog	events.		

Summary	of	Potential	Impacts	

 Loss	of	Life	and	Injury	
 Decreased	Economic	Activity	
 School	Closures	
 Road	Closures	

Development	Trends	
As	part	of	the	planning	process,	the	Planning	Team	looked	at	changes	in	growth	and	
development	and	examined	these	changes	in	the	context	of	hazard‐prone	areas	and	how	the	
changes	in	growth	and	development	affect	loss	estimates	and	vulnerability.	The	Central	San	
Joaquin	Valley	is	currently	experiencing	growth	in	food	processing,	warehousing	and	
distribution,	education,	and	health	care.	Though	population	growth	is	temporarily	stable,	
the	Valley	is	seeing	a	trend	of	nonfarm	job	growth.		Kings	County’s	population	is	projected	
to	reach	281,866	by	the	year	2050.	
	
Upward	trends	in	population	growth	and	development	in	Kings	County	increase	
vulnerability	to	hazards,	including	earthquakes,	flooding,	wildfire,	and	drought.	Modern,	
well‐constructed	buildings	built	to	code	are	more	resistant	to	earthquake	shaking.	However,	
new	buildings	can	be	severely	damaged	if	built	upon	areas	susceptible	to	soil	liquefaction.	
The	risk	of	flooding	in	future	development	should	be	minimized	by	the	floodplain	
management	programs	of	the	county	and	its	municipalities,	if	properly	enforced.	
Vulnerability	to	wildfire	will	increase	with	more	development	in	WUI	areas	in	the	western	
part	of	the	county	and	will	increase	the	fire	protection	challenges	in	the	area.	Lastly,	as	the	
population	grows,	so	do	the	water	needs	for	household,	commercial,	industrial,	recreational,	
and	agricultural	uses.	Vulnerability	
to	drought	will	increase	with	these	
growing	water	needs.			

B.4.	Repetitive	Loss	and	
Severe	Repetitive	Loss	
Properties	
§201.6(c)(2)(ii): [The risk assessment 
shall include a] description of the 
jurisdiction’s vulnerability to the 
hazards described in paragraph 
(c)(2)(i) of this section. This 
description shall include an overall 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	74	

summary of each hazard and its impact on the community. All plans approved after October 1, 
2008 must also address NFIP insured structures that have been repetitively damaged by floods.  
	
According	to	the	Kings	County	Planning	Agency	there	are	no	repetitive	loss	properties	in	
Kings	County.	The	NFIP	defines	a	repetitive	loss	structure	as	“any	building	with	two	or	more	
flood	losses	greater	than	$1,000	in	any	10‐year	period	since	1978."	Although	this	seems	an	
encouraging	statistic,	it	actually	may	reflect	a	lack	of	flood	insurance	policies	in	areas	that	
have	repetitive	floods.	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	75	

Element	C:		Mitigation	Strategy	
Requirement §201.6(c)(3): [The plan shall include the following:] A mitigation strategy that 
provides the jurisdiction’s blueprint for reducing the potential losses identified in the risk 
assessment, based on existing authorities, policies, programs, and resources, and its ability to 
expand on and improve these existing tools.   

	
Specific	mitigation	objectives	and	action	items	were	developed	for	Kings	County	in	
conjunction	with	the	public	meetings	held	in	the	locations,	as	cited	in	the	documentation	of	
the	Planning	Process	as	described	in	Element	A.		The	list	of	action	items	identifies	mitigation	
projects	and	includes	a	project	ranking	based	upon	time	horizon,	cost,	and	risk,	benefit	and	
input	from	local	stakeholders.		The	action	items	were	developed	to	provide	public	policy	
makers	with	a	list	of	potential	implementation	as	mitigation	resources;	time,	equipment	and	
funding	become	available	for	the	selected	projects.			
	
Items	completed	from	the	2007	Plan	
On	September	27,	2012	the	Planning	Team	met	and	reviewed	the	progress	on	the	
mitigation	items	created	for	the	2007	Plan.		Those	items	not	completed	were	largely	a	result	
of	a	lack	of	funding,	limited	growth	in	property	tax,	fixed	personnel	costs,	a	slow	recovery	
from	the	recession	and	diminishing	state	assistance	to	counties	have	all	contributed	to	this	
lack	of	local	funding	for	mitigation	projects.		Despite	those	reasons,	the	Kings	County	
Operational	Area	has	been	working	on	many	of	these	projects	creatively	and	collectively	
and	has	made	considerable	progress	on	the	2007	project	list.			

Element	C.1	Existing	Authorities,	Policies,	Programs	and	Resources	
Requirement §201.6(c)(3): [The plan shall include the following:] A mitigation strategy that 
provides the jurisdiction’s blueprint for reducing the potential losses identified in the risk 
assessment, based on existing authorities, policies, programs, and resources, and its ability to 
expand on and improve these existing tools. 
 
Kings	County	and	the	Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	all	have	an	
Emergency	Operations	Plan,	a	General	Plan,	which	includes	a	Health	and	Safety	Element,	an	
Emergency	Services	Ordinance	that	clearly	defines	roles	and	responsibilities	in	accordance	
with	state	and	federal	guidelines.		The	County	CAO/City	Managers	serve	as	the	Director	of	
Emergency	Services	by	law	and	ordinance	and	the	Board	of	Supervisors/City	Councils	serve	
as	the	administering	agency	and	the	promulgation	authority	for	all	plans,	policies	and	
procedures	within	Kings	County	and	the	Cities	previously	mentioned.		The	county	
recognizes	the	2010	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	of	the	State	of	California,	the	California	
Emergency	Services	Act,	and	the	appropriate	Federal	Regulations	including	44	CFR	201.		
Kings	County	is	subject	to	the	State	of	California	Uniformed	Building	Code	(UBC),	which	
dictates	standards	on	all	current	and	future	construction	within	Kings	County.	

Element	C.2	Participation	in	the	NFIP	
§201.6(c)(3)(ii): [The hazard mitigation strategy shall include a] section that identifies and 
analyzes a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and projects being considered 
to reduce the effects of each hazard, with particular emphasis on new and existing buildings 
and infrastructure. All plans approved by FEMA after October 1, 2008, must also address the 
jurisdiction’s participation in the NFIP, and continued compliance with NFIP requirements, as 
appropriate. 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	76	

The	county	has	worked	with	FEMA	in	three	broad	areas	of	the	NFIP	such	as	actively	
working	with	FEMA	to	revise	floodplain	identification,	working	with	local	governments	to	
manage	development	in	the	floodplain	and	as	part	of	the	Emergency	Management	and	NFIP	
public	education	process	and	the	encouragement	of	residents	to	purchase	flood	insurance.		
Kings	County	OEM	has	assisted	in	public	education	programs	to	encourage	all	residents	of	
the	basin	area	to	purchase	flood	insurance	under	the	NFIP	program	as	part	of	their	personal	
preparedness	programs.			
 
In	2009,	FEMA	completed	their	Digital	Flood	Insurance	Rate	Map	(DFIRM)	conversion	and	
updated	a	number	of	flood	zone	areas	using	2005	levee	certification	criteria.	In	2007,	the	
California	Department	of	Water	Resources	completed	their	Awareness	Floodplain	Mapping	
of	Kings	County	to	identify	all	pertinent	flood	hazard	areas	that	are	not	mapped	under	
FEMA’s	program,	which	provides	an	additional	resource	for	identifying	special	flood	hazard	
areas	within	the	County.	The	map	on	the	following	page	displays	flood	zones	based	upon	
FEMA’s	DFIRM	(2009)	and	California	Department	of	Water	Resources’	Awareness	
Floodplain	Map	(2007).	Kings	County	maintains	a	floodplain	management	program	based	
on	these	maps,	and	implemented	through	the	County’s	Flood	Damage	Prevention	Ordinance	
(Chapter	5A	of	the	Kings	County	Code	of	Ordinances).	The	purpose	of	this	ordinance	is	to	
prevent	development	in	FEMA	designated	flood	prone	areas,	or	to	ensure	that	development	
in	those	areas	can	avoid	or	withstand	flooding	without	increasing	flood	risk	elsewhere.		
	
Flood	prevention	and	control	in	community	districts	and	urban	fringe	areas	are	most	
effectively	deterred	by	structural	means	such	as	curbs,	gutters	and	storm	drainage	systems.	
In	more	rural	and	less	developed	agriculture	and	open	space	areas,	more	passive	measures	
are	relied	upon	such	as	high	crowns	on	roadway	pavement	to	divert	floodwaters	onto	
adjacent	properties	that	are	more	suited	to	accommodate	the	diverted	drainage.	
	

Community	Participation	in	the	NFIP	in	Kings	County	

Jurisdiction	 Date	Joined	
Current	Effective	Map	
Date	

Avenal	 04/05/1989	 06/16/2009	

Corcoran	 11/28/1997	 Adopted	Kings	County	
FIRM	06/16/2009		

Hanford	 03/18/1987	 Adopted	Kings	County	
FIRM	06/16/2009	

Lemoore	 04/03/1987	 Adopted	Kings	County	
FIRM	06/16/2009	

Kings	County	 08/04/1988	 06/16/2009	

Source:	NFIP	Community	Status	Book,	2012	

	



Decem

FE

Kings
contin
flood
const
plann
partn
flood

Elem
§201.
to red

mber	2012	FINAL

EMA’s	DFIRM

s	County	toge
nue	to	comp
plain	manag
truction	in	sp
ning	and	perm
nership	with	
plain	manag

ment	C.3	M
6(c)(3)(i) [Th
duce or avoid

L	

M	(2009)	an

ether	with	th
ly	with	the	N
ement	stand
pecial	flood	h
mit	process	a
FEMA	has	re
ement	activi

Mitigation
e hazard miti
d long‐term vu

nd	California

he	Cities	of	Av
NFIP	requirem
dards.		The	ju
hazard	areas.
and	the	refin
esulted	in	bet
ities.	

n	Goals	
igation strate
ulnerabilities

a	DWR’s	Aw
	

venal,	Corcor
ments	and	m
urisdictions	w
.		This	has	be
ning	of	floodp
tter	identific

egy shall incl
s to the ident

wareness	Flo

ran,	Hanford
maintain	curr
will	continue
een	accompli
plain	mappin
cation	of	floo

lude a] descri
tified hazards

Kings	County	
Local	Hazar

oodplain	Ma

d	and	Lemoo
rent	adopted	
e	regulation	o
ished	throug
ng	with	FEMA
dplain	areas

iption of miti
s. 

Operational	Are
rd	Mitigation	Pla

Page	7

aps	(2007)	

re	will	
and	enforce
of	new	
gh	the	
A.	This	
	and	

igation goals

ea	
an	

77	

	

ed	

s 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	78	

The	Planning	Team	developed	goals	and	objectives	to	provide	direction	for	reducing	
hazard‐related	losses	in	Kings	County.	These	were	based	upon	the	results	of	the	risk	
assessment	and	a	review	of	community	goals	from	other	state	and	local	plans.	The	Planning	
Team	reviewed	goals	from	the	following	plans	to	ensure	their	mitigation	strategy	was	
integrated	with	existing	plans	and	policies:	

 State	of	California	Multi‐Hazard	Mitigation	Plan,	2010	

 California	Fire	Plan,	2010	

 Fresno‐Kings	Unit	County	Pre‐Fire	Management	Plan,	2005	

 Kings	County	Emergency	Operations	Plan,	2008		

 Kings	County	General	Plan,	2010	

Through	a	brainstorming	process	at	their	third	meeting,	the	Planning	Team	identified	a	
variety	of	possible	goals	and	then	came	to	a	consensus	on	three	main	sets	of	goals	and	
objectives.	Following	the	development	of	goals,	the	Planning	Team	identified	specific	
objectives	to	achieve	each	goal.	Goals	and	objectives	are	listed	below,	but	are	not	
prioritized:	

Goal	1	Reduce	impacts	of	natural	hazards	to	life,	property,	and	the	environment	

 Promote	education	and	awareness	about	natural	hazards	risk,	mitigation,	and	
preparedness	to	citizens,	public	agencies,	elected	officials,	non‐profit	organizations,	
and	businesses	

 Ensure	protection	and	enhancement	of	key	emergency	access	routes	

 Protect	critical	facilities	and	infrastructure	to	minimize	loss	of	critical	services	

 Minimize	growth	and	development	in	hazard	areas	

 Improve	enforcement	of	existing	standards	and	regulations	

Goal	2	Minimize	impacts	of	natural	disasters	to	agriculture	and	the	economies	of	
communities	

 Encourage	water	conservation	measures	among	urban,	rural,	and	agricultural	users	

 Increase	water	storage	to	mitigate	flooding	and	drought	

 Develop	plans	for	post‐disaster	recovery	

 Strengthen	disaster	resistance	and	resiliency	of	major	employers	

Goal	3	Implement	identified	mitigation	activities	

 Promote	hazard	mitigation	as	integrated	policy	among	communities	in	the	county	
and	with	the	region	and	state	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	79	

 Increase	communication	regarding	mitigation	among	communities	in	the	county.	

 Seek	funding	sources	and	partners	for	future	mitigation	activities	

 Improve	organizational	capabilities	to	address	health	and	safety	issues	in	mitigation	
and	response		

Element	C.4	Mitigation	Actions	and	Projects	
§201.6(c)(3)(ii): [The hazard mitigation strategy shall include a] section that identifies and 
analyzes a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions and projects being considered 
to reduce the effects of each hazard, with particular emphasis on new and existing buildings 
and infrastructure. All plans approved by FEMA after October 1, 2008, must also address the 
jurisdiction’s participation in the NFIP, and continued compliance with NFIP requirements, as 
appropriate. 

§201.6(c)(3)(iv): For multi‐jurisdictional plans, there must be identifiable action items specific 
to the jurisdiction requesting FEMA approval or credit of the plan. 

The	Planning	Team	developed	26	mitigation	actions,	which	are	listed	below.		At	their	
meeting,	the	Planning	Team	came	to	consensus	on	the	person	and	department	responsible	
for	completing	a	mitigation	action	worksheet	for	the	county/participating	jurisdictions	for	
each	identified	mitigation	action.	The	worksheet	includes	information	on	the	background	
issues,	possible	alternatives,	responsible	office,	cost	estimate,	benefits,	potential	funding,	
and	ideas	for	implementation	for	each	action.			
	
Full	descriptions	of	each	mitigation	action	for	this	2012	LHMP	are	provided	in	each	
jurisdictional	annex	and	a	summary	is	provided	on	the	following	page.	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	80	

Summary	of	2012	Mitigation	Actions	
	
Mitigation Action Links to 

Goals 
Hazards 
Addressed 

Kings 
County 

Avenal Corcoran Hanford  Lemoore Tachi 
Yokut 
Tribe 

Status 

Housing Rehabilitation Program 1,2 Earthquake  X     Cont’d 

Emergency Power System 1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

 X    X New 

Vulnerability of Water Distribution 
System 

1,2 Earthquake  X     Cont’d 

Loss Reduction Program for URM 
Buildings 

1 Earthquake  X     Cont’d 

Veterans’ Memorial Building 1 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

  X    Cont’d 

Impact of the High Speed Rail Project 1,2,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X  X X X  New 

Emergency Power System for shelter 
site 

1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

  X   X New 

New Public Safety Building 1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

  X    New 

Public Education Program 1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 

X   X X  Cont’d 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	81	

Mitigation Action Links to 
Goals 

Hazards 
Addressed 

Kings 
County 

Avenal Corcoran Hanford  Lemoore Tachi 
Yokut 
Tribe 

Status 

Wildfire 
Emergency Power Switching System 
for Primary Care Clinics 

1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      New 

Hospitals HVAC 1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      New 

Water Recharge Basin Partnership 
Program 

1,2,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      Revised 

Community Alert and Warning 1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      New 

Transportable Shelter Caches for 
Displaced Populations 

1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      New 

New County EOC Assessment 1,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      New 

Inter-jurisdictional GIS Program 1,2,3 Drought, EQ, 
Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      Revised 

Kings County Area Disaster Council 3 Drought, EQ, X      Cont’d 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	82	

Mitigation Action Links to 
Goals 

Hazards 
Addressed 

Kings 
County 

Avenal Corcoran Hanford  Lemoore Tachi 
Yokut 
Tribe 

Status 

Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

Livestock Disposal Plan 1,2 Extreme Heat X      Cont’d 
Disaster Evacuation Routes 1,2  Drought, EQ, 

Extreme Heat, 
Flood, Fog, 
Freeze, 
Wildfire 

X      Cont’d 

Traffic Safety Fog Events 1 Fog X      Cont’d 

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	83	

Element	C.5	Mitigation	Strategy	Action	Plan	
§201.6(c)(3)(iii) [The hazard mitigation strategy shall include an] action plan, describing how 
the action identified in paragraph (c)(3)(ii) of this section will be prioritized, implemented, and 
administered by the local jurisdiction. Prioritization shall include a special emphasis on the 
extent to which benefits are maximized according to a cost benefit review of the proposed 
projects and their associated costs.  §201.6(c)(3)(iv) For multi‐jurisdictional plans, there must 
be identifiable action items specific to the jurisdiction requesting FEMA approval or credit of 
the plan. 

The	Planning	Team	analyzed	a	list	of	potential	structural	and	nonstructural	mitigation	
alternatives	identified	based	upon	the	risk	assessment,	existing	capabilities,	and	identified	
goals	and	objectives.	Each	committee	member	was	provided	with	the	STAPLEE	
prioritization	criteria	recommended	by	FEMA.	STAPLEE	stands	for:	social,	technical,	
administrative,	political,	legal,	economic,	and	environmental,	which	are	the	factors	that	
should	be	considered	when	assessing	mitigation	measures.	Through	a	collaborative	group	
process,	the	Planning	Team	used	STAPLEE	to	identify	the	specific	mitigation	actions	from	
among	the	alternatives	that	are	most	likely	to	be	implemented	and	effective.		
 
This	process	of	identification	and	analysis	of	mitigation	alternatives	allowed	the	Planning	
Team	to	come	to	consensus	and	to	prioritize	recommended	mitigation	actions.		The	Disaster	
Mitigation	Act	regulations	state	that	benefit‐cost	review	is	the	primary	method	by	which	
mitigation	projects	should	be	prioritized.	In	the	state	ranking,	benefit	cost	review	is	one	of	
ten	criteria,	and	although	the	overall	priority	of	the	criteria	is	not	stated,	benefit‐cost	review	
is	listed	last.	Recognizing	the	federal	regulatory	requirement	to	prioritize	by	benefit‐cost	
and	the	need	for	any	publicly	funded	project	to	be	cost‐effective,	the	Planning	Team	decided	
to	pursue	implementation	according	to	when	and	where	damages	occur,	available	funding,	
political	will,	jurisdictional	priority,	and	priorities	identified	in	the	California	State	Hazard	
Mitigation	Plan.	Cost	effectiveness	will	be	considered	in	additional	detail	when	seeking	
FEMA	mitigation	grant	funding	for	eligible	projects	identified	in	this	plan.	

Element	C.6	Project	Implementation	
§201.6(c)(4)(ii): [The plan shall include a] process by which local governments incorporate the 
requirements of the mitigation plan into other planning mechanisms such as comprehensive or 
capital improvements, when appropriate. 

	

The	 Kings	 County	 Office	 of	 Emergency	Management	will	 be	 the	 central	 coordination	
point	 for	maintaining	 this	 plan	 and	will	 serve	 as	 a	 lead	 staff	 for	 grant	 project	
applications	 on	 the	countywide	projects	selected	 for	application	under	 the	PDM	grant	
program.	 	 Additionally,	each	 jurisdiction	applying	for	grant	 funds	on	their	own	will	
serve	as	 lead	staff	 for	project	implementation	with	assistance	from	the	county	and	
participating	Planning	Team	members	as	requested.	

	
An	important	implementation	mechanism	that	is	highly	effective	and	low‐cost	is	
incorporation	 of	 the	 hazard	 mitigation	 plan	 recommendations	 and	 their	 underlying	
principles	 into	 other	 county	 and	 city	 plans	 and	 mechanisms.	 Where	 possible,	 plan	
participants	will	use	existing	plans	and/or	programs	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	
actions.	Mitigation	is	most	successful	when	it	is	incorporated	into	the	day‐to‐day	
functions	and	priorities	of	government	and	development.	As	described	in	this	plan’s	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	84	

capability	assessment,	the	County	and	participating	jurisdictions	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	
Hanford	and	Lemoore)	already	implement	policies	and	programs	 to	 reduce	 losses	 to	
life	 and	 property	 from	 hazards.	 This	 plan	 builds	 upon	 the	momentum	 developed	
through	 previous	 and	 related	 planning	 efforts	 and	mitigation	programs	and	
recommends	implementing	actions,	where	possible,	through	these	other	program	
mechanisms.	These	existing	mechanisms	include:		

 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	General	and	Master	
plans	

 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	Emergency	Operations	
plans	

 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	ordinances	
 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	Flood/storm	water	

management/master	plans	
 Community	Wildfire	Protection	plans	
 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	Capital	improvement	

plans	and	budgets	
 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	Other	plans	and	

policies	outlined	in	the	capability	assessments	in	the	jurisdictional	annexes	
 County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	Other	plans,	

regulations,	and	practices	with	a	mitigation	focus	
	
Planning	Team	members	 involved	 in	 these	 other	 planning	mechanisms	 will	 be	
responsible	for	integrating	the	findings	and	recommendations	of	this	plan	with	these	
other	plans,	programs,	etc.,	 as	appropriate.	 Implementation	and	 incorporation	 into	
existing	planning	mechanisms	will	be	done	through	the	routine	actions	of	the	following	
process:	

	
 Monitoring	other	County	and	City	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	

planning/program	agendas	
 Attending	other	County	and	City	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	

planning/program	meetings	
 Participating	in	other	County	and	City	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	

planning	processes	
 Monitoring	County	and	City	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	budget	

meetings	for	other	community	program	opportunities	
 County	and	City	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	annual	Hazard	

Mitigation	Plan	update	meeting	
	
The	successful	implementation	of	this	mitigation	strategy	will	require	constant	and	
vigilant	review	of	existing	plans	and	programs	 for	coordination	and	multi‐objective	
opportunities	that	promote	a	safe,	sustainable	community.	A	few	examples	of	
incorporation	of	the	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	into	existing	planning	mechanisms	
include:	

 As	recommended	by	Assembly	Bill	2140,	the	County	and	Cities	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	
Hanford	and	Lemoore)	should	adopt	(by	reference	or	incorporation)	this	LHMP	
into	the	Safety	Element	of	their	General	Plans.	Evidence	of	adoption	(by	formal,	
certified	resolution)	shall	be	provided	to	Cal	EMA	and	FEMA.		The	following	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	85	

jurisdictions	used	the	approved	2007	LHMP	and	integrated	it	into	their	General	
Plans:			

o Kings	County	
o City	of	Corcoran	

	
The	Cities	of	Avenal,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	did	not	integrate	the	2007	LHMP	into	their	
General	Plans	due	to	staffing	constraints	and	lack	of	understanding	of	the	integration	effort	
and	continuity	in	the	plan	update	process.			
	
Following	the	formal	approval	of	this	2012	LHMP	the	Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	
Management	will	work	with	the	Cities	of	Avenal,	Hanford	and	Lemoore	to	integrate	the	
elements	of	this	plan	into	each	of	the	Cities	General	Plans	through	formal	integration	such	
as	a	resolution	and/or	through	the	General	Plan	update	process	for	each	of	the	Cities.					
	

 Using	the	risk	assessment	information	to	update	the	hazards	section	in	the	County	
and	City	(Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore)	2008	Emergency	Operations	
Plans,	the	2007	LHMP	planning	process	occurred	around	the	same	timeframe	as	
the	Emergency	Operations	Plan	Development	for	the	County	and	the	Cities	of	
Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	Lemoore.		The	risk	assessment	information	was	
used	as	part	of	the	Hazards	Section	of	the	2008	Emergency	Operations	Plans	and	
each	plan	calls	out	the	use	of	the	LHMP	specifically.		These	2008	Emergency	
Operations	Plans	are	currently	being	updated	and	will	use	this	2012	LHMP	as	a	
foundation	for	the	revised	Hazards	Section	in	the	2015	Emergency	Operations	
Plans	for	the	following	jurisdictions:	

	
o Kings	County	
o City	of	Avenal	
o City	of	Corcoran	
o City	of	Hanford		
o City	of	Lemoore	

	
Efforts	 will	 continuously	 be	made	 to	monitor	 the	 progress	 of	 mitigation	 actions	
implemented	through	these	other	planning	mechanisms	and	where	appropriate,	their	
priority	actions	should	be	incorporated	into	updates	of	this	hazard	mitigation	plan.	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	86	

Element	D:		Plan	Review,	Evaluation	and	Implementation	
§201.6(d)(3): A local jurisdiction must review and revise its plan to reflect changes in 
development, progress in local mitigation efforts, and changes in priorities, and resubmit if for 
approval within 5 years in order to continue to be eligible for mitigation project grant funding. 

Element	D.1	Changes	in	Development	
§201.6(d)(3): A local jurisdiction must review and revise its plan to reflect changes in 
development, progress in local mitigation efforts, and changes in priorities, and resubmit if for 
approval within 5 years in order to continue to be eligible for mitigation project grant funding. 

This	plan	has	been	revised	to	reflect	changes	in	development	within	Kings	County.		Kings	
County	is	a	moderate	to	high	growth	county.	Projected	developments	for	the	planning	
period	are	less	than	1000	new	housing	units	and	fewer	new	businesses	within	the	next	five	
years.		Historically	over	the	last	three	censuses	the	population	has	been	plus	2%	of	the	
baseline	figure	quotes	in	this	plan.		There	are	several	development	projects	planned	for	the	
County	and	participating	jurisdictions	such	as	the	High	Speed	Rail	Project	and	expansion	of	
housing	projects	throughout	the	county.	

Element	D.2	Progress	in	Local	Mitigation	Efforts	
§201.6(d)(3): A local jurisdiction must review and revise its plan to reflect changes in 
development, progress in local mitigation efforts, and changes in priorities, and resubmit if for 
approval within 5 years in order to continue to be eligible for mitigation project grant funding. 

This	plan	has	been	created	as	a	living	document	with	input	from	the	population	and	
professionals	within	Kings	County.		The	2007	LHMP	has	already	proven	useful	in	the	
revision	of	the	Health	and	Safety	Element	of	the	2010	General	Plan.		
	
The	tables	on	the	following	pages	provide	a	snapshot	of	the	progress	made	in	local	
mitigation	efforts.		Detailed	descriptions	and	the	summaries	of	the	status	of	the	mitigation	
actions	from	the	2007	plan	are	located	in	the	jurisdictional	annexes	attached	to	this	
document.		Each	mitigation	action	in	the	2007	planning	effort	describes	whether	the	action	
was	completed	or	not	and	why,	whether	the	action	was	no	longer	relevant	or	if	the	action	is	
included	as	part	of	the	2012	planning	effort.			
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	87	

Summary	and	Status	of	2007	Mitigation	Actions	
	

Mitigation Action Links to 
Goals 

Hazards 
Addressed 

Kings 
County 

Avenal Corcoran Hanford  Lemoore Status 

Long-Term Water Supply  
Improve coordination, planning, and 
investment in long-term water supplies 
to meet demands of ongoing growth 
and development. 

1,2,3 Multi 

X    X 

Overtaken by 
Events, 
dropped 

Inter-Jurisdictional GIS Program 
Improve coordination, planning, and 
investment in long-term water supplies 
to meet demands of ongoing growth 
and development. 

1,2,3 Multi 

X    X 

Completed 
and ongoing 

Assessment	of	Critical	
Infrastructure	Assess	vulnerability	
of	critical	infrastructure	and	lifeline	
utilities,	including	water	distribution	
systems,	to	identify	and	prioritize	
projects	for	multi‐hazard	risk	
reduction.	

1,2 Multi 

X X X X X 

Completed 

Kings County Area Disaster Council 
Review and update items related to the 
Kings County Area Disaster Council in 
the Kings County Emergency Services 
Ordinance to improve countywide 
coordination and the monitoring and 
implementation of the mitigation plan. 

3 Multi 

X X X X X 

Partially 
Completed 
and carried 
over to 2012 
actions 

Public Education Program Develop 
and implement a comprehensive 
strategy to improve ongoing public 
education regarding natural hazards 
and risk. 

1,3 Multi 

X X X X X 

Partially 
Completed 
and carried 
over to 2012 
actions 

Vulnerable Populations Develop a 
program or system for supporting 
vulnerable populations during 
emergency events. 

1,3 Multi 

X X X X X 

Completed 

Plans for Special Needs Students  
Develop a plan for supporting 
medically fragile and special needs 

1 Multi 
X     

Dropped, 
overcome by 
events 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	88	

Mitigation Action Links to 
Goals 

Hazards 
Addressed 

Kings 
County 

Avenal Corcoran Hanford  Lemoore Status 

students at each school site during 
emergency events. 
Natural Hazards Review Criteria  
Implement natural hazards review 
criteria for new development to 
improve long-term loss prevention. 
 

1,2,3 Multi 

X X X X X 

Completed 

Livestock Disposal Plan Establish a 
livestock disposal plan and compost 
team to address livestock fatality 
during extreme heat events. 

1,2 Extreme Heat 

X     

Partially 
Completed 
and carried 
over to 2012 
actions 

Safety Element of General Plan 
Integrate the hazard mitigation plan 
with the Safety Element of the Kings 
County General Plan. 

3 Multi 

X X X X X 

Partially 
Completed 
and carried 
over to 2012 
actions for the 
cities 

Adoption	of	DFIRMs		
Update	flood	damage	prevention	
ordinance	to	include	new	FEMA	
digital	flood	insurance	rate	maps	
(DFIRMs). 

1,3 Flood 

X X X X X 

Completed 

Disaster Evacuation Routes 
Ensure the maintenance and 
enhancement of established disaster 
evacuation routes. 

1,2 Multi 

X     

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

Traffic Safety for Fog Events 
Improve lighting and traffic controls at 
critical intersections and roadways to 
improve safety during fog events. 

1 Fog 

X     

Not 
Completed, 
reevaluated 
and carry over 
to 2012 
actions 

Updated Building Code  
Adopt the 2006 International Building 
Code 

1,2,3 Multi 
X X X X X 

Completed 

Earthquake Hazards at Schools 
Develop a plan for training school 

1 Earthquake 
X     

Dropped, 
overcome by 



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	89	

Mitigation Action Links to 
Goals 

Hazards 
Addressed 

Kings 
County 

Avenal Corcoran Hanford  Lemoore Status 

maintenance crews to identify and 
address nonstructural hazards in 
schools to mitigate earthquake risk. 

events 

Housing	Rehabilitation	Program		
Continue	and	enhance	housing	
rehabilitation	program. 

1,2 Earthquake 

 X    

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

Vulnerability	of	Water	
Distribution	System		
Reduce	vulnerability	of	water	
distribution	system 

1,2 Earthquake 

 X    

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

Loss	Reduction	Program	for	URM	
Buildings		
Establish	a	loss	reduction	program	
for	unreinforced	masonry	(URM)	
buildings	in	compliance	with	the	
California	URM	Law	of	1986.	

1 Earthquake 

 X    

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

Veterans’	Memorial	Building	
Expand	the	Veterans’	Memorial	
Building	and	designate	it	as	an	
emergency	shelter	

1 Extreme Heat, 
Multi 

  X   

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

Retrofits	of	Water	Storage	Tanks	
Complete	seismic	retrofits	of	two	of	
city’s	water	storage	tanks.	

1,2 Earthquake 

  X   

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

GIS	Database	of	URMs		
Develop	GIS	database	of	
unreinforced	masonry	(URM)	
buildings.	

1,2 Earthquake 

  X   

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

Retrofit	URM	Buildings	in	
Downtown		
Retrofit	58	unreinforced	masonry	
(URMs)	buildings	in	downtown	
Hanford	

1,2 Earthquake 

  X   

Not 
completed 
carry over to 
2012 actions 

	
	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	90	

	

Element	D.3	Changes	in	Priorities	
§201.6(d)(3): A local jurisdiction must review and revise its plan to reflect changes in 
development, progress in local mitigation efforts, and changes in priorities, and resubmit if for 
approval within 5 years in order to continue to be eligible for mitigation project grant funding. 

The	overall	priorities	in	Kings	County	and	the	participating	jurisdictions	in	this	plan	update	
have	 changed	 since	 the	 2007	 Mitigation	 Plan.	 Several	 actions	 were	 completed	 and	 new	
projects	were	added	to	coincide	with	the	changes	in	priorities,	progress	in	local	mitigation	
efforts	and	changes	in	development.			
	
Politically	 the	 county	 has	 maintained	 is	 financially	 conservative	 nature	 in	 expending	
available	 funds	 and	 its	 overall	 desire	 to	 stay	 true	 to	 itself	 in	 remaining	 focused	 on	
agricultural	preservation.	With	the	lack	of	disasters	and	the	decline	of	available	funding,	the	
mitigation	 strategies	 needed	 to	 be	 revised	 to	 fit	 the	 overall	 county	 priorities	 and	 be	
developed	so	that	most	could	be	started	or	accomplished	for	this	next	5‐year	plan	cycle.		
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	91	

Element	E:		Plan	Adoption	
Requirement §201.6(c)(5): [The plan shall include...] Documentation that the plan has been 
formally adopted by the governing body of the jurisdiction requesting approval of the plan 
(e.g., City Council, County commissioner, Tribal Council).  

Element	E.1	Formal	Adoption	Documentation	
Requirement §201.6(c)(5): [The plan shall include...] Documentation that the plan has been 
formally adopted by the governing body of the jurisdiction requesting approval of the plan 
(e.g., City Council, County commissioner, Tribal Council).  

Kings	County	and	the	cities	plan	to	submit	this	plan	to	the	Kings	County	BOS	and	their	
respective	City	Councils	upon	successful	completion	of	state	and	federal	review.		Kings	
County	wishes	to	receive	approval	pending	adoption	in	order	to	minimize	cost	to	the	county.		
The	plan	will	be	submitted	to	the	Board	as	a	regularly	scheduled	agenda	item	with	room	for	
additional	public	and	departmental	comment.		Our	approach	to	this	final	element	is	due	to	
the	need	to	remain	cost	effective	in	the	planning	process.		By	receiving	state	and	federal	
approval	of	the	plan	prior	to	going	to	the	board,	we	are	able	to	go	to	the	board	on	a	single	
date	to	finalize	promulgation	of	this	document.		The	plan	will	be	in	its	final	format,	
notification	of	the	public	will	only	have	to	be	done	once	and	copies	of	the	resolution	
adopting	this	plan,	the	relevant	section	of	the	minutes	of	the	BOS	meeting	and	roster	of	
attendees	of	this	meeting	will	be	included	in	appendix	B	of	this	plan.		The	resolution	will	be	
inserted	before	the	table	of	contents.		As	part	of	the	agenda	report	the	basic	requirements	
for	the	plan,	the	scope	of	the	document	and	the	need	to	revise	every	five	years	will	be	
clearly	stated.		The	Kings	County	OEM	staff	will	be	prepared	to	give	an	overview	of	the	plan	
and	be	prepared	to	answer	any	questions	related	to	the	document	development	process	and	
its	contents.	

Element	E.2	Kings	County	Operational	Area	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	
This	plan	is	for	Kings	County	and	its	incorporated	cities	including	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	
and	Lemoore.		Therefore	there	are	five	(5)	required	resolutions	from	the	Kings	County	
Board	of	Supervisors	(1)	and	the	City	Councils	(4).		

	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	92	

References	
	
State	of	California	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	(2010)	
	
Kings	County	Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	(2007)	
	
Kings	County	2035	General	Plan	(2010)	
	
Kings	County	2035	General	Plan,	Health	and	Safety	Element	(2010)	
	
Kings	County	Emergency	Operations	Plan	(2008)	
	
Kings	County	Flood	Management	Ordinance	Part	32	
	
Kings	County	Kings	County	Code	of	Ordinances,	Chapter	5A	
	
Kings	County	website	
	
Kings	County	Economic	Development	Corporation	Reports	(2010,	2011,	and	2012)	
	
Kings	County	Agricultural	Commissioner’s	Report,	2011	
	
Department	of	Finance	Data,	Kings	County	2012	
	
Origins	and	Development:		A	Chronology	of	Disasters	in	California,	California	Governor’s	
Office	of	Emergency	Services	
	
City‐Data.com	
	
National	Flood	Insurance	Program,	Community	Status	Book,	2012	
	
California Department of Water Resources, 2006, “Drought Preparedness.” 
	
Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	Local	Mitigation	Plan	Review	Guide,	2011	
	
Multi‐Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	Guidance	under	the	Disaster	Mitigation	Act	of	2000	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How	To	Guide	#1,	Getting	Starting:	Building	
Support	for	Mitigation	Planning	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#2,	Understanding	Your	Risks:	
Identifying	Hazards	and	Estimating	Losses	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#3,	Developing	the	Mitigation	Plan:	
Identifying	Mitigation	Actions	and	Implementation	Strategies	

	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	93	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#4,	Bringing	the	Plan	To	Life:	
Implementing	the	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#5,	Using	Benefit‐Cost	Review	in	
Mitigation	Planning	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#6,	Integrating	Historic	Property	
and	Cultural	Resource	Considerations	into	Hazard	Mitigation	Planning	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#7,	Integrating	Manmade	Hazards	
into	Mitigation	Planning	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#8,	Multi‐Jurisdictional	Mitigation	
Planning	

	

Federal	Emergency	Management	Agency,	How‐To	Guide	#9,	Using	the	Hazard	Mitigation	
Plan	to	Prepare	Successful	Mitigation	Projects	

	

California	Emergency	Management	Agency,	Disaster	Recovery	and	Mitigation	Handbook	

	

California	Emergency	Management	Agency,	Tools	for	Preparing	your	LHMP,	2012	

	
Robert	T.	Stafford	Disaster	Relief	and	Energy	Assistance	Act,	Section	322	
	
2010	U.	S.	Census	
	
California	Department	of	Water	Resources,	Water	Conditions	and	Drought	Report	to	
Governor,	2009	
	
United	States	Geological	Survey	website	
	
National	Weather	Service	website	
	
Spatial	Hazards	Events	and	Losses	Database	of	the	United	States	website	
	
California	Department	of	Forestry	and	Fire	Protection	website	
	
National	Register	of	Historic	Places	
	
Fresno‐Kings	Unit	Pre‐Fire	Management	Plan,	2005	
	
California	Fire	Plan,	2010	
	
Nation	Climate	Data	Center	website		
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	94	

Planning	Process	Documentation	
	

	
  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	95	

 
 
  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	96	

 

 

 

 

 

Kings County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Kickoff Meeting 

Kings County Health Department 
Health Annex Auditorium 

330 Campus Drive 
Hanford, CA 

March 22, 2012 
9:00 am – 11:00 am 

 
Agenda 

 

1. Introductions  
2. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Purpose, Update and Requirements  

 
3. Multi-Jurisdictional Participation and the Planning Committee 
4. Break 
5. Hazard Identification and Data Collection Needs  
6. Planning for Public Involvement 
7. Next Steps  

  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	97	

 
 
  



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	98	

3/22/12	sign	in	sheets	unable	to	locate	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	99	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	100	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	101	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	102	

	
	

	
	

	
	
	
Public	Meeting	Sign	in	Sheets	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	103	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	104	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	105	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	106	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	107	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	108	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	109	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	110	

	
	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	111	

	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	112	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	113	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	114	

	
	
	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	115	

 

 

Kings County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Meeting 

Kings County  
Human Services Agency 

Building 8 
Hanford, CA 

July 13, 2012 
1:30 pm – 3:30 pm 

 
Agenda 

 

1. Introductions  
2. Local Hazard Mitigation Development Update  

 
3. Planning Team Vote on Natural Hazards 
4. Public Meeting Results, More Public Outreach Opportunities 
5. Hazard Identification and Data Collection Needs  
6. Mitigation Strategies Review from 2007 Plan 
7. Next Steps  

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	116	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	117	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	118	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	119	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	120	

	
	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	121	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	122	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	123	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	124	

	
	 	



Kings	County	Operational	Area	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	

December	2012	FINAL	 	 Page	125	

Community	Profile	Annexes	
	



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	1	

CITY	OF	LEMOORE	
Community	Profile	
Lemoore	is	governed	by	a	five‐member	city	council	that	is	responsible	for	
approving	all	legislation	and	formulating	city	policies.	The	council	selects	
one	of	its	members	to	serve	as	the	mayor,	who	presides	at	meetings	and	

represents	the	city	in	all	official	matters	and	at	official	functions.	

Geography	and	Climate	
Lemoore	is	located	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	in	the	northeast	portion	of	Kings	County.	
According	to	the	U.S.	Census	Bureau,	the	city	encompasses	8.4	square	miles.	The	terrain	is	
relatively	flat	and	underlain	by	well‐drained,	sandy	loam	soils.	The	elevation	of	the	city	is	
221	feet	above	sea	level.	Precipitation	averages	about	8.4	inches	per	year.	Average	high	
temperature	in	the	summer	is	97°F	and	in	the	winter	is	50°F.	The	Kings	River	is	located	to	
the	west	of	Lemoore	between	the	city	and	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station.		

History	
Dr.	Lovern	Lee	Moore	first	made	his	home	in	what	was	western	Tulare	County,	California	
(now	the	city	of	Lemoore)	in	April	1871.	It	was	near	Tulare	Lake,	then	the	largest	body	of	
water	in	central	California.	By	the	time	Moore	arrived,	scores	of	individual	farms	(mostly	
sheep	and	grain)	dotted	the	landscape.	Moore	brought	together	the	surrounding	farm	
families	and	secured	a	post	office	and	a	local	center	for	conducting	business.	Moore	also	
established	the	first	real	estate	development	in	the	district	and	laid	out	and	named	the	
streets.	Lemoore	became	an	incorporated	city	on	July	11,	1900.	
 
Economy	
Lemoore’s	major	employers	are	still	rooted	in	agriculture;	however,	economic	development	
in	the	city	created	a	boom	in	housing	construction.	The	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	is	the	
Navy's	largest	master	jet	air	station	projects	and	is	home	to	the	Pacific	Strike	Fighter	Wing	
and	its	supporting	facilities.	The	station	projects	an	increase	in	base	personnel	through	
2010.	Major	employers	in	Lemoore	include	SK	Foods	and	Leprino	Foods	processing	plants.	
Lemoore	is	also	home	to	the	newest	campus	of	West	Hills	Community	College.	

Population	
Lemoore’s	estimated	2012	population	is	24,531.	This	represents	a	20.9	percent	increase	
over	the	population	at	the	time	of	the	2000	U.S.	Census	(California	Department	of	Finance	
2012).	Lemoore’s	population	is	59	percent	white,	7	percent	black	or	African	American,	and	
17	percent	“some	other	race.”	Census	data	indicates	that	31	percent	of	Lemoore’s	
population	is	of	Hispanic	origin	(U.S.	Census	Bureau	2010).	

Hazard	Identification	
Representatives	from	the	city	of	Lemoore	identified	natural	hazards	that	could	affect	the	
city	and	developed	hazard	profiles	based	upon	the	countywide	risk	assessment	and	past	
events	and	their	impacts.	Definitions	for	the	rankings	used	can	be	found	in	Element	B.	



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	2	

City	of	Lemoore—Hazard	Profiles	

Hazard	 Probability	of	
Occurrence	

Potential	
Magnitude/Geographic	
Extent	

Significance

Dam	Failure		 Unlikely Catastrophic Medium
Drought	 Occasional Limited Medium
Earthquake	 Occasional Critical High	
Extreme	Heat	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium
Flood	 Occasional Limited Low	
Fog	 Highly	Likely Negligible Medium
Freeze	 Likely	 Negligible Medium
Landslide	 Unlikely Negligible Low	
Soil	Hazards:	
Expansive	
Liquefaction	Erosion	

Occasional Negligible Low	

Tornado	 Occasional Limited Low	
Wildfire	 Unlikely Negligible Low	
 

Vulnerability	Assessment	
The	vulnerability	assessment	analyzes	the	population,	property,	and	other	assets	at	risk	to	
natural	hazards.	This	section	lists	Lemoore’s	assets	at	risk,	including	critical	facilities	and	
infrastructure;	historic,	cultural,	and	natural	resources;	and	economic	assets.		

Assets	Inventory	
The	table	that	follows	lists	the	critical	facilities	and	other	community	assets	identified	by	
representatives	from	Lemoore	as	important	to	protect	in	the	event	of	a	disaster.		

City	of	Lemoore—Critical	Facilities	and	other	Community	Assets		

Facility	 Replacement	Value	 Occupancy/Capacity
Fire	Station	–	210	Fox	Street	 $3,500,000 	
Police	Station	–	657	Fox	Street	 $1,718,000 	
Lemoore	High	School	–	101	Bush	Street $72,200,000 	
Liberty	Middle	School	–	1000	Liberty	Drive $32,000,000 	
Mary	Immaculate	Queen	School	–	884	N.	
Lemoore	Avenue	 $18,000,000

	

Meadow	Lane	Elementary	–	Quandt	and	
Meadow	Lane		 $18,000,000

	

Cinnamon	Elementary	–	500	E.	Cinnamon $18,000,000 	
Lemoore	Elementary	–	573	Bush	Street $18,000,000 	
Engvall	Elementary	–	19th	and	Cedar	Lane $18,000,000 	
Kings	Christian	School	–	900	East	D	Street $18,000,000 	
Cinnamon	Municipal	Complex	–	711	Cinnamon	
Drive	 $10,300,000

	



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	3	

Facility	 Replacement	Value	 Occupancy/Capacity
City	Hall	/	Civic	Auditorium	–	119	Fox	Street $4,656,000 	
Highway	198	Infrastructure	/	Overpasses California	Department	of	

Transportation
	

Highway	41	Infrastructure	/	Overpasses California	Department	of	
Transportation

	

San	Joaquin	Valley	Railroad	 	 	
Water	wells	and	storage	facilities	 	 19.15Mgal/day
Lemoore	Old	Post	Office	 $1,000,000 	
Sarah	Mooney	Museum	 $600,000 	
Leprino	Foods	 $86,000,000

(two	facilities	combined)
	

 

Estimating	Potential	Losses	
The	table	below	shows	Lemoore’s	total	exposure	to	hazards	in	terms	of	population	and	the	
number	and	values	of	structures.	Kings	County	Assessor’s	data	was	used	to	calculate	the	
improved	value	of	parcels.	GIS	was	used	to	quantify	the	number	and	value	of	structures	in	
the	100‐year	(Zone	A)	and	500‐year	(X‐500)	flood	hazard	areas	mapped	by	FEMA.	More	
information	on	how	these	estimates	were	calculated	can	be	found	in	Element	B.	

City	of	Lemoore—Exposure	to	Hazards	

Lemoore	 Population	 Buildings	 Value	
Total	Exposure	
(Earthquake)	 25,531 8632 $2,002,624,000	

Flood:	Zone	A	 0 *0	
Flood:	X‐500	 203 *$31,125,037	

 

Representatives	from	Lemoore	discussed	the	impacts	of	different	hazards	to	the	city	and	
determined	that	the	impacts	from	drought,	earthquake,	extreme	heat,	fog,	and	freezes	affect	
the	city	similar	to	other	areas	of	the	Kings	County	region	and	do	not	differ	significantly	to	
the	descriptions	found	in	Element	B.			The	map	on	the	following	page	shows	the	City	of	
Lemoor’s	Flood	Hazards.	



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	4	

 



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	5	

Future	Development	Trends	
The	City	of	Lemoore	2030	General	Plan	plans	for	24,860	new	residents	over	the	next	23	
years,	which	represents	an	annual	growth	rate	of	3.1	percent.	It	plans	for	the	majority	of	
new	residents	to	live	in	new	residential	neighborhoods	in	the	northern,	southern,	and	
eastern	part	of	the	city,	avoiding	the	flood	hazard	areas	to	the	west	and	northwest.	
However,	the	city’s	undeveloped,	northwestern	industrial	complex	lies	in	a	100‐year	
floodplain.				

CAPABILITY	ASSESSMENT	
Capabilities	are	the	programs	and	polices	currently	in	use	to	reduce	hazard	impacts	or	that	
could	be	used	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities.	The	assessment	is	divided	into	four	
sections:	regulatory,	administrative	and	technical,	fiscal,	and	outreach	and	partnerships.		

Regulatory	Capability	
The	table	below	lists	planning	and	land	management	tools	typically	used	by	local	and	tribal	
jurisdictions	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities	and	indicates	those	that	are	in	place	
in	Lemoore.		

City	of	Lemoore—Regulatory	and	Planning	Capabilities	

Regulatory	Tool		 Yes/No Comments	

General	plan	 Yes Updated	in	2008
Zoning	ordinance	 Yes
Subdivision	ordinance	 Yes
Site	plan	review	
requirements	

Yes

Growth	management	
ordinance	

Yes

Floodplain	ordinance	 Yes
Other	special	purpose	
ordinance	(stormwater,	
water	conservation,	wildfire)	

Yes Stormwater	and	water	conservation	plans	

Building	code	 Yes 2001	California	Building	Code	parts	1	and	2	
referencing	the	1997	Uniform	Building	Code	

Fire	department	ISO	rating	 Yes
Erosion	or	sediment	control	
program	

Yes

Stormwater	management	
program	

Yes

Capital	improvements	plan	 Yes
Economic	development	plan	 Yes
Local	emergency	operations	
plan	

Yes This	plan	will	be	updated	in	2013/14	in	
coordination	with	the	Kings	County	update.	

 



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	6	

Administrative	and	Technical	Capability	
The	table	below	identifies	the	personnel	resources	responsible	for	activities	related	to	
mitigation	and	loss	prevention	in	Lemoore.	A	summary	of	technical	resources	follows.	

City	of	Lemoore—Personnel	Capabilities	

Personnel	Resources	 Department/Position	
Planner/Engineer	with	knowledge	of	land	
development/land	management	practices	

Contracted	city	engineer	from	Quad	Knopf	
Consulting	

Engineer/Professional	trained	in	
construction	practices	related	to	buildings	
and/or	infrastructure	

Contracted	city	engineer	from	Quad	Knopf;
Public	Works	–	Construction	Superintendent	

Full	time	building	official	 Public	Works– Director
Floodplain	Manager	 Planning	– Chief	Planner
Emergency	Manager	 Police	Department	– Police	Chief	
Grant	writer	 Various	departments
Other	

 

Fiscal	Capability	
The	following	table	identifies	financial	tools	or	resources	that	the	city	could	potentially	use	
to	help	fund	mitigation	activities.	There	are	currently	no	specific	funding	sources	for	hazard	
mitigation.	

City	of	Lemoore—Available	Financial	Tools	and	Resources	

Financial	Resources	
Accessible/	
Eligible	to	Use		

Community	Development	Block	Grants Yes
Capital	improvements	project	funding Yes
Authority	to	levy	taxes	for	specific	purposes Yes
Fees	for	water,	sewer,	gas,	or	electric	
services	

Yes

Impact	fees	for	new	development Yes
Incur	debt	through	general	obligation	bonds Yes
Incur	debt	through	special	tax	bonds Yes
Incur	debt	through	private	activities No
Withhold	spending	in	hazard prone	areas Yes

 



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	7	

Outreach	and	Partnerships	
The	city	could	not	identify	any	public	outreach	or	other	community	partnerships	related	to	
hazard	mitigation.	

GOALS	AND	OBJECTIVES	
The	city	of	Lemoore	adopts	the	hazard	mitigation	goals	and	objectives	developed	by	the	
Planning	Team	and	described	in	Element	B.		

MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
The	planning	team	for	the	city	of	Lemoore	identified	and	prioritized	the	following	
mitigation	actions	based	on	the	risk	assessment.	Background	information	as	well	as	
information	on	how	the	action	will	be	implemented	and	administered,	such	as	ideas	for	
implementation,	responsible	office,	partners,	potential	funding,	estimated	cost,	and	timeline	
also	are	described.		



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	8	

2012	MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
Mitigation	Action:	Lemoore	#1—Public	Education	
Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
 

Action:	
	

Develop	and	implement	a	comprehensive	strategy	to	improve	ongoing	
public	education	regarding	natural	hazards	and	risk.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Lemoore

Priority:	 High	

Issue/Background:	
	

The	lack	of	public	knowledge	about	hazards	and	preparedness	was	
identified	in	this	planning	process	as	an	important	issue	to	address.	
Providing	public	information	and	training	on	hazards,	risks,	and	
individual	and	household	preparedness	could	greatly	reduce	losses	
during	emergency	events.			

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

Establish	training	and	information	that	can	be	delivered	through	
presentations	to	the	widest	variety	of	groups	and	media		
Educate	citizens	about	risks	in	Lemoore	and	Kings	County	
Encourage	families	to	have	kits,	plans,	and	drills	to	test	their	plans.	
Establish	a	Citizen	Emergency	Response	Team	(CERT)	program	in	the	
city,	which	would	be	integrated	with	the	county’s	program	

Responsible	Office:	 Police	Department

Partners:	
	

City	of	Lemoore	(Council	and	Staff),	local	businesses,	schools,	church	and	
service	groups,	media	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	U.S.	
Department	of	Homeland	Security	grants,	private	foundation	grants,	
California	Office	of	Emergency	Services	

Cost	Estimate:	 To	be	determined	at	time	of	grant	requests

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

 Potentially	fewer	lives	lost	and	property	damaged	due	to	improved	
community	preparedness		

 Quicker	recovery	of	community	due	to	prior	preparation	
Timeline:	 Implement	program	within	two	years

Completed	by:	 Wes	Roberts,	Lemoore	Police	Department,	Sergeant	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	was	
reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
partially	accomplished.		The	committee	agreed	to	carry	this	project	
forward	for	a	more	comprehensive	public	education	program	on	
disaster	preparedness.	



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	9	

2007	MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Long‐Term	Water	Supply	
Current	Status:		Overtaken	by	Events	and	Dropped	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Improve	coordination,	planning,	and	investment	in	long‐term	water	
supplies	to	meet	demands	of	ongoing	growth	and	development.	

Jurisdiction:	 Multi‐Jurisdictional
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Counties	within	the	central	and	southern	San	Joaquin	Valley	region	
are	experiencing	tremendous	growth	as	a	result	of	low	land	costs,	
affordable	housing,	and	low	mortgage	interest	rates.	This	growth	
surge	along	with	depleting	surface	and	ground	water	supplies	and	
projected	outlook	of	global	warming	may	severely	cripple	the	
available	water	supplies	to	Kings	County	during	years	of	drought.	
Other	regions	are	currently	working	on	regional	water	management	
plans	to	receive	bond	funds	for	water	capacity	building	projects.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County	Water	District	has	attempted	to	coordinate	
proactive	water	capacity	building	programs	and	projects	to	address	
the	future	needs	of	the	county’s	agricultural,	rural,	and	urban	water	
needs.	This	effort	should	be	built	upon	to	develop	a	water	
management	plan	that	covers	Kings	County.	The	plan	should	
incorporate	a	countywide	strategy	for	conservation	programs,	
recycled	water	reuse	programs,	programs	that	build	additional	
recharge	and	storage,	and	policies	that	work	to	retain	existing	surface	
water	rights	within	the	county	for	future	use.	The	Kings	County	
portion	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	Regional	Blueprint	may	provide	an	
appropriate	avenue	to	address	this	planning	effort.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Planning	Agency	to	take	the	lead	until	another	more	
appropriate	agency	or	joint	powers	authority	can	take	over	

Partners:	
	

Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Lemoore,	and	Hanford;	special	districts;	
water	and	irrigation	districts;	Local	Agency	Formation	Commission	of	
Kings	County;	and	Kings	County	Association	of	Governments	

Potential	Funding:	 Possible	grant	and	bond	funds	through	recent	State	Propositions.
Cost	Estimate:	
	

$60,000	to	$80,000	for	a	countywide	water	capacity	study	and	
$10,000	to	$45,000	for	jurisdiction	implementation	of	planning	policy	
recommendations.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

$1000s	in	potential	agricultural	and	other	resource	losses	avoided	
over	the	long	term	during	years	of	severe	drought.	$1000s	in	the	
reduction	of	emergency	responses	and	recovery	supplies	for	cities	
and	communities	unprepared	and	left	without	adequate	water	
supplies	for	their	residents.	

Timeline:	
	

Countywide	water	management	plan	to	be	completed	in	three	years,	
then	ongoing	efforts	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Planning	Department
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th mitigation	strategies	

workshop	this	project	was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		
The	long‐	term	water	supply	has	been	overtaken	by	events.		The	
local	project	has	been	co‐opted	by	a	multijurisdictional	project	in	



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	10	

cooperation	with	the	State	Department	of	Water	Resources.	This	
Project	will	cover	the	work	within	Kings	County	as	well	as	several	
adjacent	counties	that	share	the	same	aquifer	and	watershed.	

 



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	11	

  

Mitigation	Action:	Lemoore—Assessment	of	Critical	Infrastructure	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	
	

Action:	
	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	infrastructure	and	lifeline	utilities,	
including	water	distribution	systems,	to	identify	and	prioritize	projects	
for	multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	
	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Lemoore

Priority:	 High	

Issue/Background:	
	

Public	agencies	need	to	constantly	evaluate	and	plan	for	improvements	
that	deliver	the	best	service	level	available	while	remaining	cost	
effective.	With	the	advent	of	new	techniques	and	technology	to	evaluate	
and	identify	weak	links	within	the	infrastructure	of	city	services	to	
further	strengthen	and	mitigate	shortages	in	design	and/or	function.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

Evaluate	systems	starting	with	water	storage	and	distribution	system.	
Once	weaknesses	are	identified,	potential	projects	for	addressing	them	
will	be	identified,	prioritized	for	funding,	and	integrated	into	the	city’s	
capital	improvements	plan,	water	master	plan,	and	other	relevant	plans.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Lemoore	Office	of	the	City	Manager

Partners:	
	

All	city	department	directors

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
other	U.S.	Department	of	Homeland	Security	grant	programs,	current	
city	revenue	for	services	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

Prevent	damages	and	losses	due	to	interruptions	in	services.	
	

Timeline:	 Five	years	

Completed	by:	 Wes	Roberts,	Lemoore	Police	Department,	Sergeant	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	was	
reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdiction	subject	to	this	plan.		

 



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	12	

Mitigation	Action:	Lemoore—Vulnerable	Populations	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	
	

Develop	a	program	or	system	for	supporting	vulnerable	populations	
during	emergency	events	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Lemoore

Priority:	 High	

Issue/Background:	
	

There	are	currently	few	or	no	mechanisms	in	place	to	assist	vulnerable	
populations	in	Lemoore	during	emergency	events.	Many	citizens	within	
these	groups	are	unidentified.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

 Work	with	local	agencies,	businesses,	and	nonprofit	groups	that	have	
contact	with	specific	populations	to	identify	issues	and	potential	
strategies	to	reduce	risk	to	vulnerable	populations	during	
emergencies.	

 Contact	other	municipalities	to	obtain	their	answers	to	this	situation	
and	integrate	success	stories	in	our	action	plan.	

 Integrate	program	with	the	emergency	operations	plan,	perhaps	as	
an	annex.		

	
Responsible	Office:	
	

Lemoore	Parks	and	Recreation	Department

Partners:	
	

All	departments	within	the	city	of	Lemoore

Potential	Funding:	
	

State	and	federal	councils	on	aging,	nonprofit	organizations,	Lemoore	
General	Fund,	in‐kind/staff	time	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

 Improved	emergency	response	capabilities
 Reduced	risk	to	vulnerable	populations	during	emergency	events		
	

Timeline:	 Program	will	be	developed	and	implemented	within	two	years	
	

Completed	by:	 Wes	Roberts,	Lemoore	Police	Department,	Sergeant	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	was	
reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdictions	subject	to	this	plan.			

 



City	of	Lemoore	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	13	

Mitigation	Action:	Lemoore—Municipal	GIS	Program	
Current	Status:		Completed	and	ongoing	(See	Remarks	box)	moved	to	2012	projects	
 

Action:	
	
	

Assist	in	establishing	a	centralized,	inter‐jurisdictional	GIS	program	in	
partnership	with	the	County	of	Kings	to	improve	all	phases	of	emergency	
management.		
	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Lemoore

Priority:	 Medium	

Issue/Background:	
	

Lemoore	has	identified	the	need	for	implementation	of	GIS	in	all	phases	
of	emergency	management.	The	implementation	will	provide	for	a	
timelier	response	to	the	needs	of	our	community	and	improved	
understanding	of	hazards	and	vulnerabilities.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

 Purchase	technical	equipment	to	use	technology	
 Improve	staff	capabilities	
 Obtain	training	for	emergency	personnel	to	optimize	benefits	of	GIS	

during	emergency	events	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Planning	Department
	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Planning	Department,	Cities	of	Hanford,	Corcoran,	Avenal,	
and	Tachi	Tribal	Council	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Grant	money	from	FEMA/Department	of	Homeland	Security,	ESRI

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$20,000	to	contract	with county	GIS	services	in	fiscal	year	2007‐2008.	
Additional	costs	for	equipment	and	training	needs.	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

 Better	use	of	available	resource
 Improved	risk	assessment	
 Quicker	assessment	during	emergencies	
	

Timeline:	 Establish	GIS	support agreement	with	county	in	fiscal	year	2007‐2008.	
Aerial	imagery	update	in	summer	2007.	Web	application	in	fiscal	year	
2007‐2008.	
	

Completed	by:	 Wes	Roberts,	Lemoore	Police	Department,	Sergeant	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	was	
reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		The	inter‐jurisdictional	GIS	
project	is	in	progress.		The	County	has	been	completely	mapped;	
Hanford	and	Avenal	have	joined	in	on	the	project	contracting	with	
County	GIS	to	meet	their	mapping	needs.		The	project	is	planned	to	
expand	to	include	all	the	incorporated	Cities	(Lemoore	and	Corcoran)	
and	continue	to	create	an	integrated	countywide	GIS	system	and	
database.	

 



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	1	

City	of	Avenal	
COMMUNITY	PROFILE	

Avenal	is	the	smallest	city	in	Kings	County	and	is	governed	by	a	five‐
member	City	Council	that	includes	the	Mayor	and	Mayor	Pro	Tem.		

Geography	and	Climate	

Avenal	is	situated	180	miles	north	of	Los	Angeles	and	200	miles	south	of	San	Francisco	and	
Sacramento—“Half	the	way	from	the	Bay	to	L.A.”	It	is	located	in	the	southwestern	portion	of	
Kings	County	between	State	Route	33	and	Interstate	5.	Most	of	the	developed	part	of	the	
city	is	located	in	the	Kettleman	Plain	between	the	Kettleman	Hills	to	the	northeast	and	the	
Kreyenhagen	Hills	to	the	southwest.	The	amount	of	land	area	in	Avenal	is	approximately	19	
square	miles	and	the	city’s	elevation	is	800	feet	above	sea	level.	Annual	precipitation	is	
about	10	inches	with	most	of	the	rain	falling	between	November	and	April.	Average	high	
temperature	in	the	winter	is	64°F	and	in	the	summer	is	98°F.		

History	

The	city	of	Avenal	was	named	by	Spanish	soldiers	and	explorers.	“Avena”	means	oats	or	oat	
field	in	Spanish.	The	city	area	was	originally	covered	with	wild	oats	“waist	high”	that	looked	
like	golden	silk	and	covered	the	Kettleman	Plains.	Early	American	settlers	arrived	in	the	
Kettleman	Hills	during	the	1850s	to	raise	cattle	and	to	farm.	It	was	oil,	however,	that	
brought	most	of	the	people	to	Avenal.	In	1929,	Standard	Oil	surveyed	the	current	site	of	
Avenal	and	built	the	town.		

During	the	late	1940s,	the	decline	of	oil	and	gas	production	caused	Avenal’s	economy	to	
weaken	and	many	stores	and	houses	were	vacated.	During	the	1970s,	the	completion	of	the	
California	Aqueduct	brought	in	needed	water,	and	the	completion	of	Interstate	5	brought	
new	business	opportunities.	Following	incorporation	in	1979,	the	city	attracted	a	state	
prison	in	1987	and	later	annexed	the	Interstate	269/Interstate	5	interchange,	zoning	the	
area	for	commercial	and	industrial	development	and	stimulating	the	local	economy.	

Economy	
Avenal	is	home	to	one	of	California’s	state	prisons,	which	is	the	largest	employer	in	the	city	
with	over	1,000	employees	and	approximately	4,500	inmates.		Other	major	employers	are	
Paramount	Farms	(600	employees)	and	Reef	Sunset	Unified	School	District	(306	
employees)	(Kings	County	Economic	Development	Corporation	2012).	

Over	25%	of	families	in	Avenal	live	below	the	poverty	level.	Avenal	is	challenged	with	an	
unemployment	rate	of	25%.	Approximately	80%	of	Avenal’s	population	is	Hispanic	with	
strong	connections	to	farm	labor.	The	primary	industry	within	a	five‐mile	radius	of	Avenal	
is	agriculture.		Many	other	industries	are	directly	or	indirectly	dependent	upon	agriculture	
such	as	construction,	manufacturing,	transportation,	wholesale,	and	retail.	Therefore,	the	
vast	majority	of	Avenal’s	economy	is	directly	or	indirectly	related	to	agriculture.	



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	2	

Population	
The	estimated	2012	population	of	Avenal	was	15,505.	This	includes	the	prison	population	
and	represents	a	10	percent	increase	over	the	population	at	the	time	of	the	2000	U.S.	
Census	(California	Department	of	Finance	2010).	Avenal’s	population	is	36	percent	white,	
13	percent	black	or	African	American,	and	47	percent	“some	other	race.”	Census	data	
indicates	that	66	percent	of	Avenal’s	population	is	of	Hispanic	origin	(U.S.	Census	Bureau	
2010).	

Hazard	Identification	and	Profiles	
Avenal’s	planning	team	identified	hazards	that	affect	the	city	and	developed	hazard	profiles	
based	upon	the	countywide	risk	assessment	and	past	events	and	their	impacts.	Definitions	
for	the	rankings	used	can	be	found	in	Element	B:		Hazard	Identification	and	Risk	
Assessment.	

City	of	Avenal—Hazard	Profiles	

Hazard	
Probability	of	
Occurrence	

Potential	
Magnitude/
Geographic	
Extent	

Significance	

Dam	Failure	 Unlikely Negligible Low
Drought	 Occasional Critical Medium	
Earthquake	 Occasional Critical High
Extreme	Heat	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Flood	 Likely Critical Medium	
Fog	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Freeze	 Occasional Limited Low
Landslide	 Occasional Critical Low‐Medium	
Soil	Hazards:	Expansive	
Liquefaction	Erosion	

Occasional Limited Low

Tornado	 Unlikely Negligible Low
Wildfire	 Occasional Limited Low

 

Vulnerability	Assessment	

The	vulnerability	assessment	analyzes	the	population,	property,	and	other	assets	at	risk	to	
natural	hazards.	This	section	lists	Avenal’s	assets	at	risk	to	natural	hazards,	including	
critical	facilities	and	infrastructure;	historic,	cultural,	and	natural	resources;	and	economic	
assets.	It	discusses	the	impacts	that	occurred	in	past	events	and	vulnerability	to	specific	
hazards	ranked	of	medium	or	high	significance.		

Asset	Inventory	
The	table	that	follows	lists	the	critical	facilities	and	other	community	assets	identified	by	
Avenal’s	planning	team	as	important	to	protect	in	the	event	of	a	disaster.		



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	3	

City	of	Avenal—Critical	Facilities	and	other	Community	Assets		

Facility	
Replacement	

Value	 Occupancy/Capacity

City	Hall	 $820,000 20	
City	corporate	yard/equipment	 $791,000 50+	
Avenal	Police	Department		‐	Avenal	
Emergency	Operations	Center	(primary)	

$2,500,000 19+	

Kings	County	Fire	Station	No.	12	– Avenal	
Emergency	Operations	Center	(secondary)	 	

Water	treatment	plants	(2)	 $5,200,000 5.2	MGD	
Wastewater	treatment	plant	 $8,200,000 2	MGD	
Water	storage	tanks	 $6,000,000 	
12‐inch	and	18‐inch	water	transmission	
lines	 $16,000,000 16	miles	of	lines	

Pacific	Gas	&	Electric	high	pressure	lines 	
Chevron/JP	Oil	oil/gas	production	fields 	
California	Aqueduct	 	
Medical	clinics	(2)	 	
Avenal	Senior	Center	 100+	
Avenal	Child	Development	Center $1,600,000 80+	
 

There	was	a	hospital	in	Avenal,	but	it	has	been	closed	due	to	problems	with	asbestos.	The	
nearest	hospitals	are	in	Coalinga	and	in	Hanford.	There	are	two	medical	clinics	in	Avenal.	
There	are	several	designated	shelters	in	Avenal	for	use	in	an	emergency	event	including	the	
Veterans	Hall,	the	Recreation	Center,	two	High	School	gyms	and	three	school	cafeterias.		

The	Avenal	State	Prison	has	a	capacity	of	7,600	plus	support	staff.	The	prison	population	
amounts	to	almost	half	of	the	city’s	population.	The	prison	population	skews	the	census	
data	for	Avenal,	making	it	difficult	to	summarize	social	vulnerability	issues.	Education	and	
outreach	efforts,	as	well	as	emergency	response	planning,	will	need	to	address	the	needs	of	
low‐income	residents	and	the	large	Spanish‐speaking	population.	In	past	emergencies,	
volunteers	have	organized	spontaneously	to	help	those	with	mobility	issues.		



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	4	

Avenal	Flood	Hazards	

 

 



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	5	

ESTIMATING	POTENTIAL	LOSSES	

The	table	below	shows	Avenal’s	total	exposure	to	hazards	in	terms	of	population	and	the	
number	and	values	of	structures.	Kings	County	Assessor’s	data	was	used	to	calculate	the	
improved	value	of	parcels.	GIS	was	used	to	quantify	the	number	and	value	of	structures	in	
the	100‐year	(Zone	A)	and	500‐year	(X‐500)	flood	hazard	areas	and	in	very	high	wildfire	
hazard	areas.	More	information	on	how	these	estimates	were	calculated	can	be	found	in	the	
Vulnerability	Assessment	section	Element	B.	

City	of	Avenal—Exposure	to	Hazards	

Avenal	 Population	 Structures Value	
Total	Exposure	
(Earthquake)	

15,505 1,754 $128,111,815	

Flood:	Zone	A	 5 $98,033	
Flood:	X‐500	 1,393 $80,716,733	
Wildfire:	Very	High	Threat 35 $637,272	

	

Impacts	of	past	events	and	vulnerability	to	specific	hazards	are	summarized	below.		

Drought	

Avenal	differs	from	the	other	communities	in	Kings	County	in	that	it	is	reliant	on	surface	
water	from	the	California	Aqueduct	and	the	Central	Valley	Project	for	drinking	water.	The	
1987‐1992	drought	created	a	water	shortage	that	led	to	a	temporary	building	moratorium	
in	the	city.	The	drought	also	resulted	in	the	city	adopting	a	water	conservation	ordinance,	
which	is	described	further	in	the	Capability	Assessment	section	below.	The	Central	Valley	
Project	Improvement	Act	of	1992	mandates	changes	in	management	of	the	Central	Valley	
Project,	particularly	for	the	protection,	restoration,	and	enhancement	of	fish	and	wildlife.	
Avenal	has	been	affected	by	the	Act	through	diversions	and	changes	mandating	no	new	
water	contracts	until	fish	and	wildlife	goals	are	achieved	and	no	contract	renewals	until	
completion	of	a	programmatic	environmental	impact	statement.	These	changes	affect	
agriculture	users	before	municipal	users.	Drought	events	can	also	reduce	the	quality	of	
water	in	the	aqueduct	and	lead	to	increased	treatment	costs.		

Earthquake	

The	earthquake	hazard	in	Avenal	is	more	severe	than	in	the	other	cities	in	the	county.	The	
known	faults,	historic	epicenters,	and	potential	for	ground	shaking	in	and	near	Kings	
County	is	shown	on	the	map	in	Element	B.		HAZUS‐MH,	FEMA’s	loss	estimation	software,	
predicts	that	there	will	be	a	loss	of	potable	water	in	an	earthquake	event	in	Kings	County.	
Avenal’s	transmission	lines	for	its	water	source	are	vulnerable	to	ground	shaking	and	
seismically‐induced	landslides.	The	water	source	itself,	the	California	Aqueduct,	also	may	be	
vulnerable	to	damage	during	a	seismic	event.		

Fortunately,	soils	in	Avenal	are	not	mapped	as	prone	to	liquefaction,	though	both	the	
Kettleman	Hills	and	Kreyenhagen	Hills	are	prone	to	landslides.	Members	of	Avenal’s	



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	6	

planning	team	recall	that	buildings	shook	in	the	Coalinga	earthquake	(1983)	and	more	
recently	in	an	earthquake	that	occurred	in	2004/2005.		In	early	September	2012,	there	
were	two	Coalinga	Earthquakes	that	caused	intense	shaking	and	subsequent	water	system	
damage.	

There	are	several	buildings	of	concern	in	an	earthquake	event.	The	planning	team	identified	
the	following:	

 Avenal	City	Hall	

 Peck’s	Department	Store	(unreinforced	masonry	construction)	

 Veterans’	Hall	

 Avenal	Historical	Museum	

The	number	of	unreinforced	masonry	buildings	in	the	city	is	between	five	and	eight.	
California’s	Unreinforced	Masonry	Law,	SB	547,	passed	in	1986	requires	that	these	
buildings	in	Seismic	Zone	4	are	inventoried	and	retrofitted	in	every	jurisdiction.	
Communities	must	adopt	a	loss	reduction	program	and	report	progress	to	the	Seismic	
Safety	Commission.	There	is	a	moderate	amount	of	manufactured	housing	in	different	parts	
of	Avenal;	this	building	type	is	also	more	vulnerable.		

Extreme	Heat	

Extreme	heat	is	highly	likely	to	occur	on	an	annual	basis	in	Avenal.	An	extreme	heat	event	in	
summer	2006	and	recently	in	2012	caused	increased	energy	costs	and	danger	to	outdoor	
workers.	The	city	does	provide	information	on	overheating	and	safety	to	city	workers	
through	the	Avenal	Police	Department	who	is	also	responsible	for	the	Office	of	Emergency	
Services	in	Avenal.	

Flood	

No	critical	facilities	are	located	in	the	mapped	100‐year	flood	hazard	area	in	Avenal,	except	
for	part	of	Highway	33.	Much	of	the	city	is	located	in	the	500‐year	floodplain,	which	is	
primarily	affected	by	sheet	flow	flooding.	Facilities	located	here	include	the	fire	station,	
medical	clinic,	superior	court,	and	Avenal	Elementary	School.		

Two	water	main	lines,	one	18‐inch	and	one	12‐inch,	carry	water	from	the	California	
Aqueduct	to	the	city	through	the	Kettleman	Hills,	which	are	prone	to	slope	failure	and	
erosion	during	heavy	rains	that	cause	flooding.	The	landslide‐prone	areas	are	not	inside	the	
city	limits	and	other	types	of	development	do	not	occur	there;	therefore,	landslide	is	not	
addressed	as	a	separate	hazard.	There	are	approximately	16	miles	of	water	transmission	
lines,	mainly	outside	the	city	limits.	There	is	history	of	problems	with	these	water	lines	
during	hazard	events.	In	a	rain	event	in	March	1995,	the	18‐inch	main	line	broke	due	to	
slope	failure	around	the	water	line	cutting	off	the	potable	water	supply	to	Avenal	for	12	
days.	Water	had	to	be	brought	in	and	schools	and	roads	were	closed	for	a	short	time.	
Businesses	were	also	without	water	resulting	in	economic	impacts.	FEMA	and	the	California	
Office	of	Emergency	Services	at	the	time,	now	Cal	EMA	provided	Public	Assistance	funds	for	



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	7	

the	disaster.	The	same	line	broke	again	on	January	5,	1998,	near	the	Old	Skyline	Road.	
Although	the	area	of	failure	has	been	reinforced,	it	is	likely	that	a	similar	event	could	occur	
on	other	parts	of	the	line	in	the	future.		

The	city	has	restructured	most	culverts	in	the	last	10	years	using	general	funds	designated	
for	streets	and	stormwater	drainage.	Flooding	remains	a	problem	at	the	intersection	of	
Seventh	Avenue	and	Highway	33;	however	this	is	an	issue	that	needs	to	be	addressed	by	the	
California	Department	of	Transportation.	Runoff	from	the	Arroyo	del	Camino	is	conveyed	
through	the	city	by	means	of	channel,	culverts,	and	storm	drains.	The	channel	exists	for	
approximately	one‐half	miles	between	the	city	limit	and	Fremont	Street.	Downstream	of	
Fremont	Street,	the	discharge	can	result	in	sheet	flow	flooding.	Discharges	from	the	
watershed	areas	west	of	Arroyo	del	Camino	concentrate	along	Highway	33	at	the	southwest	
limit	of	the	city.		

Wildfire	

Wildfire	is	a	greater	threat	to	Avenal	than	other	areas	of	Kings	County.	The	Skyline	fire	in	
1996	burned	over	20,000	acres	east	of	Avenal	along	the	west	side	of	Interstate	5	and	north	
of	Highway	41.	The	fire	burned	close	to	36th	Avenue	on	the	north	side	of	town.	There	are	not	
a	significant	number	of	homes	along	the	city	limits	in	the	wildland‐urban	interface.	The	
Kings	County	Fire	Department	provides	fire	protection	services	to	the	city.		In	the	last	five	
years	the	largest	wildfire	was	less	than	1000	acres	in	the	near	vicinity,	largely	due	to	the	
fast	burning	but	light	fuels	that	typify	the	hills	immediately	around	Avenal.	

Other	Hazards	

Fog	is	not	as	common	in	Avenal	as	the	rest	of	the	county	but	does	occur	heading	into	the	city	
and	out	of	the	city	and	can	result	in	traffic	accidents.	There	are	expansive	soils	in	the	area	
that	can	cause	problems	with	foundations.	The	city	has	been	able	to	address	this	issue	
through	recommending	certain	building	practices	where	these	soils	exist.		

Future	Development	Trends	

From	2006‐2012	growth	has	been	largely	flat,	for	the	entire	decade	population	growth	in	
Avenal	averaged	about	1.9	percent	per	year.	Growth	has	been	slow	but	steady.	One	area	of	
development	is	located	south	of	the	city,	where	there	is	often	some	flooding	during	wet	
periods.	While	this	area	is	not	in	the	mapped	in	the	flood	hazard	area,	the	city	is	requiring	
developers	to	address	potential	flood	problems	through	enforcing	the	Flood	Damage	
Prevention	Ordinance.		



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	8	

City	of	Avenal—Change	in	Population	and	Housing	Units,	2000‐2010	

2000	
Population	

2010	
Population	

Percent	
Change	

2000	
Housing	
Units	

2010	Housing	
Units	

Percent	
Change	

14,674	 15,505	 10.4%	 2,061	 2,251	 9.2%	
 

CAPABILITY	ASSESSMENT	

Capabilities	are	the	programs	and	polices	currently	in	use	to	reduce	hazard	impacts	or	that	
could	be	used	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities.	The	assessment	is	divided	into	five	
sections:	regulatory,	administrative	and	technical,	fiscal,	outreach	and	partnerships,	and	
other	mitigation	efforts.	

Regulatory	Capability	

The	Table	below	lists	planning	and	land	management	tools	typically	used	by	local	
jurisdictions	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities	and	indicates	those	that	are	in	place	
in	Avenal.		

City	of	Avenal—Regulatory	and	Planning	Capabilities	

Regulatory	Tool		 Yes/No	 Comments	
General	plan	 Yes Adopted	August	11,	2005
Zoning	ordinance	 Yes
Subdivision	ordinance	 Yes
Site	plan	review	requirements	 Yes
Growth	management	ordinance	 No
Floodplain	ordinance	 Yes Flood	Damage	Prevention	Ordinance	1995
Other	special	purpose	ordinance	
(stormwater,	steep	slope,	
wildfire)	

No Water	Conservation	Ordinance	

Building	code	 Yes Version:	Uniform	Building	Code	1998	
Fire	department	ISO	rating	 Yes Rating:	4.	Kings	County	Fire	Department	
Erosion	or	sediment	control	
program	

No

Stormwater	management	
program	

Yes	 Stormwater	Pollution	Prevention	Plan		

Capital	improvements	plan	 Yes Minimal	capital	improvements	funding	for	small	
projects	

Economic	development	plan	 No
Local	emergency	operations	plan	 Yes 2008,	will	be	updated	in	2013	

 

Avenal	General	Plan,	2005		–	The	city’s	general	plan	was	updated	in	2005,	including	the	
safety	element.	The	Safety	Element	establishes	objectives	and	policies	and	standards	to	



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	9	

ensure	that	there	is	an	adequate,	coordinated,	and	expedient	response	to	public	safety	
concerns.	It	addresses	emergencies,	fire	protection,	flooding,	and	public	safety.  

Flood	Damage	Prevention	Ordinance,	1995	‐	The	flood	damage	prevention	ordinance	
adopted	in	1995	establishes	areas	of	special	flood	hazard	identified	by	FEMA	in	the	1988	
flood	insurance	rate	map	(FIRM)	and	flood	insurance	study.	However,	FEMA	completed	an	
updated	FIRM	and	flood	insurance	map	in	2000.	New	digital	FIRMs	(DFIRMs)	for	all	of	
Kings	County	are	completed.	

Administrative	and	Technical	Capability	

The	table	that	follows	identifies	the	personnel	resources	responsible	for	activities	related	to	
mitigation	and	loss	prevention	in	Avenal.	A	summary	of	technical	resources	follows.	

City	of	Avenal—Personnel	Capabilities	

Personnel	Resources	 Department/Position	
Planner/Engineer	with	knowledge	of	land	
development/land	management	practices	

Community	Development	Director	

Engineer/Professional	trained	in	construction	
practices	related	to	buildings	and/or	
infrastructure	

City	Engineer

Full	time	building	official	 Building	Department/	Public	Works	Director	is	
also	Building	Official/Code	Enforcement	Officer	

Floodplain	Manager	 Community	Development	Director	
Emergency	Manager	 Police	Chief
Grant	writer	 Community	Development	Director	
Other	 Public	Works	Department/One	position	is	50	

percent	water	conservation	officer	and	50	
percent	code	enforcement	

 

Avenal	does	not	have	GIS	capabilities	within	in	the	city	staff.	However,	the	city	contracts	
with	the	Kings	County	Planning	Agency	to	receive	assistance	with	geographic	data	needs	
and	mapping.		

Fiscal	Capability	

The	following	table	identifies	financial	tools	or	resources	that	the	city	could	potentially	use	
to	help	fund	mitigation	activities.	There	are	currently	no	specific	funding	sources	for	hazard	
mitigation.	



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	10	

City	of	Avenal—Available	Financial	Tools	and	Resources	

Financial	Resources	
Accessible/
Eligible	to	Use		 Comments	

Community	Development	Block	Grants Yes
Capital	improvements	project	funding No Special	approval	by	the	City	

Council	in	an	emergency	
Authority	to	levy	taxes	for	specific	purposes No
Fees	for	water,	sewer,	gas,	or	electric	
services	

No

Impact	fees	for	new	development	 No
Incur	debt	through	general	obligation	bonds No
Incur	debt	through	special	tax	bonds No
Incur	debt	through	private	activities No
Withhold	spending	in	hazard	prone	areas No

 

Outreach	and	Partnerships	

Avenal	is	a	member	of	the	California	Rural	Water	Association,	an	affiliate	of	the	National	
Rural	Water	Association,	a	non‐profit	organization	of	rural	water	and	wastewater	systems	
that	provides	training,	technical	assistance,	and	representation	to	public	water	and	
wastewater	utilities.	The	city	also	supports	the	Kings	County	Water	Education	Commission,	
which	provides	water	education	programs	for	schools.	The	city	provides	information	on	
overheating	and	safety	to	city	workers	as	required	by	their	risk	management	insurance.	The	
Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	does	all‐hazards	public	outreach	and	
education	for	the	public.	

Other	Mitigation	Efforts	

Avenal	has	an	ongoing	inspection	program	for	the	city’s	water	lines	for	early	detection	and	
prevention	of	problems	due	to	slope	failure	and	other	damage	to	lines.	Other	mitigation	
projects	have	reduced	the	vulnerability	of	the	water	system	to	seismic	events	and	flooding,	
such	as	the	following:	

 Installed	check	valve	at	pipeline	failure	valve	at	Tank	No.	3	site.	

 Replaced	valve	and	installed	seismic	deflection	joint	at	Tank	No.	4	site.	

 Reinforced	slopes	in	area	around	12‐inch	and	18‐inch	water	main	lines	located	
along	Old	Skyline	Road.	

 Avenal	is	currently	working	on	ensuring	a	constant	flow	of	water	into	the	
community;	this	project	should	be	completed	in	July	of	2013.	

GOALS	AND	OBJECTIVES	

The	City	of	Avenal	adopts	the	hazard	mitigation	goals	and	objectives	developed	by	the	
Planning	Team	in	Element	C.		



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	11	

MITIGATION	ACTIONS	

The	Planning	Team	for	the	City	of	Avenal	identified	and	prioritized	the	following	mitigation	
actions	based	on	the	risk	assessment.	Background	information	as	well	as	information	on	
how	the	action	will	be	implemented	and	administered,	such	as	ideas	for	implementation,	
responsible	office,	partners,	potential	funding,	estimated	cost,	and	timeline	also	are	
described.		



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	12	

2012	MITIGTION	ACTIONS			

Mitigation	Action:	Avenal	#1—Housing	Rehabilitation	Program	

Current	Status:		This	project	will	be	carried	over	from	2007	as	it	is	not	complete	and	
ongoing.	

Action:	
	

Continue	and	enhance	housing	rehabilitation	program.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Avenal	

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Avenal	has	many	homes	that	are	old	and	have	health	and	safety	
issues	and	are	not	earthquake	safe.	The	city	has	received	funding	
from	Community	Development	Block	Grants,	HOME,	and	Cal	Home	
Program	to	rehabilitate	homes.	Most	homes	are	torn	down	and	
reconstructed	to	current	codes.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Avenal	Department	of	Community	Development	

Partners:	
	

	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Community	Development	Block	Grants,	HOME,	and	Cal	Home
Program	grants	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

In	the	past,	the	city	has	spent	approximately	$1.5	million	each	year.

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Serves	multiple	objectives.	Reduces	risk	to	people	and	property	from	
earthquakes	and	replaces	substandard	housing	conditions.	

Timeline:	
	

Ongoing

Completed	by:	
	

Department	of	Community	Development,	Director	

 



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	13	

Mitigation	Action:	City	of	Avenal	Project	#2—Emergency	Power	System	for	the	
Emergency	Operations	Center	at	the	Ken	Brown	Public	Safety	Center.	

	
Action:	
	

Purchase,	Install,	test	and	utilize	a	200	KW	Propane/Natural	Gas	
powered	emergency	Generator	system	for	the	Emergency	Operations	
Center.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Avenal

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	City	of	Avenal	Public	safety	Center	has	limited	emergency	power	
for	its	dispatch	center.		This	project	would	expand	that	power	system	
to	power	the	EOC	and	the	EMS	administrative	offices.	The	Public	
safety	Center	is	responsible	for	the	day	management	of	emergency	
dispatch	for	all	the	City’s	public	safety	agencies	as	well	as	the	day‐to‐
day	coordination	of	fire,	law	and	EMS	mutual	aid.		During	a	disaster	
the	Centers	role	expands	to	serve	as	the	Emergency	Operations	
Center	(EOC).		As	such	it	is	responsible	for	coordinating	information	
and	resources	for	City	as	well	as	serving	as	a	node	of	the	operational	
area’s	mutual	aid	system.		It	currently	has	no	emergency	power,	
which	means	that	a	power	outage	no	matter	what	the	source	greatly	
inhibits	the	EOC	and	EMS	agency’s	ability	to	perform	either	its	day‐to‐
day	mission	or	its	functions	during	a	natural	disaster.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	the	City’s	
normal	budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	implemented	
either	as	a	grant	project,	a	project	under	the	homeland	security	grant	
programs	or	as	a	local	fund	raising	effort.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Avenal	OES/Police	Department

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
potentially	the	EOC	Grant	Program	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$350,000	for	the	complete	200KW	system	including	generator,	fuel	
tanks,	automatic	transfer	switches,	pad	and	labor	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Emergency	power	system	will	ensure	the	EOC	can	stay	on	line	
independent	of	commercial	power.		This	will	allow	them	to	continue	
their	lifesaving	mission	of	resource	dispatch	and	control	during	any	
disaster	that	disrupts	local	commercial	power,	brownouts	or	rolling	
blackouts.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014.	

Completed	by:	 Avenal	OES/Police	Department
 



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	14	

Mitigation	Action:	Avenal	#3—Vulnerability	of	Water	Distribution	System	

Current	Status:		This	project	will	be	carried	over	from	2007	as	it	is	not	complete	and	
ongoing.	

Action:	
	

Reduce	vulnerability	of	water	distribution	system	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Avenal	

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

There	are	two	water	transmission	lines	that	supply	water	to	the	city	
and	Avenal	State	Prison	(one	18‐inch	line	and	one	12‐inch	line).	In	
the	past,	the	city	has	encountered	water	leaks	and	movement	due	to	
earthquakes	that	lead	to	slope	failure.	The	water	leaks	are	due	to	
aging	of	the	main	lines.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	

Continue	to	search	for	funding	to	replace	the	12‐inch	main	line	which	
is	at	least	38	years	old.	Engineer	and	replace	existing	valves	at	tank	
sites	with	earthquake	valves	to	protect	the	water	supply.	Continue	to	
monitor	both	the	existing	lines	and	document	critical	areas.		

Responsible	Office:	
	

Avenal	Public	Works	Department

Partners:	
	

	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
and	other	state	and	federal	loan	and	grant	programs	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

For	12‐inch	line,	$1	million	per	mile	for	7	miles	total.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Improves	availability	of	water	supply	for	residents	and	businesses	
during	emergencies	and	helps	ensure	against	property	losses	due	to	
fires.		

Timeline:	
	

Ongoing;	replace	12‐inch	line	within	five	to	seven	years	

Completed	by:	
	

Department	of	Community	Development,	Director	

 



City	of	Avenal	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	15	

Mitigation	Action:	Avenal	#4—Loss	Reduction	Program	for	URM	Buildings	

Current	Status:		This	project	will	be	carried	over	from	2007	as	it	was	not	completed	
due	to	lack	of	staffing	resources	and	internal	funding	to	carry	out	the	project.	

Action:	
	

Establish	a	loss	reduction	program	for	unreinforced	masonry	(URM)	
buildings	in	compliance	with	the	California	URM	Law	of	1986.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Avenal	

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Most	unreinforced	masonry	(URM)	buildings	possess	features	that	
can	threaten	lives	during	earthquakes.	In	response	to	the	danger	
posed	by	the	great	number	of	potentially	hazardous	buildings	in	
California,	in	1986	the	state	legislature	enacted	the	unreinforced	
masonry	building	law	(Chapter	250,	Statutes	of	1986:	SF547	
[Alquist];	Government	Code	Section	8875	et	seq.),	commonly	known	
as	the	"URM	Law.”	The	law	is	aimed	at	mitigating	the	hazards	posed	
by	URMs	and	applies	to	all	jurisdictions	in	California's	Seismic	Hazard	
Zone	4,	the	region	of	highest	earthquake	activity	in	the	nation,	in	
which	Avenal	is	located.		
	
Current	city	staff	members	estimate	that	there	are	five	to	eight	URM	
buildings	in	Avenal.	According	to	the	2006	Status	of	the	Unreinforced	
Masonry	Building	Report	of	the	California	Seismic	Safety	Commission,	
Avenal	has	not	reported	a	loss	reduction	program	for	URM	buildings.		

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	

Seek	approval	from	the	City	Council	for	developing	and	implementing	
a	loss	reduction	program	to	comply	with	the	URM	Law.	Inventory	
existing	URM	buildings	in	the	city.	Develop	a	loss	reduction	program,	
such	as	one	of	the	types	described	in	the	2006	Status	of	the	
Unreinforced	Masonry	Building	Report.	This	may	include	letters	to	
owners	of	URM	buildings,	signage	on	the	front	of	URM	buildings	
notifying	the	public	of	the	earthquake	hazard,	or	other	types	of	
measures.	The	city	will	report	its	program	and	future	progress	to	the	
California	Seismic	Safety	Commission.		

Responsible	Office:	 Avenal	City	Manager
Partners:	
	

California	Seismic	Safety	Commission,	Avenal	City	Council,	Avenal	
Department	of	Public	Works	

Potential	Funding:	
	

In‐kind,	Avenal	General	Fund

Cost	Estimate:	 Staff	time
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Increase	awareness	of	the	public	and	owners	of	URM	buildings	about	
potentially	hazardous	buildings.	Reduce	future	losses	in	earthquake	
events.		

Timeline:	 Six	months
Completed	by:	
	

City	of	Avenal,	City	Manager

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	1	
 

CITY	OF	CORCORAN	
Community	Profile	
In	the	City	of	Corcoran,	the	Council	acts	as	the	governing	body	of	the	
City,	with	all	regulatory	and	corporate	powers	of	a	municipal	
corporation	provided	under	California	State	Law.	The	Council	is	
comprised	of	five	members.	Council	members	are	elected	from	the	
community	at	large	to	serve	four‐year	staggered	terms.	Every	two	

years	elections	are	held,	with	not	more	than	three	Council	positions	up	for	election.	
 
Geography	and	Climate	
Corcoran	is	located	near	the	center	of	Kings	County	and	encompasses	approximately	six	
square	miles.	The	elevation	of	the	city	is	207	feet	above	mean	sea	level	and	the	topography	
is	generally	flat.	The	town	is	located	on	the	northeast	edge	of	the	Tulare	Lakebed,	and	Cross	
Creek	is	located	to	the	west	of	town.	The	average	high	temperature	in	winter	is	50°F	and	in	
summer	is	98°F.	

History	
The	city	of	Corcoran	was	developed	by	H.J.	Whitley,	a	prominent	land	developer	from	
Southern	California,	who	traveled	to	the	area	in	1905	and	purchased	32,000	acres	of	land.	
The	city’s	main	street,	Whitley	Avenue,	is	named	after	him.	In	subsequent	years,	Corcoran	
grew	rapidly	with	the	rise	of	the	cotton	industry,	attracting	workers	to	its	booming	
agricultural	industry.	The	town	was	incorporated	in	1913.	The	mechanization	of	cotton	
planting	and	harvesting	caused	a	significant	loss	of	jobs,	residents,	and	economic	vitality	in	
Corcoran.	The	city	remains	a	center	of	agriculture	and	J.G.	Boswell	Company,	the	nation’s	
largest	cotton	producer,	operates	major	farming	operations	in	the	city.	

Economy	
Corcoran	historically	experiences	high	unemployment	like	most	cities	within	Kings	County,	
with	an	average	unemployment	rate	of	17.1%	for	all	of	2010.	Located	in	what	was	the	
Tulare	Lake	basin,	the	most	fertile	region	in	the	world,	Corcoran’s	employment	base	is	
either	directly	or	indirectly	related	to	agriculture.	Corcoran’s	labor	market	is	generally	non‐
union,	with	many	people	earning	modest	wages.	
	
The	largest	private	employers	of	local	residents	are	the	J.G.	Boswell	Company,	Camfil	Farr	
Company,	Virtus	Nutrition,	Sawtelle	&	Rosprim,	and	Mid‐State	Precast.	However,	the	largest	
employer	n	Corcoran	is	the	California	State	Prison	system,	which	includes	a	Regional	
Accounting	Office,	a	Substance	Abuse	Facility,	and	a	maximum	level	State	Prison,	
collectively	employing	approximately	3,500	individuals.	While	the	prison	system	employs	a	
good	number	of	local	residents,	the	majority	of	employees	commute	from	a	50‐mile	radius.	
	
Population	
Corcoran’s	estimated	population	in	2010	was	approximately	25,000	(including	residents	at	
the	state	prisons).	This	represents	approximately	a	15	percent	increase	over	the	population	
at	the	time	of	the	2000	U.S.	Census.	Corcoran’s	population	is	34	percent	white,	14	percent	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	2	
 

black	or	African	American,	and	46	percent	“some	other	race.”	Census	data	indicates	that	60	
percent	of	Corcoran’s	population	is	of	Hispanic	origin	(U.S.	Census	Bureau	2010).	

HAZARD	IDENTIFICATION	
Representatives	from	Corcoran	identified	hazards	that	affect	the	city	and	developed	hazard	
profiles	based	upon	the	countywide	risk	assessment	and	past	events	and	their	impacts.	
Definitions	for	the	rankings	used	can	be	found	in	Element	B.	

City	of	Corcoran—Hazard	Profiles	

Hazard	
Probability	of	
Occurrence	

Potential	
Magnitude/
Geographic	
Extent	

Significance	

Dam	Failure		 Unlikely Critical	 Low
Drought	 Occasional Critical High
Earthquake	 Occasional Critical High
Extreme	Heat Highly	Likely Limited	 Medium	
Flood	 Likely Critical High
Fog	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Freeze	 Likely Limited Low
Landslide	 Unlikely Negligible Low
Soil	Hazards:	
Expansive,	
Liquefaction,	Erosion	

Occasional Limited Low

Tornado	 Occasional Limited Low
Wildfire	 Unlikely Negligible Low

	

Vulnerability	Assessment	
The	vulnerability	assessment	analyzes	the	population,	property,	and	other	assets	at	risk	to	
natural	hazards.	This	section	lists	Corcoran’s	assets	at	risk	to	natural	hazards,	including	
critical	facilities	and	infrastructure;	historic,	cultural,	and	natural	resources;	and	economic	
assets.	It	discusses	the	impacts	that	occurred	in	past	events	and	vulnerability	to	specific	
hazards	ranked	of	medium	to	high	significance.		

Asset	Inventory	
The	table	that	follows	lists	the	critical	facilities	and	other	community	assets	identified	by	
Corcoran’s	planning	team	as	important	to	protect	in	the	event	of	a	disaster.		



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	3	
 

City	of	Corcoran—Critical	Facilities	and	other	Community	Assets		

Facility	 Replacement	Value	 Occupancy/Capacity
City	Hall/Police	Department	 2.8/8.0	mil	 15/12	
Kings	County	Fire	Station		 2.5	 4	
Corcoran	District	Hospital	 40mil	 120	
Wastewater	treatment	plant	 18	mil	 1.75	MGD	/	2.0MGD	
Wastewater	distribution	system	
(16	sewer	lift	stations	and	18	miles	
of	transmission	lines)	

42	mil	 ?	

Water	wells	
9	

12	to	24	MGD	
depending	on	the	
time	of	the	year	

Booster	pumps	 8	– Booster	Pumps	
located	at	three	

booster	pump	stations

At	low	head	they	
should	be	able	to	
push	14‐18	MGD	

Water	Treatment	Plant	 25	mil	 21.6	MGD	
Water	storage	tanks	 7	– treated	water	

storage	tanks	
4.795	MG	

Veterans’	Hall	 1	mil	 200	
 

The	city	provides	water,	sewer,	and	storm	drainage	services.		

Potable	water	is	tapped	through	wells	controlled	by	the	Public	Works	Department.	Facilities	
include	(9)	deep	water	wells,	(1)	Water	Treatment	Plant,	(3)	Booster	Stations,	(7)	Treated	
Water	Storage	Tanks	and	approximately	(18+)	miles	of	water	transmission	lines.	

The	wastewater	treatment	plant	is	located	at	the	corner	of	Pueblo	and	Kings	Avenues.	
Treated	wastewater	effluent	is	disposed	of	on	338	acres	located	south	of	this	location.	The	
wastewater	collection	system	includes	(16)	sewer	lift	stations	and	approximately	(18	)	
miles	of	wastewater	collection	lines.		

The	storm	water	system	includes	(7)	lift	stations	and	underground	transmission	lines	for	
storm	water	flows.	It	also	uses	the	Corcoran	Irrigation	District	transmission	line/canal	
located	along	Dairy	Avenue	and	along	Sherman	Street	to	carry	storm	water	flows	to	the	
storm	water	retention	pond	located	on	Oregon	Avenue.		

The	state	prisons	in	Corcoran	cover	over	942	acres.	Corcoran’s	planning	team	discussed	the	
need	to	evaluate	the	unique	emergency	considerations	the	prison	may	pose	for	the	city	and	
to	coordinate	with	the	prison	on	their	emergency	response	plans.		The	map	on	the	following	
page	shows	the	City’s	flood	threat.	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	4	
 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	5	
 

Estimating	Potential	Losses 
The	table	below	shows	Corcoran’s	total	exposure	to	hazards	in	terms	of	population	and	the	
number	and	values	of	structures.	Kings	County	Assessor’s	data	was	used	to	calculate	the	
improved	value	of	parcels.	GIS	was	used	to	quantify	the	number	and	value	of	structures	in	
the	100‐year	(Zone	A)	and	500‐year	(X‐500)	flood	hazard	areas.		

City	of	Corcoran—Exposure	to	Hazards	

Corcoran	 Population Structures	 Value	
Total	Exposure	
(Earthquake)	 24,813 2,966 $257,957,828	

Flood:	Zone	A	 12 $721,413	
Flood	X‐500	 12 $721,413	

	

The	local	economy	in	Kings	County	and	particularly	in	Corcoran,	depends	on	the	
agricultural	industry.	Natural	hazard	events	that	may	not	significantly	threaten	life	or	
structural	property	but	that	result	in	agricultural	losses,	such	as	drought,	flooding,	and	
freezing	temperatures,	can	have	rippling	impacts	on	Corcoran’s	economy.	Agricultural	
losses	result	in	lost	jobs	in	the	field	and	local	processing	plants,	which	eventually	leads	to	
declining	sales	tax	revenue	for	the	local	government.	

Impacts	of	past	events	and	vulnerability	to	specific	hazards	are	summarized	below.		

Drought	
Corcoran	obtains	its	drinking	water	from	groundwater	sources.	Drought	events	deplete	the	
aquifer,	which	affects	water	quality	and	increases	water	treatment	costs.	Surface	water	is	
used	for	irrigation	purposes.	The	Cross	Creek	Flood	Control	District	controls	and	distributes	
these	water	rights.	When	there	is	a	shortage	of	surface	water,	agriculture	acreage	may	be	
left	fallow,	negatively	affecting	the	local	economy.	The	1987‐1992	drought	resulted	in	the	
city	adopting	the	Water	Use	and	Service	ordinance	in	1991	to	prohibit	certain	wasteful	
water	uses.	The	ordinance	is	described	further	in	the	Capability	Assessment	section	of	this	
annex.		

Earthquake	

Corcoran	is	in	Seismic	Zone	3,	where	California	does	have	certain	requirements	for	the	
seismic	building	safety	of	police	and	fire	facilities	and	hospitals.	Although	the	mapped	
seismic	hazard	is	not	as	great	as	in	other	parts	of	the	county,	Corcoran	is	located	in	areas	
where	the	soils	are	mapped	as	having	liquefaction	potential.	In	addition,	there	are	several	
unreinforced	masonry	buildings	in	downtown.	Corcoran’s	planning	team	identified	the	
hospital,	which	was	built	before	1973,	as	a	vulnerable	structure	to	an	earthquake	event.		

Extreme	Heat	

During	the	extreme	heat	event	in	summer	2006,	human	safety,	agricultural	crops,	and	
livestock	were	impacted	in	Corcoran.	There	were	four	fatalities,	of	which	most	were	elderly	
citizens.	The	cotton	yield	was	smaller	than	normal,	and	20	percent	of	the	tomato	crop	was	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	6	
 

lost.	The	extreme	heat	also	caused	death	in	livestock	and	created	a	problem	in	carcass	
disposal.	Power	outage	was	also	a	problem.	The	city	opened	cooling	centers	during	this	
event.		In	the	last	five	years,	2007	–	2012	the	city	opened	cooling	centers	for	the	population	
at	the	Veterans	Hall	to	provide	relief.	

Flood	

Corcoran	is	located	on	the	eastern	edge	of	the	Tulare	Lakebed,	which	is	mapped	in	the	100‐
year	flood	hazard	area.	Flood	vulnerability	has	been	lessened	by	structural	measures	such	
as	levees.	In	1983,	emergency	flood	protection	levees	were	constructed	along	Cross	Creek	
and	the	Tule	River	to	protect	Corcoran	from	Tulare	Lake	flooding.	In	the	emergency	
situation,	the	levees	were	not	built	to	certification	criteria.	Corcoran	is	not	located	in	the	
mapped	inundation	area	for	dam	failures.	However,	if	there	was	an	upstream	dam	failure	
that	occurred	at	a	time	when	there	was	already	flooding	in	the	lake	basin,	then	the	city	
would	be	at	risk.	No	critical	facilities	are	located	in	the	mapped	flood	hazard	areas	except	a	
corner	of	the	Corcoran	airport	and	the	east	side	of	Highway	43	near	the	JG	Boswell	airport.		

Fog	

Fog	is	primarily	a	life‐safety	concern	in	Corcoran	that	is	related	to	traffic	accidents.	Fog	
advisories	are	used	to	delay	school	and	bus	schedules.	Potential	mitigation	of	fog	hazards	
involves	better	street	lights,	traffic	lights,	and	controlled	intersections.	State	Highway	43	is	
one	problem	area,	and	solutions	will	require	working	with	the	California	Department	of	
Transportation.	The	city	recently	annexed	areas	on	the	east	side	of	Highway	43.	
Development	here	is	likely	making	the	fog‐related	traffic	problem	worse.		

Other	Hazards	

Past	freezing	events	have	caused	city‐owned	water	pipes	and	valves	to	break.	In	January	
2007	freeze	hit	local	pistachio	farmers	the	hardest.	Expansive	soils	do	exist	in	the	county	
and	there	are	construction	requirements	addressed	in	building	permits.	There	are	also	
issues	with	land	subsidence,	which	primarily	impact	water	wells	causing	them	to	buckle.	
Subsidence	also	may	affect	levees	and	canals.		

Future	Development	Trends	
Growth	is	occurring	in	the	northwest,	southeast,	and	northeast	parts	of	Corcoran,	and	the	
city	has	recently	annexed	additional	parcels	in	these	areas.	Population	has	remained	in	
Corcoran	over	the	past	several	years.	This	is	partly	due	to	the	state	prison	inmates	and	staff	
and	also	due	to	recent	annexations.		The	California	High	Speed	Rail	project	is	proposed	to	
run	through	the	city	limits	which	will	have	an	impact	on	the	city.		The	Police	Department	is	
planning	for	a	new	facility.		The	design	and	engineering	is	completed	and	the	land	pending	
funding.		This	facility	will	also	include	an	Emergency	Operations	Center.			



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	7	
 

City	of	Corcoran—Change	in	Population	and	Housing	Units,	2000‐2010	

2000	
Population	

2010	
Population	

Percent	
Change	

2000	
Housing	
Units	

2010	Housing	
Units	

Percent	
Change	

20,835	 24,813	 20.5%	 3,016	 3,958	 31.6%	

CAPABILITY	ASSESSMENT	
Capabilities	are	the	programs	and	polices	currently	in	use	to	reduce	hazard	impacts	or	that	
could	be	used	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities.	The	assessment	is	divided	into	five	
sections:	regulatory,	administrative	and	technical,	fiscal,	outreach	and	partnerships,	and	
other	mitigation	efforts.		

Regulatory	Capability	
The	table	that	follows	indicates	which	planning	and	land	management	tools	typically	used	
by	local	and	tribal	jurisdictions	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities	are	in	place	in	
Corcoran.		

City	of	Corcoran—Regulatory	and	Planning	Capabilities		

Regulatory	Tool		 Yes/No	 Comments	
General	plan	 Yes Updated	March	2007
Zoning	ordinance	 Yes
Subdivision	ordinance	 Yes Includes	development	fees	
Site	plan	review	requirements	
Growth	management	ordinance	 No City	does	restrict	densities	in	certain	areas
Floodplain	ordinance	 Yes Floodplain	Management	Regulations,	1997
Other	special	purpose	ordinance	
(storm	water,	steep	slope,	wildfire)	

Yes Water	Use	and	Service,	1991	
Resource	Conservation	and	Open	Space	District

Building	code	 Yes Version:	2001	Uniform	Building	Code	
California	

Fire	department	ISO	rating	 Rating: 4	Kings	County	Fire	Department
Erosion	or	sediment	control	
program	
Storm	water	management	program	 Yes 2006	Revised	Master	Plan.	Stormwater	

drainage	charges	for	new	development	
Capital	improvements	plan	 Yes Five‐year	capital	improvements	plan	
Economic	development	plan	 Yes
Local	emergency	operations	plan	 Yes Plan	is	proposed	to	be	updated	in	2013
	

Corcoran	General	Plan,	2007	–	The	updated	general	plan	was	referenced	for	this	planning	
process.	It	is	incorporated	into	the	hazard	mitigation	plan.		The	city	has	updated	the	safety	
element	of	the	general	plan	with	information	from	the	2007	planning	process.		



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	8	
 

Floodplain	Management	Regulations,	1997	–	This	ordinance	designates	requirements	for	
proposed	building	in	flood‐prone	areas	within	the	city.	FEMA	has	developed	new	digital	
FIRMs	(DFIRMs)	for	all	of	Kings	County.	

Water	Use	and	Service	Ordinance,	1991	–	This	ordinance	prohibits	certain	wasteful	
water	uses	and	designates	three	water	conservation	stages,	which	are	implemented	by	the	
city	manager	based	upon	the	recommendations	of	the	public	works	department.		

Corcoran	Planning	Commission	–	The	commission	is	comprised	of	seven	citizen	members	
appointed	by	City	Council.	The	commission	reviews	and	approves	proposals	or	makes	
recommendations	to	the	City	Council.		

Corcoran	is	currently	developing	an	emergency	operations	plan	in	coordination	with	Kings	
County,	which	is	expected	to	be	completed	in	2013.	Other	city	plans	include	a	capital	
improvements	plan,	sewer	master	plan,	water	treatment	master	plan,	parks	plan,	
downtown	plan,	and	façade	program.		

Administrative	and	Technical	Capability	
The	table	below	identifies	the	city	personnel	responsible	for	activities	related	to	mitigation	
and	loss	prevention	in	Corcoran.	A	summary	of	technical	resources	follows.	

City	of	Corcoran—Administrative	and	Technical	Capabilities		

Personnel	Resources	 Department/Position	
Planner/Engineer	with	knowledge	of	land	
development/land	management	practices	

Community	Development	Department/Director

Engineer/Professional	trained	in	construction	
practices	related	to	buildings	and/or	
infrastructure	

Public	Works	Department/Director	

Full	time	building	official	 Community	Development	Department.	One	
building	official	and	one	code	enforcement	
officer.	

Floodplain	administrator	 The	City	Manager	is	appointed	the	floodplain	
administrator	by	ordinance	

Emergency	manager	 The	Police	Chief	is	appointed	the	emergency	
manager	by	ordinance	

Grant	writer	 Community	Development	Department	or	
contractor	

GIS	technician	 County	Contract	with	Kings	County	
	

Corcoran	contracts	with	the	Kings	County	Planning	Agency	for	GIS	data	and	technical	
assistance.	The	city	has	in	place	the	Connect	CTY	system.	This	service	is	a	fully	managed	
application	service	provider	that	allows	municipalities	to	deploy	a	time‐based	emergency	
notification	system	to	citizens.			Similar	to	a	Reverse	911	except	that	it	is	internet	based	
rather	than	through	analog	phone	lines.	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	9	
 

Fiscal	Capability	
The	following	table	identifies	financial	tools	or	resources	that	the	city	could	potentially	use	
to	help	fund	mitigation	activities.	There	are	currently	no	specific	funding	sources	for	hazard	
mitigation.	

City	of	Corcoran	—Available	Financial	Resources	

Financial	Resources	 Accessible/
Eligible	to	Use		

Comments	

Community	Development	Block	Grants Yes
Capital	improvements	project	funding Yes Impact	fees	
Authority	to	levy	taxes	for	specific	purposes Yes
Fees	for	water,	sewer,	gas,	or	electric	
services	

Yes Water,	sewer,	storm	drainage

Impact	fees	for	new	development	 Yes
Incur	debt	through	general	obligation	bonds Yes
Incur	debt	through	special	tax	bonds Yes
Incur	debt	through	private	activities No
Withhold	spending	in	hazard	prone	areas No

 

Outreach	and	Partnerships	
Corcoran	participates	in	the	“Are	You	Okay?”	program	administered	by	the	Kings	County	
Sheriff’s	Office.	The	program	is	a	free	computerized	telephone	system	used	to	check	on	
senior	citizens	or	disabled/homebound	individuals.		

Summary	of	Key	Issues	And	Risk	
Corcoran’s	risk	assessment	revealed	problem	areas	to	be	addressed	in	the	mitigation	
strategy.	These	include	the	following:	

 Drought	events	deplete	the	aquifer	from	which	Corcoran	obtains	its	groundwater,	
which	affects	water	quality	and	increases	water	treatment	costs.	Drought	also	
impacts	the	local	agricultural	economy.	

 Earthquake	hazard	risk	in	Corcoran	is	moderate	but	soils	have	liquefaction	
potential,	which	may	amplify	the	effects	of	ground	shaking.		

 The	hospital	and	fire	department,	as	well	as	several	unreinforced	masonry	buildings	
located	in	downtown,	have	been	identified	as	vulnerable	in	an	earthquake	event.		

 Tule	fogs	during	the	winter	season	create	dangerous	conditions	at	traffic	
intersections	and	along	State	Highway	43.	

 Extreme	heat	events	are	highly	likely	to	continue	in	the	future	and	are	dangerous	to	
humans,	particularly	the	elderly,	and	to	livestock.	

 Corcoran	is	located	on	the	eastern	edge	of	the	Tulare	Lake	basin	and	is	protected	by	
levees	from	periodic	flooding.	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	10	
 

 Corcoran	continues	to	experience	steady	growth,	which	increases	its	vulnerability	to	
hazards,	including	earthquakes,	flooding,	and	drought.	

GOALS	AND	OBJECTIVES	
The	city	of	Corcoran	adopts	the	hazard	mitigation	goals	and	objectives	developed	by	the	
Planning	Team	and	described	in	Element	C.		

MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
The	planning	team	for	the	city	of	Corcoran	identified	and	prioritized	the	following	
mitigation	actions	based	on	the	risk	assessment.	Background	information	as	well	as	
information	on	how	the	action	will	be	implemented	and	administered,	such	as	ideas	for	
implementation,	responsible	office,	partners,	potential	funding,	estimated	cost,	and	timeline	
also	are	described.		



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	11	
 

2012	Mitigations	Actions	
Mitigation	Action:	Corcoran	#1—Veterans’	Memorial	Building	
Current	Status:		Carry	over	from	2007	Plan	

Action:	
	

Expand	the	Veterans’	Memorial	Building	and	designate	it	as	an	
emergency	shelter.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Corcoran
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Currently,	the	Veterans’	Memorial	Building	has	a	capacity	of	200	
people.	This	is	the	only	public	hall	located	in	Corcoran	outside	of	the	
YMCA	and	the	seniors’	centers.	This	is	an	ideal	site	to	operate	a	
facility	for	people	to	come	to	cool	off	during	extreme	heat	events	and	
for	other	disaster‐related	needs	due	to	its	location	adjacent	to	the	
Corcoran	Hospital.	We	feel	we	would	need	to	have	the	capacity	to	
handle	at	least	400	people	and	more,	if	possible.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

Our	proposal	is	to	expand	the	hall	north	toward	Hannah	and	the	
Corcoran	District	Hospital	adding	additional	room	for	any	and	all	
public	functions	and	needs.	

Responsible	Office:	 Corcoran	Public	Works	Department
Partners:	 State	of	California,	various	veterans’	groups
Potential	Funding:	 HMPG,	PDM,	other	grant	sources	from	state	or	veterans’	groups
Cost	Estimate:	 $1,000,000
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Reduce	health	impacts	during	extreme	heat	events	by	providing	a	
cooling	station	adjacent	to	the	hospital.	Improve	response	and	
preparedness	for	emergency	events	by	developing	an	emergency	
shelter	in	the	center	of	town.	This	is	a	multi‐objective	project	that	will	
provide	a	public	building	to	serve	other	community	needs	as	well.	

Timeline:	 End	of	2015
Completed	by:	 Public	Works	Department,	Director
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		The	need to	keep	this	project	and	carry	over	

from	the	2007	planning	process	was	identified	during	the	project	
review	workshop	held	with	the	city	on	October	25th.	

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	12	
 

Mitigation	Action:	City	of	Corcoran	#2—Assessment	of	the	Impact	of	the	High	Speed	
Rail	Project	Critical	Infrastructure	
	

Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	infrastructure	and	lifeline	utilities,	
including	access	and	egress	routes	to	the	construction	of	an	elevated	
high	speed	rail	route	on	the	western	side	of	Corcoran.		Identify	and	
prioritize	projects	for	multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Corcoran
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Cities	and	community	service	districts	within	the	county	are	
responsible	for	providing	necessary	daily	services	such	as	water,	
sewer,	and	storm	drainage	to	residents.	The	creation	of	a	28	mile	long	
high	speed	rail	corridor	with	a	minimum	above	grade	track	elevation	
of	10	feet	greatly	complicates	many	of	these	issues.		The	lack	of	on	
grade	crossings	canalizes	traffic	to	a	limited	number	of	overpasses,	
complicating	evacuation,	emergency	response	and	potentially	
prisoner	transport	or	relocation	in	times	of	disaster.		The	impact	of	
this	corridor	on	flooding,	traffic,	evacuation	and	urban	growth	are	
poorly	understood	at	best.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Incorporate	an	assessment	of	the	high	speed	rail	infrastructure	into	
the	state	mandated	EIR	for	the	high	speed	rail	project.		This	
assessment	can	also	then	be	incorporated	into	the	city’s	community	
planning	efforts	to	identify	and	prioritize	needed	infrastructure	
improvements	or	enhancements	to	reduce	the	vulnerability	of	crucial	
infrastructure	from	natural	hazard	risk	exasperated	by	this	major	
public	works	project.	

Responsible	Office:	 Kings	County	and	Corcoran	Community	Development	Agencies
Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency,	Community	Service	
Districts	and	Public	Utility	District.	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund	for	community	planning	efforts	and	
LAFCO	funds	for	preparation	of	state	mandated	EIRs.		

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$30,000	to	$100,000	for	each	of	the	unincorporated	and	incorporated	
communities	along	the	rail	corridor.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

By	identifying	the	potentially	negative impacts	of	this	massive	public	
works	project	more	effective	and	realistic	emergency	plans	and	
planning	can	be	accomplished	to	minimize	these	impacts.		Identifying	
the	impacts	to	transportation,	access	and	egress,	resource	
mobilization	and	movement,	confusion	and	delays	can	be	avoided	
during	major	response	activities,	especially	during	major	natural	
disasters.	

Timeline:	
	

Completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014	to	coincide	with	the	
estimated	beginning	of	construction	on	the	HSR	system.	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		The	need	for	this	project	was	identified	
during	the	project	review	workshop	held	with	the	city	on	October	
25th,	based	on	the	county	response	to	the	30,000	pages	of	
environmental	review	documents	they	had	to	comment	upon	on	
this	project.	

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	13	
 

Mitigation	Action:	City	of	Corcoran	#3—Emergency	Power	System	for	the	Veteran’s	
Hall	shelter	site.	
	

Action:	
	

Purchase,	Install,	test	and	utilize	a	200	KW	Diesel	powered	
emergency	Generator	system	for	the	Veteran’s	Hall	Shelter	Site,	
which	would	provide	emergency	shelter,	cooling,	medical	device	
power	and	recharging,	refrigeration	for	critical	medications,	and	life	
safety	for	residents	and	vulnerable	populations	during	heat	
emergencies,	disasters	and	other	interruptions	of	commercial	power.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Corcoran
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	City	of	Corcoran	has	experienced	almost	annual	heat	
emergencies.		These	emergencies	tend	to	correspond	to	mandatory	
reductions	in	power	consumption,	rolling	blackouts	or	commercial	
power	system	failures.		The	city	has	a	large	senior	and	special	needs	
population	which	are	dependent	on	power	for	refrigeration	of	
medications,	cooling	and	food	preparation.		The	Veterans	Center	has	
served	as	the	primary	shelter	site	for	the	city.	It	currently	has	no	
emergency	power,	which	means	that	a	power	outage	no	matter	what	
the	source	can	place	this	special	needs	population	at	risk.		Emergency	
power	would	provide	heating	and	cooling	for	the	sheltered	
population,	power	to	maintain	medical	devices,	refrigeration	and	
meal	preparation	for	this	population.	Emergency	power	enables	the	
Veteran’s	center	to	maintain	its	functions	during	a	natural	disaster.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	the	City’s	
normal	budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	implemented	
either	as	a	grant	project,	a	project	under	the	homeland	security	grant	
programs	or	as	a	local	fund	raising	effort.	

Responsible	Office:	 OES	and	Public	Works
	

Partners:	 Kings	County	OEM	
Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
potentially	tribal	gaming	revenues.	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$350,000	for	the	complete	200KW	system	including	generator,	fuel	
tanks,	automatic	transfer	switches,	pad	and	labor.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Emergency power	system	will	ensure	the	Veteran’s	Center	can	stay	
on	line	independent	of	commercial	power.		This	will	allow	them	to	
continue	their	mission	of	sheltering	and	caring	for	the	senior	
population	and	special	needs	population	within	the	city.		It	also	
creates	a	community	resource	in	the	event	of	a	disaster	that	can	
shelter	additional	people,	provide	a	clinic	site	for	casualty	collection	
and	treatment,	and	provide	a	resource	to	assist	in	disaster	food	
service	and	population	protection.		The	ability	to	maintain	the	HVAC	
systems	by	generator	will	allow	the	center	to	be	used	annually	during	
heat	waves	despite	limitations	of	the	commercial	power	grid.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014	to	correspond	
with	the	completion	of	the	new	Hazard	Mitigation	and	Emergency	
Plans.	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	14	
 

Mitigation	Action:	City	of	Corcoran	#4—Construct	new	integrated	Public	Safety	
Building	
	

Action:	
	

Construct	the	$12,000,000	public	safety	center	in	accordance	with	
approved	plans	on	the	site	procured	by	the	City	for	the	project.		

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Corcoran
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	City’s	Police,	Fire,	EMS	and	communications	agencies	and	
departments	are	scattered	in	several	buildings,	with	inadequate	
space	and	resources	to	effectively	coordinate	operations	on	a	daily	
basis	and	during	a	disaster.		In	recognition	of	this	situation	the	City	
has	completed	plans	for	an	integrated	public	safety	center	adequate	
to	meet	present	and	anticipated	requirements	for	the	life	of	the	
center.		The	City	has	identified	and	procured	sufficient	land	to	
construct	the	center.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Due	to	the	current	identified	needs	versus	the	current	economic	
reality,	the	city	lacks	the	where‐with‐all	to	construct	the	center	
without	assistance.		The	critical	location	of	this	facility	near	several	
large	prisons,	east	of	the	divisive	rail	corridor	from	the	bulk	of	the	
county	and	in	a	community	at	significant	risk	make	this	a	very	high	
priority	project.		The	size	of	the	center	would	allow	sub‐station	
activity	and	an	area	command	activity	to	be	conducted	for	both	the	
city	and	the	eastern	portion	of	King’s	County.	

Responsible	Office:	 City	of	Corcoran	Public	Works and	Police	Department	
Partners:	 Kings	County	OEM,	Fire	and	Sheriff’s	Office.
Potential	Funding:	
	

General	Fund, HMP	Grants,	EOC	Grant	Program,	Partnership	with	
State,	county	and	Transportation	Agencies.		

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$12‐15	Million	due	to	increases	in	cost	due	to	delays	in	beginning	
construction.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Integrating	key	response	agencies,	the	PSAP	and	EOC	functions	into	
one	modern,	disaster	resistant	site	are	obvious.		Greatly	improves	
daily	and	disaster	emergency	coordination,	resources	management	
and	response.	

Timeline:	 Completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014	dependent	on	funding.
Remarks:	 A	shovel	ready	project	since	the	planning	process	has	been	

completed.	
 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	15	
 

2007	Mitigation	Actions	
Mitigation	Action:	Corcoran	#2—Assessment	of	Critical	Facilities	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	facilities,	including	police/fire	stations,	
hospitals,	schools,	and	others,	to	identify	and	prioritize	projects	for	
multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Corcoran
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	

In	the	case	of	a	natural	or	manmade	disaster,	we	need	to	ensure	that	
our	critical	facilities	will	remain	operational	or	quickly	recover	from	
the	event	and	comply	with	all	state	and	federal	regulations.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Obtain	funds	for	structural	engineering	inspections	of	critical	
structures	within	the	city.	Public	schools	and	hospitals	must	comply	
with	all	federal	and	state	regulations	regarding	design	loads	and	
seismic	load	designs.	Once	inspections	are	completed,	needed	
projects	can	be	identified	and	prioritized	for	funding	and	
implementation.	

Responsible	Office:	 Corcoran	Building	Department
Partners:	 Public	schools,	hospitals,	private	engineering	companies	
Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
other	U.S.	Department	of	Homeland	Security	grants	

Cost	Estimate:	 Unknown
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Improved	structural	stability	of	our	critical	care	facilities,	fire/police	
facilities,	and	schools,	which	are	critical	to	our	ability	to	provide	
emergency	medical	and	other	services	to	the	citizens	of	our	
community	and	to	protect	our	children.	

Timeline:	 Three	to	five	years
Completed	by:	 Kevin	Tromborg,	Building	Department,	Building	Official	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdiction	subject	to	this	plan.		The	work	was	
completed	in	2007‐2008	as	part	and	parcel	of	the	Safety	Element	
and	municipal	service	review	updates.	The	methodology	involved	
was	to	execute	comprehensive	service	capacity	surveys	for	the	
cities	and	special	districts	
	

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	16	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Corcoran	#3—Assessment	of	Lifeline	Utilities	
Current	Status:		not	completed,	continued	to	2012	projects.	

Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	lifeline	utilities,	including	water	distribution	
systems,	to	identify	and	prioritize	projects	for	multi‐hazard	risk	
reduction.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Corcoran

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

All	of	these	systems	are	set	up	and	evaluated	for	safe	delivery	of	
water	and	removal	of	wastewater	with	the	quality	of	the	water	and	
integrity	of	the	wastewater	stream	being	paramount.	An	assessment	
of	the	risks	due	to	hazard	events	has	not	been	done	and	would	be	
beneficial	and	an	asset	to	the	City	of	Corcoran.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	water	treatment,	distribution,	wastewater	treatment	and	
collection	system	should	be	evaluated	and	reviewed	by	professionals	
who	are	familiar	with	the	impacts	of	hazard	events	and	who	can	
make	recommendations	as	to	how	to	mitigate	these	risks.	Once	the	
evaluation	is	completed,	the	city	can	identify	and	prioritize	mitigation	
projects	needed	in	the	future.		
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Corcoran	Public	Works	Department

Partners:	
	

	

Potential	Funding:	
	

California	Department	of	Health	Services,	Regional	Water	Quality	
Control	Board	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$100,000

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Reduced	vulnerability	of	water	and	wastewater	systems	to	hazard	
events,	which	will	help	protect	life	and	property.			

Timeline:	
	

Three	to	five	years

Completed	by:	
	

Steve	Kroeker,	Public	Works	Department,	Director	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team	and	information	
project	completion	was	not	available	so	the	planning	team	will	
move	this	project	forward	for	completion	in	this	planning	period.	

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	17	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Corcoran	#4—Vulnerable	Populations		
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Develop	a	program	or	system	for	supporting	vulnerable	populations	
during	emergency	events.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Corcoran
Priority:	 Medium
Issue/Background:	
	
	

During	emergency	events,	such	as	extreme	heat,	power	outages	etc.,	
there	are	certain	populations	at	greater	risk	of	suffering	medical	
complications	or	death.	Individuals	who	rely	on	electronic	medical	
equipment	may	not	have	the	capability	of	using	their	medical	
equipment	during	a	power	outage.	Elderly	and	ill	people	are	more	
susceptible	to	heat‐related	illness	and	death	during	extreme	heat	
events	and	need	to	have	access	to	cooling	centers.	People	who	live	in	
houses	that	do	not	have	air‐conditions	systems	need	access	to	cooling	
centers	during	extreme	heat	events.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

Establish	a	committee	consisting	of	Public	Works,	Fire	Department,	
Police	Department,	local	school	officials,	local	medical	professionals,	
and	senior	citizens	groups	to	identify	vulnerable	populations	and	
what	needs	they	would	have	during	different	emergency	events.	
Identify	at	least	two	locations	within	the	city	that	could	be	used	
during	emergency	events	and	ensure	they	are	capable	of	operating	on	
generator	power.	Utilize	the	city's	Connect	CTY	telephone	system	to	
inform	vulnerable	populations	of	the	availability	of	these	centers	
prior	to	and	during	emergency	event.	Have	a	plan	in	place	for	public	
works	to	supply	transportation	to	the	facility	for	those	who	can	not	
get	there	on	their	own.	Coordinate	with	medical	professionals	to	
determine	how	best	to	get	the	individuals	medical	equipment	to	the	
facility.	Ensure	there	is	a	supply	of	water,	blankets	and	other	
necessities	available.	

Responsible	Office:	 Corcoran	Police	Department
Partners:	
	

Corcoran	Fire	Department,	Corcoran	Public	Works	Department,	
school	officials,	medical	officials,	senior	citizen	groups	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
Corcoran	General	Fund	

Cost	Estimate:	 $20,000‐$50,000
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Avoids	medical	emergencies	of	individuals	dependent	on	medical	
resources	from	an	already	limited	pool	of	emergency	resources.	
Reduces	risk	to	human	health	and	safety	during	emergency	events	
among	the	most	vulnerable	populations.	

Timeline:	 One	year
Completed	by:	 Gary	Cramer,	Police	Department,	Commander
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdictions	subject	to	this	plan.		The	work	was	
completed	in	2006‐2007	of	the	Safety	Element	and	municipal	
service	review	updates.	The	methodology	involved	was	to	execute	
comprehensive	service	capacity	surveys	for	the	cities	and	special	



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	18	
 

districts
	

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	19	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Corcoran	#5—Safety	Element	of	the	General	Plan		
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)		
 

Action:	
	

Update	Safety	Element	of	the	General	Plan	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Corcoran

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	

The	multi‐hazard	mitigation	plan	includes	a	complete	hazard	risk	
assessment	for	the	city	of	Corcoran,	similar	to	information	required	
in	the	Safety	Element	of	the	General	Plan.	Updating	the	Safety	
Element	to	incorporate	this	information	avoids	duplication	of	effort,	
improves	consistency	between	city	plans,	and	helps	to	implement	the	
findings	of	the	mitigation	plan.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

After	the	multi‐hazard	mitigation	plan	is	finalized	the	Safety	Element	
will	be	reviewed	and	revised	as	necessary.		

Responsible	Office:	
	

Corcoran	Community	Development	Department	

Partners:	
	

	

Potential	Funding:	
	

In‐Kind,	Corcoran	General	Fund

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$1,200	for	public	hearing	notices	and	staff	time	to	amend	the	General	
Plan.	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Ensure	the	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	is	incorporated	into	the	City’s	
General	Plan	Policy.	

Timeline:	
	

The	Safety	Element	will	be	updated	within	six	months	of	the	
completion	of	the	hazard	mitigation	plan	
	

Completed	by:	
	

Jeri	Grant,	Community	Development	Department,	Director	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
completed	by	the	City.			

 



City	of	Corcoran	
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	20	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Corcoran	#6—Natural	Hazards	Review	Criteria	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	
 

Action	Title:	
	

Implement	natural	hazard	review	criteria	for	new	development	to	
improve	long	term	loss	prevention.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Corcoran

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	

Improving	and	enforcing	all	building	and	planning	requirements	
leads	to	stronger,	safer	land	development.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

This	action	will	be	implemented	primarily	through	the	adoption	of	
the	2006	International	Building	Code	and	the	2007	City	General	Plan,	
relating	to	land	use	and	planning.	The	Building	and	Planning	
Departments	will	work	more	closely	together	to	prevent	or	oversee	
excessive	population	densities	and	overcrowding	of	land	with	
structures.	The	use	of	natural	and	manmade	wind	barriers	and	strict	
enforcement	of	all	seismic	D1	design	category	requirements	will	be	
implemented.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Corcoran	Building	Department	and	Corcoran	Planning	Department

Partners:	
	

	

Potential	Funding:	
	

In‐Kind,	Corcoran	General	Fund

Cost	Estimate:	
	

	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Well‐placed	developments	with	modern	building	requirements	and	
strict	enforcement	of	both	will	result	in	safe	and	stronger	earthquake	
and	wind	resistant	structures	and	developments.	
	

Timeline:	
	

2007	General	Plan adopted	in	May	2007;	Updated	building	code	
adoption	in	January	2008	
	

Completed	by:	
	

Kevin	Tromborg,	Building	Department,	Building	Official	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
completed	by	the	County	Planning	Department.		The	new	hazard	
zones	have	been	implemented	in	all	relevant	permit	and	review	
processes.	

 
 



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	1	

CITY	OF	HANFORD	
Community	Profile	
The	city	of	Hanford	is	governed	by	a	five‐member	City	Council.	
Members	of	the	council	are	elected	by	district	and	serve	four‐year	
staggered	terms.	Each	year	the	members	select	a	mayor	and	vice‐
mayor	from	amongst	themselves.	

Geography	and	Climate	
Hanford	is	located	in	the	northeastern	part	of	Kings	County,	approximately	30	miles	
southwest	of	the	city	of	Fresno.	It	is	about	equidistant	from	the	Sierra	Nevada	and	the	Coast	
Ranges.	State	Highway	198	runs	east	and	west	through	Hanford	and	State	Highway	43	runs	
north	and	south	along	the	easterly	boundary	of	the	city.	The	ultimate	growth	boundary	of	
Hanford,	which	is	based	on	the	city’s	current	general	plan,	includes	the	incorporated	city	
and	its	sphere‐of‐influence	and	encompasses	approximately	30	square	miles.			
	
The	terrain	in	Hanford	is	generally	flat	and	made	up	of	sandy,	loam	soils.	It	slopes	from	
northeast	to	the	southwest.	Elevations	range	from	255‐240	feet	above	mean	sea	level.	Like	
the	rest	of	Kings	County,	Hanford	is	in	a	semiarid	climate.	It	receives	average	annual	
precipitation	of	8.6	inches.	The	average	high	temperature	in	summer	is	96°F	and	in	winter	
is	49°F.	The	People’s	Ditch	in	the	northeastern	section	of	the	city	is	a	manmade	facility	
designed	as	part	of	a	water	delivery	system	that	diverts	water	from	the	Kings	River	and	
distributes	it	to	agricultural	areas	to	the	south.		
 
History	
Hanford	was	named	after	James	Madison	Hanford,	a	paymaster	for	the	Central	and	
Southern	Pacific	Railroad,	in	1877.	It	was	incorporated	in	1891,	after	14	years	of	destructive	
fires	in	the	downtown	area,	to	improve	firefighting	services	and	provide	utilities	and	paved	
streets.	The	settlement	quickly	grew	into	a	bustling	pioneer	town	with	shops,	schools,	
hotels,	saloons,	and	churches.	As	the	county	seat,	Hanford	has	developed	into	the	
residential,	commercial,	and	industrial	center	of	Kings	County.	

Economy	
As	the	county	seat,	Hanford	enjoys	a	median	household	income	for	a	family	of	four	that	is	
also	higher	than	the	county,	at	$48,655.		Hanford’s	2011	average	unemployment	rate	was	
14.1%,	with	an	average	of	3,400	of	its	residents	not	working	throughout	the	year.	Skilled,	
semiskilled	and	unskilled	labor	is	abundant	in	the	City	of	Hanford.	The	area	is	primarily	
agricultural	in	nature	and	temporary	seasonal	work	is	a	way	of	life	for	many.		The	
agricultural	season	ebbs	after	the	harvest	that	occurs	around	October	and	November.	
 
Population	
Hanford,	the	largest	city	and	County	Seat	has	approximately	55,123	residents	(Kings	County	
Economic	Development	Corporation,	2012).		Hanford	has	a	diverse	population	that	is	
largely	comprised	of	people	with	white	(41.1%),	Hispanic	(47.1%),	and	black	(4.4%)	ethnic	
compositions.	According	to	the	2010	Census,	79.0%	of	adults	over	the	age	of	18	have	their	
high	school	diplomas,	5.5%	hold	Bachelors	Degrees,	3.9%	hold	Graduate	Degrees,	and	
38.6%	have	some	college	or	hold	Associates	Degrees.		Numbers	are	higher	than	those	for	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	2	

the	county	as	a	whole.	

HAZARD	IDENTIFICATION	
Representatives	from	the	city	of	Hanford	identified	hazards	that	affect	the	city	and	
developed	hazard	profiles	based	upon	the	countywide	risk	assessment	and	past	events	and	
their	impacts.	Definitions	for	the	rankings	used	can	be	found	in	Element	B.	

City	of	Hanford—Hazard	Profiles	

Hazard	 Probability	of	
Occurrence	

Potential	
Magnitude/
Geographic	
Extent	

Significance	

Dam	Failure		 Unlikely Critical Low	
Drought	 Occasional Critical High	
Earthquake	 Occasional Critical High	
Extreme	Heat	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Flood	 Occasional Limited Low	
Fog	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Freeze	 Likely Limited Medium	
Landslide	 Unlikely Negligible Low	
Soil	Hazards:	Expansive,	
Liquefaction,	Erosion	

Occasional Limited Low	

Tornado	 Occasional Limited Low	
Wildfire	 Unlikely Negligible Low	

 

Vulnerability	Assessment	
The	vulnerability	assessment	analyzes	the	population,	property,	and	other	assets	at	risk	to	
natural	hazards.	This	section	lists	Hanford’s	assets	at	risk	to	natural	hazards,	including	
critical	facilities	and	infrastructure;	historic,	cultural,	and	natural	resources;	and	economic	
assets.	It	discusses	the	impacts	that	occurred	in	past	events	and	vulnerability	to	specific	
hazards	ranked	of	medium	to	high	significance.		



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	3	

Asset	Inventory	
The	table	that	follows	lists	the	critical	facilities	and	other	community	assets	identified	by	
representatives	from	Hanford	as	important	to	protect	in	the	event	of	a	disaster.		

City	of	Hanford—Critical	Facilities	and	other	Community	Assets		

Facility	 Replacement	
Value	 Occupancy/Capacity

Hanford	Police	Department	 $34,000,000 	
Hanford	Fire	Station	No.	1	 $3,800,000 	
Hanford	Fire	State	No.	2	 $1,900,000 	
Hanford	City	Airport	 $15,000,000 	
Hanford	Community	Medical	Center 	
Central	Valley	General	Hospital	 	
Kerr	Center	Outpatient	Center	 	
Del	Monte	Foods	 	
Adventist	Health	 	
Marquez	Brothers	 	
Senior	Center	Vets	Building	 $3,800,000 	
Historic	Courthouse	Square	 $11,500,000 	
Above‐Ground	Water	Tanks	 $8,800,000 	
Wastewater	Treatment	Plant	 $60,000,000 	
Kings	Fairgrounds	 	
City	Hall	 $4,500,000 	
Civic	Auditorium	 $4,500,000 	
City	Pool	 $3,500,000 	
Longfield	Center	 $4,500,000 	
Kings	County	Government	Center 	
Kings	County	Library	 	
AMTRAK	Station	 	
Carnegie	Museum	 	
China	Alley	 	
Hanford	Fox	Theater	 	
Hanford	Fraternal	Hall	 	
Downtown	Old	Sears	Building	 	
Douty	Street	Phone	Building	
Switching/Control	

	

St	Rose	McCarthy	Catholic	School 	
Western	Christian	School	 	
College	of	Sequoias	Campus/Learning	
Center	 35,000,000

	

GWF	Power	System	(Generation)	Plant 	
Hanford	Industrial	Park	 	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	4	

Estimating	Potential	Losses	
The	table	below	shows	Hanford’s	total	exposure	to	hazards	in	terms	of	population	and	the	
number	and	values	of	structures.	Kings	County	Assessor’s	data	was	used	to	calculate	the	
improved	value	of	parcels.	GIS	was	used	to	quantify	the	number	and	value	of	structures	in	
the	100‐year	(Zone	A)	and	500‐year	(X‐500)	floodplains.	More	information	on	how	these	
estimates	were	calculated	can	be	found	in	Element	B.		

City	of	Hanford—Exposure	to	Hazards	

Hanford	 Population	 Structures	 Value	

Total	Exposure	
(Earthquake)	

55,123 18,493 $1,991,860,304	

Flood:	Zone	A	 6 $2,549,083	
Flood	X‐500	 6 $2,549,083	

 

Although	the	potential	magnitude	of	hazards	in	Hanford’s	planning	area	are	less	than	in	
other	parts	of	the	county,	the	highest	concentration	of	population	and	structures	can	be	
found	here.	This	includes	many	structures	of	historical	significance,	as	well	as	cultural	
significance,	such	as	the	Fort	Roosevelt	Natural	Science	and	History	Museum	and	the	Ruth	
and	Sherman	Lee	Institute	for	Japanese	Art.		

Hanford	is	less	socially	vulnerable	than	other	parts	of	Kings	County	based	on	demographic	
factors,	including	a	more	affluent	population.	However,	there	is	a	higher	proportion	of	
population	over	65	(10	percent),	which	the	city	should	plan	for	in	its	outreach	and	response	
efforts,	as	well	as	for	other	populations	with	access	and	functional	needs.		

The	impacts	of	past	events	and	vulnerability	to	specific	hazards	are	summarized	below.		

Drought	
The	city	of	Hanford	relies	on	a	groundwater	system	for	municipal	water.	The	city	works	
with	the	Kings	County	Water	District	to	deliver	excess	flows	from	the	Kings	River	and	
stormwater	runoff	into	drainage	basins	to	replenish	groundwater.	When	drought	events	
deplete	the	aquifer,	water	quality	decreases	and	water	treatment	costs	increase.		

Earthquake	

Hanford	has	experienced	several	ground	shaking	events	from	earthquakes	over	the	past	
few	years,	both	from	the	San	Andreas	fault	and	from	the	Mammoth	area,	more	than	100	
miles	to	the	north.	The	potential	for	ground	shaking	is	shown	in	the	EQ	hazards	map	located	
in	the	EQ	section	of	Element	B.	Soils	in	Hanford	are	not	mapped	as	having	significant	
liquefaction	potential	and	the	Hazards	Management	Element	of	the	General	Plan	finds	that	
Hanford	is	located	in	a	stable	geologic	formation	so	that	the	effects	of	ground	shaking	
should	be	minimal.	The	community’s	vulnerability	increased	due	to	its	large	number	of	
unreinforced	masonry	buildings,	many	of	them	historic	properties.	The	city	has	created	a	
database	of	the	locations	of	these	buildings,	which	includes	many	of	significance	to	the	
community,	such	as	the	Kings	County	Courthouse,	Masonic	Temple,	Episcopal	Church,	and	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	5	

the	Hanford	Elementary	District	Offices.		Recently	in	2012,	there	have	been	several	urban	
fires	that	have	destroyed	some	of	the	unreinforced	masonry	buildings.	

Extreme	Heat	

During	the	extreme	heat	events	in	the	last	several	summers,	human	safety	was	affected	in	
Hanford.	Extreme	heat	is	highly	likely	to	occur	on	an	annual	basis	in	Hanford,	which	causes	
an	increase	in	energy	cost	and	a	danger	to	the	elderly	and	outside	workers.	The	city	did	not	
open	cooling	centers	during	the	2006	extreme	heat	event.	The	Hanford	Mall	offered	to	
provide	the	mall	as	a	location	for	cooling.		

Flood	

Most	of	the	terrain	in	Hanford	is	relatively	flat	with	good	drainage	due	to	the	sandy	loam	
subsoil.	Street	flooding	is	the	principal	flood	problem.	There	are	no	proposed	or	completed	
flood	protection	measures	in	the	city.	The	east	branch	of	Peoples	Ditch	is	a	manmade	
facility,	which	is	part	of	the	water	delivery	system	that	diverts	water	from	the	Kings	River	
and	distributes	it	to	agricultural	areas	south	of	the	Kings	River.	The	Flood	Insurance	Study	
for	Hanford	(1987)	concluded	that	the	Peoples	Ditch	is	not	a	flood	hazard.	The	city’s	Flood	
Damage	Prevention	Ordinance	is	based	on	this	study	and	the	1987	Flood	Insurance	Rate	
Map	(FIRM).	More	information	on	this	ordinance	is	provided	in	the	Capability	Assessment	
below.		

Fog	

Fog	is	primarily	a	life‐safety	concern	in	Hanford	that	is	related	to	traffic	accidents.	Fog	
advisories	are	used	to	delay	school	and	bus	schedules.	The	city	of	Hanford	requires	the	
installation	of	street	lights	at	all	intersections	as	well	as	along	the	roadway.	Traffic	lights	are	
also	installed	when	required	by	the	traffic	volume.	

Freeze	

Past	freeze	events	have	caused	private	and	city‐owned	water	pipes	and	valves	to	break.	
Freeze	protection	requirements	for	fire	protection	equipment	(fire	sprinkler	system)	have	
been	enforced	to	protect	fire	protection	system	installed	using	the	current	fire	codes.	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	6	

  

City	of	Hanford	Flood	Hazard	Map	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	7	

Other	Hazards		
Expansive	soils	do	exist	in	the	county	and	there	are	construction	and	inspection	
requirements	that	address	this	soil	issue.	

Tornados	are	very	rare	in	the	city	of	Hanford.	In	the	event	of	a	tornado	or	extreme	weather,	
the	Hanford	Fire	and	Police	department	will	increase	staffing	base	on	information	provided	
by	the	National	Weather	Service.	The	National	Weather	Service	has	an	office	in	Hanford.	
City	departments	have	an	excellent	working	relationship	with	the	Hanford	office	staff.	

Future	Development	Trends	
The	Land	Use	Element	of	the	Hanford	General	Plan	describes	existing	and	proposed	land	
use	patterns	for	the	City.	The	plan	assumes	a	2.8%	growth	rate.	The	City	is	established	with	
commercial	nodes	throughout	the	residential	areas.	Industrial	land	is	located	south	of	
Houston	Avenue.		The	City	of	Hanford	is	proposing	a	$4.5	million	project	to	extend	the	
water	mains	and	construct	a	water	storage	tank	in	the	Kings	Industrial	Park,	for	the	
purpose	of	facilitating	industrial	development.	The	project	will	increase	the	water	supply	to	
the	industrial	park	and	improve	the	system	reliability	in	emergency	situations.	The	
extension	of	the	water	mains	provides	a	second	source	of	water	to	the	industrial	park	while	
the	storage	tank	adds	redundancy	to	the	Park’s	fire	suppression	capabilities.	The	project	
proposes	to	accommodate	an	excess	of	495	jobs	and	generate	over	$70	million	in	private	
sector	investment	(Kings	County	Economic	Development	Corporation,	2012).		The	California	
High	Speed	Rail	project	is	proposed	to	run	through	the	city	limits	which	will	have	an	impact	on	the	
city	in	several	areas.	
	

City	of	Hanford—Change	in	Population	and	Housing	Units,	2000‐2012	
 

2000	
Population	

2012	
Population	

Percent	
Change	

2000	
Housing	
Units	

2012	Housing	
Units	

Percent	
Change	

41,686	 53,967	 19.7%	 14,267	 18,493	 16.6%	

CAPABILITY	ASSESSMENT	
Capabilities	are	the	programs	and	polices	currently	in	use	to	reduce	hazard	impacts	or	that	
could	be	used	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities.	The	assessment	is	divided	into	five	
sections:	regulatory,	administrative	and	technical,	fiscal,	outreach	and	partnerships,	and	
other	mitigation	efforts.			

Regulatory	Capability	
The	table	on	the	following	page	lists	planning	and	land	management	tools	typically	used	by	
local	jurisdictions	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities	and	indicates	those	that	are	in	
place	in	Hanford.		



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	8	

City	of	Hanford—Regulatory	and	Planning	Capabilities	

Regulatory	Tool		 Yes/No	 Comments	

General	plan	 Yes Adopted	June	2002,	Scheduled	for	update	to	be	
completed	in	2013	

Zoning	ordinance	 Yes
Subdivision	ordinance	 Yes Currently	being	updated	2012/13	
Site	plan	review	requirements	 Yes
Growth	management	ordinance	 No
Floodplain	ordinance	 Flood	Damage	Prevention	Regulations	1998
Other	special	purpose	ordinance	
(stormwater,	steep	slope,	wildfire)	

Yes Stormwater

Building/fire	code	 Yes Version:	California	Building	Standards	Code	2005
Fire	department	ISO	rating	 Rating:	4	Hanford	Fire	Department	
Erosion	or	sediment	control	
program	

No

Stormwater	management	program	 Yes
Capital	improvements	plan	 Yes
Economic	development	plan	 Yes City	of	Hanford	2010	Plan
Local	emergency	operations	plan	 Yes Updated	annually and	scheduled	for	a	full	update	in	

coordination	with	the	county	in	2013	
 

The	city	collects	development	impact	fees	for	park	facilities,	fire	protection,	police	
protection	wastewater	system,	transportation,	water	system,	stormwater	system,	and	
refuse	and	recycling.	The	planning	department	refers	appropriate	project	applications	to	
the	fire	department	and/or	police	department	for	review	and	comment.		

Hanford	General	Plan,	2002	–	The	General	Plan	was	updated	in	2002	and	is	intended	to	
guide	the	development	of	Hanford	over	the	next	20‐25	years.	The	plan	sets	goals,	objectives,	
policies,	and	programs	for	six	elements:	land	use;	circulation;	hazards	management;	open	
space,	conservation,	and	recreation;	housing;	and	public	facilities	and	services.	The	hazards	
management	element	addresses	seismic	safety,	safety,	noise,	and	air	quality.		Update	of	this	
plan	is	scheduled	for	completion	in	2013.	

Flood	Damage	Prevention	Regulations,	1998	–	The	purpose	of	this	ordinance	is	to	
minimize	public	and	private	losses	due	to	flood	conditions	by	restricting	certain	uses	and	
requiring	certain	protections	in	areas	of	special	flood	hazards	as	identified	in	FEMA’s	1987	
FIRM.	The	new	Digital	FIRMs	(DFIRM)	established	with	FEMA	have	been	integrated	into	all	
relevant	planning	and	permit	processes	for	all	of	Kings	County.			

Urban	Water	Management	Plan,	2010	–	The	purpose	of	the	UWMP	is	to	maintain	efficient	
use	of	urban	water	supplies,	continue	to	promote	conservation	programs	and	policies,	
ensure	that	sufficient	water	supplies	are	available	for	future	beneficial	use,	and	provide	a	
mechanism	for	response	during	water	drought	conditions.	
	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	9	

Hanford	Emergency	Operations	Plan,	2008	–	The	emergency	plan	defines	the	
responsibilities	of	the	city	staff	in	response	to	emergency	situations	and	provides	for	the	
powers	and	duties	of	the	Disaster	Council.	Hanford	has	adopted	Section	6‐3	of	the	Kings	
County	Code	of	Ordinances	providing	for	disaster	council	membership.	The	Disaster	Council	
develops	and	recommends	for	adoption	by	the	Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors	and	city	
councils	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford,	and	Lemoore	emergency	and	mutual	aid	plans	and	
agreements	and	necessary	ordinances	and	resolutions.		This	plan	is	scheduled	for	a	full	
update	in	2013.	

Water	Conservation	and	Water	Meter	Program	‐	The	city	of	Hanford	has	a	water	
conservation	program	that	limits	the	use	of	outdoor	watering	through	regulating	the	timing	
and	types	of	outdoor	water	use.	Water	meters	are	required	on	services	for	all	new	
construction,	remodels	in	excess	of	$5,000	or	installation	of	a	swimming	pool.	At	the	
request	of	a	customer	to	convert	from	a	flat	rate	service	to	a	metered	service,	the	city	will	
install	the	meter	and	bill	the	customer	for	costs	not	to	exceed	$500.	

Conservation	and	Open	Space	Zoning	District	–	This	zoning	district	applies	to	pathways,	
storm	drainage	basins,	and	water	recharge	areas	throughout	the	city	and	is	intended	to	
provide	for	permanent	open	spaces	in	areas	of	the	city	that	exhibit	significant	vegetation,	
scenic	qualities,	wildlife	or	recreation	potential,	and	that	are	designated	as	open	space	sites	
by	the	General	Plan.	

Other	city	plans	include	the	Downtown	Architectural	Design	Guidelines	Plan,	Master	
Streetscape	and	Street	Tree	Plan,	Hanford	2010	Plan,	and	the	City	of	Hanford	2005‐2009	
Consolidated	Plan	which	was	submitted	to	the	U.S.	Department	of	Housing	and	Urban	
Development	to	document	the	city’s	comprehensive	strategy	to	address	the	needs	of	low	
and	moderate	income	residents.		

Administrative	and	Technical	Capabilities	
The	table	below	identifies	the	city	personnel	responsible	for	activities	related	to	mitigation	
and	loss	prevention	in	Hanford.	A	summary	of	technical	resources	follows.	

	City	of	Hanford—Personnel	Capabilities	

Personnel	Resources	 Department/Position

Planner/Engineer	with	knowledge	of	land	
development/land	management	practices	

Community	Development	Department	

Engineer/Professional	trained	in	construction	
practices	related	to	buildings	and/or	
infrastructure	

Public	Works	Department	

Full	time	building	official	 Community	Development	Department	
Floodplain	Administrator	 Community	Development	director	is	appointed	

by	ordinance	
Emergency	Manager	 Hanford	Fire	Chief
Grant	writer	 No
GIS	 Under	contract	with	the	county	for	GIS	services



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	10	

 

Fiscal	Capability	
The	following	table	identifies	financial	tools	or	resources	that	the	city	could	potentially	use	
to	help	fund	mitigation	activities.	There	are	currently	no	specific	funding	sources	for	hazard	
mitigation.	

City	of	Hanford—Available	Financial	Resources	

Financial	Resources	
Accessible/
Eligible	to	Use		 Comments	

Community	Development	Block	Grants Yes
Capital	improvements	project	funding Yes
Authority	to	levy	taxes	for	specific	purposes No
Fees	for	water,	sewer,	gas,	or	electric	
services	

Yes Water,	sewer,	trash

Impact	fees	for	new	development Yes
Incur	debt	through	general	obligation	bonds Yes
Incur	debt	through	special	tax	bonds Yes
Incur	debt	through	private	activities No
Withhold	spending	in	hazard	prone	areas No

 

Outreach	and	Partnerships	

The	Hanford	Fire	Department	provides	several	public	education	programs,	including	the	
topics	of	water	use,	earthquake	awareness,	fire	safety,	disaster	preparedness,	and	other	
types	of	public	safety	classes.	

Summary	of	Key	Issues	and	Risk	
Hanford’s	risk	assessment	revealed	problem	areas	to	be	addressed	in	the	mitigation	
strategy.	These	include	the	following:	

 Earthquake	hazard	risk	in	Hanford	is	moderate	but	the	city	has	a	large	number	of	
older	community	buildings	of	unreinforced	masonry	construction	that	are	
vulnerable	to	ground	shaking.	

 Hanford	relies	on	groundwater,	which	can	be	depleted	during	drought	events,	
resulting	in	poor	water	quality	and	increased	treatment	costs.		

 Extreme	heat	events	are	highly	likely	to	continue	in	the	future	and	are	dangerous	to	
human	safety,	particularly	to	the	elderly.	

GOALS	AND	OBJECTIVES	
The	city	of	Hanford	adopts	the	hazard	mitigation	goals	and	objectives	developed	by	the	
Planning	Team	and	described	in	Element	B.		



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	11	

MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
The	planning	team	for	the	city	of	Hanford	identified	and	prioritized	the	following	mitigation	
actions	based	on	the	risk	assessment.	Background	information	as	well	as	information	on	
how	the	action	will	be	implemented	and	administered,	such	as	ideas	for	implementation,	
responsible	office,	partners,	potential	funding,	estimated	cost,	and	timeline	also	are	
described.		



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	12	

2012	MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
Mitigation	Action:	City	of	Hanford	#1—Public	Education	Program	
Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
	

Action:	
	

Develop	and	implement	a	comprehensive	strategy	to	improve	
ongoing	public	education	regarding	natural	hazards	and	risk.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Hanford

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Planning	Team identified	the	lack	of	public	awareness	about	
natural	hazards	risk	and	preparedness	as	an	obstacle	to	reducing	
potential	losses	in	the	county.	In	addition,	as	various	issues	arise,	
there	is	a	need	to	effectively	inform	the	public	about	them.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Improved	information	about	natural	hazards	may	be	implemented	
into	media	outlets	and	tools	already	in	use	by	the	city,	such	as	the	
following:	1)	a	media	list	is	compiled	at	the	City	Manager’s	Office	for	
distribution	of	fax	or	email	information;	2)	the	city	website	home	
page	is	updated,	as	needed,	to	include	information	on	pertinent	
topics,	such	as	Warming	Centers,	Heat	Related	Illness,	West	Nile	
Virus,	etc.		

Responsible	Office:	
	

Fire	Department

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM/Fire	Department
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
Kings	County	General	Fund,	In‐Kind	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Provides	timely,	accurate	information	to	our	public,	both	constituents	
and	employees.	Ensures	consistent	information	flow.	Improves	public	
awareness	and	education.	
	

Timeline:	
	

Internal	newsletter	is	published	quarterly.	Media	notices	and	news	
conferences	are	sent	as	needed.	
	

Completed	by:	
	

Tim	Ieronimo,	Fire	Chief

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.	The	committee	agreed	
to	carry	this	project	forward	and	to	move	responsibility	for	a	more	
comprehensive	public	education	program	on	disaster	
preparedness	to	the	Fire	Chief	
	

	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	13	

Mitigation	Action:	City	of	Hanford	#2—Assessment	of	the	Impact	of	the	High	Speed	
Rail	Project	Critical	Infrastructure	
	

Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	infrastructure	and	lifeline	utilities,	
including	access	and	egress	routes	to	the	construction	of	an	elevated	
high	speed	rail	route	through	Hanford.		Identify	and	prioritize	
projects	for	multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	

Jurisdiction:	 City	of	Hanford
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Cities	and	community	service	districts	within	the	county	are	
responsible	for	providing	necessary	daily	services	such	as	water,	
sewer,	and	storm	drainage	to	residents.	The	creation	of	a	28	mile	long	
high	speed	rail	corridor	with	a	minimum	above	grade	track	elevation	
of	10	feet	greatly	complicates	many	of	these	issues.		The	lack	of	on	
grade	crossings	canalizes	traffic	to	a	limited	number	of	overpasses,	
complicating	evacuation,	emergency	response	and	potentially	
prisoner	transport	or	relocation	in	times	of	disaster.		The	impact	of	
this	corridor	on	flooding,	traffic,	evacuation	and	urban	growth	are	
poorly	understood	at	best.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Incorporate	an	assessment	of	the	high	speed	rail	infrastructure	into	
the	state	mandated	EIR	for	the	high	speed	rail	project.		This	
assessment	can	also	then	be	incorporated	into	the	city’s	community	
planning	efforts	to	identify	and	prioritize	needed	infrastructure	
improvements	or	enhancements	to	reduce	the	vulnerability	of	crucial	
infrastructure	from	natural	hazard	risk	exasperated	by	this	major	
public	works	project.	

Responsible	Office:	 	Kings	County	and	Hanford Community	Development	Agencies
Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency,	Community	Service	
Districts	and	Public	Utility	District.	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund	for	community	planning	efforts	and	
LAFCO	funds	for	preparation	of	state	mandated	EIRs.		

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$30,000	to	$100,000	for	each	of	the	unincorporated	and	incorporated	
communities	along	the	rail	corridor.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

By	identifying	the	potentially	negative	impacts	of	this	massive	public	
works	project	more	effective	and	realistic	emergency	plans	and	
planning	can	be	accomplished	to	minimize	these	impacts.		Identifying	
the	impacts	to	transportation,	access	and	egress,	resource	
mobilization	and	movement,	confusion	and	delays	can	be	avoided	
during	major	response	activities,	especially	during	major	natural	
disasters.	

Timeline:	
	

Completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014	to	coincide	with	the	
estimated	beginning	of	construction	on	the	HSR	system.	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		The	need	for	this	project	was	identified	
during	the	project	review	workshop	held	with	the	city	on	October	
26th,	based	on	the	county	response	to	the	30,000	pages	of	
environmental	review	documents	they	had	to	comment	upon	on	
this	project.	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	14	

2007	MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
Mitigation	Action:	Hanford	#1—Retrofits	of	Water	Storage	Tanks	
Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
	

Action:	
	

Complete	seismic	retrofits	of	two	of	city’s	water	storage	tanks.
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Hanford

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	city	of	Hanford	has	two	water	storage	tanks	holding	a	combined	
capacity	of	800,000	gallons	that	are	in	need	of	seismic	retrofit.	In	the	
event	of	an	earthquake,	it	is	possible	that	the	tanks	and	pipelines	
connections	to	the	tanks	would	sustain	catastrophic	damage	
depending	on	the	magnitude	of	the	earthquake.	In	addition,	fire	risk	
is	greatly	increased	after	earthquakes	due	to	damaged	natural	gas	
lines	and	electrical	lines.	Without	access	to	water	for	firefighting,	the	
community	is	at	great	risk	to	a	catastrophic	loss	due	to	fire.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	

To	mitigate	this	problem,	a	retrofit	to	all	of	the	connections	to	the	
water	tanks	will	be	completed	with	flexible	earthquake	dampening	
connections	at	the	points	where	the	pipelines	connect	to	the	tank.	A	
strategy	will	be	developed	for	funding	these	projects	through	grants	
and	or	capital	improvement	projects.		
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Hanford	Department	of	Public	Works

Partners:	
	

Hanford	Building	Department,	Hanford	Fire	Department,	Hanford	
City	Council	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
other	state	or	federal	grants,	Hanford	General	Fund	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Undetermined	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Avoids	future	losses	by	making	water	tanks	more	resistant	to	
earthquakes	and	preserving	water	supply	in	case	of	fire.	This	will	also	
prevent	or	minimize	a	health	crisis	due	to	lost	of	drinking	water	and	
sanitary	facilities.	
	

Timeline:	
	

Five	years

Completed	by:	
	

Tim	Ieronimo,	Hanford	Fire	Department,	Chief

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		The	need	for	this	project	to	continue	was	
identified	during	the	project	review	workshop	held	with	the	city	
on	October	26th.	

 



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	15	

Mitigation	Action:	Hanford	—GIS	Database	of	URMs	

Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
	

Action:	
	

Develop	GIS	database	of	unreinforced	masonry	(URM)	buildings.
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Hanford

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	city	of	Hanford	has	58	URM	buildings	in	the	downtown	core	of	
the	city.	The	Hanford	Fire	Department	has	developed	a	list	of	the	
URM	buildings	for	use	during	an	emergency.	The	creation	of	a	GIS	
database	of	URM	buildings	with	all	of	the	basic	building	information	
attached	would	greatly	enhance	the	response	of	emergency	
management	personnel	during	an	event	and	could	be	used	to	develop	
a	program	for	retrofitting	these	buildings	over	time.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Currently,	the	city	of Hanford,	within	its	fire,	police	and	public	works	
departments,	has	GIS	capabilities	to	a	limited	degree.	We	have	some	
base	maps	and	limited	knowledge	and	training	on	the	GIS	software.	
On	the	other	hand,	the	Kings	County	Planning	Agency	has	much	
greater	knowledge	and	capabilities	and	is	willing	to	assist	the	city.	
With	the	assistance	of	the	Kings	County	Planning	Agency	and	the	
existing	database	of	URM	buildings	that	the	Hanford	Fire	Department	
has,	this	project	can	be	completed	within	a	short	period	of	time.	GIS	
training	for	the	Hanford	Fire	Department	will	need	to	be	provided	to	
sustain	the	GIS	database.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Hanford	Fire	Department	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Planning	Agency

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hanford	Fire	Department	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$2,500	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

A	creation	of	a	GIS	database	of	URM	buildings	with	all	of	the	basic	
building	information	attached	would	greatly	enhance	the	response	of	
emergency	management	personnel	during	an	event.	This	will	also	
assist	in	the	development	of	an	earthquake	loss	reduction	program	to	
evaluate	vulnerability	of	URMs	and	prioritize	retrofit	projects.	

Timeline:	 To	be	completed	within	three	months	of	adoption	of	this	plan.
Completed	by:	 Tim	Ieronimo,	Hanford	Fire	Department,	Chief
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		The	need	for	this	project	to	continue	was	

identified	during	the	project	review	workshop	held	with	the	city	
on	October	26th.	

 



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	16	

Mitigation	Action:	Hanford—Retrofit	URM	Buildings	in	Downtown	

Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
	

Action:	
	

Retrofit	58	unreinforced	masonry	(URMs)	buildings	in	downtown	
Hanford	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Hanford

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	city	of	Hanford	is	approximately	45	miles	east	of	the	San	Andreas	
and	Coalinga	Fault.	Hanford	is	also	approximately	100	miles	south	of	
the	Mammoth	area.	In	1983	the	Coalinga	earthquake	shook	
throughout	the	city	of	Hanford	as	did	the	more	recent	earthquake	
that	occurred	in	(2004/2005).	The	city	has	58	URMs	identified	in	the	
downtown	area.	Occupancies	of	these	buildings	are	retail,	
professional	services,	businesses,	apartments,	and	historic	buildings.	
The	cost	to	reinforce	these	buildings	may	exceed	the	property	value	
of	the	buildings.	Property	and	business	owners	are	unable	or	
unwilling	to	contribute	financially	toward	building	reinforcement	or	
replacement	due	to	the	lack	of	funds	or	failure	to	see	the	risk	to	
themselves	and	the	public.	The	likelihood	is	great	that	most	of	the	
buildings	downtown	would	be	destroyed	or	severely	damaged	by	a	
localized	earthquake.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	

Complete	an	assessment	on	all	URM	buildings	in	the	downtown	
business	district	to	identify	and	prioritize	projects	for	multi‐hazard	
risk	reduction.	Develop	a	strategy	for	funding	of	URM	retrofit	
projects.		
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Hanford	City	Manager	
	

Partners:	
	

Hanford	Fire	Department,	Hanford	Planning	Department,	Hanford	
Building	Department,	property	owners	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
other	federal	and	state	grants,	property	owners,	partnerships	with	
insurance	companies	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Undetermined

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

To	ensure	that	corrective	action	is	taken	now	to	prevent	the	loss	of	
life	and	property	during	a	large‐scale	emergency.	

Timeline:	 Complete	assessment	and	identify	funding	strategy	within	five	years
Completed	by:	 Tim	Ieronimo,	Hanford	Fire	Department,	Chief
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		The	need	for	this	project	to	continue	was	

identified	during	the	project	review	workshop	held	with	the	city	
on	October	26th.	



City	of	Hanford	
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	17	

Mitigation	Action:	Hanford	—Assessment	of	Critical	Facilities	

Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	facilities,	including	police/fire	stations,	
hospitals,	schools,	and	others,	to	identify	and	prioritize	projects	for	
multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

City	of	Hanford

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

An	assessment	of	the	vulnerability	of	critical	facilities	in	Hanford	to	
hazards,	particularly	earthquakes,	is	needed	to	identify	and	prioritize	
projects	needed	to	reduce	vulnerabilities.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	city	of	Hanford’s	planning,	building	and	fire	departments	will	
complete	a	vulnerability	assessment	of	all	critical	facilities	within	the	
city,	which	will	include	the	police/fire	stations,	hospitals,	schools,	and	
county	facilities,	to	identify	and	prioritize	projects	for	multi‐hazard	
risk	reduction.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Hanford	Fire	Department
	

Partners:	
	

Planning	Department,	Building	Department,	Kings	County	Fire	
Department	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

In‐Kind,	Hanford	General	Fund

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Operating	costs	in	each	department’s	budget.

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Ensure	that	all	of	the	city	of	Hanford’s	critical	facilities	are	not	
vulnerable	during	a	large‐scale	emergency	and	take	corrective	action	
now	to	prevent	the	loss	of	operations	of	any	critical	facility	during	a	
large‐scale	emergency.	
	

Timeline:	
	

One	year

Completed	by:	
	

Tim	Ieronimo,	Hanford	Fire	Department,	Chief

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdiction	subject	to	this	plan.		

 



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	1	

Kings	County	School	Districts	
There	are	thirteen	school	districts	in	Kings	County.		Those	districts	under	the	guidance	of	the	Kings	
County	Office	of	Education	participated	in	the	hazard	mitigation	plan	development	process.	The	Office	
of	Education	coordinated	participation	from	the	school	districts	during	the	update	of	the	Kings	County	
Multi‐Jurisdictional	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan.		The	Kings	County	Office	of	Education	representative	that	
participated	as	an	official	Planning	Team	member	posted	the	Public	Participation	Survey	on	the	Kings	
County	Office	of	Education	website	and	sent	home	fliers	about	the	public	meetings	to	the	students	
within	in	their	districts.		

Information	on	past	hazards	and	losses,	existing	safety	plans	and	policies,	and	other	mitigation	projects	
for	each	school	district	is	provided	below.	Hazard	information	for	each	school	district	is	similar	to	that	
presented	in	Element	B,	depending	upon	the	district’s	location	in	the	county.	The	following	maps	show	
the	school	districts	and	elementary	school	districts	in	Kings	County.		

There	are	currently	no	specific	funding	sources	for	hazard	mitigation	in	any	of	the	school	districts.		



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	2	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	3	

	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	4	

ARMONA	UNION	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

This	school	district	includes	Armona	Elementary,	Parkview	Middle,	Crossroads	Charter	
Academy,	and	Crossroads	Trade	Tech	Academy	Schools	in	the	town	of	Armona.		

Past	Hazard	Events		
No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	
 Evacuation	plans		

 Tornado	safety	program/drills	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Annual	update	of	Safety	Manual	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	
	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

✔	 ✔	 ✔ ✔
Armona	
Elementary		

Elem	School	 $8,905925 665 X	 	 X	

Parkview	
Middle	
	

Middle	School	 $5,301,093 445 X	 	 X	

Crossroads	
Charter	
Academy	

Elem	School	 Bldg	owned	by:	
Sharp	Partners	
PO	Box	1264	
Hanford	CA		

220 X	 	 X	

Crossroads	
Trade	Tech	
Academy	

Elem	School	 Sharp 89 X	 	 X	

District	Office	 Community	
Center	

Bldg	owned	by
Armona	
Community	
Service	District		

7 X	 	 X	

 



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	5	

CENTRAL	UNION	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

Central	Union	School	District	is	made	up	of	four	elementary	schools	(Akers,	Central,	R.J.	Neutra,	and	
Stratford).	Two	schools	are	located	at	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station.	The	Central	Union	School	District	
has	two	federal	facilities	within	its	boundaries:	The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	and	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	
Station.	

Past	Hazard	Events		
No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	
 Evacuation	plans	

 Shelter‐in‐place	plans	at	Akers	and	R.J.	Neutra	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Flood	safety	program/drills	

 Others:	air	crash;	bomb	threat;	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	base	closure;	poor	air	quality	
program;	school	bus	emergency;	code	black	(evacuation/relocation);	code	red	(life	
threatening);	and	code	yellow	(imminent	threat)	

Asset	Inventory	
 
Name	of	Asset	 Facility	

Type	
Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

  

Akers	School	
(On	LNAS)	

School	 $11,425,638 832 	 	

Neutra	School	
(on	LNAS)	
	

School	 $8,790,380 590 	 	

Central	School	
	

School	 $5,371,366 433 	 	

Stratford	School	
	

School	 $7,696,108 347 	 	

District	Office	
	

Office	 $1,977,980 26 	 	

Maintenance	
Shop	

Shop	 $437,950 5 	 	

 



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	6	

CORCORAN	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

Corcoran	Unified	School	District	is	made	up	of	three	elementary	schools	‐	Bret	Harte,	John	C.	Fremont,	
and	Mark	Twain;	one	middle	school	‐	,	John	Muir	and	one	high	school	‐	Corcoran	High,	Kings	Lake	
Alternative	School,	and	the	Ag	Farm.		

Past	Hazard	Events		

Water	pipes	broken	due	to	Winter	Freeze	in	2008.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

None.	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

✔	 ✔	 ✔ ✔
District	Office,	
Annex	&	Maint	
Depts		

Admin,	
Operations,	
Maintenance	&	
Transportation	

15,980	@	$250
$3,995,000	

29 X	 	 X	

Bret	Harte	Elem	
	

Elem	School	 46,411	@	$250
$11,602,750	

549 X	 	 X	

John	C.	Fremont	
Elem	

Elem	School	 42,759	@	$250	
$10,689,750	

537 X	 	 X	

Mark	Twain	
Elem	

Elem	School	 39,509	@	$250
$9,877,250	

536 X	 	 X	

John	Muir	
Middle	Sch	

Middle	School	 78,175	@	$250	
$19,543,750	

801 X	 	 X	

Corcoran	High	
Sch	

High	School	 103,188	@	
$250	

$25,797,000	

1000 X	 	 X	

Kings	Lake	
Education	
Center	

Alternative	Ed	 7,868		@	$250	
$1,967,000	

62 X	 	 X	

Ag	Farm	 Farm	 17,094		@	$150	
$2,564,100	

X	 X	

TLC	 High	School	
classes	and	
conf/meetings	

22,000	@	300	
$6,600,000	

13 X	 	 X	

 



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	7	

HANFORD	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	Hanford	Elementary	School	District	includes	nine	elementary	schools	(Hamilton,	Jefferson,	Lee	
Richmond,	Lincoln,	Martin	Luther	King	Jr.,	Monroe,	Roosevelt,	Simas,	and	Washington)	and	two	junior	
high	schools	(John	F.	Kennedy	and	Woodrow	Wilson)	in	the	City	of	Hanford.		

Past	Hazard	Events		

Water	damage	to	classrooms	from	bursting	pipes	caused	by	a	freeze	in	January	1995;	no	assets	at	risk	
were	found	based	on	Interim	Evaluation	Instrument.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Tornado	safety	program/drills	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	
	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

✔	 ✔	 ✔ ✔
Hamilton	
School		

Elem	School	 $10,338,600 638 X	 	 X

Jefferson	School	
	

Elem	School	 $6,175,770 138 X	 	 X

King	(Martin	
Luther	Jr.)	
School	

Elem	School	 $10,058,920 619 X	 	 X

Lincoln	School	 Elem	School	 $8,122,900 550 X	 	 X
Monroe	School	 Elem	School	 $8,938,900 721 X	 	 X
Richmond	(Lee)	
School	

Elem	School	 $7,406,590 460 X	 	 X

Roosevelt	
School	

Elem	School	 $8,005,670 587 X	 	 X

Simas	(Joseph	
M.)	School	

Elem	School	 $9,821,100 721 X	 	 X

Washington	
School	

Elem	School	 $7,575,900 606 X	 	 X

Kennedy	(John	 Jr.	High	School	 $14,345,718 589 X	 	 X



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	8	

 

F.)	
	
Wilson	
(Woodrow)	
	

Jr.	High	School	 $13,068,080
	

640 X	 	 X

District	Office	
	

Administrative	
Offices	&	Board	
Room	
	

$4,255,900 39 X	 	 X

District	Services	
Facility	

Bus	Barn,	Bus	
Wash	Storage,	
Maintenance	
Shop,	Grounds	
Shop,	Offices,	
Warehouse,	
Storage	
	

$3,415,520
	

34 X	 	 X

District	Food	
Services	

Food	Storage	&	
Preparation	
Facility	

$1,972,210 13 X	 	 X

Teacher	
Resource	
Center	
	

Offices	and	
teacher	work	&	
prep	area	

$1,009,400 7 X	 	 X



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	9	

HANFORD	JOINT	UNION	HIGH	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	Hanford	Joint	Union	High	School	District	includes	Hanford	High	School,	West	Hanford	High	School,	
Earl	F.	Johnson	High	School,	Sierra	Pacific	High,	and	the	Hanford	Adult	School	in	the	City	of	Hanford.		

Past	Hazard	Events	

A	severe	lightning	strike	on	April	28,	2005,	damaged	fire	alarm	system,	clocks,	bells,	and	the	emergency	
medical	system.	Damage	cost	$27,000.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Safe	school	plan	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	
	

Occupancy	
or	Capacity	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

  
District	Office		 Office	&	Board	

Room	
$1,548,000 16 X	 	 X

Hanford	West	High	
	

High	School	 $47,223,162 1408 X	 	 X

Hanford	High	 High	School	 $52,063,731 1577 X	 	 X
Sierra	Pacific	High	 High	School	 $33,424,501 695 X	 	 X
Earl	F.	Johnson	 High	School	

(Continuation)	
$2,793,257 308 X	 	 X

Hanford	Adult	
School	

Adult	School	 $2,200,100 322 X	 	 X

Transportation	 Bus	Barn,	Bus	
Wash	Storage	

$1,029,729 16 X	 	 X

Maintenance	&	
Operations	

Maintenance	
Shop,	Grounds	
Shop,	Offices,	
Warehouse,	
Storage	

$390,696 18 X	 	 X

	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	10	

ISLAND	UNION	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

Island	Union	School	District	includes	Island	Union	Elementary	School	(kindergarten	through	eighth	
grade)	in	the	City	of	Lemoore.		

Past	Hazard	Events		

No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 School	Safety	Plan		

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	
Type	

Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

  

Island	Union	
Elem.	School		

Elem.	
School	

$5,182,000 341 X X	

 

KINGS	COUNTY	OFFICE	OF	EDUCATION	

The	Kings	County	Office	of	Education	operates	three	schools	for	groups	of	students	not	served	by	local	
school	districts.	These	include	the	Shelly	Baird	School	severely	disabled	students	from	ages	3‐22;	the	
Kings	Community	School	for	students	from	seventh	to	twelfth	grades	who	were	expelled	from	their	
home	districts;	and	the	J.C.	Montgomery/Boot	Camp	for	juvenile	offenders.	The	Kings	County	Probation	
Department	maintains	the	facilities	at	this	school.	

Past	Hazard	Events		

No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Safety	plan	is	currently	being	rewritten	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	11	

KINGS	RIVER‐HARDWICK	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	Kings	River‐Hardwick	School	District	consists	of	Hanford’s	Kings	River‐Hardwick	Elementary	
School	(kindergarten	through	eighth	grade).		

Past	Hazard	Events		

No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	
Type	

Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

✔ ✔	 ✔	 ✔
	
Admin	Office	
1144	Lacey	

Office	
Building	

$3,000,000 30 Yes 	

Admin	Office	443	
Greenfield	
	

Office	
Building	

$1,700,000 30 Yes 	

Lemoore	Service	
Center	
	

Office	&	
Conference	
Center	

$6,000,000 75 Yes 	

Community	
School	
	

School	 $5,000,000 120 Yes 	

Shelly	Baird	
School	
	

School	 $5,000,000 200 Yes 	

Support	Service	
Center	
	

Office	
Building	

$2,500,000 80 Yes 	

Various	
Classrooms	
	

Classrooms	 $9,000,000 200 Yes 	

	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	12	

KIT	CARSON	UNION	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	Kit	Carson	Union	School	District	in	Hanford	includes	Kit	Carson	Elementary	School	and	the	Mid‐
Valley	Alternative	Charter	School.		

Past	Hazard	Events		

No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Emergency	plan	is	reviewed	with	all	employees	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	
	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

   

Kit	Carson	
School	,	Mid	
Valley	
Alternative	
Charter	School,	
District	Office	
	

Elem	School,	
Administrative	
Offices,		
Bus	Barn,	Storage,	
Maintenance	
Shop,	Offices,	
Warehouse,	
Storage,	
Food	Storage	&	
Preparation	
Facility	
	

$9,877,193 477 X	 	 X	

	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	13	

LAKESIDE	UNION	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

Lakeside	Union	School	District	in	Hanford	has	two	schools:	Gardenside	Elementary	(kindergarten	
through	third	grade)	and	Lakeside	School	(fourth	through	eighth	grades).		

Past	Hazard	Events		

No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Shelter‐in‐place	plans	

 Tornado	safety	program/drills	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	
Type	

Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

✔ ✔	 ✔	 ✔
Lakeside	
Elementary	
School	

Elem	
School	

$6,675,005 350 X X	

Gardenside	
Elementary	

Elem	
School	

$4,825,145 									10 X X	

 

LEMOORE	UNION	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	Lemoore	Union	School	District	includes	four	elementary	schools	(Cinnamon,	Engvall,	Lemoore,	and	
Meadow	Lane),	Liberty	Middle	School,	and	the	University	Charter	School.		

Past	Hazard	Events		

Freezing	weather	that	occurred	January	16‐19,	2007,	burst	water	pipes	and	boiler	pipes	and	caused	
Liberty	Middle	School	to	close	January	18‐19,	2007.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	14	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Fire	drills	

 Intruder	drills	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	
or	Capacity	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

  

Cinnamon	School	 Elem	School	 $	8,000,160 615 X	 	 X
Engvall	School	 Elem	School	 $	6,555,470 677 X	 	 X
Lemoore	School	 Elem	School	 $	10,599,790 681 X	 	 X
Meadow	Lane	
School	

Elem	School	 $	6,978,510 550 X	 	 X

Liberty	School	 Middle	School	 $	13,640,330 714 X	 	 X
University	School	 Charter	School	 $	50,577,779 268 X	 	 X
District	Office	 Administrative	

Offices	&	Board	
Room	

$	1,050,790 12 X	 	 X

Instructional	
Materials	&	Supply	

Maintenance	
Shop,	Grounds	
Shop,	Offices,	
Warehouse,	
Storage,	Food	
Storage	

$1,285,729 16 X	 	 X

District	Office	
Annex	

Technology	
Offices	

$	295,920 4 X	 	 X

	

LEMOORE	UNION	HIGH	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	district	is	a	large,	rural	high	school	district	offering	instruction	to	students	from	ninth	through	
twelfth	grade	including	programs	for	vocational	education.		The	district	operates	one	traditional	high	
school,	one	charter	high	school,	and	one	continuation	high	school	on	the	traditional	August	through	
June	schedule,	for	the	instruction	of	approximately	2,200	students.		LUHSD	is	somewhat	unique	it	that	
it	serves	students	that	reside	on	both	a	Native	American	Reservation	(Santa	Rosa	Rancheria)	and	a	
Military	Base	(Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station).	

Past	Hazard	Events		

None.	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	15	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Comprehensive	safety	plan	

Asset	inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	
Type	

Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

  

Lemoore	High	
School	

High	
School	

$69,291,982 1,910 X 	 X	

Jamison	High	School	 High	
School	

$694,500 144 X 	 X	

Lemoore	Middle	
College	High	School	

High	
School	

$110,640 216 X 	 X	

District	Office	
	

Offices	 $1,240,450 8 X 	 X	

Transportation	
Facilities	

Bus	Barn	 $936,000 15 X 	 X	

	

PIONEER	UNION	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

The	Pioneer	Union	Elementary	School	District	includes	Pioneer	Elementary	School,	Frontier	
Elementary	School,	and	Pioneer	Middle	School	in	Hanford.	Total	enrollment	in	the	district	in	2005	was	
1,383	students.	

Past	Hazard	Events		

No	information.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Shelter‐in‐place	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	

 Others:	bullying	prevention;	character	counts;	stranger	on	campus;	traffic/bike	safety	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	16	

Asset	Inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	
Type	

Replacement
Value	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

✔ ✔	 ✔	 ✔
Pioneer	
Elementary	
School	

Elem	
School	

6,000,000 X X	

Frontier	
Elementary	
school	

Elem	
School	

15,821,290 625 X X	

Pioneer	Middle	
School	

Jr.	High	
School	

10,756,720 850 X X	

 

REEF‐SUNSET	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

Reef‐Sunset	Unified	School	District	includes	four	elementary	schools	(Avenal,	Tamarack,	Kettleman	
City,	and	Reef‐Sunset	Primary	Day),	one	middle	school	(Reef‐Sunset	Middle	School),	three	high	schools	
(Adelante	Continuation	High,	Avenal	High,	and	Sunrise	Continuation	High),	Reef‐Sunset	Secondary	Day	
School,	and	adult	education	in	the	City	of	Avenal.		

Past	Hazard	Events		

Freezing	weather	events	occur	regularly.	

Existing	Plans	and	Programs	

 Evacuation	plans	

 Shelter‐in‐place	plans	

 Earthquake	safety	program/drills	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	17	

Asset	inventory	

Name	of	Asset	 Facility	Type	 Replacement	
Value	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Occupancy	or	
Capacity	
	
	

Cr
it
ic
al
	F
ac
il
it
y	

V
u
ln
er
ab
le
	

P
op
u
la
ti
on
s	

Ec
on
om

ic
	A
ss
et
	

N
at
u
ra
l/
Cu
lt
u
ra
l	

/H
is
to
ri
c	

Co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
s	

   

Avenal	Elem	 Elem	School	 $16,337,786 834 X	 	 X	

Tamarack	Elem.	
	

Elem	School	 $2,265,330 542 X	 	 X	

Kettleman	City	
Elem	

Elem	School	 $11,316,325 321 X	 	 X	

Reef	Sunset	
Middle		

Middle	School	 $8,324,280 368 X	 	 X	

Avenal	High	 High	School	 $30,332,237 671 X	 	 X	
Sunrise	Cont.	 Continuation	High		

School	
$639,972 27 X	 	 X	

Adelante	Cont.	 Continuation	High		
School	

$419,250 8 X	 	 X	

Primary	
Community	

Community	Day	 $60,000 9 X	 	 X	

Secondary	
Community	
	

Community	Day	 $60,000 8 X	 	 X	

Avenal	Adult	
	

Adult	School	 $173,520 66 X	 	 X	

Transp	Dept	 Bus	Garage	 $427,515 5 X	 	 X	
District	Office	
	

Administrative	
Offices	&	Board	
Room	
	

$1,305,770 34 X	 	 X	

	
	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

December	2012	 	 Page	1	
 

UNINCORPORATED	KINGS	COUNTY	
COMMUNITY	PROFILE	
There	are	four	main	community	areas	in	unincorporated	Kings	County—
Armona,	Home	Garden,	Kettleman	City,	and	Stratford.	The	Board	of	
Supervisors	is	the	governing	body	for	Kings	County	and	many	special	
districts.	Each	of	the	five	members	of	the	board	is	elected	on	a	nonpartisan	
basis	to	a	four‐year	term.		

	
Geography	and	Climate	
Kings	County	encompasses	approximately	1,391	square	miles.	It	is	located	slightly	south	of	the	
geographic	center	of	California	and	occupies	part	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	and	a	portion	of	the	
eastern	slope	of	the	California	Coast	Ranges.	Kings	County	is	bounded	on	the	southwest	by	the	
Coast	Ranges,	on	the	north	and	west	by	Fresno	County,	to	the	east	by	Tulare	County,	and	to	the	
south	by	Kern	County.		Several	unincorporated	communities	are	also	located	within	the	County,	as	
well	as	the	Naval	Air	Station	Lemoore,	and	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria.	A	majority	of	the	population	
within	unincorporated	Kings	County	is	located	in	the	four	unincorporated	communities	of	Armona,	
Home	Garden,	Kettleman	City,	and	Stratford.			
	
Most	of	the	county	is	relatively	flat.	However,	elevation	ranges	from	a	low	of	175	feet	above	mean	
sea	level	in	the	Tulare	Lakebed,	to	3,500	feet	above	mean	sea	level	in	the	southwest,	where	the	
Kettleman	Hills	and	the	Kreyenhagen	Hills	are	located.	The	county	is	located	in	the	Tulare	Lake	
hydrologic	region	that	comprises	the	extreme	southern	portion	of	the	Central	Valley.	The	rivers	in	
this	region	include	the	Kings,	Kaweah,	Tule,	and	Kern,	which	all	historically	drained	into	the	Tulare	
Lake.	The	lake	was	once	of	substantial	size	during	wet	periods	but	over	time,	reclamation	districts	
built	levees	and	reclaimed	the	more	than	200,000‐acre	lakebed	for	agriculture.	The	four	rivers	were	
diverted	upstream	and	canals	were	built	to	drain	the	lake.		

The	climate	in	Kings	County	can	be	classified	as	Mediterranean	with	average	rainfall	rates	of	7.6	
inches	annually,	occurring	primarily	between	November	and	April.	The	average	annual	
temperature	is	62	degrees	Fahrenheit	(°F),	although	it	is	not	unusual	for	summer	readings	to	reach	
well	over	100°F.	Extreme	winter	lows	fall	into	the	teens	on	rare	occasions.	The	first	freeze	usually	
occurs	in	December	and	the	last	in	March.	Fog	is	common	during	the	winter	months	and	can	settle	
in	for	periods	of	up	to	two	weeks.	

Both	Interstate	5	and	Highway	198	cross	the	county	and	connect	to	State	Routes	41	and	43	and	a	
network	of	other	state	highways	and	county	roads.	Kings	County	is	served	by	the	Burlington	
Northern	Santa	Fe	Railroad,	and	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	Railroad.	The	nearest	major	airport	is	
Fresno	Yosemite	International	Airport,	located	approximately	30	miles	north	of	the	county	line.	

History	
When	the	first	white	settlers	arrived	in	Kings	County,	the	indigenous	population	consisted	of	the	
Tache	tribe	of	the	Yokut	Indians.	The	Yokuts	controlled	the	entire	San	Joaquin	Valley	from	the	delta	
to	Tejon	Pass.	The	first	white	settlement	was	a	ferry	situated	on	the	south	bank	of	the	Kings	River	
where	the	Overland	stage	route	crossed.	Known	as	Kingston,	this	town	was	part	of	Tulare	County	
until	a	bridge	replaced	the	ferry	in	1873,	and	the	town	went	into	decline	and	was	abandoned.	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	2	
 

A	few	small	settlements	followed	the	initial	settlement	at	Kingston,	but	the	first	incorporated	
community	was	Lemoore,	first	surveyed	in	1872.	The	Southern	Pacific	railroad	arrived	in	the	town	
in	1877,	and	the	second	permanent	community	began	along	the	railroad	tracks	shortly	after	its	
arrival.	Named	for	James	Madison	Hanford,	the	paymaster	of	the	Southern	Pacific,	the	second	town	
was	incorporated	in	1891.	Hanford	became	the	county	seat	two	years	later,	when	Kings	County	was	
formed	from	the	western	half	of	Tulare	County.		

The	early	economy	of	the	county	centered	on	ranching	and	farming.	The	first	vineyard	was	
established	in	1890	and	the	first	dairy	came	three	years	later.	Settlement	in	Kings	County	remained	
modest	throughout	much	of	the	county's	first	century.	The	third	incorporated	community,	
Corcoran,	was	established	along	the	San	Francisco	and	San	Joaquin	Railroad	in	1905.	In	1929,	the	
fourth	incorporated	town,	Avenal,	was	established	on	the	west	side	of	the	county	following	the	
discovery	of	oil	in	the	hills.		

Economy	
It	appears	2011	was	the	start	of	a	rebuilding	period	for	Kings	County	cities	and	unincorporated	
communities.		Though	property	values	remain	low,	there	are	some	encouraging	signs	in	the	housing	
sector	(Economic	Development	Corporation,	2012).	

Per	capita	personal	income	in	Kings	County	is	consistently	much	lower	than	the	State	average.	
However,	Kings	County’s	per	capita	income	has	increased	by	3.8%	between	2005	and	2010,	
exceeding	California’s	increase	of	1.8%	for	the	same	period.	

 
According	to	the	Kings	County	2011	Agricultural	Crop	Report,	Kings	County	is	among	the	largest	
producing	agricultural	counties	in	California.		The	gross	value	of	all	agricultural	crops	and	products	
produced	during	2011	in	Kings	County	was	$2,219,529,000.	This	represents	an	increase	of	
$501,558,000	(29.2%)	from	the	2010	value	and	is	a	record	high	figure	for	the	county.			
	
Nearly	all	crop	categories	increased	in	value.	Apiary	Products	increased	$108,000	(1.6%)	attributed	
to	increased	pollination	acres	and	price	per	colony.	Field	Crops	increased	$163,974,000	(36.5%)	
due	primarily	to	increased	cotton	acreage	and	yield,	as	well	as	the	alfalfa	hay	price.	Fruit	and	Nut	
Crops	increased	$92,966,000	(29.1%)	due	in	large	part	to	increased	production	and	price	across	
the	board,	especially	in	nuts.	Livestock	and	Poultry	increased	$30,436,000	(18.9%)	due	to	more	
cattle	and	calves	sold	and	at	a	higher	price.	Livestock	and	Poultry	Products	increased	$243,473,000	
(42.9%)	due	to	increased	milk	production	and	price.	Seed	Crops	increased	$52,000	(.7%)	due	to	
increased	acreage.	
	
Vegetable	Crops	were	the	only	category	to	decrease,	declining	by	$29,451,000	(14.3%)	due	mainly	
to	a	decrease	in	processing	tomato	acreage	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	3	
 

Population	
The	total	estimated	county	population	in	2010	was	152,982	up	from	147,729	people	in	2007.	
Population	estimates	for	the	unincorporated	areas	from	the	2010	U.S.	Census	are	included	in	the	
table	below.	Additionally,	Kings	County	houses	the	Naval	Air	Station	Lemoore	and	had	a	few	small	
communities	not	served	by	special	districts	those	communities	are	Grangeville	and	Hardwick.		
	

Unincorporated	Kings	County	Population,	2010	U.S.	Census	

Census‐
designated	
place	

Total	
Population	 White	 African	

American
Native	

American
Asian Pacific	

Islander	
Other	
races	

Two	
or	

more	
races

Hispanic
or	

Latino	
(of	any	
race)

Armona	 4,156	 2,058 99 64 85 13	 1,597	 240 2,784
Grangeville	 469	 393 15 5 5 0	 41	 10 145
Hardwick	 138	 63 5 0 0 0	 67	 3 86
Home	Garden	 1,761	 652 221 63 50 8	 677	 90 1,189
Kettleman	City	 1,439	 478 4 8 1 0	 887	 61 1,383
Lemoore	
Station	

7,438	 4,883 729 70 560 53	 418	 725 1,445

Stratford	 1,277	 574 16 17 19 1	 617	 33 1,069
All	others	not	
CDPs	
(combined)	

17,488	 11,304 377 755 267 18	 3,991	 776 7,851

	

HAZARD	IDENTIFICATION	
The	official	Planning	Team	for	Kings	County	identified	hazards	that	affect	the	county	and	developed	
hazard	profiles	based	upon	the	countywide	risk	assessment,	past	events	and	their	impacts.	
Definitions	for	the	rankings	and	a	detailed	explanation	of	the	hazards	can	be	found	in	Element	B:		
Hazard	identification	and	Risk	Assessment.	

Unincorporated	Kings	County—Hazard	Profiles	

Hazard	 Probability	of	
Occurrence	

Potential	
Magnitude/
Geographic	
Extent	

Significance

Dam	Failure		 Unlikely Catastrophic Low	
Drought	 Occasional Critical	to	

Catastrophic	
High	

Earthquake	 Occasional Critical High	
Extreme	Heat	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Flood	 Likely Critical Medium	
Fog	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Freeze	 Likely Limited Medium	
Landslide	 Occasional Negligible Low	
Soil	Hazards:	Expansive	
Liquefaction	Erosion	

Unlikely Negligible Low	

Tornado	 Occasional Negligible Low	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	4	
 

Wildfire	 Likely Critical Medium	
 
Past	Events	
Information	on	past	events	was	provided	in	Element	B:		Hazard	Identification	and	Risk	Assessment.	

Asset	Inventory	
The	table	that	follows	lists	the	critical	facilities	and	other	community	assets	identified	by	the	
county’s	Planning	Team	as	important	to	protect	in	the	event	of	a	disaster.		

Unincorporated	Kings	County—Critical	Facilities	and	Community	Assets		

Facility	 Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy/	
Capacity	

Kings	County	Government	Center $89,800,000	
Kings	County	Historic	Courthouse Priceless	
Kings	County	Corporation	Yard 	

Kings	County	Fairgrounds 	
Armona	Fire	Station	No.	5 $1,630,000	

Corcoran	Fire	Station	No.	11 $1,500,000	
Stratford	Fire	Station	No.	10 $1,250,000	
Avenal	Fire	Station	No.	12		 $985,000	

Kettleman	City	Fire	Station	No.	9		 $1,290,000	
South	Lemoore	Fire	Station	No.	7	 $1,180,000	

Island	Fire	Station	No.	6	(Lemoore) $1,050,000	
Hardwick	Fire	Station	No.	2	(Hanford) $1,270,000	

Burris	Park	Fire	Station	No.	1	(Kingsburg) $1,350,000	
Kings	County	Health	Department‐Hanford	Clinic Unknown	

Kings	County	Health	Department‐Lemoore	
Clinic $1,075,000	

Kings	County	Health	Department‐Avenal	Clinic $1,075,000	
Kings	County	Health	Department‐Corcoran	

Clinic
$850,000	

Kings	County	Health	Department‐Kettleman	
Clinic $895,000	

Kings	View	Center	–	Medical	Clinic $5,500,000	
San	Joaquin	Valley	Railroad 	

Burlington	Northern	Santa	Fe	Railroad 	
Kettleman	Hills	Community	Center 	

Palace	Indian	Gaming	Center 	
Chemical	Waste	Management 	

Kettleman	City	Wastewater	Treatment 	
Kettleman	City	CSD	Office	and	Water 	
Stratford	PUD	Wastewater	Treatment 	

Stratford	PUD	Water	Well 	
Stratford	PUD	Water	Well 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	5	
 

Facility	 Replacement	
Value	

Occupancy/	
Capacity	

Stratford	PUD	Office 	
Kettleman	City	CSD	Water 	
Kettleman	City	CSD	Water 	

Home	Garden	CSD	Water	Well 	
Home	Garden	CSD	Office 	

Home	Garden	CSD	Water	Well 	
Power	Stations 	

Substation	‐	Kettleman	Hills 	
Substation	‐	Chevron	Pipeline	Kettleman 	

Substation	‐	Tulare	Lake 	
Substation	‐	Henrietta 	
Substation	‐	Angiola 	

Substation	‐	Jacobs	Corner 	
Substation	‐	Guernsey 	
Substation	‐	Contadina 	
Substation	‐	Armstrong 	
Substation	‐	Reserce	Oil 	

Substation	‐	Quebec	Corcoran	Prison 	
Substation	‐	Boswell 	

Substation	‐	Hardwick 	
Pumping	Plant	‐	Las	Perillas	 	
Pumping	Plant	‐	Badger	Hill	 	

Power	Switching	Station	‐	Armstrong	 	
	

More	information	on	critical	facilities	in	the	county,	including	the	California	Aqueduct,	the	
Kettleman	Hills	Hazardous	Waste	Facility,	and	the	Lemoore	Naval	Air	Station	can	be	found	in	
Element	B.2	Vulnerability	Assessment.	The	vulnerability	assessment	also	provides	information	on	
the	county’s	natural,	historical,	and	cultural	assets;	economic	assets;	and	social	vulnerability	to	
hazards.	The	assessment	indicates	that	some	of	the	unincorporated	areas	of	the	county	are	the	most	
socially	vulnerable	in	the	county.	As	a	general	rule,	the	unincorporated	communities	tend	to	be	
more	disadvantaged	than	their	incorporated	counterparts.		Part	of	this	trend	shows	there	is	a	
higher	percentage	of	the	population	under	the	age	of	18	and	a	higher	percentage	of	ethnic	origin	
that	may	be	non‐English	speaking.		

Estimating	Potential	Losses	
The	table	on	the	following	page	shows	the	maximum	population	and	building	exposure	by	
jurisdiction	in	Kings	County	in	terms	of	population	and	the	number	and	values	of	structures.	As	can	
be	seen	in	the	table	on	the	following	page,	approximately	25%	of	the	structures	and	value	are	found	
in	the	unincorporated	are	of	the	county.		More	information	on	how	these	estimates	were	calculated	
can	be	found	in	Element	B.3	Vulnerability	Assessment.	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	6	
 

	
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Future	Development	Trends	
Policies	in	the	Kings	County	General	Plan	direct	urban	growth	to	the	four	incorporated	cities	and	
the	four	unincorporated	communities	of	Armona,	Home	Garden,	Kettleman	City,	and	Stratford.	Of	
the	unincorporated	communities,	Home	Garden	is	close	to	being	completely	developed	and	
Stratford	is	nearing	development	capacity,	but	recent	development	interest	lead	to	the	adoption	of	
Stratford	Community	Plan	in	2010	that	made	allowance	for	an	expanded	community	size	through	a	
specific	plan	that	could	potentially	double	the	size.		Current	economic	circumstances	hinder	that	
potential,	but	the	plan	is	in	place.		
	
These	areas	are	not	likely	to	develop	much	further	in	the	near	future	due	primarily	to	decreased	
demand	for	new	housing.	Additional	residential	growth	is	likely	to	occur	in	Armona;	however,	the	
community	is	an	area	of	lower	vulnerability	to	natural	hazards.	Kettleman	City	is	the	community	
with	the	greatest	potential	for	substantial	commercial	and	some	residential	growth	as	a	new	
surface	water	treatment	system	is	currently	being	developed.	Current	commercial	investment	and	
growth	include	a	new	FedEx	transfer	facility	being	built	on	a	120,000	square	foot	turnaround	
facility	to	serve	their	west	coast	truck	fleet,	and	a	new	19,140	square	foot	multi	commercial	
building	being	built	by	Bravo	Farms. 
	
One	industry	that	has	received	a	great	deal	of	attention	in	Kings	County	the	last	three	year	is	
renewable	energy.	Multiple	utility	level	solar	photovoltaic	companies	are	making	investments	in	
locations	from	Avenal	on	the	west	to	Corcoran	on	the	east.	One	of	the	Avenal	projects,	a	48	MW	
solar	photovoltaic	facility	on	approximately	400	acre	is	providing	power	to	the	California	power	
grid.	In	addition,	several	other	commercial	solar	projects	are	approved	and	in	various	planning	
stages	moving	towards	construction.		These	permitted	solar	facilities	comprise	684	MW	on	4,073	
acres	(Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency,	2012)	
	

The	California	High	Speed	Rail	Authority	is	planning	for	a	high	speed	rail	system	that	is	intended	to	
connect	the	two	major	urban	centers	of	Los	Angeles	and	San	Francisco.		Approximately	800	miles	of	
high	speed	rail	service	is	envisioned.		The	first	two	segments	are	planned	for	construction	between	
Merced	and	Bakersfield,	with	approximately	28	miles	planned	to	cross	through	Kings	County.		In	
2012,	$6.5	billion	in	Federal	grant	funding	and	State	bond	funding	were	allocated	for	the	first	two	
sections	and	intend	to	fund	high	speed	rail	alignment	and	rail	construction	through	2017.		As	this	
new	transportation	facility	is	planned	to	cross	through	the	county	near	Corcoran	and	Hanford	
running	north/south	and	requires	a	grade	separated	alignment,	the	creation	of	this	facility	will	pose	

Jurisdiction	
Exposed	
Population

Buildings	
Number Value	

Kings	County	
Unincorporated	
Areas	

34,1786 9,707 $1,028,530,819	

Avenal	 15,505 1,754 $128,111,815	
Corcoran	 24,813 2,966 $257,957,828	
Hanford	 53,967 14,080 $1,991,860,304	
Lemoore	 24,531 5,913 $853,282,697	
Total	 152,982 34,420 $4,259,743,463		



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	7	
 

a	new	permanent	community	dividing	factor	in	the	county.		As	specific	design	factors	were	not	
available	at	the	time	of	this	plan	development,	future	construction	designs	will	likely	necessitate	
reassessment	and	revisions	to	this	plan	as	the	realities	of	this	project	are	revealed.	

CAPABILITY	ASSESSMENT	
Capabilities	are	the	programs	and	polices	currently	in	use	to	reduce	hazard	impacts	or	that	could	be	
used	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities.	The	capability	assessment	is	divided	into	five	
sections:	regulatory,	administrative	and	technical,	fiscal,	outreach	and	partnerships,	and	other	
mitigation	efforts.	

Regulatory	Capability	
The	regulatory	and	planning	capabilities	table	lists	planning	and	land	management	tools	typically	
used	by	local	and	tribal	jurisdictions	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities	and	indicates	those	
that	are	in	place	in	Kings	County.		

Unincorporated	Kings	County—Regulatory	and	Planning	Capabilities	

Regulatory	Tool		 Yes/No	 Comments	
General	plan	 Yes Adopted	January 26, 2010	
Zoning	ordinance	 Yes Adopted	1964, last	amended	2011	

Currently	undergoing	a	comprehensive	update	
Subdivision	ordinance	 Yes 2001
Site	plan	review	requirements	 Yes Will	be	updated as	part	of	the	Zoning	Ordinance
Growth	management	ordinance	 No
Floodplain	ordinance	 Yes Flood	Damage	Prevention	Ordinance,	updated	

March	2,	2010	
Other	special	purpose	ordinance	
(stormwater,	steep	slope,	
wildfire)	

No Fire	Prevention	and	Protection	Ordinance

Building	code	 Yes Version:	2010 California	Building	Code
Fire	department	ISO	rating	 Yes Rating:	4
Erosion	or	sediment	control	
program	

No

Stormwater	management	
program	

No Draft	plan

Capital	improvements	plan	 Yes Draft	10‐year	plan
Economic	development	plan	 Yes Kings	County	Economic	Development	Corporation
Local	emergency	operations	plan Yes 2008,	The	plan	will	be updated	in	2013

	

Kings	County	General	Plan,	2010	‐	The	General	Plan	was	originally	adopted	in	1993	and	included	
several	subsequent	amendments.	A	comprehensive	General	Plan	update	began	in	2006	and	
resulted	in	the	adoption	of	the	2035	Kings	County	General	Plan	on	January	26,	2010,	which	
replaced	the	1993	General	Plan	in	its	entirety	and	added	a	new	Health	and	Safety	Element,	and	Air	
Quality	Element.		This	update	General	Plan	defines	the	County’s	goals,	objectives	and	policies	that	
guide	the	physical	growth,	use	and	development	of	land	under	the	jurisdictional	authority	of	the	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	8	
 

County	through	the	year	2035.	
	
The	purpose	of	the	Health	and	Safety	Element		is	to	reduce	or	eliminate	long	term	risk	to	people	
and	property	from	natural	or	human	caused	hazards.	Traditionally	viewed	as	an	element	that	
focuses	on	planning	for	catastrophes,	this	element	is	now	expanded	to	include	community	health	
and	community	safety	related	issues	that	are	more	commonly	associated	with	the	built	
environment	as	affecting	the	health	and	safety	of	residents	living	within	the	County.	This	element	
concentrates	on	those	hazards	and	community	factors	which	are	within	the	responsibility	of	the	
County	to	mitigate.	These	include	land	use	decisions	and	patterns	of	development	that	directly	and	
indirectly	affect	the	health,	wellbeing	and	personal/property	protection	of	county	residents,	and	
the	mitigation	of	potential	natural	hazards.	The	Health	and	Safety	Element	integrates	the	County’s	
Local	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	and	describes	the	location	and	extent	of	known	hazards,	and	provides	
maps	of	hazardous	land	uses	and	evacuation	routes.	
 
Kings	County,	2008	‐	The	Emergency	Operations	Plan	addresses	the	planned	response	to	
emergency	situations	associated	with	natural	disasters,	technological	incidents,	human	caused	
events	and	national	security	emergencies	in	or	affecting	Kings	County.	The	plan	establishes	the	
emergency	management	organization	required	to	mitigate	any	significant	emergency	or	disaster	
affecting	Kings	County;	identifies	the	policies,	responsibilities,	and	procedures	required	to	protect	
the	health	and	safety	of	communities,	public	and	private	property,	and	the	environmental	effects	of	
natural,	human	caused	and	technological	emergencies	and	disasters;	and	establishes	the	
operational	concepts	and	policies	for	disaster	response	and	recovery.		This	plan	will	be	revised	and	
updated	in	2013	to	meet	local,	state	and	federal	needs.	

California	Division	of	Forestry	and	Fire	Protection	(Cal	FIRE)	Fresno‐Kings	Unit	Pre‐Fire	
Management	Plan,	2012	–	The	CAL	FIRE	has	primary	responsibility	for	fire	protection	for	over	
923,000	acres	of	direct	protection	lands	in	the	Fresno‐Kings	Unit.	Most	of	this	area	is	in	Fresno	
County.	In	Kings	County,	CAL	FIRE	direct	protection	areas	are	west	of	Highway	33.	The	pre‐fire	
management	plan	assesses	level	of	service,	assets	at	risk,	fuels,	and	weather	to	evaluate	wildfire	
risk	in	the	Fresno‐Kings	Unit.	Priority	areas	and	projects	are	identified	for	each	battalion	unit.		

Emergency	Services	Ordinance,	1975	and	1982	‐	The	purposes	of	this	ordinance	are	to	provide	
for	the	preparation	and	implementation	of	plans	for	the	protection	of	people	and	property	within	
the	county	in	the	event	of	an	emergency;	the	direction	of	the	emergency	organization;	and	the	
coordination	of	the	emergency	functions	of	this	county	with	the	cities	in	the	county	and	with	all	
other	public	agencies,	corporations,	organizations,	and	affected	private	persons.	The	ordinance	
establishes	the	Kings	Area	Disaster	Council	and	designates	the	membership	of	the	council.	
Membership	includes	one	member	of	the	Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors	(director	of	
emergency	services),	the	assistant	director	of	emergency	services,	a	member	of	the	city	council	
from	each	of	the	cities,	the	emergency	manager	from	each	of	the	cities,	and	one	member	at	large.	
The	council’s	powers	include	the	development	of	emergency	and	mutual	aid	plans	and	agreements	
and	the	ordinances	and	resolutions	to	implement	them.		

Fire	Prevention	and	Protection	Ordinance	Section	10‐16	and	10‐17	–	Requires	every	person	
with	land	or	a	building	or	structure	upon	land	within	the	unincorporated	area	of	the	county,	which	
has	vegetation	that	is	flammable	or	easily	ignited	and	is	adjacent	to	farming	lands	having	flammable	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	9	
 

vegetation	or	a	highway,	maintain	an	effective	fire	break	of	at	least	20	feet	in	width	on	the	outer	
boundary	of	the	lands	and/or	around	the	building	during	fire	season.			

Flood	Damage	Prevention	Ordinance,	Updated	2010	‐	The	purpose	of	this	ordinance	is	to	
promote	the	public	health,	safety,	and	general	welfare	and	to	minimize	public	and	private	losses	
due	to	flood	conditions	in	specific	areas	by	provisions	designed	to:	

 Protect	human	life	and	health	

 Minimize	expenditure	of	public	money	for	costly	flood	control	projects	

 Minimize	the	need	for	rescue	and	relief	efforts	associated	with	flooding	and	generally	
undertaken	at	the	expense	of	the	general	public	

 Minimize	prolonged	business	interruptions	

 Minimize	damage	to	public	facilities	and	utilities	such	as	water	and	gas	mains,	electric,	
telephone	and	sewer	lines,	and	streets	and	bridges	located	in	areas	of	special	flood	hazard	

 Help	maintain	a	stable	tax	base	by	providing	for	the	sound	use	and	development	of	areas	of	
special	flood	hazard	so	as	to	minimize	future	blight	areas	

 Assist	potential	buyers	in	identifying	properties	that	are	in	areas	of	special	flood	hazard	

 Promote	those	who	occupy	the	areas	of	special	flood	hazard	assuming	responsibility	for	
their	actions	

Natural	Resources	and	Conservation	District	–	The	Excelsior‐Kings	River	Resource	Conservation	
District,	and	the	Tulare	Lake	Resource	Conservation	District	are	the	county’s	two	districts	primarily	
responsible	for	preserving	permanent	open	space	land	that	protects	natural	watercourses,	drainage	
basins,	and	sloughs,	which	are	necessary	to	safeguard	the	health,	safety,	and	welfare	of	people	in	
rural	and	urban	areas	of	the	county.	These	districts	facilitate	the	creation	of	facilities	such	as	flood	
control	channels,	water	pumping	stations	and	reservoirs,	irrigation	ditches	and	canals,	and	ditch	
and	canal	rights‐of‐way,	settling	and	water	conservation	recharging	basins	and	parkways,	and	
recreation	areas,	parks,	playgrounds.		

Administrative	and	Technical	Capability	
The	table	below	identifies	the	county	personnel	responsible	for	activities	related	to	mitigation	and	
loss	prevention	in	Kings	County.	Many	positions	are	full	time	and/or	filled	by	the	same	person.	A	
summary	of	technical	resources	follows.	

Unincorporated	Kings	County	—Personnel	Capabilities	

Personnel	Resources	 Department/Position	
Engineer	and/or	Planner	with	knowledge	of	
land	development/land	management	practices

County	Community	Development	Agency;	Public	
Works	Director	

Professional	trained	in	construction	practices	
related	to	buildings	and/or	infrastructure	

County	Community	Development	
Agency/County	Building	Official,	Public	Works	
Director	

Full	time	building	official	 County	Community	Development	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	10	
 

Agency/County	Building	Official	
Floodplain	manager	 County	Community	Development	

Agency/County	Building	Official	
Emergency	manager	 County	Emergency	Services	Coordinator
Grant	writer	 YES	various	departments	
Other	 Office	of	Administration,	Sheriff’s	Office,	and	

Public	Works	Department	
	

The	Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	has	a	full‐time	GIS	coordinator,	who	assists	the	
cities	and	districts	in	the	county	with	GIS	data	needs.	Another	technical	capability	is	the	Emergency	
Alert	System	public	warning	system	operated	by	the	Kings	County	Sheriff’s	Office.		The	access	to	the	
Emergency	Alert	System	is	also	available	through	the	National	Weather	Service	office	in	Hanford.	

Fiscal	Capability	
The	following	table	identifies	financial	tools	or	resources	that	the	county	could	potentially	use	to	
help	fund	mitigation	activities.	There	are	currently	no	specific	funding	sources	for	hazard	
mitigation.	

Unincorporated	Kings	County	—Available	Financial	Tools	and	Resources	

Financial	Resources	
Accessible/
Eligible	to	
Use		

Comments	

Community	Development	Block	
Grants	

Yes Kings	County	Community	Development	
Agency	administers	program	

Capital	improvements	project	
funding	

Yes State	and	federal funding	channelled	
through	Kings	County	Association	of	
Governments	and	other	county	agencies	
such	as	Public	Works	

Authority	to	levy	taxes	for	specific	
purposes	

Yes Must	be approved	by	voters	

Fees	for	water,	sewer,	gas,	or	
electric	services	

No Services	provided	through	cities	or	districts	
and	levied	through	property	assessments	

Impact	fees	for	new	development Yes Adopted	development	impact	fees	for	law	
enforcement	and	fire		

Incur	debt	through	general	
obligation	bonds	

Yes

Incur	debt	through	special	tax	
bonds	

Yes Requires	approval	by	two‐thirds	of	voters

Incur	debt	through	private	
activities	

Yes Do	not	have	any	in	place	

Federal	Grant	Programs	(Hazard	
Mitigation	Grant	Program)	

Yes Various	Departments	

	

Outreach	and	Partnerships	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	11	
 

The	Kings	County	Fire	Department	provides	education	and	outreach	on	earthquake	and	fire	safety.	
Other	county	departments	with	education	programs	include	the	Sheriff’s	Office,	Agricultural	
Commissioner,	and	the	Department	of	Public	Health.	

The	“Are	You	Okay?”	program	is	a	free	computerized	telephone	system	provided	by	the	Kings	
County	Sheriff’s	Office	to	check	on	senior	citizens	or	disabled/homebound	individuals.	It	is	
available	in	the	cities	of	Corcoran,	Hanford,	and	Lemoore.	This	program	could	be	enhanced	to	check	
on	these	vulnerable	populations	during	extreme	temperature	events.		

The	Kings	County	Economic	Development	Commission	meets	regularly	and	works	with	the	cities,	
county,	state,	utilities,	existing	businesses,	financial	institutions,	and	other	interested	parties	to	
ensure	that	economic	development	programs	are	meeting	community	goals.	The	commission	works	
to	create	job	opportunities	and	to	increase	the	bottom	line	for	business	through	development	and	
retention	assistance.	The	commission	could	be	an	important	partner	in	outreach	efforts	to	educate	
businesses	about	mitigation	and	emergency	preparedness	and	in	economic	recovery	planning.		

The	Kings	County	Association	of	Governments	was	created	in	1967	as	a	voluntary	association	of	
governments	to	provide	a	cooperative	body	for	the	resolution	of	issues	that	go	beyond	established	
jurisdictional	boundaries.	The	association	exchanges	planning	information	between	member	
agencies	related	to	planned	area	wide	development	with	emphasis	on	transportation;	identifies	and	
studies	problems	in	areas	of	urban	growth	affecting	various	agencies;	considers	questions	of	
mutual	concern	to	the	county,	cities,	and	other	agencies	and	makes	recommendations	on	an	
advisory	basis;	provides	for	citizen	involvement	in	the	planning	process;	provides	technical	
services	to	the	member	agencies;	and	operates	as	the	regional	transportation	planning	agency.	

GOALS	AND	OBJECTIVES	
Kings	County	adopts	the	hazard	mitigation	goals	and	objectives	developed	by	the	Planning	Team	
and	described	in	Element	C.3	Mitigation	Goals.		

MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
The	planning	team	for	the	unincorporated	areas	of	the	county	identified	and	prioritized	the	
following	mitigation	actions	based	on	the	risk	assessment.	Background	information	as	well	as	
information	on	how	the	action	will	be	implemented	and	administered,	such	as	ideas	for	
implementation,	responsible	office,	partners,	potential	funding,	estimated	cost,	and	timeline	also	
are	described.		

  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	12	
 

2012	MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
Mitigation	Action:	Unincorporated	Kings	County	#1—Emergency	Power	Switching	System	
for	Primary	Care	Clinics	
	
Action:	
	

Purchase,	install,	test	and	utilize	a	Manual	Transfer	Switch	in	each	of	
the	5	community	clinics	to	allow	the	rapid	connection	of	emergency	
power	generators	in	the	event	of	a	major	power	outage	or	disaster.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

High

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

These	clinics	have	a	day	to	day	role	in	providing	basic	health	services	
to	the	least	fortunate	residents	of	Kings	County.		Their	usefulness	in	a	
major	disaster	is	limited	due	to	the	lack	of	emergency	power,	which	
means	that	a	power	outage	no	matter	what	the	source	greatly	inhibits	
the	Clinics’	ability	to	perform	either	its	day	to	day	mission	or	its	
functions	during	a	natural	disaster.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	which	has	a	high	priority.		The	initial	step	of	
installing	the	Manual	Transfer	Switches	will	be	accomplished	by	the	
County.		The	procurement	or	identification	of	rental	generators	to	
power	the	clinics	in	an	emergency	is	the	unfunded	portion	of	this	
project,	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	the	Department	of	
Public	Health’s	normal	budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	
implemented	either	as	a	grant	project	or	grants	from	the	CA	
Department	of	Public	Health	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Department	of	Public	Health

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM	and	Operational	Area	partners.	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Public	Health	Grant	Programs,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
limited	future	general	funds.	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$250,000	for	the	complete	installation	of	5	Manual	Transfer	Switches,	
approximately	$150,000	for	(5)	60kw	portable	generators	to	power	
the	clinics	in	an	emergency.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Emergency	power	system	will	ensure	the	clinics	can	stay	on	line
independent	of	commercial	power.		This	will	allow	them	to	continue	
their	lifesaving	mission	of	initial	medical	care,	triage	and	casualty	
collection	during	any	disaster	that	disrupts	local	commercial	power.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2013	to	coincide	with	
the	completion	of	the	County’s	new	emergency	plan.		

 
  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	13	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Unincorporated	Kings	County	#2—Identify	requirements	and	create	a	
project	plan	for	an	augmentation	to	emergency	power	system	to	the	four	county	Hospitals	to	
maintain	HVAC	during	heat	and	utility	emergencies.	
	
Action:	
	

Identify	requirements	to	purchase,	install,	test	and	utilize	a	diesel	
powered	emergency	generator	system	to	augment	the	existing	power	
systems	to	maintain	HVAC	during	any	condition	or	disaster	in	the	
County.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 High
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Kings	County	experiences	annually	high	heat	events.	Many	of	these	
events	correspond	to	periods	of	limited	commercial	power	
availability.		Although	area	hospitals	have	emergency	power,	it	is	
insufficient	to	run	their	HVAC	plants	during	a	power	outage.			This	
results	in	sometimes	triple	digit	temperatures	within	their	facilities.		
Augmenting	the	emergency	power	would	provide	heating	and	cooling	
for	the	hospital	population,	power	to	maintain	medical	devices,	and	
refrigeration	and	meal	preparation.	Emergency	power	enables	the	
area	hospitals	to	maintain	all	hospital	functions	during	a	natural	
disaster.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	normal	
budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	implemented	either	as	a	
phased	grant	project,	a	project	under	the	homeland	security	grant	
programs.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Department	of	Public	Health,	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM/Fire,	Private	Medical	Service	Providers	and	Office	
of	Community	Development.	

Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program.

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$50,000	for	the	complete	Project	plan.

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Augmenting	the	Hospital’s	Emergency	power	system	will	ensure	that	
they	can	stay	on	line	independent	of	commercial	power.		This	will	
allow	them	to	continue	their	mission	of	treating,	sheltering	and	
caring	for	the	hospitalized	population.		It	also	creates	a	community	
resource	in	the	event	of	a	disaster	that	can	shelter	additional	people,	
provide	a	clinic	site	for	casualty	collection	and	treatment,	and	provide	
a	resource	to	assist	in	disaster	food	service	and	population	
protection.		The	ability	to	maintain	the	HVAC	systems	by	generator	
will	allow	the	hospitals	to	be	fully	used	annually	during	heat	waves	
despite	limitations	of	the	commercial	power	grid.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2013	to	coincide	with	
the	completion	of	the	New	Hazard	Mitigation	Plan.	

 
  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	14	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Unincorporated	Kings	County	#3	–	Water	Recharge	Basin	Partnership	
Program 

Action:	
	

Partner	with	the	State	and	contiguous	counties	to	improve	
coordination,	planning,	and	investment	in	long‐term	water	supplies	
by	developing	a	comprehensive	water	recharge	basin	project	to	meet	
demands	of	ongoing	growth	and	development.	

Jurisdiction:	 Multi‐Jurisdictional
Priority:	 Low
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Counties	within	the	central	and	southern	San	Joaquin	Valley	region	
are	experiencing	tremendous	growth	as	a	result	of	low	land	costs,	
affordable	housing,	and	low	mortgage	interest	rates.	This	growth	
surge	along	with	depleting	surface	and	ground	water	supplies	and	
projected	outlook	of	global	warming	may	severely	cripple	the	
available	water	supplies	to	Kings	County	during	years	of	drought.	
Other	regions	are	currently	working	on	regional	water	management	
plans	to	receive	bond	funds	for	water	capacity	building	projects.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	Kings	River	Conservation District	is	currently	coordinating plans	
to	facilitate	proactive	water	capacity	building	programs	and	projects	
to	address	the	future	needs	of	the	county’s	agricultural,	rural,	and	
urban	water	needs.	This	effort	should	be	built	upon	to	develop	a	
water	management	plan	that	covers	Kings	County.	The	plan	should	
incorporate	a	countywide	strategy	for	conservation	programs,	
recycled	water	reuse	programs,	programs	that	build	additional	
recharge	and	storage,	and	policies	that	work	to	retain	existing	surface	
water	rights	within	the	county	for	future	use.		

Responsible	Office:	
	

State	DWR	led	joint	powers	authority	should	be	developed	to	manage	
this	multijurisdictional	project.	

Partners:	
	

California	Department	of	Water	Resources,	Kings	County	water	and	
irrigation	districts.	

Potential	Funding:	 Possible	grant	and	bond	funds through	recent	State	Propositions.
Cost	Estimate:	
	

$60,000	to	$80,000	for	a	region	wide	water	capacity	study	and	
$10,000	to	$45,000	for	each	jurisdiction	implementation	of	planning	
policy	recommendations.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

$1000s	in	potential agricultural	and	other	resource	losses	avoided	
over	the	long	term	during	years	of	severe	drought.	$1000s	in	the	
reduction	of	emergency	responses	and	recovery	supplies	for	cities	
and	communities	unprepared	and	left	without	adequate	water	
supplies	for	their	residents.	

Timeline:	
	

Countywide	water	management	plan	to	be	completed	in	three	years,	
then	ongoing	efforts	

Completed	by:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development Agency	

	

	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	15	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Unincorporated	Kings	County	#4	–	Community	Alerting	and	Early	Warning	
System	(Reverse	9‐1‐1	like	system) 

	
Action:	
	

Purchase,	install,	test	and	utilize	a	community	wide	alert	and	early	
warning	system	that	alerts	residents	by	phone,	email,	cell	phone	and	
other	electronic	communication	devices.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	County’s	existing	emergency	notification	system	that	is	
exclusively	phone	based	is	antiquated	and	inefficient.		It	is	estimated	
that	due	to	the	proliferation	of	cell	phones	and	other	electronic	
devices,	existing	landline	based	systems	reach	less	than	60%	of	the	
targeted	households	during	a	notification	event.		Secondly,	updating	
the	core	databases	and	incorporating	new	technologies	is	expensive	
and	cumbersome.		The	County	seeks	to	purchase	an	updated	system	
that	allows	families	to	modify	their	profile	online	and	alert	all	the	
communications	devices	each	household	possess	to	maximize	the	
ability	to	alert	and	warn	the	residents	of	the	county	wherever	they	
might	be	during	times	of	emergency.	This	countywide	system	can	
integrate	alert	and	warning,	EAS	messaging	and	customized	
notifications	of	first	responders,	targeted	neighborhood	or	
demographic	groups	as	needed.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

	This	project	could	be	implemented	either	as	a	grant	project,	a	project	
under	the	homeland	security	grant	programs	or	as	a	local	cost	
sharing	project	funded	by	each	jurisdictions	general	funds.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	OEM

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Operational	Area	partners,	county	communications	and	
Cal	EMA,	State	Department	of	Corrections,	State	High	Speed	Rail	
Authority.	

Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
potentially	the	EOC	Grant	Program	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$350,000	for	the	complete	Countywide	system,	$30,000	annually	to	
staff	and	maintain	the	system.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Timely	alerting	and	warning	to	all	segments	of	the	county’s	
population	during	a	disaster	or	major	event	leads	to	appropriate	and	
informed	responses	by	the	residents.		Simplifies	sheltering,	
evacuation,	resource	efforts	which	will	save	time,	resources	and	lives	
in	an	emergency.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014.	
	

 
	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	16	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#5—Transportable	Shelter	Caches	for	Displaced	
Populations.	
	
Action:	
	

Purchase	4	8x12	dual	axle	cargo	trailers,	4	triple	mode	small	
refrigerators,	80	adjustable	cots,	320	standard	cots,	800	individual	
comfort	kits,	400	blankets,	400	pillows,	200	folding	chairs,	light	
sticks,	trash	bags	and	800	potable	1	liter	water	bottles;	to	create	four	
deployable	shelter	sets	in	order	to	shelter	up	to	400	displaced	
persons.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 Low
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	county	has	a	large	senior	and	access	and	functional	needs
population.	In	order	to	augment	the	ARC	disaster	services,	Kings	
County	would	create	four	disaster	caches	to	assist	the	ARC	in	
sheltering	displaced	persons	during	a	disaster.		

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	the	
County’s	normal	budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	
implemented	either	as	a	grant	project,	a	project	under	the	homeland	
security	grant	programs	or	as	a	local	fund	raising	effort.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	OEM and	the	local	ARC

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Human	Services	Agency

Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
potentially	Red	Cross	fundraising	programs.	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$85,000	for	the	four	shelter	cache	trailers	and	contents	as	described	
above.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

The	caches	will	greatly	assist	the	ARC	and	will	allow	them	to	continue	
their	mission	of	sheltering	and	caring	for	the	displaced	population	
within	the	county	in	congregate	care	shelters.		It	also	creates	a	
community	resource	in	the	event	of	a	disaster	that	can	rapidly	
mobilize	to	create	viable	shelter	sites,	shelter	additional	people	
where	needed	and	provide	a	resource	to	assist	in	population	
protection.		The	ability	to	maintain	and	deploy	these	caches	where	
needed	in	a	secure	cargo	trailer	also	develops	a	mutual	aid	resource	
to	help	contiguous	jurisdictions	in	times	of	need.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014	to	correspond	
with	the	completion	of	the	new	Hazard	Mitigation	and	Emergency	
Plans.	

Remarks:	 Low	Priority	project	for	public	safety.
 
  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	17	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Unincorporated	Kings	County	#6—	Develop	a	Comprehensive	Plan	to	
Fund	and	Build	a	New	County	Emergency	Operations	Center	(EOC)	
	
Action:	
	

Develop	a	standing	EOC	group	to	review	and	discuss	specifications,	
supervise	the	creation	of	construction	plans,	identify	funding	
mechanism	and	requirements	and	identify	the	site	for	the	new	Kings	
County	EOC.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 High
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	County’s Fire Administration	building	is	inadequate	and	space	to	
effectively	coordinate	operations	on	a	daily	basis	and	during	a	
disaster	need	to	be	improved	or	built.		In	recognition	of	this	situation,	
the	County	has	identified	the	requirement	for	a	new	EOC	that	will	
allow	for	effective	pre‐disaster	training,	disaster	response	operations	
coordination	and	recovery	operations	for	the	county	and	the	greater	
operational	area.		The	county	is	taking	a	phased	approach.		The	
existing	EOC	in	the	fire	administration	building	is	being	moved	to	a	
larger	but	still	inadequate	interim	portable	building.		This	interim	
building	will	provide	limited	utility	while	a	modern,	adequate	and	
integrated	EOC	is	designed,	funded	and	built.		The	County	has	
identified	potential	sites	for	the	EOC.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Due	to	the	current	identified	needs	versus	the	current	economic	
reality,	the	county	lacks	the	where‐with‐all	to	construct	the	center	
without	assistance.		By	phasing	the	project	it	can	be	added	as	funding	
becomes	available.		The	goal	of	this	project	is	to	have	shovel	ready	
project	specifications,	plan	and	site	ready	for	when	those	funds	
become	available.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	OEM

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Fire	Department,	Kings	County	Environmental	Health,	
Kings	County	Information	Technology	Department,	and	Kings	County	
Public	Works	Department	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

General	Fund,	HMP	Grants,	EOC	Grant	Program,	Partnership	with	
State,	County	and	Transportation	Agencies.		
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$120,000	in	staff	time	to	develop	the	project	plans.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Expanding	the	current EOC	functions	into	one	modern,	disaster	
resistant	site	will	greatly	improves	daily	and	disaster	emergency	
coordination,	resources	management	and	response.	

Timeline:	
	

Completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2015,	construction	dependent	
on	future	funding.	

Remarks:	 This	was	identified	by	the	Planning	Team	as	a	high	priority.
 

  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	18	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#7—Assessment	of	High	Speed	Rail	Project	Impacts	upon	
Critical	Infrastructure			
	
Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	infrastructure	and	lifeline	utilities,	
including	access	and	egress	routes	that	may	be	disrupted	due	to	the	
construction	of	high	speed	rail	through	Kings	County.		Identify	and	
prioritize	projects	for	multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	
	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 High
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Different	governmental	entities within	the	county	are	responsible	for	
providing	necessary	daily	services	such	as	water,	sewer,	and	storm	
drainage	to	residents,	and	emergency	response.	The	creation	of	a	28	
mile	long,	high	speed	rail	corridor	with	a	minimum	above	grade	track	
elevation	of	10	feet	greatly	complicates	many	of	these	issues.		The	
lack	of	on	grade	crossings	canalizes	traffic	to	a	limited	number	of	
overpasses,	complicating	evacuation,	emergency	response	and	
potentially	prisoner	transport	or	relocation	in	times	of	disaster.		The	
impact	of	this	corridor	on	flooding,	traffic,	evacuation	and	urban	
growth	are	poorly	understood	as	insufficient	project	details	are	not	
currently	available.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Evaluate	high	speed	rail	infrastructure construction	plans	as	they	
become	available	to	assess	and	prioritize	impacts	to	local	
infrastructure	as	this	information	was	not	released	during	the	
environmental	review	phase.		Local	community	planning	efforts		
should	then	identify	and	prioritize	needed	infrastructure	
improvements	or	enhancements	to	reduce	the	vulnerability	of	crucial	
infrastructure	from	natural	hazard	risk	exasperated	by	this	major	
public	works	project.	

Responsible	Office:	 	Kings	County;	Cities	of	Hanford	and	Corcoran	
Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	and	community	
service	districts	and	public	utility	district.	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund	for	community	planning	efforts	and	
LAFCO	funds	for	municipal	service	review	updates.		

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$30,000	to	$100,000	for	each	of	the	unincorporated	and	incorporated	
communities	along	the	rail	corridor.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

By	identifying	the	potentially	negative	impacts	of	this	massive	public	
works	project,	more	effective	and	realistic	emergency	plans	and	
planning	can	be	accomplished	to	minimize	these	impacts.		Identifying	
the	impacts	to	transportation,	access	and	egress,	resource	
mobilization	and	movement,	confusion	and	delays	can	be	avoided	
during	major	response	activities,	especially	during	major	natural	
disasters.	

Timeline:	
	

Completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2014	to	coincide	with	the	
estimated	beginning	of	construction	on	the	HSR	system.	

 
	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	19	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#8—Inter‐Jurisdictional	GIS	Program	
Continued	Project	from	2007	Plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

 
Action:	
	

Improve	coordination,	planning,	and	investment	in	a	commonly	
developed	GIS	system	and	related	databases	to	establish	and	
maintain	a	common	base	map	and	related	geographic	information	
system	.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	 High
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Kings	County	and	the	four	cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Hanford	and	
Lemoore	all	rely	upon	GIS	data	to	varying	degrees	and	for	various	
governmental	services.		As	services	may	cross	jurisdictional	
boundaries	due	to	mutual	aid	requests	and	other	inter‐jurisdictional	
coordination	efforts,	a	common	base	set	of	GIS	data	and	systems	are	
critical	to	ensuring	coordinated	and	efficient	services.		Emergency	
response	departments	are	all	moving	towards	more	GIS	integrated	
operations	which	further	necessitates	the	need	for	common	and	
consistent	GIS	data	and	systems.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County Community	Development	Agency	operates	a	GIS	
Services	Section,	and	the	GIS	Specialist	position	is	intended	to	
support	other	County	department	operations	as	well	as	lend	support	
to	other	governmental	entities	within	the	County.		Currently,	the	City	
of	Hanford	and	City	of	Avenal	contract	with	the	County	for	GIS	
Specialist	support.		Common	GIS	datasets	are	also	maintained	that	
cover	geographic	territory	in	all	four	cities.		Efforts	will	continue	to	
consolidate	and	coordinate	the	development	and	maintenance	of	
countywide	GIS	data	and	applications.		

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency		

Partners:	
	

Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Lemoore,	and	Hanford;	special	districts;	
water	and	irrigation	districts;	Local	Agency	Formation	Commission	of	
Kings	County;	and	Kings	County	Association	of	Governments	

Potential	Funding:	 Local	government	funds	and	possible	grant	funds	through	recent	
State	Propositions.	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$10,000	to	$60,000	for	ongoing	countywide	GIS	data	and	systems	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

$1000s	in	potential	savings	to	various	agencies	and	reduced	loss	of	
life	and	property	

Timeline:	
	

Countywide	water	management	plan	to	be	completed	in	three	years,	
then	ongoing	efforts	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Community	Development Agency	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		The	inter‐
jurisdictional	GIS	project	is	in	progress.		The	County	has	been	
completely	mapped;	Hanford	and	Avenal	have	joined	in	on	the	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	20	
 

project	contracting	with	County	GIS	to	meet	their	mapping	needs.		
The	project	is	planned	to	expand	to	include	all	the	incorporated	
Cities	and	continue	to	create	an	integrated	countywide	GIS	system	
and	database.	

	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	21	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#9—Kings	County	Area	Disaster	Council	
Continued	Project	from	2007	Plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Review	and	update	items	related	to	the	Kings	County	Operational	
Area	Disaster	Council	in	the	Kings	County	Emergency	Services	
Ordinance	to	improve	countywide	coordination	and	the	monitoring	
and	implementation	of	the	mitigation	plan.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 High
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	emergency	services	ordinance	establishes	the	Kings	Operational	
Area	Disaster	Council	and	designates	the	membership	of	the	council.	
Membership	includes	one	member	of	the	Kings	County	Board	of	
Supervisors	(director	of	emergency	services),	the	assistant	director	of	
emergency	services,	a	member	of	the	city	council	from	each	of	the	
cities,	the	emergency	manager	from	each	of	the	cities,	and	one	
member	at	large.	The	council’s	powers	include	the	development	of	
emergency	and	mutual	aid	plans	and	agreements	and	the	ordinances	
and	resolutions	to	implement	them.	
	
The	ordinance	requires	that	the	Disaster	Council	meets	regularly,	
however	in	recent	years	the	council	has	failed	to	meet.	The	county	
does	not	have	any	other	inter‐jurisdictional	entity	that	meets	
regularly	to	coordinate	emergency	management	and	mitigation	
issues.		

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Review	ordinance	and	work	with	cities	to	determine	whether	the	
requirements	for	the	Kings	County	Disaster	Council	membership	and	
responsibilities	should	be	updated	to	better	reflect	future	conditions.	
Decisions	about	the	council’s	role	in	monitoring,	maintaining,	and	
updating	the	countywide	hazard	mitigation	plan	and	the	emergency	
operations	plan	should	be	included,	as	well	as	information	on	how	
the	council	will	intersect	with	or	replace	the	Hazard	Mitigation	
Planning	Committee	formed	for	this	planning	process.	

Responsible	Office:	 Kings	County	OEM
Partners:	 Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors
Potential	Funding:	 Kings	County	General	Fund
Cost	Estimate:	 Staff	time/In‐Kind
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Improved	coordination	among	jurisdictions.	Maintenance	and	
monitoring	of	the	hazard	mitigation	plan	and	emergency	operations	
plan	

Timeline:	 2013/2014
Completed	by:			 Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	is	to	be	
maintained	in	the	2012	plan.		Organizational	work	to	establish	
the	council	was	accomplished	but	formal	meetings	have	not	yet	
commenced.		The	2013	Meeting	of	the	council	will	concentrate	on	
updating	the	current	emergency	services	ordinance.		The	2014	
Meetings	will	focus	on	the	EOP	update	at	the	op	area,	county,	city	
and	special	district	levels.	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	22	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#10—Public	Education	Program	
Continued	Project	from	2007	Plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Develop	and	implement	a	comprehensive	strategy	to	improve	
ongoing	public	education	regarding	natural	hazards	and	risk.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 High
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Planning	Team identified	the	lack	of	public	awareness	about	
natural	hazards	risk	and	preparedness	as	an	obstacle	to	reducing	
potential	losses	in	the	county.	In	addition,	as	various	issues	arise,	
there	is	a	need	to	effectively	inform	the	public	about	them.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Improved	information	about	natural	hazards	may	be	implemented	
into	media	outlets	and	tools	already	in	use	by	the	county,	such	as	the	
following:	1)	a	media	list	is	compiled	at	the	County	Administration	
Office	for	distribution	of	fax	or	email	information;	2)	the	county	
website	home	page	is	updated,	as	needed,	to	include	information	on	
pertinent	topics,	such	as	Warming	Centers,	Heat	Related	Illness,	West	
Nile	Virus,	etc.;	3)	a	quarterly	newsletter	is	published	to	all	county	
employees	(this	is	put	together	by	the	Human	Resources	
Department).	The	county	may	also	work	with	utility	districts,	such	as	
the	Armona	Community	Services	District	to	provide	information	in	
utility	bills.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	OEM,	Operational	Area	Partners,	Office	of	County	
Administration	

Partners:	 County	departments,	Cal	EMA,	local	media,	special	districts
Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
Kings	County	General	Fund,	In‐Kind	

Cost	Estimate:	 $100,000
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Provides	timely,	accurate	information	to	our	public,	both	constituents	
and	employees.	Ensures	consistent	information	flow.	Improves	public	
awareness	and	education.	

Timeline:	
	

Internal	newsletter	is	published	quarterly.	Media	notices	and	news	
conferences	are	sent	as	needed.	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	OEM
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
partially	accomplished	by	the	PIO	in	the	CAOs	Office.		The	
committee	agreed	to	carry	this	project	forward	and	to	move	
responsibility	for	a	more	comprehensive	public	education	
program	on	disaster	preparedness	to	the	Office	of	Emergency	
Management.	

 

	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	23	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#11—Livestock	Disposal	Plan	
Continued	Project	from	2007	Plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Establish	a	livestock	disposal	plan	and	compost	team	to	address	
livestock	fatality	during	extreme	heat	events.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 Medium
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	prolonged	heat	wave	that	caused	abnormally	high	numbers	of	
animal	mortalities	in	the	summer	of	2006	highlighted	the	need	for	a	
more	proactive	dead	animal	management	plan,	particularly	in	the	
dairy	industry	‐	a	primary	economic	driver	in	Kings	County.	Animal	
deaths	far	exceeded	the	ability	of	the	local	rendering	plant,	which	also	
experienced	heat‐related	shutdowns,	to	accept	and	process	carcasses	
in	a	timely	manner.	The	end	result	of	the	declared	emergency	was	the	
burial	of	hundreds	of	animal	carcasses	in	the	Chemical	Waste	
Management	landfill	in	the	Kettleman	Hills.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Adopt	an	Emergency	Action	Plan	for Dead	Animal	Management	as	a	
means	to	better	manage	animal	mortalities	during	emergency	
situations,	which	cause	abnormally	high	rates	of	death,	particularly	in	
the	dairy	industry.	Also,	establish	a	Kings	County	Mortality	
Intervention	Team	that	would	be	available	to	provide	technical	and	
onsite	assistance	to	animal	facility	operators	on	proper	carcass	
disposal	methods.	Continue	to	work	with	our	lawmakers	to	change	
the	law	preventing	the	composting	of	mammalian	flesh.	

Responsible	Office:	 Kings	County	Agricultural	Commissioner
Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Agricultural	Advisory	Committee,	University	of	
California	at	Davis	Extension,	Environmental	Health	Services,	Natural	
Resources	Conservation	Service,	Kings	County	Community	
Development	Agency	

Potential	Funding:	
	

The	actual	costs	to	bury	the	carcasses	would	be	the	responsibility	of	
the	animal	facility	owner/operator.			

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Costs	would	be	dependent	upon	the	nature	and	length	of	the	extreme	
heat	event	or	other	declared	emergency.	Operation	of	the	Mortality	
Intervention	Team	would	be	through	the	Kings	County	General	Fund.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Help	prevent	the	need	to	dispose	of	dead	animals	in	the	Chemical	
Waste	Management	Landfill	and	conserve	landfill	capacity.	Proper	
onsite	disposal	will	prevent	contamination	of	ground	water.	

Timeline:	
	

The	Emergency	Action	Plan	for	Dead	Animal	Management	was	
approved	at	the	meeting	of	the	Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors	on	
June	5,	2007.	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Agricultural	Commissioner’s	Office	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
partially	completed.		A	detailed	Bovine	disposal	SOP	has	been	
developed	which	represents	the	largest	livestock	population.		The	
committee	recognized	that	a	poultry,	sheep	and	goat	protocols	
need	to	be	developed	especially	due	to	the	State’s	experience	with	
exotic	Newcastle	and	other	veterinary	diseases	that	have	the	
potential	to	impact	the	county.	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	24	
 

 
Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#12—Disaster	Evacuation	Routes	
Continued	Project	from	2007	Plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Ensure	the	maintenance	and	enhancement	of	established	disaster	
evacuation	routes.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	 Low
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Vehicular	access	to	the	county	and	its	communities	is	connected	to	
other	outlying	areas	by	key	transportation	routes,	such	as	state	
highways	198,	41,	and	43.	Other	roadways	maintained	by	the	county	
also	provide	alternative	access	routes.	Maintenance	of	these	key	
routes	is	critical	to	any	emergency	evacuation	out	of	the	county	or	
emergency	response	entering	into	the	county.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Key	evacuation	routes	should	be	identified	in	the	Kings	County	
Emergency	Operations	Plan	and	addressed	in	the	Kings	County	
General	Plan	Safety	Element	and	Circulation	Element.	Maintenance	
and	warranted	enhancements	of	all	county	maintained	roads	is	
necessary	to	ensure	that	key	access	routes	are	in	good	enough	
condition	to	accommodate	potential	emergency	demand.	
Maintenance	and	warranted	enhancements	of	all	county	maintained	
roads	is	an	ongoing	operation	of	the	Kings	County	Public	Works	
Department.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Public	Works	Department

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM;	Kings	County	Planning	Agency;	Cities	of	Avenal,	
Corcoran,	Lemoore,	and	Hanford;	California	Department	of	
Transportation	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Gas	tax,	federal/state	transportation	funding,	Kings	County	General	
Fund	for	staff	time	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Undetermined

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

Potential	saving	of	lives	and	$1000s	in	countywide	loss	prevention.	

Timeline:	
	

Update	and	coordination	of	evacuation	information	in	county	plans	
completed	in	2008.	Maintenance	and	enhancement	is	ongoing.	

Completed	by:	
	

Kings	County	Public	Works,	Chief	Engineer

Remarks:		 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		After	much	discussion	
this	project	will	continue	due	to	the	need.	

 



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	25	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County	#13—Traffic	Safety	for	Fog	Events	
Continued	Project	from	2007	Plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Improve	lighting	and	traffic	controls	at	critical	intersections	and	
roadways	to	improve	safety	during	fog	events.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	
	

Low

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

There	is	concern	about	fog‐related	traffic	safety	issues	that	usually	
occur	during	a	few	months	in	the	fall.	Fog‐related	traffic	accidents	
may	occasionally	occur	due	to	fast	speeds	or	reduced	awareness.	The	
annual	fog	conditions	will	continue	to	exist	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	
floor	and	therefore	potentially	result	in	the	loss	of	life	and	property.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	only	cost‐effective	method	of	improving	traffic	safety	during	fog	
events	is	to	increase	education	and	enforcement.	The	California	
Highway	Patrol	already	handles	highway	and	county	roadway	traffic	
enforcement	and	paces	traffic	along	major	highways	during	times	of	
severe	fog.	Improved	lighting	or	traffic	controls	along	the	highways	
and	major	arterial	streets	is	considered	by	California	Department	of	
Transportation	and	city	public	works	departments	based	upon	traffic	
accident	and	fatality	reports.	Increased	awareness	and	education	
should	occur	through	the	media	to	remind	motorists	of	the	reduced	
visibility	and	need	to	slow	their	travel	speeds	down.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Public	Works

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Sheriff’s	Department;	law	enforcement	agencies	and	
public	works	department	in	each	city,	California	Highway	Patrol,	
California	Department	of	Transportation		
	

Potential	Funding:	 Potential	funding	sources	have	not	yet	been	identified.		
Cost	Estimate:	
	

Cannot	be	determined	as	needed	improvements	are	discovered	
through	ongoing	monitoring	of	fog‐related	accidents	and	their	
frequency	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

Reduced	traffic	accidents	and	injuries	due	to	fog	events		

Timeline:	
	

Efforts	are	ongoing	with	responsible	agencies	reviewing	traffic	
accident	data	and	monitoring	weather	conditions.		

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Public	Works
Remarks:			 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		After	much	discussion	
this	project	will	continue	to	the	2012	plan.			
	

 

 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	26	
 

2007	MITIGATION	ACTIONS	
Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Long‐Term	Water	Supply	
Current	Status:		Overtaken	by	Events	and	Dropped	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Improve	coordination,	planning, and	investment	in	long‐term	water	
supplies	to	meet	demands	of	ongoing	growth	and	development.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	
	

High

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Counties	within	the	central	and	southern	San	Joaquin	Valley	region	
are	experiencing	tremendous	growth	as	a	result	of	low	land	costs,	
affordable	housing,	and	low	mortgage	interest	rates.	This	growth	
surge	along	with	depleting	surface	and	ground	water	supplies	and	
projected	outlook	of	global	warming	may	severely	cripple	the	
available	water	supplies	to	Kings	County	during	years	of	drought.	
Other	regions	are	currently	working	on	regional	water	management	
plans	to	receive	bond	funds	for	water	capacity	building	projects.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County	Water	District	has	attempted	to	coordinate	
proactive	water	capacity	building	programs	and	projects	to	address	
the	future	needs	of	the	county’s	agricultural,	rural,	and	urban	water	
needs.	This	effort	should	be	built	upon	to	develop	a	water	
management	plan	that	covers	Kings	County.	The	plan	should	
incorporate	a	countywide	strategy	for	conservation	programs,	
recycled	water	reuse	programs,	programs	that	build	additional	
recharge	and	storage,	and	policies	that	work	to	retain	existing	surface	
water	rights	within	the	county	for	future	use.	The	Kings	County	
portion	of	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	Regional	Blueprint	may	provide	an	
appropriate	avenue	to	address	this	planning	effort.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development Agency	to	take	the	lead	until	
another	more	appropriate	agency	or	joint	powers	authority	can	take	
over	
	

Partners:	
	

Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Lemoore, and	Hanford;	special	districts;	
water	and	irrigation	districts;	Local	Agency	Formation	Commission	of	
Kings	County;	and	Kings	County	Association	of	Governments	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Possible	grant	and	bond	funds	through	recent	State	Propositions.

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$60,000	to	$80,000	for	a	countywide	water	capacity	study	and	
$10,000	to	$45,000	for	jurisdiction	implementation	of	planning	policy	
recommendations.	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

$1000s	in	potential	agricultural	and	other	resource	losses	avoided	
over	the	long	term	during	years	of	severe	drought.	$1000s	in	the	
reduction	of	emergency	responses	and	recovery	supplies	for	cities	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	27	
 

	 and	communities	unprepared	and	left	without	adequate	water
supplies	for	their	residents.	
	

Timeline:	
	

Countywide	water	management	plan	to	be	completed	in	three	years,	
then	ongoing	efforts	
	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	mitigation	strategies	

workshop	this	project	was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		
The	long‐	term	water	supply	has	been	overtaken	by	events.		The	
local	project	has	been	co‐opted	by	a	multijurisdictional	project	in	
cooperation	with	the	State	Department	of	Water	Resources.	This	
Project	will	cover	the	work	within	Kings	County	as	well	as	several	
adjacent	counties	that	share	the	same	aquifer	and	watershed.	

 
 

  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	28	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Assessment	of	Critical	Infrastructure	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	
	
Action:	
	

Assess	vulnerability	of	critical	infrastructure	and	lifeline	utilities,	
including	water	distribution	systems,	to	identify	and	prioritize	
projects	for	multi‐hazard	risk	reduction.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

High

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Cities	and	community	service	districts	within	the	county	are	
responsible	for	providing	necessary	daily	services	such	as	water,	
sewer,	and	storm	drainage	to	residents.	Urban	growth	pressures	in	
the	county	have	increased	service	demands	from	these	systems,	and	
older	portions	are	falling	under	disrepair.	The	collapsed	city	water	
well	in	Corcoran	in	2006	demonstrated	how	vulnerable	an	entire	
community	is	when	these	services	are	no	longer	functioning	and	
must	rely	upon	outside	assistance	to	provide.	Older	portions	of	the	
cities	and	communities	also	have	deteriorated	infrastructure,	which	
are	vulnerable	during	hazard	events.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Incorporate	an	assessment	of	service	infrastructure	into	the	state	
mandated	Municipal	Service	Reviews	(MSRs)	required	for	all	
community	service	districts.	MSRs	and	district	spheres	of	influence	
boundaries	are	required	to	be	completed	by	the	end	of	2007.	The	
Local	Agency	Formation	Commission	(LAFCO)	would	use	this	
information	to	more	closely	review	system	expansions.	These	
assessments	can	also	then	be	incorporated	into	the	county’s	
community	planning	efforts	to	identify	and	prioritize	needed	
infrastructure	improvements	or	enhancements	to	reduce	the	
vulnerability	of	crucial	infrastructure	from	natural	hazard	risk.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

LAFCO	of	Kings	County
	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	and	community	
service	districts	and	public	utility	district.	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund	for	community	planning	efforts	and	
LAFCO	funds	for	preparation	of	state	mandated	MSRs.		
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$3,000	to	$10,000	for	each	of	the	four	unincorporated	communities.

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Strategic	prioritization	of capital	improvement	efforts	to	increase	the	
effectiveness	of	infrastructure	improvements.	Ensure	that	existing	
infrastructure	needs	are	taken	into	account	when	growth	or	
expansion	of	systems	is	proposed.	Potential	savings	of	$1000s	of	
piecemeal	improvements	and	unplanned	emergency	response.	
	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	29	
 

Timeline:	
	

Completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2007	to	coincide	with	the	
completion	of	the	county’s	four	unincorporated	community	planning	
projects	and	LAFCO’s	Municipal	Service	Reviews.	
	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdiction	subject	to	this	plan.		The	work	was	
completed	in	2007‐2008	as	part	and	parcel	of	the	Safety	Element	
and	municipal	service	review	updates.	The	methodology	involved	
was	to	execute	comprehensive	service	capacity	surveys	for	the	
cities	and	special	districts	

 
   



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	30	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Kings	County	Area	Disaster	Council	
Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Review	and	update	items	related	to	the	Kings	County	Area	Disaster	
Council	in	the	Kings	County	Emergency	Services	Ordinance	to	
improve	countywide	coordination	and	the	monitoring	and	
implementation	of	the	mitigation	plan.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

High

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	emergency	services	ordinance	establishes	the	Kings	Area	
Disaster	Council	and	designates	the	membership	of	the	council.	
Membership	includes	one	member	of	the	Kings	County	Board	of	
Supervisors	(director	of	emergency	services),	the	assistant	director	of	
emergency	services,	a	member	of	the	city	council	from	each	of	the	
cities,	the	emergency	manager	from	each	of	the	cities,	and	one	
member	at	large.	The	council’s	powers	include	the	development	of	
emergency	and	mutual	aid	plans	and	agreements	and	the	ordinances	
and	resolutions	to	implement	them.	
	
The	ordinance	requires	that	the	Disaster	Council	meets	regularly,	
however	in	recent	years	the	council	has	failed	to	meet.	The	county	
does	not	have	any	other	inter‐jurisdictional	entity	that	meets	
regularly	to	coordinate	emergency	management	and	mitigation	
issues.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Review	ordinance	and	work	with	cities	to	determine	whether	the	
requirements	for	the	Kings	County	Disaster	Council	membership	and	
responsibilities	should	be	updated	to	better	reflect	future	conditions.	
Decisions	about	the	council’s	role	in	monitoring,	maintaining,	and	
updating	the	countywide	hazard	mitigation	plan	and	the	emergency	
operations	plan	should	be	included,	as	well	as	information	on	how	
the	council	will	intersect	with	or	replace	the	Hazard	Mitigation	
Planning	Committee	formed	for	this	planning	process.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Staff	time/In‐Kind

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Improved	coordination	among	jurisdictions.	Maintenance	and	
monitoring	of	the	hazard	mitigation	plan	and	emergency	operations	
plan	

Timeline:	 Two	years



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	31	
 

	
Completed	by:			 Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	is	to	be	
maintained	in	the	2012	plan.		Organizational	work	to	establish	
the	council	was	accomplished	but	formal	meetings	have	not	yet	
commenced.		The	2013	Meeting	of	the	council	will	concentrate	on	
updating	the	current	emergency	services	ordinance.		The	2014	
Meetings	will	focus	on	the	EOP	update	at	the	op	area,	county,	city	
and	special	district	levels.	

	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	32	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Public	Education	Program	
Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
	
Action:	
	

Develop	and	implement	a	comprehensive	strategy	to	improve	
ongoing	public	education	regarding	natural	hazards	and	risk.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

High

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Planning	Team identified	the	lack	of	public	awareness	about	
natural	hazards	risk	and	preparedness	as	an	obstacle	to	reducing	
potential	losses	in	the	county.	In	addition,	as	various	issues	arise,	
there	is	a	need	to	effectively	inform	the	public	about	them.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Improved	information	about	natural	hazards	may	be	implemented	
into	media	outlets	and	tools	already	in	use	by	the	county,	such	as	the	
following:	1)	a	media	list	is	compiled	at	the	County	Administration	
Office	for	distribution	of	fax	or	email	information;	2)	the	county	
website	home	page	is	updated,	as	needed,	to	include	information	on	
pertinent	topics,	such	as	Warming	Centers,	Heat	Related	Illness,	West	
Nile	Virus,	etc.;	3)	a	quarterly	newsletter	is	published	to	all	county	
employees	(this	is	put	together	by	the	Human	Resources	
Department).	The	county	may	also	work	with	utility	districts,	such	as	
the	Armona	Community	Services	District	to	provide	information	in	
utility	bills.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	OEM,	Operational	Area	Partners,	Office	of	County	
Administration	

Partners:	 County	departments,	Cal	EMA,	local	media,	special	districts
Potential	Funding:	
	

Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	Pre‐Disaster	Mitigation	Program,	
Kings	County	General	Fund,	In‐Kind	

Cost	Estimate:	 $100,000
Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Provides	timely,	accurate	information	to	our	public,	both	constituents	
and	employees.	Ensures	consistent	information	flow.	Improves	public	
awareness	and	education.	

Timeline:	
	

Internal	newsletter	is	published	quarterly.	Media	notices	and	news	
conferences	are	sent	as	needed.	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	OEM
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
partially	accomplished	by	the	PIO	in	the	CAOs	Office.		The	
committee	agreed	to	carry	this	project	forward	and	to	move	
responsibility	for	a	more	comprehensive	public	education	
program	on	disaster	preparedness	to	the	Office	of	Emergency	
Management.	
	

	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	33	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Vulnerable	Populations	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Develop	a	program	or	system	for	supporting	vulnerable	populations	
during	emergency	events.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

High

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

In	the	context	of	emergencies	and	disasters,	the	Kings	County	
Department	of	Public	Health	has	identified	special	needs	populations	
or	vulnerable	populations	as	those	members	of	our	community	with	
little	or	no	ability	to	address	their	own	preparedness,	response,	and	
recovery,	as	well	as	those	people	whose	life’s	circumstances	leave	
them	needing	more	than	what	traditional	emergency	response	
agencies	provide.	This	community	includes	the	following:	
 Physically	disabled	(ranging	from	minor	disabilities	causing	

restriction	of	some	motions	or	activities,	to	totally	disabled	
requiring	full‐time	attendant	care	for	feeding,	toileting,	and	
personal	care)	

 Mentally	disabled	(ranging	from	minor	disabilities	where	
independence	and	ability	to	function	in	most	circumstances	is	
retained,	to	no	ability	to	safely	survive	independently,	and	attend	
to	personal	care)	

 Blind,	visually	impaired,	low	vision	
 Deaf,	hearing	impaired,	hard‐of‐hearing	
 Medically	fragile/dependent,	including	those	dependent	on	life	

sustaining	medications,	such	as	with	HIV/AIDS	and	diabetes,	or	
those	dependent	on	medications	to	control	conditions	and	
maintain	quality	of	life,	such	as	pain	medications,	allergy	
medications,	seizure	control	medications,	etc.	

 Medically	compromised,	including	people	with	multiple	chemical	
sensitivities	or	weakened	immune	systems,	and	those	who	cannot	
be	in	(or	use)	public	accommodations	for	a	variety	of	reasons	

 Frail/elderly,	seniors	
 Ex‐convicts,	registered	offenders,	and	other	clients	of	the	criminal	

justice	system	
 Limited	or	non‐English	speaking,	monolingual	
 Homeless	and	shelter	dependent,	including	shelters	for	abused	

women	and	children	
	
Although	the	county	makes	every	effort	to	include	this	community	
into	their	emergency	response	and	recovery	plans,	there	is	not	a	
specific	plan	written	to	address	the	populations	listed	above.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	

The	Kings	County	Department	of	Public	Health	has	developed	a	team	
of	local	non‐profit	organizations	and	agencies,	which	currently	
provide	services	to	vulnerable	populations.	The	group	shall	establish	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	34	
 

	
	
	

goals	and	objectives	for	developing	community	awareness	regarding	
preparedness	and	planning.	The	Department	of	Public	Health	will	use	
various	means	to	ensure	information	is	available	via	different	venues	
to	ensure	accessibility	to	residents	of	Kings	County.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Department	of	Public	Health,	Bioterrorism	Department	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services,	Bioterrorism	Advisory	
Committee,	Community	Volunteers	
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Current	planning	efforts	are	funded	through	California	Department	of	
Public	Health,	Emergency	Preparedness	Grant.	Other	funding	sources	
are	being	researched	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$15,000‐$20,000,	not	including	impact	costs	for	those	participating	in	
planning	group	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

Emergency	planning	for	vulnerable	populations	will	help	reduce	loss	
of	life	and	injury	during	emergency	events.	Increased	community	
awareness	and	planning	will	also	be	beneficial.	

Timeline:	
	

Ongoing

Completed	by:	
	

Sabrina	Bustamante,	Kings	County	Department	of	Public	Health,	
Emergency	Response	Coordinator	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	Project	has	been	
completed	by	all	jurisdictions	subject	to	this	plan.		The	work	was	
completed	in	2006‐2007	as	part	and	parcel	of	the	Safety	Element	
and	municipal	service	review	updates.	The	methodology	involved	
was	to	execute	comprehensive	service	capacity	surveys	for	the	
cities	and	special	districts	
	

   



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	35	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Plans	for	Special	Needs	Students	

Current	Status:		Dropped	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Develop	a	plan	for	supporting	medically	fragile	and	special	needs	
students	at	each	school	site	during	emergency	events.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

In	reviewing	emergency	operation	plans and	developing	the	hazard	
mitigation	plan,	we	have	determined	that	we	are	lacking	a	plan	to	
assist	and	sustain	medically	fragile	and	special	needs	students	during	
an	emergency	situation.	Many	of	these	students	currently	have	
medical	orders	for	providing	medication	on	file	with	the	school	site,	
but	do	not	have	medical	orders	or	long	term	health	plans	for	a	period	
extending	beyond	the	school	day.		

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Education	and	Kings	County	School	District	
Nurses	would	develop	a	request	for	extended	care	orders	from	
medical	providers	of	medically	fragile	and	special	needs	students.	
The	nurses	would	develop	a	cover	letter	and	a	form	for	the	
physician’s	to	complete.		Parents	would	receive	a	copy	of	the	form	
once	it	was	completed	by	the	physician.	Parents	would	be	responsible	
for	providing	medical	supplies	as	designated	by	the	physician.			

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Education

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	School	Districts,	medical	providers,	parents	of	students	
with	special	needs,	Kings	County	Health	Department	

Potential	Funding:	
	

In‐kind	from	partners

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Donated	time	for	development	of	forms.	Current	staff	time	to	provide	
information	requests	to	medical	providers	and	parents.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Reduced	risk	to	students’	health	and	safety	during	emergency	events.	
Protection	against	liability	claims	against	school	districts,	health	
officials,	and	emergency	responders.	

Timeline:	
	

Spring	2007,	begin	meeting	with	school	district	nurses.	Fall	2007,	
discussion	with	medical	providers	and	develop	extended	care	order	
form.	Spring	2008,	begin	implementation	and	modify	as	necessary.	By	
fall	2008,	have	routine	procedure	to	secure	extended	care	orders	for	
special	needs	students.		

Completed	by:	
	

Tamara	Ravalín,	Kings	County	Office	of	Education,	Assistant	
Superintendent	

Remarks:			 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		The	project	was	
overcome	by	events.			

	
	 	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	36	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Natural	Hazards	Review	Criteria	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	
	
Action:	
	

Implement	natural	hazards	review	criteria	for	new	development	to	
improve	long‐term	loss	prevention.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County	Multi‐Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	will	be	integrated	into	
the	Kings	County	General	Plan	Safety	Element.	However,	planning	
documents	are	only	as	valuable	as	the	effectiveness	of	their	
implementation	to	affect	real	change	in	the	built	environment.	
Implementation	of	the	plan	should	involve	a	process	by	which	natural	
hazard	information	is	easily	available	and	reviewable	by	local	
government	staff.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	has	participated	
in	the	development	of	the	countywide	mitigation	plan	from	the	outset	
to	ensure	that	a	high	degree	of	input	and	coordination	occurred.	The	
Community	Development	Agency	should	follow	through	in	the	
integration	and	implementation	of	the	recommended	policies	and	
actions	in	the	plan	for	reducing	potential	hazard‐related	losses	
throughout	the	county.	The	Community	Development	Agency	will	
develop	a	process	by	which	new	development	proposals	are	
reviewed	more	critically	against	the	information	and	policies	derived	
from	the	mitigation	plan.	The	plan	can	be	integrated	as	a	major	part	
of	the	County’s	Safety	Element	of	the	General	Plan	update.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	operational	budget	
can	absorb	this	as	a	necessary	project	review	component	and	an	
ongoing	procedure.		
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$1,000	to	$2,000	for	developing	and	implementing	a	procedure	for	
reviewing	development	applications	using	information	from	the	
hazard	mitigation	plan.	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Potential	loss	reductions	in	the	$1000s	as	any	new	development	
within	the	county	will	be	reviewed	for	natural	hazard	impacts.	
	

Timeline:	
	

Implementation	would	occur	after	the	county’s	General	Plan	update	
is	completed	in	2008.	Estimated	implementation	of	natural	hazard	
review	procedure	is	early	2009.	
	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	37	
 

Completed	by:	
	

Greg	Gatzka,	Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
completed	by	the	County	Planning	Agency.		The	new	hazard	zones	
have	been	implemented	in	all	relevant	permit	and	review	
processes.	

  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	38	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Livestock	Disposal	Plan	
Current	Status:		Partially	completed	and	carried	over	to	2012	plan	(See	Remarks	box)	
	
Action:	
	

Establish	a	livestock	disposal	plan	and	compost	team	to	address	
livestock	fatality	during	extreme	heat	events.	

Jurisdiction:	 Kings	County
Priority:	 Medium
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	prolonged	heat	wave	that	caused	abnormally	high	numbers	of	
animal	mortalities	in	the	summer	of	2006	highlighted	the	need	for	a	
more	proactive	dead	animal	management	plan,	particularly	in	the	
dairy	industry	‐	a	primary	economic	driver	in	Kings	County.	Animal	
deaths	far	exceeded	the	ability	of	the	local	rendering	plant,	which	also	
experienced	heat‐related	shutdowns,	to	accept	and	process	carcasses	
in	a	timely	manner.	The	end	result	of	the	declared	emergency	was	the	
burial	of	hundreds	of	animal	carcasses	in	the	Chemical	Waste	
Management	landfill	in	the	Kettleman	Hills.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Adopt	an	Emergency	Action	Plan	for	Dead	Animal	Management	as	a	
means	to	better	manage	animal	mortalities	during	emergency	
situations,	which	cause	abnormally	high	rates	of	death,	particularly	in	
the	dairy	industry.	Also,	establish	a	Kings	County	Mortality	
Intervention	Team	that	would	be	available	to	provide	technical	and	
onsite	assistance	to	animal	facility	operators	on	proper	carcass	
disposal	methods.	Continue	to	work	with	our	lawmakers	to	change	
the	law	preventing	the	composting	of	mammalian	flesh.	

Responsible	Office:	 Kings	County	Agricultural	Commissioner
Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Agricultural	Advisory	Committee,	University	of	
California	at	Davis	Extension,	Environmental	Health	Services,	Natural	
Resources	Conservation	Service,	Kings	County	Community	
Development	Agency	

Potential	Funding:	
	

The	actual	costs	to	bury	the	carcasses	would	be	the	responsibility	of	
the	animal	facility	owner/operator.			

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Costs	would	be	dependent	upon	the	nature	and	length	of	the	extreme	
heat	event	or	other	declared	emergency.	Operation	of	the	Mortality	
Intervention	Team	would	be	through	the	Kings	County	General	Fund.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Help	prevent	the	need	to	dispose	of	dead	animals	in	the	Chemical	
Waste	Management	Landfill	and	conserve	landfill	capacity.	Proper	
onsite	disposal	will	prevent	contamination	of	ground	water.	

Timeline:	
	

The	Emergency	Action	Plan	for	Dead	Animal	Management was	
approved	at	the	meeting	of	the	Kings	County	Board	of	Supervisors	on	
June	5,	2007.	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Agricultural	Commissioner’s	Office	
Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
partially	completed.		A	detailed	Bovine	disposal	SOP	has	been	
developed	which	represents	the	largest	livestock	population.		The	
committee	recognized	that	a	poultry,	sheep	and	goat	protocols	
need	to	be	developed	especially	due	to	the	State’s	experience	with	
exotic	Newcastle	and	other	veterinary	diseases	that	have	the	
potential	to	impact	the	county.	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	39	
 

 
Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Safety	Element	of	General	Plan	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	Continued	for	2012	Projects	
 
Action:	
	

Integrate	the	hazard	mitigation	plan	with	the	Safety	Element	of	the	
Kings	County	General	Plan.	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County	Multi‐Hazard	Mitigation	Plan	evaluates	and	
addresses	the	same	hazards	that	must	also	be	addressed	in	local	
government	general	plans	in	California.	The	county	is	currently	in	the	
process	of	updating	their	General	Plan.	Recognizing	the	potential	
duplication	of	effort	over	evaluation	of	the	same	issues,	efforts	to	
update	the	Safety	Element	should	be	conducted	in	coordination	with	
the	multi‐hazard	mitigation	plan.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	has	participated	
in	the	development	of	the	countywide	mitigation	plan	from	the	outset	
to	ensure	that	a	high	degree	of	input	and	coordination	occurred.	The	
Community	Development	Agency	should	follow	through	in	the	
integration	and	implementation	of	the	recommended	policies	and	
actions	in	the	plan	for	reducing	potential	hazard‐related	losses	
throughout	the	county.	The	plan	can	be	integrated	as	a	major	part	of	
the	county’s	Safety	Element	of	the	General	Plan	update	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Services

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund	for	General	Plan	update,	which	is	already	
budgeted	for	in	FY	2006‐2007	and	planned	for	funding	in	FY	2007‐
2008.	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$2,000	to	$3,000	for	integrating	the	multi‐hazard	mitigation	plan	into	
the	county’s	Safety	Element.	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Provides	General	Plan	policy	direction	for	development	activity	with	
the	county’s	unincorporated	areas.	Potential	loss	reductions	in	the	
$1000s	as	any	new	development	within	the	county	will	be	considered	
within	the	context	of	the	county’s	Safety	Element.	
	

Timeline:	
	

Draft	integration	to	be	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2007	
and	considered	in	the	overall	county	General	Plan	update	scheduled	
for	completion	in	2008.	
	

Completed	by:	 Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	40	
 

	
Remarks:			 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
completed.		The	Safety	element	and	the	LHMP	were	integrated	by	
the	use	of	shared	data,	mapping	and	mitigation	goals.		A	modified	
version	of	this	project	will	remain	open	to	evaluate	needed	
changes	in	the	Safety	Element	due	to	changes	in	the	2012	Hazard	
Mitigation	Plan.	



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	41	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Adoption	of	DFIRMs	

Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Update	flood	damage	prevention	ordinance	to	include	new	FEMA	
digital	flood	insurance	rate	maps	(DFIRMs).	
	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

Medium

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	county’s	flood	damage	prevention	ordinance	currently	
references	a	flood	insurance	rate	map	that	will	soon	be	outdated	
when	recently	completed	DFIRMs	are	available	in	2008.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	county’s	flood	damage	prevention	ordinance	will	be	reviewed	to	
ensure	that	it	correctly	references	the	new	DFIRMs	that	will	soon	be	
available	from	FEMA.	The	new	digital	maps	will	be	available	in	2008	
and	can	be	integrated	into	the	county’s	current	GIS	system.	This	
updated	information	can	then	be	deployed	at	the	front	public	counter	
and	at	workstations	for	both	planning	and	building	inspection	staff	to	
use	when	reviewing	development	proposals.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Building	Inspection	Department	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency,	FEMA	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund	as	part	of	the	county’s	General	Plan	
update	and	ongoing	GIS	maintenance	operations	
	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Less	than	$1,000

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Updating	the	ordinance	will	better	define	the	flood	zone	boundary	
lines	where	there	are	questions	regarding	buildings	proposed	for	
construction.	This	will	assist	county	personnel	in	enforcement	of	the	
floodplain	ordinance	ensuring	structures	are	constructed	to	minimize	
the	risk	of	flood	damage.	
	

Timeline:	
	

Implementation	projected	for	late	2008

Completed	by:	
	

Carl	Goff,	Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency, Deputy	
Building	Official	

Remarks:		 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
completed.		The	new	DFIRMs	established	with	FEMA	have	been	
integrated	into	all	relevant	planning	and	permit	processes.	
	

 
  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	42	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Disaster	Evacuation	Routes	
Current	Status:		Not	completed,	carry	over	to	2012	projects	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Ensure	the	maintenance	and	enhancement	of	established	disaster	
evacuation	routes.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	 Low
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Vehicular	access	to	the	county	and	its	communities	is	connected	to	
other	outlying	areas	by	key	transportation	routes,	such	as	state	
highways	198,	41,	and	43.	Other	roadways	maintained	by	the	county	
also	provide	alternative	access	routes.	Maintenance	of	these	key	
routes	is	critical	to	any	emergency	evacuation	out	of	the	county	or	
emergency	response	entering	into	the	county.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Key	evacuation	routes	should	be	identified	in	the	Kings	County	
Emergency	Operations	Plan	and	addressed	in	the	Kings	County	
General	Plan	Safety	Element	and	Circulation	Element.	Maintenance	
and	warranted	enhancements	of	all	county	maintained	roads	is	
necessary	to	ensure	that	key	access	routes	are	in	good	enough	
condition	to	accommodate	potential	emergency	demand.	
Maintenance	and	warranted	enhancements	of	all	county	maintained	
roads	is	an	ongoing	operation	of	the	Kings	County	Public	Works	
Department.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Public	Works	Department

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM;	Kings	County	Community	Development Agency;	
Cities	of	Avenal,	Corcoran,	Lemoore,	and	Hanford;	California	
Department	of	Transportation	

Potential	Funding:	
	

Gas	tax,	federal/state	transportation	funding,	Kings	County	General	
Fund	for	staff	time	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Undetermined

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

Potential	saving	of	lives	and	$1000s	in	countywide	loss	prevention.	

Timeline:	
	

Update	and	coordination	of	evacuation	information	in	county	plans	
completed	in	2008.	Maintenance	and	enhancement	is	ongoing.	

Completed	by:	
	

Kings	County	Public	Works,	Chief	Engineer

Remarks:		 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		After	much	discussion	
this	project	will	continue	due	to	the	need.	

 



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	43	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Traffic	Safety	for	Fog	Events	
Current	Status:		Reviewed	and	renewed	(See	Remarks	box)	
	
Action:	
	

Improve	lighting	and	traffic	controls	at	critical	intersections	and	
roadways	to	improve	safety	during	fog	events.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	
	

Low

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

There	is	concern	about	fog‐related	traffic	safety	issues	that	usually	
occur	during	a	few	months	in	the	fall.	Fog‐related	traffic	accidents	
may	occasionally	occur	due	to	fast	speeds	or	reduced	awareness.	The	
annual	fog	conditions	will	continue	to	exist	in	the	San	Joaquin	Valley	
floor	and	therefore	potentially	result	in	the	loss	of	life	and	property.	
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	only	cost‐effective	method	of	improving	traffic	safety	during	fog	
events	is	to	increase	education	and	enforcement.	The	California	
Highway	Patrol	already	handles	highway	and	county	roadway	traffic	
enforcement	and	paces	traffic	along	major	highways	during	times	of	
severe	fog.	Improved	lighting	or	traffic	controls	along	the	highways	
and	major	arterial	streets	is	considered	by	California	Department	of	
Transportation	and	city	public	works	departments	based	upon	traffic	
accident	and	fatality	reports.	Increased	awareness	and	education	
should	occur	through	the	media	to	remind	motorists	of	the	reduced	
visibility	and	need	to	slow	their	travel	speeds	down.	
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Public	Works

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Sheriff’s	Department;	law	enforcement	agencies	and	
public	works	department	in	each	city,	California	Highway	Patrol,	
California	Department	of	Transportation		
	

Potential	Funding:	 Potential	funding	sources	have	not	yet	been	identified.		
Cost	Estimate:	
	

Cannot	be	determined	as	needed	improvements	are	discovered	
through	ongoing	monitoring	of	fog‐related	accidents	and	their	
frequency	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	

Reduced	traffic	accidents	and	injuries	due	to	fog	events		

Timeline:	
	

Efforts	are	ongoing	with	responsible	agencies	reviewing	traffic	
accident	data	and	monitoring	weather	conditions.		

Completed	by:	 Kevin	McAlister,	Kings	County	Public	Works,	Chief	Engineer
Remarks:			 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	

was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		After	much	discussion	
this	project	will	continue	to	the	2012	plan.			
	

 
   



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	44	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Updated	Building	Code	
Current	Status:		Completed	(See	Remarks	box)	
	
Action:	
	

Adopt	the	2006	International	Building	Code		

Jurisdiction:	
	

Kings	County

Priority:	
	

Low

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Adoption	of	the	International	Building	Code	will	help	standardize	
building	construction	codes	throughout	the	United	States.	This	will	
help	make	construction	practices	and	code	enforcement	uniform	and	
result	in	better	built	and	safer	buildings.		
	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

The	State	of	California	is	currently	going	through	proceedings	to	
adopt	the	2006	International	Building	Code.	The	process	will	require	
amendments	to	the	code	and	it	is	scheduled	to	be	adopted	January	1,	
2008.	Once	adopted	at	the	state	level,	it	then	becomes	the	tool	of	
enforcement	at	the	local	jurisdiction	level.		
	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Building	Inspection	Department	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	Fire	Department

Potential	Funding:	
	

Kings	County	General	Fund

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Undetermined.	Cost	will	involve	training	and	purchases	of	new	code	
books	and	computer	assistance	programs.	
	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Uniform	code	enforcement.	Reduced	risk	to	lives	and	property	
through	safer	buildings.		

Timeline:	
	

Mandatory	adoption	January	1,	2008

Completed	by:	
	

Carl	Goff,	Kings	County	Community	Development	Agency,	Deputy	
Building	Official	

Remarks:		 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		This	project	has	been	
completed.		The	new	2010	California	Building	Code	has	been	
integrated	into	all	relevant	planning	and	permit	processes.	
	

 
  



Unincorporated	Kings	County		
Community	Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	 	 Page	45	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Kings	County—Earthquake	Hazards	at	Schools	
Current	Status:		Overtaken	by	Events	and	Dropped	(See	Remarks	box)	

Action:	
	

Develop	a	plan	for	training	school	maintenance	crews	to	identify	and	
address	nonstructural	hazards	in	schools	to	mitigate	earthquake	risk.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Multi‐Jurisdictional

Priority:	
	

Low

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

Although	school	districts	conduct	earthquake	drills	with	students	on	
a	routine	basis	and	follow	codes	to	assure	facilities	are	in	proper	
compliance,	many	classrooms,	offices,	etc,	still	have	bookcases	and	
other	objects	which	would	not	be	stable	during	an	earthquake.			

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Education	and	Kings	County	Self‐Insured	
Schools	would	develop	a	facility	hazards	check‐off	list	and	train	
maintenance	staff	in	the	identification	of	nonstructural	hazards.	In	
addition,	maintenance	crews	would	be	trained	on	how	to	address	and	
mitigate	these	hazards.	
	
Training	would	be	conducted	by	the	Director	of	Kings	County	Self‐
Insured	Schools	(KCSIS)	in	conjunction	with	Schools	Insured	Schools	
of	California	(SISC)	and	provided	to	maintenance	and	operations	
directors	and	chief	business	officials	of	Kings	County	School	Districts.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Kings	County	Office	of	Education

Partners:	
	

KCSIS,	SISC,	Kings	County	School	Districts

Potential	Funding:	
	

In‐kind	from	partners

Cost	Estimate:	
	

Donated	time	for	development	of	forms,	training,	and	recordkeeping	
by	partner	agencies	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	

Reduced	risk	to	students,	staff,	and	school	property	during	future	
seismic	events.	Protection	against	liability	claims	and	workers	
compensation	claims	against	school	districts	and	emergency	
responders.	

Timeline:	
	

Summer	2007,	meet	with	KCSIS	and	SISC	to	develop	training	
materials.	Fall	2007,	provide	training	in	conjunction	with	regularly	
scheduled	trainings	of	maintenance	directors	and	chief	business	
officials.	Spring	2008,	begin	implementation	and	modify	as	necessary.	
By	fall	2008,	have	routine	procedure	to	identify	and	address	
nonstructural	hazards	in	schools	to	mitigate	earthquake	risk.		

Completed	by:	
	

Tamara	Ravalín,	Kings	County	Office	of	Education,	Assistant	
Superintendent	

Remarks:	 Project	Disposition:		At	the	September	27th	workshop	this	project	
was	reviewed	by	the	LHMP	Planning	Team.		After	much	discussion	
dropped	from	the	planning	effort	as	it	was	over	come	by	events.	
	

 



Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	
Community	Profile	Information	

November	2012	 	 Page	1	

Santa	Rosa	Rancheria		
GENERAL	INFORMATION	
Overview	
The	Tachi	 Yokut	Tribe	 is	 a	 federally	 recognized	 tribal	 government	
with	sovereign	jurisdiction	and	lands	within	the	City	of	Lemoore	in	

Kings	County.	 	The	Tachi	Yolut	Tribe	maintains	governmental	and	commercial	operations	ranging	
from	residential	housing,	a	school	and	cultural	department,	to	a	casino	and	hotel	resort.	
	
History		
	
Facts	
Location	&	Geophysical	Features	
It	is	located	4.5	miles	(7.25	km)	southeast	of	Lemoore,	California.	Established	in	1934	on	about	40	
acres	 (16.2	 hectares),	 the	 Santa	 Rosa	 Rancheria	 belongs	 to	 the	 federally	 recognized	 Tachi	 Yokut	
tribe.	 It	 is	 the	site	of	 the	Tachi	Palace	Hotel	&	Casino.	 	The	population	was	517	at	 the	time	of	 the	
2000	United	States	Census.	Ruben	Barrios	was	elected	as	the	Tribal	Chairman	in	2009.	

The	 Santa	 Rosa	 Rancheria	 expanded	 in	 size	 over	 the	 years	 to	 643	 acres	 (260	 hectares)	 by	 the	
beginning	 of	 2008.	 On	May	 28,	 2008,	 then–Tribal	 Chairman	 Clarence	Atwell	 Jr.	 and	Dale	Morris,	
Pacific	 Region	 Director	 of	 the	 U.S.	 Bureau	 of	 Indian	 Affairs,	 signed	 documents	 that	 added	 an	
additional	 1,163	 acres	 (471	 hectares)	 of	 trust	 land,	 thus	 enlarging	 the	 Rancheria	 to	 1,806	 acres	
(731	hectares). 

Public	Safety	&	Preparedness	
The	 Santa	 Rosa	 Rancheria,	 Tribal	 Government,	Members	 and	 Community,	 require	 and	 expect	 all	
Officers	 and	 Dispatchers	 of	 the	 Tribal	 Department	 of	 Public	 Safety	 to	 conduct	 themselves	 at	 all	
times,	in	a	manner	reasonable	and	commensurate	with	their	job	descriptions	and	responsibilities.		
To	enforce	Tribal	 law	and	community	ordinances	within	 their	discretion	to	do	so,	while	acting	 in	
the	best	interests	of	and	for	the	community’s	common	good	and	in	good	faith	at	all	times.		All	staff	
should	accept	the	Departmental	badge	as	a	sign	of	the	Community’s	faith	and	trust	and	shall	display	
a	Spirit	of	Professionalism	and	maintain	a	 clear	 sense	of	 commitment,	 innovation	and	a	 constant	
environment	encouraging	teamwork	and	continuous	improvement.	

Officers	and	Dispatchers	are	expected	 to	commit	 to	and	upholding	 their	positions	of	 trust	by	not	
abusing	said	trust	and	maintaining	the	highest	degree	of	ethical	standards	with	integrity,	being	the	
starting,	central	and	finishing	focal	point	of	all	their	actions.		The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	Department	
of	Public	Safety	 is	a	 community	service	oriented	department	and	all	Officers	and	Dispatchers	are	
expected	 to	 provide	 service	 and	 assistance	 in	 a	 manner	 that	 is	 timely,	 courteous,	 fair	 and	
professional.	

The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	Department	of	Public	 Safety	 is	 a	progressive	entity	of	 the	Tachi‐Yokut	
Indian	Nation,	 Tribal	 Government.	 The	DPS	Officers	 are	 sanctioned	 by	 the	Tribal	 Government	 to	
provide	 the	 Tribal	 community,	 employees,	 guest	 and	 assets	 of	 the	 Tribe,	 with	 standard	 police	
services	and	protections.		The	DPS	utilizes	state	of	the	art	tools	and	equipment	to	accomplish	their	
mandate.	 Which	 includes	 a	 computer	 aided	 dispatch	 system	 (CAD),		 a	 computerized	 report	
management	system	(RMS),	and	the	most	recent	innovations	in	personal	protection	equipment	and	
training.	The	DPS	has	adopted	the	industry's	education	and	training	standard	for	its	officers	with	a	
highly	competitive	compensation	and	benefit	package.	



Community	Profile	Information	
Santa	Rosa	Rancheria		

 

December	2012	 	 Page	2	
 

Community	Activity	
Health	&	Wellness	
The	community	generally	holds	an	annual	health	and	safety	fair	for	its	tribal	members.	
	
Hospitals/Medical	Centers		
There	is	one	medical	center	called	the	Tachi	Medical	Center	located	on	the	property.	
	
Community	Services	
Tribal	Community	Facilities		
There	are	two	areas	on	the	Rancheria	where	members	can	convene	which	is	the	Tachi	Recreation	
Center	and	the	Elder	Center.		The	Elder	Center	has	a	variety	of	Senior	programs	in	place	for	senior	
tribal	members.	
	
Education	
There	are	two	centers	for	education	located	on	the	Rancheria	which	are	the	Tachi	Yokut	Early	
Education	Center	and	the	Continuing	Education	School	for	adult	members	of	the	tribe.		
	
Public	Primary	&	Secondary	Schools	
Children	are	integrated	in	the	local	community	schools	near	the	Rancheria.	
	

Hazard	Identification	and	Profiles	
Representatives	from	the	Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	identified	natural	hazards	that	could	affect	the	tribe	
and	developed	hazard	profiles	based	upon	the	countywide	risk	assessment	and	past	events	and	
their	impacts.	Definitions	for	the	rankings	used	can	be	found	in	Element	B.	

Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	Hazard	Profiles	

Hazard	
Probability	of	
Occurrence	

Potential	
Magnitude/
Geographic	
Extent	

Significance	

Dam	Failure		 Unlikely Catastrophi
c	

Medium	

Drought	 Occasional Limited Medium	
Earthquake	 Occasional Critical High
Extreme	Heat	 Highly	Likely Limited Medium	
Flood	 Occasional Limited Low
Fog	 Highly	Likely Negligible Medium	
Freeze	 Likely Negligible Medium	
Landslide	 Unlikely Negligible Low
Soil	Hazards:	Expansive	
Liquefaction	Erosion	

Occasional Negligible Low

Tornado	 Occasional Limited Low
Wildfire	 Unlikely Negligible Low

 



Community	Profile	Information	
Santa	Rosa	Rancheria		

 

December	2012	 	 Page	3	
 

Vulnerability	Assessment	
The	vulnerability	assessment	analyzes	the	population,	property,	and	other	assets	at	risk	to	natural	
hazards.	This	 section	 lists	 the	 tribe’s	 assets	 at	 risk,	 including	 critical	 facilities	 and	 infrastructure;	
historic,	cultural,	and	natural	resources;	and	economic	assets.		

Assets	at	Risk	
The	 table	 that	 follows	 lists	 the	 critical	 facilities	 and	 other	 community	 assets	 identified	 by	
representatives	from	the	tribe	and	are	important	to	protect	in	the	event	of	a	disaster.		

Critical	Facilities	and	other	Community	Assets	

Facility	 Address	 Replacement	Value	

Tachi	Palace	Casino	and	Hotel	 	 	

 
Estimating	Potential	Losses	
The	table	below	shows	the	tribe’s	total	exposure	to	hazards	in	terms	of	population	and	the	number	
and	values	of	structures.	Kings	County	Assessor’s	data	was	used	to	calculate	the	improved	value	of	
parcels.	 GIS	was	 used	 to	 quantify	 the	 number	 and	 value	 of	 structures	 in	 the	 100‐year	 (Zone	 A).	
More	 information	 on	 how	 these	 estimates	 were	 calculated	 can	 be	 found	 in	 the	 Vulnerability	
Assessment	section	in	Element	B.	

Exposure	to	Hazards	

Tachi	Yokut	Tribe	 Population	 Buildings	 Value	

Total	Exposure	(Earthquake) 	
Flood:	Zone	A	 40 10 2.0	million	
Flood:	X‐500	 	

 

Representatives	 from	 the	 tribe	 discussed	 the	 impacts	 of	 different	 hazards	 to	 the	 Rancheria	 and	
determined	 that	 the	 impacts	 from	drought,	 earthquake,	 extreme	 heat,	 fog,	 and	 freezes	 affect	 the	
Rancheria	 similar	 to	other	areas	of	 the	Kings	County	 region	and	do	not	differ	 significantly	 to	 the	
descriptions	found	in	the	risk	assessment	in	Element	B.		

Capability	Assessment	
Capabilities	are	the	programs	and	polices	currently	in	use	to	reduce	hazard	impacts	or	that	could	be	
used	 to	 implement	 hazard	 mitigation	 activities.	 The	 assessment	 is	 divided	 into	 four	 sections:	
regulatory,	administrative	and	technical,	fiscal,	and	outreach	and	partnerships.		

Regulatory	Capability	
There	are	several	planning	and	land	management	tools	typically	used	by	local	and	tribal	
jurisdictions	to	implement	hazard	mitigation	activities	the	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	works	closely	with	
Kings	County	in	this	area.		



Community	Profile	Information	
Santa	Rosa	Rancheria		

 

December	2012	 	 Page	4	
 

Administrative	and	Technical	Capability	
The	table	below	identifies	the	personnel	resources	responsible	for	activities	related	to	mitigation	
and	loss	prevention.	A	summary	of	technical	resources	follows.	

Personnel	Capabilities	

Personnel	Resources	 Department/Position	

Planner/Engineer	with	knowledge	of	land	
development/land	management	practices	
Engineer/Professional	trained	in	
construction	practices	related	to	buildings	
and/or	infrastructure	

Director	of	Facilities

Full	time	building	official	
Floodplain	Manager	
Emergency	Manager	 Public	Safety	Office	– 10	staff	
Grant	writer	 Tribal	Operations	Office
Other	

 

Outreach	and	Partnerships	
The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	works	closely	with	the	Kings	County	Office	of	Emergency	Management	
and	the	City	of	Lemoore	on	public	outreach	or	other	community	partnerships	related	to	hazard	
mitigation.	

Goals	and	Objectives	
The	Tachi	Yokut	tribe	adopts	the	hazard	mitigation	goals	and	objectives	developed	by	the	Hazard	
Mitigation	Planning	Committee	and	described	in	Element	C.		

Mitigation	Actions	
The	 planning	 team	 for	 the	 Tachi	 Yokut	 tribe	 identified	 and	 prioritized	 the	 following	 mitigation	
actions	based	on	the	risk	assessment.	Background	information	as	well	as	 information	on	how	the	
action	will	be	implemented	and	administered,	such	as	ideas	for	implementation,	responsible	office,	
partners,	potential	funding,	estimated	cost,	and	timeline	also	are	described.		



Community	Profile	Information	
Santa	Rosa	Rancheria		

 

December	2012	 	 Page	5	
 

2012	Mitigation	Actions	
Mitigation	Action:	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	#1—Emergency	Power	System	for	the	Primary	
Safety	Alerting	Point,	PSAP	
	
Action:	
	

Purchase,	Install,	test	and	utilize	a	100	KW	Diesel	powered	
emergency	Generator	system	for	the	PSAP	which	is	a	combination	
dispatch	center	and	tribal	Emergency	Operations	Center.	

Jurisdiction:	
	

Santa	Rosa	Rancheria

Priority:	
	

High	

Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	PSAP	is	responsible	for	the	day	
management	of	emergency	dispatch	for	all	the	tribe’s	public	safety	
agencies	as	well	as	the	day	to	day	coordination	of	fire,	law	and	EMS	
mutual	aid.		During	a	disaster	the	PSAPs	role	expands	to	serve	as	the	
Rancheria’s	emergency	Operations	Center	(EOC).		As	such	it	is	
responsible	for	coordinating	information	and	resources	for	the	tribe	
as	well	as	serving	as	a	node	of	the	operational	area’s	mutual	aid	
system.		It	currently	has	no	emergency	power,	which	means	that	a	
power	outage	no	matter	what	the	source	greatly	inhibits	the	PSAPs	
ability	to	perform	either	its	day	to	day	mission	or	its	functions	during	
a	natural	disaster.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	the	
tribes	normal	budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	
implemented	either	as	a	grant	project,	a	project	under	the	homeland	
security	grant	programs	or	as	a	local	fund	raising	effort.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Santa	Rosa Rancheria	Office	of	Public	Safety.
	

Partners:	
	

Kings	County	OEM	and	Tachi	Tribal	Council.
	

Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
potentially	tribal	gaming	revenues.	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$200,000	for	the	complete	100KW system	including	generator,	fuel	
tanks,	automatic	transfer	switches,	pad	and	labor.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

	
Emergency	power	system	will	ensure	the	PSAP	and	EOC	can	stay	on	
line	independent	of	commercial	power.		This	will	allow	them	to	
continue	their	lifesaving	mission	of	resource	dispatch	and	control	
during	any	disaster	that	disrupts	local	commercial	power,	brownouts	
or	rolling	blackouts.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2013	to	coincide	with	
the	completion	of	the	Rancheria’s	emergency	shelter	program	for	
seniors	and	modernization	of	the	Rancherias	public	safety	services.	
	

 
 



Community	Profile	Information	
Santa	Rosa	Rancheria		

 

December	2012	 	 Page	6	
 

Mitigation	Action:	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	#2—Emergency	Power	System	for	the	Senior	Center	
shelter	site.	
	
Action:	
	

Purchase,	Install,	test	and	utilize	a	200	KW	Diesel	powered	
emergency	Generator	system	for	the	Senior	Center	Shelter	Site,	which	
would	provide	emergency	shelter,	cooling,	medical	device	poer	and	
recharging,	refrigeration	for	critical	medications,	and	life	safety	for	
tribal	seniors.	Center.	

Jurisdiction:	 Santa	Rosa	Rancheria
Priority:	 High	
Issue/Background:	
	
	
	

The	Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	has	senior	housing	of	over	200	mostly	
medically	fragile	seniors.		The	housing	area	has	an	onsite	senior	
center	that	is	used	for	emergency	shelter,	community	activities,	
recreation	and	daily	senior	programs.		It	currently	has	no	emergency	
power,	which	means	that	a	power	outage	no	matter	what	the	source	
can	place	this	special	needs	population	at	risk.		Emergency	power	
would	provide	heating	and	cooling	for	the	sheltered	population,	
power	to	maintain	medical	devices,	refrigeration	and	meal	
preparation	for	this	population.	Emergency	power	enables	the	senior	
center	to	maintain	its	functions	during	a	natural	disaster.	

Ideas	for	
Implementation:		
	
	

This	is	a	major	project	requiring	substantial	funding	beyond	the	
tribes	normal	budgetary	processes.		This	project	could	be	
implemented	either	as	a	grant	project,	a	project	under	the	homeland	
security	grant	programs	or	as	a	local	fund	raising	effort.	

Responsible	Office:	
	

Santa	Rosa	Rancheria	Office	of	Public	Safety	and	Office	of	Social	
Services.	

Partners:	 Kings	County	OEM	and	Tachi	Tribal	Council.
Potential	Funding:	
	

SHSGP	Grant	Program,	Hazard	Mitigation	Grant	Program,	and	
potentially	tribal	gaming	revenues.	

Cost	Estimate:	
	

$350,000	for	the	complete	200KW	system	including	generator,	fuel	
tanks,	automatic	transfer	switches,	pad	and	labor.	

Benefits:	
(Losses	Avoided)	
	
	

	
Emergency	power	system	will	ensure	the	Senior	Center	can	stay	on	
line	independent	of	commercial	power.		This	will	allow	them	to	
continue	their	mission	of	sheltering	and	caring	for	the	senior	
population	of	the	Tachi	tribe.		It	also	creates	a	community	resource	in	
the	event	of	a	disaster	that	can	shelter	additional	people,	provide	a	
clinic	site	for	casualty	collection	and	treatment,	and	provide	a	
resource	to	assist	in	disaster	food	service	and	population	protection.		
The	ability	to	maintain	the	HVAC	systems	by	generator	will	allow	the	
center	to	be	used	annually	during	heat	waves	despite	limitations	of	
the	commercial	power	grid.	

Timeline:	
	

Desired	completed	by	the	end	of	calendar	year	2013	to	coincide	with	
the	completion	of	the	Rancheria’s	emergency	shelter	program	for	
seniors	and	modernization	of	the	Rancherias	public	safety	services.	
	

 
	



Kings	County	School	Districts	
Profile	Information	

 

December	2012	FINAL		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Page	18	
 

 

School	District	 Evacuation	
Plans	

Shelter‐in‐
Place	Plans

Tornado	
Program/Drills	

Earthquake	
Program/Drills	

Flood	Safety	
Program/Drills	

Other	Plans	

Armona	Union	 	  	 	 	 	 Annual	update	of	safety	manual	

Central	Union	 	 	 	 	 	 Several,	see	district	section	
Corcoran	
Unified	

	 	 	 	 	 Safe	School	Plan,	Fire	Drills,	
Intruder	Drills	

Hanford	
Elementary	

	 	 	 	 	
Emergency	Op	Manual,	

Comprehensive	School	Safety	
Plan,	Tornado	Plan‐no	drills	

Hanford	Joint	
Union	High	
School	

	 	 	 	 	 Safe	School	Plan,	Flood	Program,	
but	no	drills	

Island	Union	
Elementary	

	 	 	 	 	 School	Safety	Plan	

Kings	River‐
Hardwick	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Kit	Carson	 	 	 	 	 	
Emergency	plan	reviewed	with	

all	employees	
Kings	County	
Office	of	
Education	

	 	 	 	 	
Safety	plan	currently	being	

updated	

Lakeside	 	 	 	 	 	
Comprehensive	Safety	Plan,	

Bullying	Prevention,	Character	
Counts	

Lemoore	
Elementary	

	 	 	 	 	 Fire	drills,	intruder	drills	

Lemoore	High	
School	

	 	 	 	 	 Comprehensive	safety	plan	

Pioneer	 	 	 	 	 	
Bullying	prevention,	character	
counts,	stranger	on	campus,	

traffic/bike	safety	
Reef‐Sunset	 	 	 	 	 	 Yes,	but	unspecified	

Percentage	with	
Capability	

100%	 100%	 29%	 100%	 14%	 	



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 02/12/2015 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 15:21:04 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch=’RD021715’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  8/15

FUND − 150 − RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4951 − RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
8 /15 02/12/15 21 02052015     1000 CITY OF LEMOORE 250,000.00 .00 CITY ADMIN FEES
8 /15 02/12/15 21 WINTER2014   6203 RGW EQUIPMENT LL 4,100.00 .00 WEED ABATEMENT
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 254,100.00 .00

TOTAL    RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND .00 254,100.00 .00

TOTAL    RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND .00 254,100.00 .00

TOTAL REPORT .00 254,100.00 .00

RUN DATE 02/12/2015 TIME 15:21:06 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-10



“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

Lois Wynne  Finance 
Department 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-6700 

Fax (559) 924-9003 
 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-1 
To: Redevelopment Successor Agency Board  

From: Cheryl Silva, Finance Director  

Date: February 7, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 
Successor Agency Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for July 
1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 (ROPS 15-16A) 

 
Discussion: 
 
As required by AB 1484, Section 34177(l), the Successor Agency is required to submit 
a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule to the Oversight Board for the period July 
through December 2015 (ROPS 15-16A) for approval.  A copy of the approved ROPS 
15-16A will be sent to the California Department of Finance (DOF) by the due date of 
March 3, 2015.  If the Successor Agency fails to submit it to DOF by the deadline, the 
City (the entity that created the redevelopment agency) will be subject to a penalty of 
$10,000 per day.  
 
Attached for your review and approval is ROPS 15-16A.  The spreadsheet was supplied 
by the DOF and includes the items 1–29 that were on our previous ROPS.    
Additionally, the DOF shaded the rows of the items that have been denied and locked 
the cells to prevent agencies from inputting dollar amounts.  Item 30 was added based 
on the Lemoore Redevelopment Agency Asset Transfer Review as discussed at the 
February 3, 2015 council meeting.  The requested amount is for $356,346.  Item 31 was 
added to this ROPS cycle.  Assembly Bill 471 allows housing entities who assumed the 
housing functions of the former redevelopment agencies to receive a housing entity 
administrative cost allowance.  The minimum allowance is $150,000 per fiscal year.  
This ROPS cycle includes a $75,000 request (1/2 of the annual allowance) for this 
administrative allowance.  The ROPS includes a report of the cash balances by funding 
source.  The reporting obligation also requires an accounting of the ROPS 14-15A 
estimated obligations versus actual payments, which is also attached.   
 
Budget Impact: 
Successor Agency expenditures for the period July-December 2015 total $2,858,018 as 
shown on ROPS 15-16A (Six-Month Total Column).   
 
Recommendation: 
That the Successor Agency Board, by motion, direct staff to present the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule for the period July-December 2015 (ROPS 15-16A) to the 
Oversight Board on February 26, 2015 for approval and submit it to the Department of 
Finance by March 3, 2015. 



Name of Successor Agency: Lemoore

Name of County: Kings

Current Period Requested Funding for Outstanding Debt or Obligation 

A 1,236,346$       

B 480,000            

C -                        

D 756,346            

E 1,621,672$       

F 1,371,672         

G 250,000            

H Current Period Enforceable Obligations (A+E): 2,858,018$       

Successor Agency Self-Reported Prior Period Adjustment to Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding 

I Enforceable Obligations funded with RPTTF (E): 1,621,672         

J (57,030)             

K 1,564,642$       

County Auditor Controller Reported Prior Period Adjustment to Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding 

L Enforceable Obligations funded with RPTTF (E): 1,621,672         

M -                        

N 1,621,672         

Name Title

/s/

Signature Date

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - Summary
Filed for the July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 Period

Enforceable Obligations Funded with Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) Funding 
Sources (B+C+D):

Non-Administrative Costs (ROPS Detail)

Enforceable Obligations Funded with RPTTF Funding (F+G):

Bond Proceeds Funding (ROPS Detail)

Reserve Balance Funding (ROPS Detail)

Other Funding (ROPS Detail)

 Six-Month Total 

Administrative Costs (ROPS Detail)

Less Prior Period Adjustment (Report of Prior Period Adjustments Column S)

Adjusted Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding (I-J)

Less Prior Period Adjustment (Report of Prior Period Adjustments Column AA)

Adjusted Current Period RPTTF Requested Funding (L-M)

Certification of Oversight Board Chairman:
Pursuant to Section 34177 (m) of the Health and Safety code, I 
hereby certify that the above is a true and accurate Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule for the above named agency.



A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance Other Funds Non-Admin  Admin  
40,844,554$          480,000$            -$                        756,346$                1,371,672$         250,000$            2,858,018$              

           1 1998 Bond Bonds Issued On or 4/1/1998 8/1/2025 U.S. Bank Debt Service - Capital Bonds 1,2,3                              -  Y  $                            - 
           2 2003 Bond Bonds Issued On or 

Before 12/31/10
5/15/2003 8/1/2033 U.S. Bank Debt Service - Capital Bonds 1,2,3                              -  Y  $                            - 

           3 2011 Bond Bonds Issued After 
12/31/10

3/4/2011 8/1/2040 U.S. Bank Debt Service - Capital Bonds 1,2,3             18,655,000  N                            -                   400,000                439,656  $                839,656 

           4  Agreement for Services Business Incentive 
Agreements

11/16/2010 6/30/2015 Lemoore Chamber Five year agreement for economic 
development services.

1,2,3                              -  Y                            -                            -  $                            - 

           6 Owner Participation Agreement OPA/DDA/Constructi
on

9/4/2007 12/31/2099 Leprino Foods Co. Incentive to expand in Lemoore - 175 
add'l jobs.

1,2,3               3,734,393  N                            -                            -  $                            - 

           7 Payment for Services Property 
Maintenance

5/28/2014 12/31/2099 RGW Equipment/Richard 
Wills

Weed abatement redevelopment 
owned properties / Contract was 
presented to oversight board for 
approval on 8-28-14 to continue weed 
abatement on Agency owned 
properties.  Contract will expire when 
all Agency owned properties have 
been sold.

1,2,3                    68,350  N                            -                    3,200  $                    3,200 

16 Westside Infrastructure Project Improvement/Infrastr
ucture

9/21/2010 12/31/2099 Contractor TBD Installation of infrastructure on the 
west side of Highway 41 @ Bush 
Street.  Funding approved by 
Resolution No. 2010-02 on September 
21, 2010.

1,2,3  N  $                            - 

18 Bond Projects Miscellaneous 2/15/2011 12/31/2099 Contractor TBD Capital projects identified in the 2011 
bond issue.

1,2,3  N  $                            - 

19 Bond Projects Miscellaneous 2/15/2011 12/31/2099 Contractor TBD Housing projects identified in the 2011 
bond issue.

1,2,3  N  $                            - 

         21 Administrative Allowance Admin Costs 7/1/2015 7/1/2015 City of Lemoore Admin cost-the greater of 3% of 
RPTTF or $250,000.

1,2,3                  250,000  N                250,000  $                250,000 

         22 2003 Bond Proceed Housing 
Projects

Miscellaneous 8/6/2013 6/30/2015 Housing Program 
Recipients

Various Housing Programs to assist 
citizens with Housing Programs / 
Budget Approved Aug. 2013.       
Project will be rebudgeted in the 2014-
2015 Budget for balance of 
unexpended funds. 

1,2,3               1,250,000  N                480,000  $                480,000 

         23 Annual Audit Dissolution Audits 7/2/2013 6/30/2014 Price, Paige & Company Annual Audit (Successor Agency) as 
recommended by DOF as best 
practice

1,2,3                    35,000  N                    5,000  $                    5,000 

         28 Lemoore Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds 2014

Refunding Bonds 
Issued After 6/27/12

6/27/2014 8/1/2033 U.S. Bank Debt Service - Capital Bonds 1,2,3             15,855,465  N                838,816  $                838,816 

         29 Bond Administrative Fees Fees 3/4/2011 8/1/2033 Bond Administration 
Vendors

Fees associated with the 
administration of the two outstanding 
Bond Issues

1,2,3                  190,000  N                  10,000  $                  10,000 

         30 Lemoore Redevelopment Agency 
Asset Transfer Review

Dissolution Audits 6/2/2005 6/2/2017 City of Lemoore Purchase of City General Fund 
Receivable due from Golf Course

1,2,3                  356,346  N                   356,346  $                356,346 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - ROPS Detail
July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Item # Payee Description/Project Scope Project Area
 Total Outstanding 
Debt or Obligation  Retired 

 Funding Source 

Six-Month TotalProject Name / Debt Obligation Obligation Type
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date

 RPTTF 
 Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 

(Non-RPTTF) 

Contract/Agreement 
Termination Date



A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance Other Funds Non-Admin  Admin  

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - ROPS Detail
July 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Item # Payee Description/Project Scope Project Area
 Total Outstanding 
Debt or Obligation  Retired 

 Funding Source 

Six-Month TotalProject Name / Debt Obligation Obligation Type
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date

 RPTTF 
 Non-Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 

(Non-RPTTF) 

Contract/Agreement 
Termination Date

         31 Administrative Allowance Admin Costs 7/1/2015 12/31/2015 Lemoore Housing Authority Admin cost-the greater of 1% of 
RPTTF or $150,000 per fiscal year. 
(Per Assembly Bill 471)

                 450,000  N                  75,000  $                  75,000 

         32  N  $                            - 
         33  N  $                            - 
         34  N  $                            - 
         35  N  $                            - 
         36  N  $                            - 
         37  N  $                            - 
         38  N  $                            - 
         39  N  $                            - 
         40  N  $                            - 
         41  N  $                            - 
         42  N  $                            - 
         43  N  $                            - 
         44  N  $                            - 
         45  N  $                            - 
         46  N  $                            - 
         47  N  $                            - 
         48  N  $                            - 
         49  N  $                            - 
         50  N  $                            - 
         51  N  $                            - 
         52  N  $                            - 
         53  N  $                            - 
         54  N  $                            - 
         55  N  $                            - 
         56  N  $                            - 
         57  N  $                            - 
         58  N  $                            - 
         59  N  $                            - 
         60  N  $                            - 
         61  N  $                            - 
         62  N  $                            - 
         63  N  $                            - 
         64  N  $                            - 
         65  N  $                            - 
         66  N  $                            - 
         67  N  $                            - 
         68  N  $                            - 
         69  N  $                            - 
         70  N  $                            - 
         71  N  $                            - 
         72  N  $                            - 
         73  N  $                            - 
         74  N  $                            - 



A B C D E F G H I

Other  RPTTF 

 Bonds Issued on 
or before 
12/31/10 

Bonds Issued on 
or after 01/01/11 

 Prior ROPS 
period balances 

and DDR RPTTF 
balances retained 

 Prior ROPS 
RPTTF 

distributed as 
reserve for future 

period(s) 

 Rent,
Grants,

Interest, Etc.  

 Non-Admin 
and 

Admin  

ROPS 14-15A Actuals (07/01/14 - 12/31/14)
1 Beginning Available Cash Balance (Actual 07/01/14)

1,250,000           639,149              882,171        581,312              
2 Revenue/Income (Actual 12/31/14) 

RPTTF amounts should tie to the ROPS 14-15A distribution from the 
County Auditor-Controller during June 2014

257,315        1,983,687           
3 Expenditures for ROPS 14-15A Enforceable Obligations (Actual 

12/31/14)
RPTTF amounts, H3 plus H4 should equal total reported actual 
expenditures in the Report of PPA, Columns L and Q  

1,989,356           
4 Retention of Available Cash Balance (Actual 12/31/14) 

RPTTF amount retained should only include the amounts distributed as 
reserve for future period(s)

5 ROPS 14-15A RPTTF Prior Period Adjustment 
RPTTF amount should tie to the self-reported ROPS 14-15A PPA in the 
Report of PPA, Column S

No entry required

57,030                
6  Ending Actual Available Cash Balance 

C to G = (1 + 2 - 3 - 4), H = (1 + 2 - 3 - 4 - 5) 1,250,000$         -$                       639,149$            -$                       1,139,486$   518,613$            

ROPS 14-15B Estimate (01/01/15 - 06/30/15)
7 Beginning Available Cash Balance (Actual 01/01/15) 

(C, D, E, G = 4 + 6, F = H4 + F4 + F6, and H = 5 + 6)
1,250,000$         -$                       639,149$            -$                       1,139,486$   575,643$            

8 Revenue/Income (Estimate 06/30/15)
RPTTF amounts should tie to the ROPS 14-15B distribution from the 
County Auditor-Controller during January 2015 502,949        -                         

9 Expenditures for ROPS 14-15B Enforceable Obligations (Estimate 
06/30/15) 639,149              858,358        238,128              

10 Retention of Available Cash Balance (Estimate 06/30/15) 
RPTTF amount retained should only include the amounts distributed as 
reserve for future period(s)

11 Ending Estimated Available Cash Balance (7 + 8 - 9 -10)
1,250,000$         -$                       -$                       -$                       784,077$      337,515$            

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - Report of Cash Balances
(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34177 (l), Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) may be listed as a source of payment on the ROPS, but only to the extent no other funding source is available 
or when payment from property tax revenues is required by an enforceable obligation.  For tips on how to complete the Report of Cash Balances Form, see  https://rad.dof.ca.gov/rad‐
sa/pdf/Cash_Balance_Agency_Tips_Sheet.pdf.

Fund Sources

Comments

 Bond Proceeds  Reserve Balance 

Cash Balance Information by ROPS Period



A B C D E F G H I J  K L  M N O  P Q  R  S  T U V  W X Y  Z  AA  AB 

 Net SA Non-Admin 
and Admin PPA 

(Amount Used to 
Offset ROPS 15-16A 
Requested RPTTF) 

 Net CAC Non-
Admin and Admin 

PPA
 (Amount Used to 

Offset ROPS 15-16A 
Requested RPTTF) 

 Authorized   Actual   Authorized   Actual   Authorized   Actual   Authorized  

Available
RPTTF 

(ROPS 14-15A 
distributed + all other 

available as of 
07/1/14)

 Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual  

 Difference 
(If K is less than L, 

the difference is 
zero)  Authorized  

Available
RPTTF 

(ROPS 14-15A 
distributed + all other 

available as of 
07/1/14)

 Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual  

 Difference
(If total actual 
exceeds total 

authorized, the 
total difference is 

zero) 
 Net Difference

(M+R) 

Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual   Difference  

Net Lesser of 
Authorized / 

Available  Actual   Difference   Net Difference 

480,000$        -$                          -$                       -$                      -$                         -$                          1,801,880$        1,801,880$                1,801,880$             1,744,850$         57,030$                  250,000$           250,000$                    
 $               250,000 

250,000$             -$                            57,030$                     -$                            -$                         -$                               

               1  1998 Bond                        -                          -                             -               427,455                      427,455 $               427,455               422,455  $                    5,000 $                       5,000 
               2  2003 Bond                        -                          -                             -               483,724                      483,724 $               483,724               478,724  $                    5,000 $                       5,000 
               3  2011 Bond                        -                          -                             -               842,956                       842,956  $               842,956                806,776  $                 36,180  $                     36,180 
               4  Agreement for 

Services 
                       -                          -                             -                 30,000                         30,000  $                 30,000                  27,000  $                    3,000  $                       3,000 

               6  Owner Participation 
Agreement 

                       -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

               7  Payment for 
Services 

                       -                          -                             -                   7,250                           7,250  $                    7,250                    4,400  $                    2,850  $                       2,850 

             16  Westside 
Infrastructure Project

                       -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

             18  Bond Projects                        -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
             19  Bond Projects                        -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
             21  Administrative 

Allowance 
                       -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

             22  2003 Bond Proceed 
Housing Projects 

          480,000                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

             23  Annual Audit                        -                          -                             -                   5,000                           5,000  $                    5,000                             -  $                    5,000  $                       5,000 
             24  ROPS I Deficit 

Funding 
                       -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

             25  ROPS III Deficit 
Funding 

                       -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

             26  ROPS 13-14A 
Overpayment 

                       -                          -                             -                           -  $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

             27  ROPS 13-14A 
Deficit Funding 

                       -                          -                             -                   5,495                           5,495  $                    5,495                    5,495  $                            -  $                               - 

 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 
 $                            -  $                            -  $                               - 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - Report of Prior Period Adjustments
Reported for the ROPS 14-15A (July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014) Period Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC) section 34186 (a)

(Report Amounts in Whole Dollars)

ROPS 14-15A Successor Agency (SA) Self-reported Prior Period Adjustments (PPA): Pursuant to HSC Section 34186 (a), SAs are required to report the differences between their actual available funding and their actual expenditures for the ROPS 14-15A (July through December 2014) period.  The amount of 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) approved for the ROPS 15-16A (July through December 2015) period will be offset by the SA’s self-reported ROPS 14-15A prior period adjustment. HSC Section 34186 (a) also specifies that the prior period adjustments self-reported by SAs are subject to audit by 
the county auditor-controller (CAC) and the State Controller.  

Item #
Project Name / 
Debt Obligation 

Non-RPTTF Expenditures

Non-Admin Non-Admin CAC Admin CACAdminBond Proceeds Reserve Balance Other Funds

RPTTF ExpendituresRPTTF Expenditures

ROPS 14-15A CAC PPA: To be completed by the CAC upon submittal of the ROPS 15-16A by the SA to Finance and 
the CAC.  Note that CACs will need to enter their own formulas at the line item level pursuant to the manner in which they 
calculate the PPA.  Also note that the Admin amounts do not need to be listed at the line item level and may be entered 
as a lump sum. 

CAC Comments SA Comments 



Item # Notes/Comments

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 15-16A) - Notes 
July 1, 2015 through December 30, 2015



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559)  924-6700 
  Fax (559)  924-9003 

Jeff Chedester 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 10, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2015 

Subject: 
 

Lemoore Chamber of Commerce Proposed Agreement  
for Economic Development Services - $280,000 

 
Discussion 
 
On November 16, 2010, the Redevelopment Agency Board approved a five year 
agreement with the Lemoore Chamber of Commerce to provide economic development 
services for Lemoore, and hire, house and supervise a Downtown Coordinator.   The 
agreement will end on June 30, 2015, and after that time, the Redevelopment Agency will 
no longer be able to fund the services.  In anticipation of the impending end of the 
agreement, the Chamber is asking Council to consider funding such services out of the 
General Fund for the next five years.   
 
Funding for the proposed Agreement is very similar to the prior five-year agreement.  
Beginning with the 2015-2016 fiscal year, a contribution of $54,000 is proposed and the 
amount increases by $1,000 annually for inflation.  The total amount of funding over the 
five-year period is $280,000.  An historical listing of City and RDA contributions to the 
Chamber since 1994 is attached for your convenience. 
 
In exchange for the financial contribution, the Chamber agrees to perform economic 
development services for the City including events and activities such as festivals, 
celebrations, banquets, parades, concerts, business training seminars, or other mutually 
agreed upon activities.  Only services receiving financial assistance by the City are 
included in the Agreement.  A comparison of the activities listed in past, current, and 
proposed agreements is attached for your review.  Also attached are two documents 
provided by the Chamber:  State of the Chamber January 2015, and Lemoore Chamber 
of Commerce 2015 Budget.   
 
The proposed Agreement includes language regarding consequences if the Chamber fails 
to provide the number of events listed.  For each event that is not performed (or substituted 
with a comparable event) by the end of the fiscal year, the final quarterly payment to the 
Chamber will be reduced by $2,500 per missed event.  Reductions will not exceed more 
than one-half of the annual allotment.    
   
 



“In God We Trust” 

Council is asked to review the proposed Agreement and attachments and consider making 
a financial contribution to the Chamber.  Please note that Council has the authority to: 
 

1) Approve the Agreement as presented 
2) Propose an increase to the amount of services listed 
3) Reduce (or increase) the annual contribution amount 
4) Set a flat annual rate (as opposed to increasing by $1,000 per year) 
5) Other options may be considered 

 
In addition to the alternatives listed above, other options may be presented and 
considered.  Jenny MacMurdo, CEO of the Chamber will be in attendance during Tuesday 
evening’s Council meeting to answer any questions you may have.  Over the past year, 
Jenny has been actively improving the Chamber’s services, and she is very attentive to 
the City’s needs. 
 
Budget Impact 
 
If approved as presented, the impact to the General Fund for economic development 
services provided by the Lemoore Chamber of Commerce would be $280,000 for the five 
year agreement.  The impact for fiscal year 2015-2016 will be $54,000. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Council consider the attached Agreement by and between the 
Lemoore District Chamber of Commerce and the City of Lemoore to provide Economic 
Development Services for the next five years for a total sum of $280,000, provided that such 
funding is identified in the City’s annual budget. 
 



1 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE LEMOORE DISTRICT CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

AND THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
TO PROVIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into in duplicate as of the 20th day of January, 
2015, by and between the City of Lemoore, a municipality, hereinafter called “CITY”, and the 
Lemoore District Chamber of Commerce, a non-profit corporation, duly organized and existing 
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, hereinafter called “CHAMBER”. 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, CHAMBER and CITY, desire to combine efforts to maintain and enhance the 
economic vitality of Lemoore, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CHAMBER is organized for the purpose of promoting economic 
development and business welfare in the City and vicinity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY is tasked with preserving and enhancing the economic prosperity of 
the community, aiding in business development and retention, and developing sales tax generating 
activities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY is authorized by law, to expend funds for the promotion of such 
activities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CHAMBER desires to perform the services herein provided for the benefit 
of the CITY and the community; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the CITY and CHAMBER as 
follows: 
 

1. TERM. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be from the first day of July, 2015, until the 
30th day of June, 2020, unless either party notifies the other of its intention to terminate the 
Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice. 
 

2. SERVICES. During the term hereof, the CHAMBER shall undertake to A) promote the 
community and the quality of life in Lemoore, provide for the benefit of the CITY those 
services that will advertise, exploit and publicize the resources and advantages of the CITY 
and B) assist the City in its business and industrial marketing and outreach efforts. In 
addition to these services, the Chamber will deliver the following events: 

 
a. Showcase Lemoore’s offerings by hosting and coordinating a minimum of 13 public 

events annually and two business training seminars, with the intent that at least two 
events will attract over 2,000 participants and all other events will attract over 100 
participants each. Events and activities may include festivals, celebrations, banquets, 
parades, concerts or other mutually agreed upon activities. Every event will have 
separate committees to include 1-4 Chamber board members, community volunteers and 
the Chamber CEO.  The Chamber is committed to the following events for 2015: 



2 

i. 1 - Central Valley Pizza Festival- April, estimated attendance 2,000 
 
ii. 10 – Summer Concerts – June-August, estimated total attendance 600-800 
 
iii. 1 – Kings County Salute to Agriculture Banquet – September, estimated 

attendance 350 
 
iv. 1 – Christmas Parade – December, estimated attendance 2,500 
 
v. Host or coordinate two or more local business-training seminars or 

workshops annually 
 
  Should the Chamber desire to make substitutions, agreement of all parties needs to 
  be obtained prior to a substitution. 
 

b. Maintain current information in the community information kiosks. All contents, 
including city produced maps, paper backing, etc. are to be replaced bi-annually. 
 

c. Assist the Downtown Merchants Association with their Holiday Stroll in November. 
 

d. Provide an acceptable workspace and access to Chamber computers and printer for 
carrying out the job duties of the potential Downtown Coordinator position for the 
Downtown Merchants Association retained by the City. 

 
FUNDING FOR SERVICES. CITY shall fund the CHAMBER for economic development 
services according to the table below, provided that such funding is identified in the CITY’S annual 
budget and that the conditions above are met. 
 
The first annual allotment for services is $54,000 and will increase by $1,000 each year for inflation 
and expanded services. Such funding is identified in items #1 and #2 below. 
 
1. One-half of the allotment will supplement the staffing, planning, advertising, expenses and over-

head to deliver the Chamber sponsored events listed above. The Chamber may substitute an 
event for a comparable event. If the Chamber has not completed 12 comparable events by the 
fiscal year end, $2,500 will be deducted per missed event, up to one-half of the annual 
allotment. 

 
2. One-half of the allotment will support the Services identified above as item #2. 
 
The following table illustrated the annual compensation and shall be paid according to the Funding 
terms listed below: 
 SERVICES
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 $ 54,000.00
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 $ 55,000.00
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 $ 56,000.00
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 $ 57,000.00
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 $ 58,000.00 

Total $ 280,000.00 



3 

 
FUNDING TERMS. 
 

A. A written request for payment (invoice) shall be submitted to the CITY following the 
end of each quarter and shall include: 

 
a. Submittal of the Quarterly Update of the Lemoore District Chamber of 

Commerce to the CITY for services performed. 
b. A listing of the upcoming quarter’s events and activities. 

 
B. CITY shall be recognized for participation in all CHAMBER events. 

 
C. The CITY may require an audit be performed, by an accredited auditing firm, on 

CHAMBER financial activities, where CITY funds are used, to demonstrate where and 
how CITY funds have been spent. The cost of the audit shall be funded by the CITY. 

 
3. PRORATED FUNDING. Should the Agreement be terminated prior to June 30th, 2020, 

funding will be prorated through the terminating agency and any excess funding received by the 
Chamber will be returned to the CITY. 
 

4. VOTING MEMBERSHIP. The CITY shall appoint one voting member and one alternate 
member to the CHAMBER Board of Directors. Subject to approval of the CHAMBER Board of 
Directors. 

 
5. INDEMNIFICATION. CHAMBER agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the CITY 

and its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all claims, 
demands, actions, injuries, liabilities, losses, costs or damages, direct or indirect, and any and all 
attorney’s fees and other expenses which CITY or its officials, officers, employees, agents or 
volunteers may sustain or incu      r as a consequence of or anyway relate to CHAMBER, or its 
employees, agents and      subcontractor’s performance of the services and CHAMBER’S 
responsibilities and obligation or responsibilities contained in this Agreement. This 
indemnification shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

 
6. NOTICES.  All notices herein required shall be in writing and shall be sent by certified mail, 

postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  Lemoore District Chamber of Commerce 
  300 E Street 
  Lemoore, CA 93245 
 
  City Manager 
  City of Lemoore 
  119 Fox Street 
  Lemoore, CA 93245 
 
7. CONFORMANCE TO APPLICABLE LAWS. CHAMBER shall comply with all applicable 

federal, state and city laws, rules and ordinances. No discrimination shall be made by 



4 

CHAMBER in the employment of persons to work under this Agreement because of race, color, 
national origin ancestry, sex or religion of such person. 
 

8. SOLE AND ONLY AGREEMENT. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no 
representations, inducements, promises or agreements, orally or in writing, have been made by 
any party or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied in the Agreement 
and no other agreement, statement or promise shall be valid or binding with regard to economic 
development services. 

 
9. INVALIDITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held by court of competent jurisdiction to 

be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless continue in full 
force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 
10. AMENDMENT. No change, amendment or modification of the Agreement shall be valid 

unless the same be in writing and signed by the parties hereto. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE LEMOORE DISTRICT CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND THE CITY OF 
LEMOORE TO PROVIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES to be executed on the day 
and year first above written and written below. 
 
EXECUTED this 20th day of January, 2015. 
 
 CITY OF LEMOORE, 
 A municipality, 
 By:        
       Jeff Laws, City Manager  Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:  
     Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk      Date 
 
 LEMOORE DISTRICT 
 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, 
 A Non-Profit Corporation, 
 
 By:        
       Victor Rosa, Chairman   Date 
 
 LEMOORE DISTRICT 
 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, 
 A Non-Profit Corporation, 
 
 By:        
       Jennifer M. MacMurdo, CEO  Date 



State	of	the	Chamber	January	2015	

Reflected	below	is	a	brief	list	of	positive,	forward	thinking	focuses	that	have	occurred	
since	the	change	in	Chamber	staffing	in	2014.	Since	then,	the	Chamber	has	been	actively	
re‐engaging	its’	membership	and	has	become	a	more	visible	organization	in	the	
Lemoore	community.		

I. Increased	New	Members	and	Re‐Joining	Members	by	25	to	date	
II. Greater	Communication	between	the	Chamber	and	the	City,	Businesses,	

DMA,	Elected	Officials	,	Lemoore	&	Surrounding	Communities	
III. Resurrection	of	the	Chamber	Ambassadors	
IV. Continued	Planning	and	Organization	of	Community	Events:	Awards	

Banquets,	Central	Valley	Pizza	Festival,		Rockin’	the	Arbor,	Holiday	Stroll	&	
the	Annual	Christmas	Parade	

V. Coordinated	Educational	Business	Workshops:	5	Part	Series	for	2015	
VI. Filled	remainder	Chamber	owned	property	with	a	small	business	
VII. Filled	all	upstairs	Train	Depot	rentals	with	small	business	renters	
VIII. Continued	Upkeep	of	Historical	Train	Depot	
IX. Proposed	New	Youth	Project‐	Young	Entrepreneurs	Academy:	Nov	2014	–

May	2015	
X. Continued	Process	of	Creating	a	Professional/Helpful	Business	Friendly	

Environment		
	

	



Lemoore Chamber of Commerce

2015 Budget

2015 Budget

Income

Misc Income

4000 · Chamber Programs & Services

4001 · Banners $0.00

4002 · Merchandise $500.00

4005 · Other $0.00

4006 · Notary Income $100.00

4007 · Workshops $150.00

4000 · Chamber Programs & Services - Other $0.00

Total 4000 · Chamber Programs & Services $750.00

4010 · Chamber Directory Revenue $1,000.00

4100 · Membership Dues

4101 · Agricultural $1,500.00

4102 · Business $42,000.00

4103 · Clergy $325.00

4104 · Educational $3,500.00

4105 · Family $110.00

4106 · Individual $455.00

4107 · Money (banks) $1,400.00

4108 · Non-Profit $4,750.00

4109 · Titled Officials $150.00

4110 · Utilities $500.00

Total 4100 · Membership Dues $54,540.00

4200 · Events

4201 · Pizza Fest

4201.02 · Sponsorships $8,000.00

4201.04 · Bar Sales $2,500.00

4201.06 · Vendors $11,800.00

4201.09 · Entry Fees $500.00

Total 4201 · Pizza Fest $22,800.00

4202 · Installation

4202.01 · Attendees $13,000.00

4202.02 · Sponsorships $500.00

Total 4202 · Installation $13,500.00

4203 · Rockin' the Arbor Concerts

4203.02 · Sponsorships $8,000.00

4203.04 · Bar Sales $12,000.00

4203.06 · Food Vendors $500.00

4203.08 · Vendors $1,500.00

4303.07 · Bounce Hs, misc. inc. $100.00

4303.09 · 50/50 Raffle $1,000.00

Total 4203 · Rockin' the Arbor Concerts $23,100.00

4204 · Salute to Ag

4204.01 · Attendees $17,000.00

4204.02 · Sponsorships $16,000.00

Total 4204 · Salute to Ag $33,000.00

4205 · Luncheons

4205.01 · Attendees $3,500.00

4205.09 · Sponsorship $1,000.00

Total 4205 · Luncheons $4,500.00

4206 · Carnivals

 Page 1 of 4



Lemoore Chamber of Commerce

2015 Budget

2015 Budget

4207 · Christmas Parade

4207.01 · Entry Fee $600.00

4207.02 · Sponsorships $1,000.00

Total 4207 · Christmas Parade $1,000.00

Total 4200 · Events $97,900.00

4600 · RDA Income $54,000.00

4800 · Rental Property Income

4800.01 · Retained Security Deposits $0.00

4800.02 · Late Fees from Rentals $0.00

4801 · 212 D Street $7,600.00

4802 · 218 D Street $11,400.00

4803 · Freight Room & Suites

4803.50 · Contract Fee for Security $1,000.00

4803 · Freight Room & Suites - Other $12,000.00

Total 4803 · Freight Room & Suites $12,000.00

Total 4800 · Rental Property Income $31,000.00

Total Income $239,190.00

Gross Profit $239,190.00

Expense

Membership Bonus

5000 · Programs & Services

5002 · Merchandise $500.00

5003 · Newsletter $12,000.00

5004 · Dues, Subscription & Membership $1,000.00

5005 · Public Relations $1,000.00

5006 · Donations $150.00

Total 5000 · Programs & Services $14,650.00

5100 · Events Expense

5101 · Pizza Fest

5101.1 · Bar Expense $1,300.00

5101.2 · Band Expense $2,000.00

5101.3 · Security Expense $1,100.00

5101.4 · License Expense $150.00

5101.5 · Entertainment (Misc) $2,500.00

5101.6 · Rental Expenses $3,000.00

5101.7 · CashPrizes/Promo/Market'g Exp $1,000.00

5101.8 · Entry Fees partial refund $100.00

5101 · Pizza Fest - Other $100.00

Total 5101 · Pizza Fest $11,250.00

5102 · Installation $10,000.00

5103 · Rockin' the Arbor Concerts

5103.1 · Bar Expense $6,500.00

5103.2 · Band Expense $5,600.00

5103.4 · Bounce House Expense

5103.7 · Security $1,400.00

5103.8 · License $500.00

5103.9 · Other Expense $1,500.00

Total 5103 · Rockin' the Arbor Concerts $15,500.00

5104 · Salute to Ag $18,000.00

5105 · Luncheons $4,000.00

5106 · Carnival

 Page 2 of 4



Lemoore Chamber of Commerce

2015 Budget

2015 Budget

5107 · Christmas Parade $500.00

5111 · Holiday Stroll $100.00

5100 · Events Expense - Other $100.00

Total 5100 · Events Expense $59,450.00

5200 · Payroll Wages

5201 · CEO $38,600.00

5203 · Office Mgr/Events Coordinator $30,720.00

5204 · Membership Coordinator $23,040.00

Total 5200 · Payroll Wages $92,360.00

5250 · Payroll Expenses

5251 · Payroll Taxes $10,159.60

5250 · Payroll Expenses - Other

Total 5250 · Payroll Expenses $10,159.60

5300 · Staff

5301 · Mileage $1,200.00

5302 · Conferences/Meetings $500.00

5303 · Meals and Entertainment $100.00

Total 5300 · Staff $1,800.00

5350 · Board of Directors

5351 · Goal Setting Retreat $600.00

Total 5350 · Board of Directors $600.00

5370 · Taxes

5372 · State Taxes $10.00

Total 5370 · Taxes $10.00

5400 · Insurance

5400.1 · Workers Comp $2,000.00

5400 · Insurance - Other $9,000.00

Total 5400 · Insurance $11,000.00

5450 · Mortgage Interest $0.00

5500 · Chamber Property

5501 · Repairs & Maintenance $1,000.00

5502 · Service $1,000.00

5503 · Janitorial Supplies $600.00

Total 5500 · Chamber Property $2,600.00

5600 · Office Expenses

5601 · Equipment Maintenance $700.00

5602 · Supplies $2,000.00

5603 · Postage, Mailing Service $800.00

5604 · Printing and Copying $1,200.00

5605 · Computer/Internet/Tech $2,000.00

5606 · Telephone, Telecommunications $3,500.00

5607 · Books, Subscriptions, Reference $100.00

5600 · Office Expenses - Other $100.00

Total 5600 · Office Expenses $10,400.00

5650 · Professional & Banking

5651 · Accounting Fees $4,000.00

5652 · Legal Fees $1,500.00

5653 · Bank Service Charges $6.00

5654 · Credit Card Service Charges $1,700.00

 Page 3 of 4



Lemoore Chamber of Commerce

2015 Budget

2015 Budget

Total 5650 · Professional & Banking $7,206.00

5800 · Rental Prop Expenses

5801 · 212 D Street $2,500.00

5802 · 218 D Street $2,500.00

5803 · Freight Room & Suites

$2,500.00

$600.00

$800.00

Total 5803 · Freight Room & Suites $3,900.00

5800 · Rental Prop Expenses - Other $500.00

Total 5800 · Rental Prop Expenses $9,400.00

5890 · Utilities

5890.01 · Electricity-Depot $5,000.00

5890.02 · Electricity-Downtown Heinlen $600.00

5890.03 · Electricity-Downtown Lights 218 $300.00

5890.05 · Gas $900.00

5890.06 · Water $1,200.00

Total 5890 · Utilities $8,000.00

5980 · Interest Expense $500.00

99999 · Suspense

Total Expense $228,135.60

Other Income

4900 · Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

5900 · Depreciation Expense $11,000.00

Total Other Expense $11,000.00

-$11,000.00

$54.40

5803 · Freight Room & Suites - Other

5803.01 · City of Lemoore Shared Rental

5803.50 · Security Guards

 Page 4 of 4



City RDA

Depot 
Value @ 
$950/mo.

Total 
Contribution

1994 - 1995 $37,500 $0 $37,500

1995 - 1996 $37,500 $10,000 $47,500

1996 - 1997 $37,500 $10,000 $47,500

1997 - 1998 $37,500 $0 $37,500

1998 - 1999 $35,000 $0 $35,000

1999 - 2000 $17,500 $17,500 $35,000

2000 - 2001 $17,500 $17,500 $35,000

2001 - 2002 $20,000 $20,000 $40,000

2002 - 2003 $20,000 $45,000 $65,000

2003 - 2004 $0 $45,000 $45,000

2004 - 2005 $0 $30,000 $11,400 $41,400

2005 - 2006 $0 $45,000 $11,400 $56,400

2006 - 2007 $0 $46,000 $11,400 $57,400

2007 - 2008 $0 $47,000 $11,400 $58,400

2008 - 2009 $0 $48,000 $11,400 $59,400

2009 - 2010 $0 $49,000 $11,400 $60,400

2010 - 2011 $0 $50,000 $11,400 $61,400

2011 - 2012 $0 $51,000 $11,400 $62,400

2012 - 2013 $0 $52,000 $11,400 $63,400

2013 - 2014 $0 $53,000 $11,400 $64,400

2014 - 2015 $0 $54,000 $11,400 $65,400

City/RDA Financial Contributions to Chamber



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Public Works / 

Planning Services 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone  559)  924-6740 
  Fax (559)  924-6708 

Willard Rodarmel 
Council Members 

Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 4-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager  

Date: February 11, 2015 Meeting Date: February 17, 2014 

Subject: Planning Update  

 
 
Discussion 
 
This Planning Update covers the period July 1, 2014 through January 31, 2015.  Included 
in the report is a listing of the various types of planning applications received and 
processed, and the cost to perform the technical planning services.  A separate listing of 
all planning applications received, including the number of days to process them, is 
provided to Council the second meeting of every month in the Activity Update.  The table 
below indicates the number and type of planning applications received and processed.   
 

 Received Processed 

Administrative Clearance 0 0 

Administrative Use Permit 4 4 

Assigned Addresses 6 6 

Conditional Use Permit 2 2 
(Framework Racing/Cinnamon Villas II) 

General Plan Amendment 1 1 
(847 & 849 Champion Street) 

Home Occupations (Minor) 8 8 

Home Occupations (Major) 1 1 

Large Daycare 0 0 

Lot Line Adjustment 1 1 
(Dr. Reimer) 

Minor Deviation 1 1 

Planned Unit Development 0 0 

Plot Plan Review 41 40 

Sign Approval 11 10 



“In God We Trust” 

Site Plan Review (Minor) 2 0 
(Sam Lakhani & Rick Rocha) 

Site Plan Review (Major) 1 1 
(Cinnamon Villas II) 

Temporary Use Permit 0 0 

Tentative Subdivision Map 1 0 
(Great Valley Properties) 

Zone Change 1 1 
(847 & 849 Champion Street) 

Appeal – City Council Review 1 1 
(Antonio’s Tree Service) 
 

The numbers listed above almost mirror the number of planning services provided at the 
same time last year, with the exception of Plot Plan Reviews.  Last year at this time, staff 
had processed approximately 70. 
 
Staff continues to assist the public by answering questions received by phone, email or 
walk-ins, and the typical turnaround time is one to two business days depending on the 
complexity of the request.  Staff regularly assists the public by responding to questions 
regarding permitted uses, setback requirements, conditions of approval, placement of 
accessory structures (e.g. carports, out-buildings, pools, patios, awnings, potential 
signage, etc.), property ownership, and other planning related inquiries.  More recently, 
staff has fielded several calls and emails regarding code violations.  When responding to 
any inquiry, staff strives to be as responsive as possible. 
 
Quad Knopf continues to be the contracted City Planner for the City of Lemoore, and the 
approved contract for fiscal year 2014-2015 is for the amount of $55,500.  The amount 
expended for services to date are identified in the table below: 
 
 2014-2015 2014-2015 Total  
Quad Knopf Services Budgeted Expenditures Remaining 

 
Technical Planning Services $55,500 $33,296 $22,204 
 
As shown above, the total amount expended for technical planning services during the 
contract period of July 2014 through January 2015 (7 months) was $33,296, which 
averages approximately $4,750 per month.  By contrast, last year the cost averaged 
approximately $3,400 per month over the 12-month period.  In addition to the planning 
applications listed above, the amount expended for technical planning services is also a 
reflection of time spent on projects undergoing preliminary plan review for applications not 
yet received and meetings attended with developers to assist them in developing their 
projects.  The City Planner is also in the process of performing other services such as 
updating our Zoning Map and General Plan Map.  
 
In addition to the expenditures listed above for services provided by Quad Knopf, other 
costs necessary to provide planning services are identified in the following table: 
 
  



“In God We Trust” 

Miscellaneous Planning Expenditures Budgeted Expenditures 
 
   $20,900  
 Professional Contract Services:   
  GIS  0 
  FEMA  143 
  LAFCO  0 
  Legal  945 
  Computer Consulting  906 
  Housing Element  12,356 
  Project Engineering  7,676 
 Operating Supplies (computers)  3,087 
 Printing & Publications  1,411 
 Utilities  137 
 Training (Planning Institute for Commissioners)   0 
 Rentals & Leases _______ ____379 
 
 Total $20,900 $27,040 
 
As you can see in the table above, the cost for Miscellaneous Planning Expenditures has 
already exceeded the amount budgeted for the entire year.  However, this is due to costs 
incurred for the Housing Element, which were not included in the original budgeted 
amount.   
 
The amount budgeted for Technical Planning Services and Miscellaneous Planning 
Expenditures totaled $76,400.  The total amount expended to date is $60,336.  Therefore, 
the amount expended for planning services is still under budget for the year.  However, 
we expect planning services to increase since the economy is improving, which will have 
a direct effect on the costs involved to process such applications.  
 
Budget Impact 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
For informational purposes only.  No action required.   
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
Lois Wynne  Office of the 

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, CA  93245 

Phone (559) 924-6700 
Fax (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Jeff Chedester 

Council Members 
Ray Madrigal 
Eddie Neal 

William Siegel 

              City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

              
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: February 13, 2015 Meeting Date:  February 17, 2015 

Subject:       Activity Update 
 
 
Reports 

 

 Building Report January 2015 

 Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department Report January 2015 

 Planning Applications January 1 – January 31, 2015 

 Refuse Report January 2015 

 Water Production Report January 2015 

 Trip Report - Avelar 



JANUARY 2015 CITY OF LEMOORE
BUILDING INSPECTION PERMITS REPORT

Fiscal Year 2014-15

PERMITS ISSUED           VALUATION
 

Description Current Month Current Year to Date Current Month Year to Date

Res. Single Family - New 1 43 140,619.36$        7,252,034.46$        

Res. Condo./PUD - New 0 0 -$                     -$                        
 

Res. Multi-Family - New 0 0 -$                     -$                        
 

Apartment - New 0 0 -$                     -$                        

Commercial / Industrial - New 0 1 -$                     175,000.00$           
 

Alterations - Residential 36 322 511,718.33$        3,800,890.72$        
 

Alterations - Commercial / Industrial 2 23 9,800.00$            1,915,520.00$        
 

Swimming Pool 3 13 74,500.00$          406,050.00$           
    

Bldg. Moved or Demolished 0 2 -$                     -$                        
   

TOTALS 42 404 736,637.69$        13,549,495.18$      
DWELLING UNITS

Location of
 Multi-Family

Description Current Month Current Year to Date Units Last Year to Date
 

Single Family 1 43 52
 

Condo/PUD 0 0 0

Multi-Family 0  0 0  

Apartments 0 0 0
  

TOTALS 1 43 52
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

JANUARY 2015
Permit # A.P.N. Work Description Site Address Work Description Valuatin Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1410-043 023-240-016 LAWSON, NEIL J & 

CINDY S  H/W
1025 LINDA LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT SYSTE   24,660.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 3.21

1410-045 023-360-019 DALEY ENTERPRISES 636 ACACIA DR SFR 140,619.36 1,100.00 132.00 62.93 30.00 18.28
1410-058 020-092-017 RAMOS, GARY S & 

LINDA M  H/W
236 HEINLEN ST TENANT IMPROVEMENT TO       9,800.00 163.00 62.00 20.25 44.50 2.74

1411-015 023-190-001 JACOBS, LUKE & 
SHAWNA  H/W

816 MIKE LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 38 PA 38,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 4.94

1411-036 014-471-004 LUCAS, RUSSELL P & 
LISA K  H/W

1182 E MYRTLE ST STUCCO, STRUCTURAL DAM      36,000.00 556.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.68

1412-028 020-053-016 KEYES, ANN R  
REVOCABLE TRUST

245 E ST INSTALL 3 GROUNDWATER M       0.00 0.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1412-033 023-250-041 GOVEA, JESUS J & 
CLARA  H/W

935 ASPEN CT SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 23 PA 13,200.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.72

1412-037 023-240-017 MONTCLAIR 
APARTMENTS  LP

150 S 19TH AVE REPLACE DUCTS IN ALL 80 U 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 0.00

1412-046 021-480-002 SIMMS, WILLIAM L & 
DACI  H/W

327 DEVON DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 20 PA 11,500.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.50

1412-047 020-132-019 CARRILLO, JESUS A 126 POWELL AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 17 PA 9,800.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.27
1412-048 023-440-012 HANES, CHARLES & 

JEANNETTE  H/W
1668 HOMESTEAD 
WAY

SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 26 PA 14,900.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.94

1412-053 023-210-043 PIKE, LOU ANN 71 HICKORY DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 27 PA 27,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 3.51
1412-055 023-240-011 BEZERA, MICHAEL & 

HARRIETT M  H/W
60 LINDA LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 20 PA 20,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.60

1412-056 023-600-037 ESCARENO, JUAN 1320 ATLANTIC AVE PATIO 850.00 125.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50
1501-001 023-220-020 WARD, WILLIAM E  JR 

& MARTHA J  H/W JT
135 S CAMBRIDGE DR REPAIR SEWER LINE 0.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1501-002 020-181-010 AZEVEDO, MAUREEN 21 S HAMLET ST HVAC CHANGEOUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00
1501-005 020-183-010 FRALEY, BRIAN & 

REBECCA K  H/W
130 TOOMEY ST WATER HEATER INSTALLAT 0.00 0.00 27.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1501-006 023-210-011 DIAS, JASON A 85 S OLIVE ST A/C CHANGEOUT, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00
1501-007 023-240-017 MONTCLAIR 

APARTMENTS  LP
150 S 19TH AVE TEAR OFF COMPOSITION, RE         69,850.00 945.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.08

1501-008 023-490-064 BONGATO, DOMINGO 
A & REBECCA V  H/W 

19750 HEMLOCK LN HVAC CHANGEOUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1501-009 020-192-028 URIBE, SAUL & MARIA 
L  H/W

278 S HAMLET ST WALL FURNACE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.25 0.00

1501-010 021-110-013 SANCHEZ, JOE G & 
LUPE  H/W JT

864 CINNAMON DR TEAR OFF, INSULATE, 30 YR    10,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.30

1501-012 023-360-069 GONZALES, JEFFREY P 1627 MORRO LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT SYSTE   45,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 5.85



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMITS ISSUED REPORT

JANUARY 2015
1501-014 023-210-009 KEHLER, MARK A & 

ELSIE L  H/W
69 S OLIVE ST SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT SYSTE 15,200.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.98

1501-015 020-202-045 BOWERS, BARRY L & 
NADINE A  H/W

1515 MULBERRY LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT SYSTE   25,000.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 3.25

1501-016 024-370-041 GREEN, CHRISTOPHER 
M & HEIDI L  H/W

971 LEISURE DR SWIMMING POOL, 255 SQ FT 23,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.99

1501-018 024-340-002 ASHLEMAN, SCOTT & 
KAREN  H/W

250 LAKE DR BATHROOM SHOWER INSTA 2,000.00 63.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1501-020 021-320-019 MC ALLISTER, ALFRED 
& ANNA  H/W

235 PEARL DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT SYSTE   20,700.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.69

1501-021 021-800-035 BENGTSON, DONALD L 796 ARLINGTON AVE RESIDENTIAL SWIMMING PO 20,000.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.60
1501-022 021-830-042 MCCALEB, CARLOS M 

& MARIBEL  H/W
1046 GENEVA DR SWIMMING POOL, 444 SQ FT 31,500.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.10

1501-023 021-220-044 DE BARAJAS, DELIA L 676 SPRING LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT SYSTE   13,800.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.79
1501-026 021-200-057 ANDERSON, ERIC D & 

MONICA L  H/W
654 TAMARACK LN A/C CHANGEOUT, 3 TON, 16 S 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1501-027 023-210-064 CHIPMAN FAMILY 
GRANTOR TRUST

641 VINE CT A/C CHANGEOUTS, 2 TON, 13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1501-028 023-240-017 MONTCLAIR 
APARTMENTS  LP

150 S 19TH AVE TEAR OFF, RESHEET, INSTAL           57,200.00 945.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 7.44

1501-029 PENDING FI  WATHEN-CASTANOS 
HYBRID HOMES, INC

1230 GOLF AVE NEW SERVICE PANEL FOR LA     0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 0.00

1501-030 021-150-039 STEWART, PATRICIA M 912 BANYAN DR FURNACE REPLACE, 60,000 B 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.25 0.00
1501-032 023-050-003 MINOR, MELISSA 720 MADRID CT HVAC CHANGEOUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00
1501-033 023-240-017 MONTCLAIR 

APARTMENTS  LP
150 S 19TH AVE REPLACEMENT OF 80 WATER 0.00 0.00 580.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1501-034 021-180-054 GONZAGA, HELEN & 
AMADOR  W/H

785 ROSEWOOD LN TEAR OFF RESHEET, 30 YR C 2,800.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1501-037 023-240-017 MONTCLAIR 
APARTMENTS  LP

150 S 19TH AVE TEAR OFF, RESHEET, INSTAL      47,800.00 735.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.21

1501-038 020-024-017 MENDEZ, JESS A & 
GABRIELA  H/W

517 ARMSTRONG ST TEAR OFF,  REPLACE ANY DR       6,458.33 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.84

1501-039 023-060-024 WILLIAMS-LOZANO, 
ELIZABETHE & 
SALVADOR

721 OPORTO ST HVAC CHANGEOUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

42 Permits 736,637.69 7,277.25 836.00 348.68 2,193.00 98.01



JANUARY 2015 - CALENDAR YEAR LVFD MONTHLY CALLS

NAME
WEEK 

1
WEEK 

2
WEEK 

3 
WEEK 

4
WEEK 

5
MEETINGS / 

DRILLS
FIRES / 

GEN

EMT / 
PUBLIC  
ASSIST

TRAIN. 
/ MISC.

MONTLY 
TOTAL

FIRES / 
GEN 
YTD

PUBLI
C 

ASSIS
T YTD

TRAIN.
MISC. / 

YTD
MEETINGS / 
DRILLS YTD

YEAR TO 
DATE TOTAL YTD %

TOTAL DISPATCHED 1 1 1 1 0 4 23 118 0 145 23 118 0 4 145 100%
50 1 1 1 1 0 4 8 45 0 57 8 45 0 4 57 39%
85 1 0 1 1 0 3 11 41 0 55 11 41 0 3 55 38%
49 0 0 0 1 0 1 9 47 0 57 9 47 0 1 57 39%
76 1 1 0 1 0 3 6 20 0 29 6 20 0 3 29 20%
82 1 1 1 1 0 4 1 13 0 18 1 13 0 4 18 12%
88 1 1 1 1 0 4 10 50 0 64 10 50 0 4 64 44%
27 1 1 1 1 0 4 9 24 0 37 9 24 0 4 37 26%
8 0 1 1 1 0 3 11 48 0 62 11 48 0 3 62 43%
2 1 1 1 1 0 4 9 38 0 51 9 38 0 4 51 35%
78 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 52 0 68 12 52 0 4 68 47%
48 1 1 1 1 0 4 15 53 0 72 15 53 0 4 72 50%
52 1 1 1 1 0 4 6 44 0 54 6 44 0 4 54 37%
11 0 1 1 1 0 3 8 53 0 64 8 53 0 3 64 44%
56 1 1 0 1 0 3 3 14 0 20 3 14 0 3 20 14%
17 0 1 1 1 0 3 6 42 0 51 6 42 0 3 51 35%
36 1 1 1 0 0 3 18 63 0 84 18 63 0 3 84 58%
35 1 0 1 1 0 3 8 17 0 28 8 17 0 3 28 19%
77 1 1 1 0 0 3 9 58 0 70 9 58 0 3 70 48%
79 1 1 1 1 0 4 8 24 0 36 8 24 0 4 36 25%
81 1 1 0 1 0 3 7 34 0 44 7 34 0 3 44 30%
73 1 1 1 1 0 4 8 36 0 48 8 36 0 4 48 33%
19 1 1 1 1 0 4 6 33 0 43 6 33 0 4 43 30%
23 0 1 1 0 0 2 4 8 0 14 4 8 0 2 14 10%
89 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 48 0 64 12 48 0 4 64 44%
87 1 1 1 1 0 4 14 51 0 69 14 51 0 4 69 48%
68 1 0 1 1 0 3 10 25 0 38 10 25 0 3 38 26%
83 1 1 1 0 0 3 12 43 0 58 12 43 0 3 58 40%
72 0 1 0 1 0 2 8 23 0 33 8 23 0 2 33 23%
62 1 1 0 0 0 2 14 37 0 53 14 37 0 2 53 37%
24 1 1 1 0 0 3 10 40 0 53 10 40 0 3 53 37%
38 1 1 1 1 0 4 2 7 0 13 2 7 0 4 13 9%
29 0 1 1 1 0 3 1 15 0 19 1 15 0 3 19 13%
65 0 1 1 0 0 2 5 37 0 44 5 37 0 2 44 30%
59 0 1 0 1 0 2 4 7 0 13 4 7 0 2 13 9%
86 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 7 0 10 2 7 0 1 10 7%

COLUMN TOTALS 25 31 27 27 0 110 286 1197 0 1593 286 1197 0 110 1593

$7,965.00 ACCOUNT # 4222-4310



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 

January, 2015

Date 
Submitted File No. Project Description Business/Applicant No. Address/Location APN No.

Date 
Approved   
or 
(Denied)

No. of 
Business 
Days to 
Process

01/26/15 2015-01 Sign Approval -                               
One Freestanding and Two Wall 
Signs                                               

Bronco Trailer 
Sales/Sam Lakhani

1575 Enterprise Drive 024-051-027 In Process

01/26/15 2015-01 Site Plan Review - (Minor)              
Construct an Office and 
Warehouse                                     

Bronco Trailer 
Sales/Sam Lakhani

1575 Enterprise Drive 024-051-027 In Process

01/26/15 2015-02 Home Occupation -                         
(Minor) Home Office

Robert Davilla 342 W. Spring Lane 021-460-030 01/26/15 Same Day

01/08/15 2015-01 Home Occupation -                         
(Minor) Home Office

Jonathan Cruz 648 Siena Way 023-610-050 01/08/15 Same Day

10/29/14 2014-03 Site Plan Review - (Minor)              
Construct a Commercial/Retail 
Building                                           
*Applicant received City Engineer 
comments 12/16/14 and is 
drawing final site plan for review

Rick Rocha 755 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-360-011 In Process *

10/16/14 2014-01 Tentative Subdivision Map              
*Incomplete Application and Map - 
Applicant to re-submit complete 
application

Great Valley Land Co. North of E. D Street 023-020-010 In Process *

     * Reason for delay listed in Project Description.
        PC ‐ Planning Commission

        CC ‐ City Council



 Refuse Report

26%

59%

15%

2014 Residential Refuse Breakdown

GREEN CAN

BLACK CAN

BLUE CAN

31.86

348.49

215.44

479.96

119.07

33.38

354.23

195.07

483.63

128.61

352.45

4336.47

3147.19

5656.05

1301.81

ERCIAL RECYCLING

MMERCIAL TRASH

GREEN CAN

BLACK CAN

BLUE CAN

Refuse Tonnage January 2015

2014 Total Jan 2014 Jan 2015



PEAK DAY GALLONS MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY CUBIC FEET*

JANUARY 5,199,000 133,568,000 17,856,684

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

MAY
 
JUNE
 
JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

TOTAL:

* Gallons ÷7.48 = Cubic Feet

CITY OF LEMOORE
WATER PRODUCTION

2015



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
MONTH PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS
JANUARY 4,396,000 5,133,000 5,066,000 6,143,000 5,199,000
FEBRUARY 4,932,000 5,499,000 5,604,000 7,012,000
MARCH 4,708,000 6,249,000 6,609,000 6,590,000
APRIL 7,607,000 6,729,000 8,828,000 8,190,000
MAY 8,173,000 8,877,000 9,666,000 8,874,000
JUNE 9,339,000 11,154,000 10,978,000 9,933,000
JULY 10,656,000 10,512,000 10,547,000 10,862,000
AUGUST 9,710,000 10,465,000 10,176,000 9,697,000
SEPTEMBER 10,137,000 9,712,000 9,688,000 8,776,000
OCTOBER 7,822,000 8,380,000 8,225,000 8,132,000
NOVEMBER 7,414,000 6,459,000 6,910,000 7,522,000
DECEMBER 4,964,000 5,327,000 5,615,000 5,105,000

TOTAL 89,858,000 94,496,000 97,912,000 96,836,000 5,199,000
* Gallons ÷ 7.48 = cubic feet

WATER PRODUCTION
CITY OF LEMOORE



2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
MONTH MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE

JANUARY 117,353,000 138,630,000 132,348,000 157,273,000 133,568,000
FEBRUARY 111,965,000 133,667,000 129,994,000 136,619,000
MARCH 126,662,000 158,741,000 170,017,000 167,168,000
APRIL 156,861,000 165,356,000 211,201,000 191,304,000
MAY 228,233,000 242,101,000 262,385,000 242,530,000
JUNE 242,330,000 278,757,000 291,387,000 265,231,000
JULY 281,784,000 294,826,000 296,652,000 280,327,000
AUGUST 278,577,000 293,321,000 282,965,000 257,037,000
SEPTEMBER 255,360,000 258,447,000 254,390,000 227,128,000
OCTOBER 200,195,000 218,003,000 223,710,000 205,834,000
NOVEMBER 154,815,006 157,856,000 172,908,000 159,366,000
DECEMBER 134,505,000 131,258,000 _151,140,000 132,430,000
TOTAL: 2,288,640,006 2,470,963,000 2,579,097,000 2,422,247,000 133,568,000
* Gallons ÷ 7.48 = cubic feet

CITY OF LEMOORE

WATER PRODUCTION




	Agenda 2-17-15
	SS Item 1-1 - Staff Report - 2015 Goals and Objectives
	SS Item 1-2 - Goals and Objectives - Both
	Item 2-1 - Minutes  2-3-15
	Item 2-2 - Warrant Register 2-12-15
	ETA
	GLTA
	RTA

	Item 2-3-1 - Staff Report - Interim City Mgr Employment Agrmt
	Item 2-3-2 - Interim City Mgr Employment Agrmt
	Item 2-4-1 - Staff Report - Approval of 2012-2015 Salary Schedules
	Item 2-4-2  -Resolution 2015-03 - Salary Schedule Adoption
	Item 2-4-3 - Salary Schedule 2012-2013 Updated
	Blank Page

	Item 2-4-4  - Salary Schedule 2013-2014 Updated
	Blank Page

	Item 2-4-5 - Salary Schedule 2014-2015 Updated
	Item 2-4-6 - Salary Schedule 2014-2015 Updated 1-1-15
	Item 2-5-1 - Staff Report - Amendment 1 to GASE MOU
	Item 2-5-2 - GASE 2014-17 Amendment No 1
	Item 2-6-1 - Staff Report - 2015 Goals and Objectives
	Item 2-6-2 - 2015 Goals and Objectives
	Item 2-7 - Staff Rpt - BVP Grant
	Item 2-8 - Staff Report - Bid Award 2014 Street Project
	Item 2-9-1 - Staff Report - Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Item 2-9-2 - Resolution 2015-04 KC Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Item 2-9-3 - Kings Co Multi-Jurisdictional LHMP
	Kings County Base resub final LHMP 111714 
	Lemoore Community Profile final
	Avenal Community Profile Final
	Corcoran Community Profile final
	Hanford Community Profile final
	Kings County School Districts final
	Kings Uninc Community Profile final
	Santa Rosa Rancheria Community Profile Final
	School District chart

	Item 2-10 - RDA Warrant Register
	Item 4-1-1 - Staff Report to Successor Agency ROPS 15-16A
	Item 4-1-2 - Lemoore_ROPS_15-16A
	ROPS Summary
	ROPS Detail
	ROPS Cash Balances
	ROPS Prior Period Adj
	ROPS Notes

	Item 4-2-1 - Staff Report - Chamber Agreement 012015
	Item 4-2-2 - City Chamber Agreement 2015-2020
	Item 4-2-3 - State of the Chamber January 2015
	Item 4-2-4 - 2015 Budget (City)
	Item 4-2-5 - Chamber - City & RDA Financial Contributions - 2015 Historic
	Item 4-3 - Staff Report - Planning Update 021015
	AU0 - Activity Update Memo 2-17-15
	AU1 - Bldg Report January 2015
	Bldg RptJAN-15
	Sheet1

	MonthEndReports-IssuedPermits-JAN-15
	Building Permits System


	AU2 - LVFD Monthly Calls January 2015
	AU3 - Planning Applications Report January 2015
	AU4 - Refuse Report January 2015
	AU5 - Water Report January 2015
	WTRCF15
	Sheet1

	WTRPDG15
	Sheet1

	WTRPRO15
	Sheet1


	AU6 - Avelar - BATI Training



